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Important:

The board of directors (“Board of Directors”) and the
supervisory committee (“Supervisory Committee”)
and each of the directors (“Directors”), the
supervisors (“Supervisors”) and the senior officers
(“Senior Officers”) of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (the “Company”) hereby confirm that
there are no false representations, material omissions or
misleading statements contained in this report, and that
they, severally and jointly, accept full responsibility for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents
of this report.

The chairman (Mr. Zhang Daiming), financial controller
(Mr. Hou Ning) and the chief of the finance department
(Mr. He Xiaohong) of the Company hereby declare that
the financial report of the Company for 2015 is true and
complete.

All of the directors had attended the board meeting to
approve the annual report of 2015 (the Report).

The proposal of distributed profit approved by the Board
is based on the total number of shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2015. A cash dividend of RMBO0.2
(including tax) for every 10 shares will be distributed
to all shareholders. The Board also proposed that no
stock dividends will be issued and no capital reserve will
be converted into share capital. This proposal must be
submitted for approval in the annual general meeting of
2015.

The Report has been audited by ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants, which has issued a standard and
unqualified auditor’s report.

The future plans, development strategies and other
forward looking statements in the Report do not amount
to actual commitments to shareholders, Shareholders and
potential investors are advised to exercise caution when
dealing in the shares of the Company.

Please refer to the “Prospects” section of the Chairman’s
statement in this Report, which details the risks that the
Company will face and the actions that the Company will
take as a result.

This Report was prepared in both Chinese and English. In
the event of any discrepancy between the two versions,
the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Company Information
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English Name of the Company
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Legal Representative
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Company Secretary
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Telephone Number
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Facsimile Number
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E-mail Address of the Company Secretary
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Registered Address
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Office Address

B RiRTS
Postal Code
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Website of the Company
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PRC newspapers for
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Website designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Company”)

R
Mr. Zhang Daiming

Rk
Mr. Cao Changqiu

86-533-2166666

86-533-2287508

CQCAO@XHZY.COM

i ARHAMBE (R DILRESET e RmEXRERECIE
Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone,
Zibo City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”)

PEILRESEET S MEERAETR

No. 1 Lutai Ave., Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City,
Shandong Province, PRC

255086

http://www.xhzy.com

xhzy@xhzy.com
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Listing information

HB%
H Shares
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Stock Exchange
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Stock Code

AR
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Stock Exchange
s
Stock Short Name

K5
Stock Code

BReEMEL AN

Date of First Registration

B¥EMELAM
Date of Latest Registration

T R i B

Place of Registration
H—it2ERARE

Unified Social Credit Code

EaHigE
Auditors

R

PRC

BEBMERXHMBRAT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)
1L SR Er EE e 2

Shandong Xinhua

0719

RYFEHFIZ S
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
AL

Xinhua Pharm

000756

199349 A30H
30 September 1993

201643/ 7H
7 March 2016

IWEESEM TEITHERR
Zibo Municipal Administration of Industry and Commerce of Shandong
Province

91370300164103727C
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ShineWing

Certified Public Accountants

9/F, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion,

8 Chaoyangmen Beidajie,

Dongcheng District,

Beijing 100027, PRC
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Share Registrars of H Shares

LFEHERMEY

Corporate Information Available at

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

5 EEETT

BB E(T2E RNER43-595FEH 10,1201
Charltons

1201 Dominion Centre

43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

LB R AR =TS
LRGSR BB 775 EE R O3RIESLE
4R - 100025

Jingtian Gongcheng Associates

34th Floor, 3 Building, Huamao Center,

77 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100025, PRC

PR IERITEESTT

FREL LR A ST ORISR AR R EE25%

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Zibo Branch

2 Renmin Dong Road, Zhangdian District,
Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC

BEREZELARAR]
EREEANER18BHA TR L7IE
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

IR ERERHBERAFEETEWES
Company Secretary’s Office
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Summary of Financial and Operating Results

1. HMEBRE 1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(1) BPEEHENERIBHES () Principal Financial Data (prepared in accordance with
BB HEER(EES) (AR China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises)
) (audited) (RMB)
REY
215§ 014F FEER 13F 20128 011F
Change as
2015 2014 compared to 2013 2012 2011
EH Item RMB RMB  that of last year RVB RVB RVB
(%)
EEUA Total operating income 3,597,033,209.79 3,589,749,770.93 0.20% 3,391,228,655.29 3,248,484,539.15 3,189,829,520.42
GubERCES Total profits 117,729,615.03  91,485,154.18 2869% 6443913170 5191923489  117,025,378.56
FEMER Income tax expense 23,720,864.46  23,150,467.44 246% 1444829302 1163556407  17,022,689.78
FHE Net profits 94,008,750.57  68,334,686.74 3757%  49,990,838.68  40,283,670.82  100,002,688.78
PERTER Minority interest income 10,946,493.40  17,609,375.69 (37.84%) 1083771663 944460125  13775117.11
FERLTARA Net profit attrioutable to 83,062,257.17  50,725,311.05 63.75%  89,153,122.05  30,839,000.57  86,227,571.67
BB shareholders of listed
company
BB WA Net profit attrioutable to 40,944,834.40  8,778,507.42 366.42%  (46,009,462.38)  (20,394,764.53)  54,847,665.38
R AR shareholders of isted
ARERN company after deduction of
EE non-recurring proft and loss
TEEHELEN Net cash flow from 348,636,176.12  346,342,064.00 0.66% 104,990,785.05  40,477,776.49  107,478,088.80
Benese operating activiies
ERERE Basic eamings per share 0.18 0.11 63.64% 0.09 0.07 0.19
7t/ %)
HESRYE Diluted eamings per share 0.18 0.1 63.64% 0.09 0.07 0.19
(/%)
MEFSFEE Return on equity % 4.44% 2.81% ®R163 2.18% 1.79% 4.98%
YaE EER
Increase of
1.63 percent
RERML
20156% 145K FERIEH 13ER 20125% 015X
Change as
Asat 31 As at 31 compared to As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
EH Item December 2015 December 2014 that of last year ~ December 2013 December 2012 December 2011
(%)
BAE Total assets 4,492,122,436.63 4,245,149,713.77 582% 4,009,560,374.10 3,787,773,747.51 83,138,567,619.25
Zaf Total liabilties 2,508,040,118.23 2,333,280,726.09 7.49% 2,126,210077.28 1924,751924.43 1316,817,341.59
PERRER Minority shareholder'sequity ~ 99,825,75746  91,178,815.24 9.48%  80,314,11800 8463537214  77,894902.58

FEN AT Net assets attributable to
BERFEE the shareholders of listed
company 1,884,256,560.94 1,820,690,172.44 3.49% 1,803,036,178.87 1,778,386,450.94 1,743,855,375.08

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D
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Summary of Financial and Operating Results

1. BEBEEE) 1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)
2 HBHEEFHENERNIEESE (i) Extraordinary items after income tax in accordance with

HiESNNKREER&FEA(FER PRC accounting standards include: (RMB)

#)NT - (AR%®T)

RH 2015F &8 20145448 201358 HH

Amount for Amount for Amount for  Explanation

Item 2015 2014 2013

FRBAERERS (RERIHRARAEERRT 1816089093 (65,17882077) 4294225608 MEERAERMYE
HEH) BB

Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets Disposal of fixed assets
(including write-off of provisions for assets and intangible asset
impairment)

STARMBROBAHE (EOEERTIEE . 25220,87049 112,494,778.32 55578481.75 Wi R AEH
REBAR S RETELTE R Z X NETHE B RBTHED
BR4M)

Government subsidies recognised in current profit and Received and
loss, (excluding government grants which are closely amortizationed
related to the Company’s business and conform government subsidies
with the national standard amount or quantity) recognised in the

current period

A—EH T EEEHEENTARBVZEEHAN - 15,300,105.34 13,503,817.80
EWFER

Net profit or loss of subsidiaries acquired through
merger that is under the same control from the
beginning of the period to the date of the merger

BREZDFIE %«Miwaﬁﬁmﬁx&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&h © 5,297,149.68  6,497,417.51  3897,233.00 WHEELEEENL
RERSUEREE  RHUEERERE Eiﬁ@@ﬁ REETHEESHE
BEZFER UREERFUEREE  RHI1T El
SRAENIHEESHEENGORE G

Excluding the effective hedging business associated Dividends of held-for sale
with the company’s normal operations, gains financial assets and
and losses from the holding or disposal of gains from disposal of
held-for-trading assets and liabilities, as well as held-for sale financial
gains from the disposal of held-for-sale assets. assets

EEETREENBEIERELEED 16,799,950.79  4,796,528.00 -

Reversal of the provision for receivables that had been
subject to individual impairment assessment

B Bl IE 2 MO E A B EINRA TS (17,719,942.59) (10,574,007.76)  (4,142,503.41)

Other non-operating income and expenditure,
excluding the above

B R AR 4,280,111.47  7,882,901.18  17,344,200.86

Less: Income tax
LDHREEATEE (BE) 1,361,385.06 13,506,286.83  9,272,499.88

Minority interests (after tax)

A&t 42,117,422.77 41,946,803.63 85,162,584.43 -

Total

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Summary of Financial and Operating Results

1. BEBHREE) 1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)
2. HEAEEHENERMIEESE (ii) Extraordinary items after income tax in accordance with
HESHNBREERSTE(FRIER PRC accounting standards include: (RMB) (continued)

#®)mTF : (AR®RT)(E)

i RARERTFEMRBCARE
TEFNARESREREIER
EE1F-FRBUERE)ER
FIEE SRS E RS IEE??EF%
R EERNIAR MET

2. BHELAREBEIHENEAE (& 2. Items by fair value (Prepared in accordance with
PRC accounting standards) (RMB)

PEEHENER)(ARE

loss” as an ordinary item.

Note: The Company did not list any item that is defined as extraordinary
items in “Company information disclosure of securities for public
issuance explanatory announcement No. 1 — non-recurring profit and

7T)
FRLMRE  HAERHRM
Hned EERERE OAEESY FYHREOEE biPSE
Amount as at
Amount as at 1 Change of  Total change Provision for 31 December
EH ltem January 2015 fair value of fair value impairment 2015
SHAE Financial assets:
Ef 1 Y24 EEFER Including: 1. Financial assets by fair value - - - - -
L6 5N and changes included in
BEMERAE profit or loss
Eh fEeREE Including: Derivative financial - - - - -
assets
2 IEHESRER 2. Avalable-for-sale financial ~ 217,390,560.00 - 176,006,330.00 197,231,648.00
assets
SRERE| Total financial assets 217,390,560.00 - 176,006,330.00 197,231,648.00
=H) Total 217,390,560.00 - 176,006,330.00 - 197,231,648.00

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders

1. BRipEEDBRE 1. Charges in share capital structure
25 E K
Count unit: share
20155128318 20151 A1H
31 December 2015 1 January 2015
B iR %R5 BRIPHE (SHEBRFLLE BihgiE (hBRALG)
Number of % of total Number of % of total
Class of shares shares share capital shares  share capital
(share) (%) (share) (%)
—. BREGHN 1. Total number of conditional
B AE tradable shares 8,925 0.002% 0 0
ERSTd State-owned shares 0 0 0 0
FREAR R Domestic legal person shares (] 0 0 0
ARBRERHESER Conditional tradable senior
management A shares 8,925 0.002% 0 0
Hit Other shares 0 0 0 0
= ERERMAE 2. Total number of unconditional
B AR tradable shares 457,303,905 99.998% 457,312,830 100.00%
ARBE B (AlR) Renminbi ordinary shares
(A shares) 307,303,905 67.198% 307,312,830 67.20%
F5N ETSNE B Overseas listed foreign shares
(HiR) (H shares) 150,000,000 32.80% 150,000,000 32.80%
= R 3. Total number of shares 457,312,830 100% 457,312,830 100.00%
2. BEBERMNA 2. Shareholders information

1 R-ZZE—AEF+-A=+—8"
KRR RAE A32,257TF » 8
FEHRS AR B A5 5 » ARRARE 32,212
PR ZE—XRFE-_A=-+NH
RABIERAEEB4,123F - B
HEE IR 455 - ARRR% 334,078
)5 °

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

1)

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had on record a total
of 32,257 shareholders, including 45 holders of H Shares
and 32,212 holders of A Shares. As at 29 February 2016,
the Company had on record a total of 34,123 shareholders,
including 45 holders of H Shares and 34,078 holders of A
Shares.
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders

2.

B R 1R

ERNBE) 2. Shareholders information (continued)
R-E—AFt+-_A=+—HB%# (2)  As at 31 December 2015, the top ten shareholders of the
BARNBRMDAT+REEB RN Company were as follows:

T
R
Count unit: share
KEER HEER ERGRRER
gElx  BEHNE {0 {4 Pledged or frozen
RR%H BREE HRLA RRBE  AEERER ke khBE RiORE HE
Numberof ~ Number of
conditional  unconditional
Nature of % ofthetotal ~ Number of tradable tradable
Name of shareholders shareholders ~ share capital  shares held Change  shares held shares  Status Number
WRHEEEERAREAAT A5k 3446% 157,587,763 (2,856,932 157,587,763
Shandong Xinhua Pharmacetical Group State-owned
Company Limited (‘SXPGC’) shares
BERAGE (REA) BRAA REHR 3056% 148,387,698 148,887,608
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Circulating H
shares
FEASRRROERAD-E4 it 070% 3194559 3,194,559
- LARBER-018L-CTO0R
New China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. - Traditional - Fund
- General Insurance Products - 018L-CT001
Shen
Bl BRAKA 051% 2348155 2,348,155
Tu Dequan Domestic
indlvidual
hERFRTRNERAA it 044% 2,000,000 2,000,000
%ﬂ%ig%ﬁ%&ﬁx?m RERS
China Construction Bank Co., LTD. - PengHua  Fund
Healthcare Equity Securities Investment Fund
IERER-BRRT-TRRNEERE S 040% 182197 1,821,977
EREEEEAE
New Times Securities - GuangFa Bank - Fund
Collective Asset Management Plan, No. 22 of
New Times & New Wealth
ZEABRRENERLA-BEES -5 037% 1,685,601 1,685,601
Huaxia Life Insurance Company Limited Fund
- Own funds
ERAREEERAA BR—REA 032% 1463707 1,463,707
Hui Tou Holding Group Co., Ltd. Domestic
general legal
person
RBRTRNERAR -REEAS £ 030% 1365069 1,385,069
RRNERRELS
Bank Of Communications Co., Ltd. - Chang ~ Fund
Xin Quantify the Mixed Type Securities
Investment Fund
fth BRERA 0.30% 1,362,800 1,352,800
Yang Lin Domestic
indlvidual

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D

9



N

%8 IR RIB R

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders

2.

B R 1R

IR/rﬂ(/ ) 2.
R-E—RF+-_A=+—8B#
BARARBRODAI+RBRERB LD
()

10 SR & IR R IFAER

Shareholders information (continued)

(2)  As at 31 December 2015, the top ten shareholders of the
Company were as follows: (continued)

The top ten shareholders holding unconditional tradable shares
of the Company were as follows:

B R
Count unit: share
BENRBZEE
BEREE REFHFENBE RIDER BE
Number of
unconditional
Name of shareholders listed shares Class of shares Number
IR EEE AR ET QR 157,587,763 ARMEEER 157,587,763
SXPGC RMB ordinary shares
BARREE (RIBA) BRAF 148,887,698 3EHN ETHINE R 148,887,698
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Overseas listed foreign
shares
MEASRBRROERA G —E5— TRR 3,194,559 ARME®BR 3,194,559
B fh—018L- CTOO1/
New China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. — RMB ordinary shares
Traditional — General Insurance Products
—018L-CTO01 Shen
B 2,348,155 ARMKLEK 2,348,155
Tu Dequan RMB ordinary shares
PEERRITIRD AR A E - IFEEERE 2,000,000 ARMEERER 2,000,000
RENBHICEES
China Construction Bank Co., LTD. — RMB ordinary shares
Peng Hua Healthcare Equity Securities
Investment Fund
R ES — BRIRIT — R 1,821,977  ARMEE@EA 1,821,977
E22E S EETIEE
New Times Securities — GuangFa Bank — RMB ordinary shares
Collective Asset Management Plan,
No. 22 of New Times & New Wealth
EEASRBROERART -EEES 1,685,601 AREE®E 1,685,601
Huaxia Life Insurance Company Limited — RMB ordinary shares
Own funds
FEIERERBERA 1,463,707 AREEZBEK 1,463,707
Hui Tou Holding Group Co., Ltd. RMB ordinary shares
RBIRITROBRAF —REE(LEERE 1,365,069 ARKEEBK 1,365,069
ABHREES
Bank Of Communications Co., Ltd. — Chang RMB ordinary shares
Xin Quantify the Mixed Type Securities
Investment Fund
R 1,352,800 AR®EL @K 1,352,800
Yang Lin RMB ordinary shares

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders

2. BEWRARBE)

@

R-_ZE—RAF+_A=+—HH
BARRRBRODAI+RBRERB LD
T (&)

1, RARERRM M+ RBRRZ
RO FERBEERPEES
EEEEZESRMIC EHATF
PRFF R E B S RBEEEIE)
MEM—BITEA - BARKINE
PRz R R R R e £
MARBRSBREDESREE
BREREN—BITBA -

AABERERA LM ERE G
IRz - bl R AR
B+ RIRR 2 PR 7 R
7 BAAESFECETARR
KRB ESREEEREN
ER—BITEIA °

2. BAARRBRMDE%IA EHER
BREABILEEREEEGRE
FRARF - ANBHEBA - HFH
BRGHBBA-GMEBEHRESR
1,888,032 - WEDEE
968,0000%

RS R

AN AR AR RS R A L) BR R R
BEBAERETAR([FEE
E ) FEEEKZN1995F6
A158 - BEREBERAR - it
BRBANRBE2 808 T  SEA
REABRRSG  ELEHER -
WERELETRER:  BHE
FIZE B8 BEEE (b TH
WA - FES - EEAORE -
£ bIER(BLEERM)H
€ EEEHDER(ELEEHE

PO o

2. Shareholders information (continued)

@

As at 31 December 2015, the top ten shareholders of the
Company were as follows: (continued)

Note:

The Directors are not aware as to whether there is any association
amongst the ten largest shareholders of the Company, nor if any
of them are persons acting in concert as defined in the “Rules for
the information Disclosure of Changes in the Shareholding of Listed
Companies” (“CSRC Rules”) issued by the CSRC. In addition, the
Directors do not know whether there is any association amongst
the shareholders of H Shares of the Company or if any of them are
persons acting in concert as defined in the CSRC Rules.

The Directors do not know whether there is any association amongst
the ten largest shareholders of unconditional tradable shares of the
Company, or any association amongst the ten largest shareholders of
unconditional tradable shares and the ten largest shareholders of the
Company or if any of them are persons acting in concert as defined in
the CSRC Rules.

The only domestic shareholder holding more than 5% of the total
issued shares of the Company is SXPGC. During the reporting period,
SXPGC reduced its holding by 1,888,932 shares by secondary
market auction and 968,000 shares by judicial auction.

Information about the controlling shareholders

SXPGC, being the controlling shareholder of the Company,
was established as a wholly state-owned company on 15 June
1995. The registered capital of SXPGC is RMB298,500,000
and its legal representative is Mr. Zhang Daiming. SXPGC
is mainly engaged in the engineering design, real estate
and restaurants; packaging and manufacturing of chemical
equipment; production and sale of chemical products (except
for hazardous chemicals); and import and export business
(within the scope approved).

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders

2.

BRERERMR(E
() ERREERE)

FEEBOIERIRR AEBIER
EEERAF(TEEER]) - K
200541 F28H » EE K
AREESSEIL BRHEBEAR
Al EARKREREER  LE®
B SR AlLEERE -
HEMIERR ()7 ) 28 F 1T
MEXEKE  BAETE-

2.

Shareholders information (continued)

©)

Information about the controlling shareholders (continued)

Hualu Holdings Group Company Limited (“HHGC”), a wholly
state-owned company, the controlling shareholder of SXPGC,
was established on 28 January 2005. The registered capital of
HHGC is RMB850,000,000 and its legal representative is Mr.
Cheng Guanghui. HHGC is mainly engaged in the investment
in fertilisers, petrochemical industries and sectors which are not
prohibited by the state (or the local community). HHGC is also
engaged in asset management.

LWREREEEEEEREES
Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission

100%

100%

EREERRAR

China Shandong Group Ltd.

100%

HRABRAR
Well Bring Ltd

2.99%

EREK
HHGC

100%

FrEE LM
SXPGC

34.46%

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff

EF EFEREMSREEARG
]y

E=

RASEEAE - 5358 mAKER  BERE
ERHTARBERITHE » MRS EE
BIE4 - 1087 F R | U RFERSERTE - F
FERFNME - STEISFHERATEIE - R
BHERIAEIE « 38 0 RAFIRIALIE - IR(T
ARREER  \URHEZEBEEEERETA
RIZER  UEHERNEEHOBRETAA
WITEE  \IWRMERE(BNBRARES
kEEHE-PRYEFGRETQRES
E SENE-GIeREERARESREER
FECSH)BEXEARARESRE  ILEHER
B(ER)BRETAREZEER -

ERREELE - B35% » B - #h 2 BEET -
1085 F FEN IR E# BB BEHE -
19085F £1988F (L fEfT B AN - 1001 FIEF L
RERASBEEpLE RS LETER
B TE  FEMERERE ik AQF]
IR BN - BIAAKIR - FEEER B B
I RRAABKIE - EEERTARARAESE -
IR EEHEEARETAFNES « K
I o

EBFRE - 465% - BARATIZADN - |ERH
B FRE(CEHE - IWRABEY(LEE
T 19N FR IR ERNEF T - BES
IEIE(E ~ H1F - BCIERNIE - RIAIE - 1R
EARRES B8 - IWFFEBELETR
SHERARERR - HERE(BR)ERAT
BEERIURNMERSTRRARARESR -

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Directors

Mr. Zhang Daiming, aged 53, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Shanghai Financial and Economic University. Mr. Zhang joined
Shangdong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1987 and was previously
a workshop technician, planner of the planning and statistics department
of the Company, the deputy manager and manager of the international
trade department of the Company and the deputy general manager of
the Company. Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Company, the chairman
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, and
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH, the executive director of
Shandong Xinhua Import & Export Company Limited, the chairman of Zibo
Xinhua Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Zibo Xinhua- Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Xinhua (Zibo) Real Estate Company
Limited and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (USA) Company Limited.

Mr. Ren Fulong, aged 53, is a researcher and practising pharmacist. He
graduated from Shandong Changwei Medicine College in 1985. From 1985
to 1988, Mr. Ren was a resident physician. In 1991, Mr. Ren obtained his
master of medicine from Beijing Medical University and joined Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in the same year. He previously held the
positions of the deputy director and the director of the Company’s research
institute, the assistant to the general manager and the deputy general
manager of the Company, the deputy general manager of SXPGC and the
general manager of the Company. Mr. Ren is the director of the Company,
the director and general manager of SXPGC.

Mr. Du Deping, aged 46, is a senior engineer. He graduated from the Ocean
University of PRC, specialising in chemistry and obtained a master’s degree
in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He joined Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. He was previously a deputy
head and head of the workshop, assistant to the general manager of the
Company and deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Du is currently
a director and the general manager of the Company, and the chairman of
the board of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Chemical Design Company
Limited, Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited and
Shandong Xinhua Electrical and Mechanical Engineering Company Limited.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Xu Lie, aged 50, is a senior economist and professor level senior political
engineer, and is a university graduate and is a master of management. He
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1986 and has been the
deputy director and the director of the office, the deputy head of the office,
and the manager of the human resource department. Mr. Xu is currently
a director and the chairman of the labour union of the Company, and a
director and the chairman of the labour union of SXPGC.

Mr. Zhao Bin, aged 56, graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law with EMBA. He joined the People’s Liberation Army in 1976,
previously held the positions of soldier, the ex-officio of deputy company,
the ex-officio of company, the ex-officio of deputy battalion, deputy director
and director of the political department of Jinan Military Region and
Shandong Province Military Region. Mr. Zhao has worked in the enterprise
since 1998. He previously held the positions of investment manager and
office general manager of Shandong Hualu Group Company Limited,
deputy general manager of Shandong Hualu International Business Center
Company Limited and general manager of the development planning
department of Hualu Holdings Group Company Limited. Mr. Zhao is the
assistant to the general manager and general manager of the development
planning department and the director of legal affairs office of Hualu Holdings
Group Company Limited. Mr. Zhao is a director of the Company.

Mr. Du Guanhua, aged 58, is a doctor, pharmacology researcher (professor)
and tutor to PhD candidates. Mr. Du obtained a PhD in physiology from
Peking Union Medical College. Mr. Du has been the head of National Center
for Pharmaceutical Screening since July 1999, the chairman of Chinese
Pharmacological Society since November 2007. Mr. Du is currently an
independent non-executive director of Shandong Luoxin Pharmacy Stock
Co., Ltd. and an independent director of Hebei Changshan Biochemical
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Du has been elected as an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 30 March 2015.

Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis, aged 42, He holds a bachelor degree in
accounting from the University of Canberra, Australia, and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the CPA Australia. He has extensive experience in accounting,
finance and corporate governance. Mr. Chan is currently the chief financial
officer of Denox Environmental & Technology Holdings Limited (stock code:
01452), an independent Director of KWAN ON HOLDINGS (stock code:
08305). Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive Director of the
Company.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Li Wenming, aged 41, is a postgraduate. He graduated from Faculty
of Management of the Dalian University of Technology and obtained a
Master of Business Administration. Mr. Li previously held the positions of
officer of Henan Pingdingshan Zhanhe Health Bureau, market researcher
of Beijing CHNMED Consulting Co., Ltd., manager of the pharmaceutical
department of Beijing Peking University Founder Group and a partner of the
pharmaceutical department of Beijing Hejun Consulting Co., Ltd. Mr. Li is
currently a partner of Hejun Group Co., Ltd, a deputy secretary general of
China Association of Pharmaceutical Commerce, an independent director
of Beijing AKEC Medical Co., Ltd., a director of Beijing Tianheng Hospital
Management Co., Ltd. and a director of Diacha Diagnostics Technology
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has been elected as the independent non-
executive director since 20 March 2015.

Mr. Yu Xiong, aged 54, Mr. Yu graduated from Fudan University majoring
in Chemistry, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science. Mr. Yu is
currently a researcher of China State Institute of Pharmaceutical Industry,
a part-time professor of Shanghai Jiao Tong University and East China
Normal University, and the chairman of the Pharmaceutical Engineering
Expert Committee of the Chinese Pharmaceutical Association. He has
been received a special allowance issued by the government in 1999. He
has been an independent director of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd., a director of Shanghai Shyndec Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
and an independent director of Guangdong Taiantang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. Mr. Yu has been an independent non-executive director of Livzon
Pharmaceutical Group Inc. since September 2013. Mr. Yu has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 22 December
2014. Mr. Yu resigned as the independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 20 March 2015.

Supervisors

Mr. Li Tianzhong, aged 53, is a senior engineer. He graduated from the
Shandong Institute of Technology, specialising in industry automation in
19883. He joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in the same year
. Mr. Li has been the engineer and director of the electric motor workshop,
manager of the trade department, supply and marketing department and
drug department of the Company, director of the Company, assistant to the
general manager, director and deputy general manager of Xinhua Lukang
Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, director and deputy general manager
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited. Mr. Li is
currently the chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company and
a deputy general manager of SXPGC and the chairman of Shandong Zibo
XinCat Pharmaceutical Company Limited.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Mr. Tao Zhichao, aged 46, graduated from East China University of Politics
and Laws and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Tao was also
conferred a master’s degree in law from Shandong University. Mr. Tao is a
partner of Shandong Zhigong Associates, and an independent supervisor of
the Company.

Ms. Hu Yanhua, aged 41, is a senior political engineer, graduated from
Shandong University. She has also received a postgraduate education and
is a master of Economics. She joined the Company in 1996. Ms. Hu was
the deputy secretary of the Youth League Committee of Xinhua Lukang
Pharmaceutical Group Corporation. Ms. Hu is currently the secretary of the
political affairs department and employee supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jian Ping, aged 48, graduated from the School of Pharmaceutical
Engineering of Shenyang Pharmaceutical University and is a senior engineer.
He joined the Company in July 1989 and has held positions in the Company
such as a factory technician, the project leader of the research department,
head of the fourth synthesis laboratory and deputy head of the chemical and
pharmaceutical research centre. He is now the head of the chemical and
pharmaceutical research centre of the Company’s research department, as
well as the employee representative of the factory management committee.
Mr. Wang was elected as the Employee Representative Supervisor in the
meeting of the employee representatives of the Company on 8 August
2015.

Mr. Zhang Yueshun, aged 66, is a senior accountant, a certified public
accountant and a certified public assessor of the PRC. Mr. Zhang was
the controller of an enterprise, the deputy chief of Zibo Office affiliated to
the Enterprise Department of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the vice
director of the Zibo Municipal State-owned Assets Administration and the
chief accountant of Shandong Zibo Accountant Firm. Mr. Zhang is currently
a senior consultant of Zibo Puhua Accountant Firm. Mr. Zhang resigned
as an independent supervisor of the Company with effect from 27 October
2015.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Senior Officers

Mr. Wang Xiaolong, aged 51, is a senior engineer. He graduated form
Shandong University of Technology, specialising in automation. Mr.
Wang joined the Factory in 1988 and previously held the positions of
deputy director and director of the electricity workshop, the director of the
machinery sub-factory, the deputy general manger of the Company and the
deputy general manger of SXPGC. Mr. Wang is currently a deputy general
manager of the Company.

Mr. Dou Xuejie, aged 56, is a researcher. He graduated from Shandong
Medicine College, specialising in pharmacy and obtained a master’s degree
in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He joined the Factory in
1982. He was previously manager, deputy director and the director of the
quality control department, the deputy chief engineer and quality director
of the Company. Mr. Dou is currently deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. Du Deqing, aged 51, is a senior engineer. He graduated from Qingdao
Science and Technology University, specialising in organic chemical
engineering and obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from Wuhan University of Technology and obtained a master’s degree in
chemical engineering from Qingdao Science and Technology University.
He joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1986. He was
previously deputy director and director of the dispatch department, the
director of the purchasing department and assistant to the general manager
of the Company. Mr. Du is currently deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. He Tongqing, aged 46, is a senior economist. He graduated from
the Shandong Polytechnic University, specialising in materials science
and engineering and obtained a MBA from Shandong University. Mr. He
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. His previous
positions included, workshop technician, planner, sales officer, regional
manager, manager of the drug department, marketing director and the
general manager of Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Company
Limited. Mr. He is currently a deputy general manager of the Company, and
the chairman of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited, the
executive director of Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited and
Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Company Limited.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Senior Officers (continued)

Mr. Hou Ning, aged 42, holds a master’s degree in applied accounting and
finance from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a senior accountant and a
senior economist. Mr. Hou ever served as deputy head of Auditing Division
of Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Co., Ltd., head of Audit Department,
head of Investment Department of Technological Development Centre,
manager of Marketing Department and manager of Finance Department of
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Company Limited. Mr. Hou currently
serves as chief financial officer of the Company and the Director of Zibo
Xinhua- Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Shandong Xinhua
Medical Trade Company Limited.

Mr. Cao Changgqiu, aged 46, is a senior economist. He graduated from
the Ocean University of China, specialising in economic management and
joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. Mr. Cao is the
company secretary of the Company.

Ms. Guo Lei, aged 46, is an economist. She graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Trade College, specialising in accounting and obtained a master’s
degree in economics from Beijing University. She joined the Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1992. Ms. Guo resigned as a company
secretary of the Company with effect from 26 May 2015.

The term of the Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers of the Company is
until 22 December 2017.
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Senior Officers (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and

Changes of directors, supervisors and senior officers of the Company and

RARIDERAT - the number of shares held by them were as follows:
#20155 #20145
4 R 12A 31 HE&® 2EER 12A31AEH
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
(share) as at Change in (share) as at
31 December number of 31 December
Name Position 2015 Shares 2014
EE
Directors
R ¥R 11,900 11,900 AHH
Mr. Zhang Daiming Chairman Nil
EEL FEMTES STl = STl
Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
B WITES - are KR i3 KB
Mr. Du Deping Executive Director, General Manager Nil Nil Nil
&3 FHITES AR i AR
Mr. Xu Lie Non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
I FEMTES STl = STl
Mr. Zhao Bin Non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
PRIPEL BUIERTES REE i3 KR
Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis Independent non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
e BUIENTES (R2015F3A208BET) AR fas AEH
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent non-executive Director (has been Nil Nil Nil
appointed with effect from 20 March 2015)
EEE B IETESE (R2015F3A208EE(T) AR i AFEH
Mr. Li Wenming Independent non-executive Director (has been Nil Nil Nil
appointed with effect from 20 March 2015)
A [RBIIEHITEE (R201653 A20H B E) AR = AR
Mr. Yu Xiong Original Independent non-executive Director Nil Nil Nil
(resigned with effect from 20 March 2015)
EE
Supervisors
EFN EEETR AR i AHEH
Mr. Li Tianzhong Chairman of Supervisory Committee Nil Nil Nil
g BUESE PSSl s STl
Mr. Tao Zhichao Independent Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
[BEhEE BIEE KR i KR
Ms. Hu Yanhua Employee Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
FHIF BTEE (2015548 A10BEEE) AR = RFH
Mr. Wang Jianping Employee Supervisor (appointed with effect
from 10 August 2015)
& ANE FREEE (2015610827 HEHT) AR i3 KB
Mr. Zhang Yueshun Original Independent Supervisor Nil Nil Nil

(resigned with effect from 27 October 2015)
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EF EFEREMSREEARG

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and

N(E) Senior Officers (continued)
#2015% #20145
e B% 12A31 B EE® SEHHER 12A31ABRY
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
(share) as at Change in (share) as at
31 December number of 31 December
Name Position 2015 Shares 2014
HtSREEAR
Senior Officers
T BlgEss KEE i AR
Mr. Wang Xiaolong Deputy General Manager Nil Nil Nil
HEMG BliaseiE AEE i AEE
Mr. Dou Xuejie Deputy General Manager Nil Nil Nil
A Al KR i3 KR
Mr. Du Deqing Deputy General Manager Nil Nil Nil
BRE BlAEaR KEE i REFE
Mr. He Tongqing Deputy General Manager Nil Nil Nil
= FHEEA KEE i AEE
Mr. Hou Ning Financial Controller Nil Nil Nil
BERK EExewE AEE i KR
Mr. Cao Changgqiu Company Secretary Nil Nil Nil
B REZGWE (201555826 H &) AR i AR
Ms. Guo Lei Original Company Secretary Nil Nil Nil
(resigned with effect from 26 May 2015)
CE 11,900 11,900 0
Total Nil

ARRESR  EEZRSREBEASAEEAR
Tﬁxf\iﬁﬁmﬁx AIEHN  —(IEBEB
KRR 5 Z 5 A E 7 = A11,9000%A
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All shares held by the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers are A
Shares. One Director purchased 11,900 A Shares of the Company by SZSE
trading system through auction during this reporting period.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and
the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December 2015 none
of the Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or
debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which required notification to the Company and the SEHK pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short
position which any such Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) of which was required
to be entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required notification to
the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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EE EFREMESREEASR Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
[ o Officers

RARFERBEREE « Aal&ENEEN The remuneration policy of the Directors, the Supervisors and the Senior
FMEANTVEZELE - WRZEL@RENKE - HEE Officers is based on (i) state policies, (i) the Company’s profit realised in
B EERHMSHRERABHH - 2015 the corresponding period, (iii) individual achievement and (iv) the average

FEAFHEEZEZESEZEBB TER income of local residents determined in accordance with state policies.
2015FEES EEMMEMER)  FHBB During the year, the remuneration and examination committee of the

TCEAR2015FEmEAEMENRE) - & Company has passed the Proposal of 2015 Annual Remuneration of

E EENRHRESSRIREASE SR Directors and Supervisors and The Proposal of 2015 Annual Remuneration

B SREBAENGHNAHESTSEZEB - of Senior Officers, and submitted the above proposals to the Board of
Directors for approval. The Directors’ and the Supervisors’ remuneration
must be approved in a shareholders’ meeting of the Company, whereas
the remuneration of the Senior Officers must be approved by the Board of
Directors.

BB EES(EEREEABENEE Respect of The Disclosure principle of the annual report of CRSC,
EENMEtmESREEAEMES(B88RHERE Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

& B\ (AR®IT) (including retirement insurance, before tax) (RMB)
20155 E REA

] Name 2015

ARBETT

RMBO0’000
EE Directors
SRAEE Mr. Zhang Daiming 64.80
(=i Mr. Ren Fulong 62.70
IHiEF Mr. Du Deping 64.70
Gl Mr. Xu Lie 50
O, Mr. Zhao Bin 0.00
g Mr. Du Guanhua 7.00
BeR i 5, Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis 7.00
A5 AR Mr. Li Wenming 7.00
B Mr. Yu Xiong 0
Ex Supervisors
TRA Mr. Li Tianzhong 50
sR A E Mr. Zhang Yueshun 3.00
b R Mr. Tao Zhichao 3.00
g Ms. Hu Yanhua 17
F&F Mr. Wang Jianping 7.30
HttSREERAR Senior Officers
FgE Mr. Wang Xiaolong 50.8
T4 Mr. Dou Xugjie 50.8
MHEE Mr. Du Deging 51.8
BERE Mr. He Tongaing 52.1
r= Mr. Hou Ning 50
BRI Mr. Cao Changaiu 16.2
ElF Ms. Guo Lei 11.9
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EX ESREAMESRERARS

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

BfER

] REHRE amE HE FE

Name Position Type Date Reasons

Al BAFHITES BE(E 2015403 A20H i ARE

Mr. Yu Xiong Independent Non-executive director Resigned 20 March 2015 Personal reason
TtEE BIUIFITES WE R 201503 20H HHBE R
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent Non-executive director Appointed 20 March 2015 Fill a vacancy
EREE BURITES RS 2016503 420H BREE TR
Mr. Li Wenming Independent Non-executive director Appointed 20 March 2015 Fill a vacancy
FHIF BIE=E tas 20158 A10H NEIHFE

Mr. Wang Jianping Employee Supervisor Appointed 10 August 2015 Company demand
RANE BIUEE BE(E 20155105278 BEARE

Mr. Zhang Yueshun Independent supervisor Resigned 27 October 2015 Personal reason
&= ExgwE BE(E 2015057268 BEARE

Ms. Guo Lei The Company secretary Resigned 26 May 2015 Personal reason

EF EF BEEERERRMHE

Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’

22

B SR B 1S R positions and remunerations in SXPGC
ERREMN ERFREMES
2] BRREMER REHRE {EHAEL B R EHIRIEAE  SHEREREHARRS
Remuneration
Name of the Termination received from
Name shareholder Position Beginning date date shareholder
FwAH HERE S 2010407 A06H - e
Mr. Zhang Daiming SXPGC Chairman 6 July 2010 No
Fiase MEEE BE KR 2010407 A06H - e
Mr. Ren Fulong SXPGC Director and general manager 6 July 2010 No
3]l LR 5% 201141 A13H - S
Mr. Xu Lie SXPGC Director 13 January 2011 No
ESNG ELE Bl 20095107 16H - B
Mr. Li Tianzhong SXPGC Deputy general manager 16 October 2009 No
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff

RIREG®

AEBEBFBEREBREE « RrEHEUEE
o WRELGHRIKE  BEE THH -
RIB-—AF+_A=+—HAEEEILA
6,348\ ZFEAEETREETTERLTES
AR#324,158F 7T,

Staff and Remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration was determined in accordance with (i) state
policies, (i) the Company’s profit in the corresponding period and (jii) the
average income of local residents. As at 31 December 2015, the number
of staff employed by the Group was 6,348, and the total amount of their
salaries and wages for the year 2015 was approximately RMB324,158,000.

HRERHERES LT

The Group’s staff can be categorised by their area of work and educational

level as follows:

EIA®

Number of

BIREE Area of Work Employees
SEANE Staff in production 3,511
IERMAR Staff in engineering and technology 603
THREERAB Staff in administration 539
HMIEAB Staff in finance 95
EmfAEAE Staff in research and development 175
HEAB Staff in charge of purchasing 39
HEAB Staff in sales 1,060
mEEBRAIAR Staff in quality control and inspection 326
A&t Total 6,348
BEIA®

Number of

BINEEE Academic Qualification Attained Employees
RER 2R University or above 952
RNBERE Tertiary Institutions 1,459
REEF Intermediate Institutions 1,410
=P RERERE Senior high schools and technical schools 1,993
M R AT2RE Junior high schools or below 534
A&t Total 6,348
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC

Standard Self-examination

The corporate governance practice implemented by the Company
has been in compliance with the relevant rules and requirements for
listed companies in the PRC.

How independent non-executive directors performed their
duties

During the year, the Board convened ten Board meetings. The
independent non-executive directors’ attendances at the Board
meetings are set out below:

HEHE
BUEEKR BEEmRe EmZRR FiEHE BE e
The numbers Personal
of the meetings attended/
Name of independent requiring written Attendance
non-executive director participation resolution by proxy Absent  Remarks
MHEE 9 9 0 0
Mr. Du Guanghua
BR1PEL 10 10 0 0
Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis
X 9 9 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
A 1 1 0 0
Mr. Yu Xiong

EREER ARREEEEXLZES

HEBMIRE R BEUERLEER

During the year, the Audit Committee convened four meetings.
The independent non-executive directors’ attendances at the four

BRAT meetings are set out below:
WUIESENRSR E2mRE HEHE EitHE BRE @
The numbers Personal
of the meetings attended/
Name of independent requiring written Attendance
non-executive director participation resolution by proxy Absent  Remarks
HEE 4 4 0 0
Mr. Du Guanghua
PRI S 4 4 0 0
Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis
F X 4 4 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
B 0 0 0 0
Mr. Yu Xiong
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC (continued)

How independent non-executive directors performed their
duties (continued)

During the year, the Remuneration and Examination Committee of the
Company convened one meeting. Mr. Yu Xiong attended the meeting.

During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Company
convened one meeting. All the members attended the meetings.

During the year, the independent non-executive directors did not raise
any disputes on the matters of the Company.

Auditing of the 2015 annual report by the Audit Committee

(1) The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors issued a written
opinion in respect of the financial and accounting statements
issued by the financial department of the Company in 2015:

The financial and accounting statement of the Company
was prepared with reference to the accounting policy of
the Company. The application of the accounting policy is
appropriate and the accounting estimates are reasonable
and in compliance with the new accounting standards for
business enterprises, the Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises as well as the regulations promulgated by the
Ministry of Finance. The information of each financial statement
consolidated in the financial statements of the Company is
complete and the basis of consolidation of the statements is
accurate. The Company’s financial statements are objective,
truthful and accurate, without any material misrepresentations
or omissions.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial statements
can be submitted to the certified accountants engaged for
annual auditing.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC (continued)

Auditing of the 2015 annual report by the Audit Committee
(continued)

@

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial and accounting
statements for year 2015 of the Company again after the
issue of a preliminary audit opinion by ShineWing in respect of
the financial statements for year 2015 of the Company, and
expressed their opinion as follows:

The Company was in compliance with the new accounting
standards for business enterprises and regulations in relation to
the financial system of the Company. The preparation process
of the financial statements was reasonable and standardised
and fairly reflected the assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity
and operating results as at 31 December 2015. The information
therein is truthful, accurate and complete.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial statements
for the year 2015 of the Company which were preliminarily
audited by ShineWing can be submitted for consideration and
approval by the Board of Directors.

Conclusive report of ShineWing in respect of the auditing of the
financial report of the Company for 2015.

On 9 January 2016, the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors approved the overall auditing plan for the financial
report of 2015 of the Company which was negotiated and
confirmed by the Company and ShineWing.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC (continued)

Auditing of the 2015 annual report by the Audit Committee
(continued)

©)

(continued)

ShineWing was of the opinion that the Company issued a
standard auditing report without any reserved opinions or
conclusions. The Company considered that ShineWing had
audited in accordance with the regulations under “Independent
auditing code of certified accountants of the PRC”. There was
ample time for auditing and reasonable allocation of auditing
staff who had attained the corresponding qualification. The
audited financial statements fully reflected the financial condition
of the Company as at 31 December 2015 and the operating
results and cash flow of the Company in 2015. The conclusion
upon auditing was in line with the actual circumstances of the
Company.

On 30 March 2016, the Audit Committee of the board of
directors convened a meeting to review the audited accounts
and results announcement of 2015 and recommended to re-
appoint ShineWing as the financial auditing institution for the
year 2016 with a term of one year.

For more information on how Remuneration and Examination
Committee performed their duties see below “(2) Information
disclosed under the requirement of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Ltd.”.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC (continued)

Status of Independence

The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder in respect
of its business, assets, management, institutions and finance. The
Company’s production and operation are also independent.

U

(i

(i)

(iv)

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of
development, manufacture and sale of bulk pharmaceuticals,
preparations and chemical products. SXPGC undertook that for
so long as SXPGC is regarded as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, it would not engage in any business directly or
indirectly in competition with the business of the Company.

The Company has its own independent production and
supplementary production system and facilities. Apart from
certain patent technologies and the trademark “Xinhua”, which
are owned by the controlling shareholder, the Company owns
all of the other intangible assets such as industrial property
rights and know-how technologies used by the Company. The
Company also has an independent procurement and sales
network.

The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder
in respect of the management of its workforce and their
salaries. The Senior Officers of the Company including the
general manager and the deputy general managers are
paid by the Company. All the general manager and deputy
general managers do not hold any position in the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

The Company holds its own shareholders’ general meetings,
and has its own board of directors, supervisory committee,
company secretaries and management, which are responsible
for the different areas and functions of the Company. The office
and the production area of the Company are separate from that
of its controlling shareholder.

The Company has an independent finance department with an
independent accounting and financial management system.
The Company also maintains its own independent accounts
with banks.

Business Competition

No substantial business competition existed between the Company
and its holding company nor its fellow subsidiaries.
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CSRC (continued)

Corporate Governance

During the reporting period, the Company continued to enhance
its corporate governance and regulate its operation, so as to
consolidate and deepen achievement from earlier special campaigns
for corporate governance. In strict compliance with the “Company
Law”, “Securities Law”, “Corporate Governance Guidelines for
Listed Companies”, “Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange”, “Guidelines of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange for the Internal Control of Listed Companies” and other
relevant laws, regulations and regulatory requirements, the Company
constantly improved its internal operational mechanism and promoted
stringent enforcement of applicable rules and regulations, ensuring
the standard and effective exercise of decision-making, execution
and supervision powers by the shareholders’ general meetings,
the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee based
on their clearly established responsibilities and orderly operation.
The convening procedures of general meetings and meetings of
the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee were in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the Company Law
and the Articles of Association. Directors and Supervisors earnestly
performed their duties in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, accountable to the Company and its shareholders and
fully safeguarding the rights of the shareholders. The management
made business decisions in strict compliance with standardized
operational procedures and various internal control rules, so as to
ensure the Company operated in accordance with rules and systems.
The Company attached importance to the performance assessment
and incentive and constraint mechanisms and emphasised position
performance appraisal system to stimulate the enthusiasm and
creativity of the managers at various levels.

During the reporting period, the Company earnestly and timely fulfilled
its information disclosure obligations under the principle of “being fair,
impartial and open (=72)” and in strict compliance with the “Rules
Governing the Listing of Stocks on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”,
the “Guidelines for Fair Information Disclosure by Listed Companies”
and other relevant rules and regulatory documents, and ensured
the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the information
disclosed and no false representation, misleading statements or
material omissions contained therein. In addition, insider registration
management was further improved to prevent insider dealings and
ensure fairness to investors.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)

During the reporting period, the Company amended the Article
of Association and its attachments pursuant to the “Guidelines
for the Listed Company’s Article of Associations (2014 revised)”,
and “Notification on Further Carrying out Listed Company’s Cash
Dividend” and “Guidelines for Listed Company Supervision No. 3 —
Listed Company’s Cash Dividend” and other relevant laws, regulations
and regulating documents.

The Company had continuing connected transactions with its holding
company and its fellow subsidiaries. Through the transactions,
the Company purchased chemical raw materials and sold water,
electricity, gas and by-products. The transactions were priced fairly
with reference to prevailing market practices, were in the interests
of minority shareholders, and in compliance with the approval
procedures and required announcement procedures for internal
connected transactions of the Company.

The establishment and implementation of assessment and
appraisal mechanisms as well as incentive mechanisms for
Senior Officers

The Company selects its Senior Officers from its staff on the basis
of talent and ability. Prior to selecting and appointing the Senior
Officers, the Board of Directors follows a set of strict selection
criteria, which include the assessment of each candidate’s character,
moral standard, coordination ability, working ability and sense of
responsibility. Once nominated by the Nomination Committee and
eventually appointed by the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors
will evaluate the Senior Officers regularly, particularly in respect of
achievements and their execution of resolutions passed by the Board
of Directors.

By analysing the duties of each of the Senior Officers, the Company
clearly sets out their job nature and scope of responsibilities and has
established a corresponding incentive and penalty scheme to reward
and sanction Senior Officers.
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CSRC (continued)

Development of internal control

The internal control leading team, as authorized by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for the organization and implementation of
specific internal control activities, the development of implementation
strategies for internal control, decision-making on material events
and supervision over the implementation and reports to the Board
of Directors in respect of the development and evaluation of the
Company’s internal control. An internal control evaluation team led
by the Audit Department of the Company and comprising key officers
with ample professional experience was set up to take charge of
the specific implementation of internal control evaluation. The Audit
Department of the Company is responsible for formulating the work
plan for evaluating internal control, which is implemented after being
approved by the internal control leading team. Pursuant to the work
plan and focusing on such key factors as internal environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information and communication and
internal supervision, the internal control evaluation team carries
out a comprehensive evaluation on the design and operation
of the Company’s internal control, including organization and
implementation of risk identification, survey of deficiencies in internal
control, preparation of the evaluation draft, summarization of the
evaluation results, preparation of internal control evaluation document.
During the evaluation process, the evaluation team timely reports to
the leading team in respect of the evaluation progress and conduct
communication and discussion on the preliminary evaluation results.
The internal control evaluation report prepared by the evaluation
team, after having been reviewed, will be submitted to the Board of
Directors for consideration and approval. Having been considered and
approved by Board of Directors, the internal control evaluation report
then will be disclosed publicly. ShineWing has been engaged by the
Company to conduct an independent audit on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC (continued)

Statement of the Board of Directors on responsibilities in
relation to internal control

The Board of Directors and all Directors of the Company warrant that
there are no false representations, misleading statements contained in
or material omissions from this report, and severally and jointly accept
full responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of
the information herein contained. It is the responsibility of the Board
of Directors to put in place a sound and effective internal control
mechanism, the establishment and implementation of which shall
be overseen by the Supervisory Committee. The management shall
be responsible for the day-to-day operation of this mechanism.
The objectives of the internal control: to reasonably ensure that
the Company’s business operation is in compliance with laws and
regulations and that the financial report and relevant information are
true and accurate; to ensure safety of assets; to improve efficiency
and effectiveness of operation and management, and to facilitate
achievement of the Company’s development strategies. Given its
intrinsic limitations, internal control can only provide reasonable
assurance to the above objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness
of internal control is subject to changes in internal and external
environment and the Company’s operation conditions. The Company
has set up supervisory system for internal control. Correction
measures will be adopted upon identification of any defect in internal
control.

Basis for establishment of internal control over financial
reporting

This evaluation report aims to assess the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s internal control as at
31 December 2015 pursuant to the requirements of the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control (“Basic Standards”)
Guidance on Application of Corporate Internal Control (“Guidance
on Application”) and Guidance on Assessment of Corporate Internal
Control (“Guidance on Assessment”) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China and other four ministries
and commissions and the Company’s internal control system and
evaluation methods on basis of the day-to- day monitoring and
special supervision of the Company’s internal control.
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CSRC (continued)

Self-evaluation report on internal control

During the reporting period, the Company established internal controls
in all material aspects according to the Basic Standards for Corporate
Internal Control and relevant rules. As such internal controls were
implemented effectively, the Company’s internal control objectives
were fulfiled and no crucial deficiency was found. The Self-evaluation
Report on Internal Control of the Company was disclosed on JuChao
website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on 31 March 2016.

Audit report of internal control

ShineWing is of the opinion that the Company has maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting in all material aspects
pursuant to the Basic Standards for Corporate Internal Control and
relevant rules as at 31 December 2015.

The Audit Report of Internal Control of the Company was disclosed
on JuChao website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on 31 March 2016.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are of the opinion that for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company complied with all code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company has always strived to comply with the best practices of
the Code.
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Corporate Governance Policies and Related Duties of the
Board

The Company strictly complies with the Listing Rules, and takes
all principles as set out in the Code as its corporate governance
policies. The Board has the following duties in respect of corporate
governance:

(1)  To formulate and review corporate governance policies and
practices of the Company, and make recommendations to the
Board;

(2)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(8) To review and monitor the policies and practices of the
Company in respect of its compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(4)  To formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual of employees and Directors;

(5)  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code.
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Group has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient number of
independent non-executive directors and at least one independent
non-executive director with appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors including
one with financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive directors of the Company have
respectively submitted confirmation of independence to confirm that
he/she has strictly complied with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the SEHK during the reporting
period. The Company considers each independent non-executive
director is independent from the Company.
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(Z)EBEEEMSXHFRERLTE 2. Information disclosed under the requirement of
NEHES FTHTRAEE(2Z) the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)
ITHAREERESETESTHINE Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
HEFRI((BRZESRALY) Supervisors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
ABEAR - RAREHEMN—ETER During the reporting period, the Company has adopted a code
TR B8R T PR GERE SR B YT AT HZ of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors and
EMITRSTA] - ARFMEEBESED Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
BEREHE  2RESHRABRSETEH out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
E_E-AF+_A=+—HIFE— Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, they
BHBSPEMESTRFTE 2 18 EAEE - MR confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
BZEBEARRBAENTIZHZE=Z in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015,
—RERAZTHIEFFEZERRRF except only for the deviation where Mr. Zhang Daiming had acquired
FEEERZEEHANGBIBERM 11,900 A shares of the Company via the SZSE trading system
R 5 R HE R N A11,900 KA through auction during the blackout period prior to the publication
f& - MeZBREEIEE ME B TR of the interim results of the Company for the six months ended 30
Lo NZE—AFENAT+N\R  FEE June 2015, and such deviation was reported to the SEHK. On 18
R ARBE S AR KRR ITER/A August 2015, the SEHK issued a warning letter to Mr. Zhang Daiming
BHELE NG > MEBEAREHER & privately in respect of such deviation and no further action had been
BE AT EREE —S1TE) - taken by the SEHK as at the end of the reporting period.
EEE The Board of Directors
(1) EFETHA (1)  The Board consists of
B=
Directors
SRAEE BER
Mr. Zhang Daiming Chairman
e JEHITES
Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive director
MEF WITES - B8R
Mr. Du Deping Executive director, general manager
%3 EMITESE
Mr. Xu Lie Non-executive director
O, FEMMITESR
Mr. Zhao Bin Non-executive director
PRITE BN FEITEE
Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis Independent Non-executive director
I B FEHITEE(2015F3A20 A EER(T)
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent Non-executive director (appointed on 20 March 2015)
ES ] B IEMITEE (201553200 EELF)
Mr. Li Wenming Independent Non-executive director (appointed on 20 March 2015)
Al B IENITE R (201553 A20 B EfH(E)
Mr. Yu Xiong Independent Non-executive director (resigned on 20 March 2015)

EEEREBNFNARES N
lES  EE . afEEAEBM
BTIER] -

Brief Introduction of the Board members are set out in
section four headed “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
OFFICERS AND STAFF”.
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(Z)HRIEEEHESXSFRBRATE 2. Information disclosed under the requirement of
NEHES FTHTRAEE(2Z) the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

EEE(E) The Board of Directors (continued)

2 HLFEER FRAFEFETHZ (2) During the year, the Board convened ten Board
10X EH  SEFHFETHEF meetings. Details of Directors’ attendance at the ten
T : Board meetings are set out below:

HEHE
EENR B2k E@ERAR ZREHE BE  fesE
The number Personally
of the meetings attended/
requiring written Attendance
Name participation resolution by proxy Absent  Remarks
R 10 10 0 0
Mr. Zhang Daiming
FiEH 10 10 0 0
Mr. Ren Fulong
T 10 10 0 0
Mr. Du Deping
=7 10 10 0 0
Mr. Xu Lie
O, 10 10 0 0
Mr. Zhao Bin
PRIPEL 10 10 0 0
Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis
Tt EE 9 9 0 0
Mr. Du Guanhua
FXH 9 9 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
A 1 1 0 0
Mr. Yu Xiong
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

&)

Operation of the Board

The duties of the Board are to create value for shareholders of
the Company, to confirm the strategies, targets and planning
of the Company, and to supervise staff in order to ensure
that the set targets can be met. The Board shall manage the
Company diligently and effectively. The members of the Board
work in accordance with the principles of honesty and diligence
and comply with all relevant laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association of the Company and the relevant requirements
for the best interests of the Company and the shareholders.
With various measures of internal controls and mechanisms
for checks and balances, the duties of the Board and the
management of the Company are clearly defined.

The Board is responsible for deciding on the Company’s
business plans and investment plans and the internal
management structure of the Company, establishing the
basic management system of the Company, resolving on
major business and administrative issues of the Company
and supervising the management. The management of the
Company, under the leadership of the General Manager (also
an Executive Director), is responsible for implementing the
various resolutions made by the Board and presiding over
the daily operation and management of the Company. The
Board has, in accordance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations and listing rules of the stock exchanges both in the
PRC and overseas where the Company is listed, formulated
the Rules for the Operation of the Board and the Rules for
the General Manager, in which the duties and powers of the
Board are further defined and the internal operation procedures
of the Board standardised. Therefore, the Board can fully
perform its function as the decision-maker of the Company.
The procedures for the appointment of the General Manger
have been laid down. The powers, scope of work, working
procedures and responsibilities of the General Manager have
been specifically defined.
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

4

®)

Information and professional development

It is considered of great importance by the Board that the
Directors (1) attain a good knowledge of the Company and
its business and (2) allocate sufficient time to the Company
to discharge those responsibilities effectively. The Company
will set out clearly the agendas of Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are briefed on a wide range of topics. The
Directors are also given the opportunity to visit the Company’s
production and business places and discuss aspects of the
business with employees, and regularly meet the heads of the
Company’s main departments. Apart from internal briefings,
the Directors also attend appropriate external seminars.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretaries, who are responsible to the Board
for ensuring the Board procedures are complied with, and
have access to independent and professional advice at the
Company’s expense, where it has been considered to be
necessary for the discharge of Directors’ duties.

Directors’ Training

The Company paid high attention to continuing trainings of
directors to ensure they are properly aware of operation and
business of the Company. During the reporting period, all the
Directors attended compliance trainings for listed companies
organised by the Company. Apart from that, the financial
controller of the Company, Mr. Hou Ning attended trainings
for financial controller of listing corporation. Mr. Cao Changgqjiu,
the company secretary of the Company attended site training
organized by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)
(6) Diversity policy of the Board

During the year, the Board adopted a diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of
Board members. It works hard to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including, but not limited to, (i) business
experience; (i) specialized skills and other experiences; (iii)
race, international background, gender and age; (iv) applicable
regulatory requirements; and issues involving possible conflicts
of interest. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman is responsible for convening Board meetings and
ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.
The Chairman ensures that the Board effectively carries out its
functions and discharges its responsibilities. The Chairman is also
responsible for approving the agenda for each Board meeting, taking
into account any matters proposed by other Directors for the inclusion
in the agenda.

The General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day management
and the business performance of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Daiming has been the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Du
Deping has been the general manager of the Company.

Term of non-executive directors

The non-executive directors of the eighth Board were re-appointed
for a term of 3 years commencing from 22 December 2014.
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Remuneration and Examination Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and Examination
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), which is a special
committee responsible to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
comprises Mr. Li Wenming (an independent non-executive director),
Mr. Zhang Daiming (an executive director) and Mr. Ren Fulong (a
non-executive director) and Mr. Du Guanhua (an independent non-
executive director). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Li
Wenming.

The Company has formulated the “Rules for Operation of the
Remuneration and Examination Committee”. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating the remuneration policy
of Directors and Senior Officers of the Company, determining the
standard of examination of Directors and Senior Officers, assessing
the performance of Directors and Senior Officers during the year
and approving the terms of their service contracts and remuneration
packages and submitting the same to the Board for approval. The
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are available
upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee convened one meeting for the purpose of passing the
“Proposal of 2015 Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors”
and the “Proposal of 2015 Remuneration of Senior Officers”, which
were submitted to the Board for approval. All the members of the
Remuneration Committee attended this meeting.

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers of
the Company is determined with reference to State policies, the
Company’s economic benefits realised in the corresponding period,
individual achievement and the average income of local residents.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee, which
is a special committee responsible to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises Mr. Du Guanhua (an independent non-
executive director), Mr. Zhang Daiming (an executive director) and
Mr. Du Deping (an executive director) and Mr. Li Wenming (an
independent non-executive director). The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Mr. Du Guanhua.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

(@  formulating the policy for the nomination of Directors or Senior
Officers and the standard for selection;

(o)  preliminarily selecting Directors and Senior Officers and
submitting the nomination proposals to the Board;

(c)  preliminary selection of Directors and Senior Officers on basis
of their education qualifications, industry background and
experience in the relevant field;

(d)  reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of members of the Board
on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;

(e) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

) making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-election of Directors or Senior
Officers.

The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are made
available upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee convened one meeting, at which the Proposal on the
nomination of Mr. Du Guanhua and Mr. Li Wenming as candidates for
independent non-executive directors was considered and approved.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Auditors’ remuneration

ShineWing was appointed as the international auditor and re-
appointed as the domestic auditor in the 2014 annual general meeting
held on 24 June 2015.

ShineWing was re-appointed for the twentieth successive year, In
2015, the auditors’ remuneration for audit services provided was as
follows, no significant non-audit services have been provided during

mEANIFZERT the period.

20155 B 20144 [E
KPR (BF) SRHAIEFMARAR
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited - RMB420,000
ZKPR MG T ADE S FT
ShineWing RMB650,000 RMB420,000

2015F E A RIEFBE KPS BT
APNIEET ST ERAT - BT
WITEBAREI1ZETT

FEAE

ARRIEERE EMARRIS21ERL T
EREZBEE  HKEBRBE=RBIIFN
TER(BIF X - HEZERRM)
HPRAHABEZZEELR

ARBEEE2RBEGIHMAGEIH
MR BZEZEGIEE) - $IE T(&F
RZEERERE) HPeEEZZ
BEMBEMALT -

ERZESREEEARUBREND
E - BREHARRFHERMBE
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In 2015, the Company engaged ShineWing for auditing of internal
control and paid auditing fees of RMB130,000 for internal control.

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company set up
an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprising three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Li Wenming, Mr. Du
Guanhua and Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Chan Chung Kik, Lewis.

With reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, the Board has
set out terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which define the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company’s
financial report reflects a fair view of the Company. In addition to
reviewing the financial information and statements of the Company,
the Audit Committee is also responsible for liaising with the
Company’s external auditor and overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
procedures.

A copy of the terms of reference for the Audit Committee is available
upon request.
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee has, together with the management, reviewed
the accounting principles, practices and methods adopted by the
Group and has discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee has convened four
meetings to review the audited financial statements for 2014, the
unaudited 1st quarterly financial statements for 2015, the unaudited
interim statements for 2015 and the unaudited 3rd quarterly financial
statements for 2015.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 30 March 2016 to
review the 2015 audited accounts and annual results announcement.

For the record of the attendance of individual members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the attendance table set out under the
section headed “Information disclosed under the requirement of
CSRC” of the Corporate Governance Report.

Investor Relations

The Company actively and earnestly carried out work in respect of
the disclosure of information and investor relations and nominated
an individual to deal with the Company’s investor relations.
Meanwhile, the Company strictly complied with the principles of
truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness in the disclosure
of information. The Company also enhanced communication with
investors and made efforts to improve the transparency of the
Company by way of issuing results announcements, publishing
announcements, launching the company’s website, meeting investors
and analysts and answering investors’ inquiries, etc..
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Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

During the reporting period, the Company amended the articles
of association of the Company three times in March, June and
December 2015 respectively, the resolutions to amend the articles
of association of the Company were approved by the annual general
meeting of 2014, the first extraordinary general meeting of 2015 and
the second extraordinary general meeting of 2015 respectively. The
amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company conform
to “the Articles of Association of the Company” and China’s laws and
regulations and administrative laws, and also conform to the Listing
Rules.

An updated version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.
To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.xhzy.com, where information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operation, financial
information, corporate governance structure and other information are
available for public access.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interests in Shares

So far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of
the Company are aware, the interests or short position in shares of
the Directors, the Supervisors and the Senior Officers, according to
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are
stated in the subsection above headed “Directors’ and Supervisors’
and Senior Officers’ Interests in Shares of the Company” under the
section “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.
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the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal controls
system and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires
the management to establish and maintain sound and effective
internal controls. Evaluation of the Company’s internal controls is
independently conducted by the Supervisory Committee on a regular
basis.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

Save as disclosed above in “Changes in Share Capital and
Shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the
Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December 2015, no
other person (other than a Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the Company’s shares
or underlying shares (as the case may be), which are required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interest and Short
Positions

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’
Interests in Shares of the Company” under the section headed
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”,
so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of
the Company are aware, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of SFO) which
was required to be notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and
short position which any such Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) of
which was required to be entered in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Shareholder’s requests to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Articles of Association, if shareholders
require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting or a class
general meeting, the following procedures shall be followed:

(1)  two or more shareholders, who together hold 10 per cent.
or more of the shares carrying voting rights at the proposed
meeting, may sign one or several written requisition(s)
of the same form and contents, requiring the board of
directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a
class shareholders’ meeting as requested. The percentage
represented by the shareholdings of the requisitioning
shareholders shall be calculated as at the date of the deposit of
the requisition.

(2)  If the Board of Directors fails to give a notice convening a
meeting within 30 days of receiving the aforesaid written
requisition, the requisitioning shareholders may themselves
convene a meeting within 4 months of the receipt of such
requisition by the Board of Directors. In so convening a meeting,
the requisitioning shareholders should adopt a procedure as
similar to that of a shareholders’ general meeting convened by
the Board of Directors as possible.

All reasonable expenses incurred in connection with a meeting
convened by any shareholders themselves by reason of the failure of
the Board of Directors to convene a meeting pursuant to a requisition
shall be borne by the Company and shall be deducted from any sums
due from the Company to those Directors in default.
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2.

Information disclosed under the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (continued)

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Primary Contact Persons

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the Company by means of facsimile, email or post. The
details of contact are as follows:

The Company Secretary’s office of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Address: No. 1 Lutai Ave., Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo
City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of China

Fax: 86-533-2287508

Email:  cgcao@xhzy.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice, statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information will be disclosed as required by law.
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To protect all shareholders of the Company to exercise their rights
effectively, the Company shall convene an annual general meeting every
year and shall hold an extraordinary general meeting whenever the Board
considers appropriate in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

(1)

On 3 February 2015, the notice of the first extraordinary general
meeting of 2015 of the Company was published in Securities
Times, JuChao website, HKExnews and the Company’s website
and was served on the shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post.
The extraordinary general meeting was convened by the Board
of Directors and held at the Company’s registered office on 20
March 2015. Three shareholders (including those represented by
their proxies) attended the meeting, representing a total number
of 158,592,863 shares and 34.68 % of the Company’s total share
capital. The meeting was convened in compliance with the provisions
of the Company Law of the PRC as well as the Articles of Association.
The meeting was chaired by Mr. Zhang Daiming, the chairman. The
following resolutions were passed at the meeting:

1. To approve Mr. Du Guanhua and Mr. Li Wenming be elected
as independent non-executive directors of the Company by
cumulative voting;

2. To consider and approve change of the scope of operations of
the Company and the proposed amendments to Article 13 of
the articles of association of the Company.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published in the
local newspaper, Securities Times, JuChao website, as well as on
HKExnews and the Company’s website, on 21 March 2015.
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On 8 May 2015, the notice of the 2014 Annual General Meeting
(*AGM”) of the Company was published in newspapers, HKExnews
and the Company’s website and notice was served on the
shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The AGM was convened
by the Board of Directors and held at the Company’s registered office
on 24 June 2015. Ten shareholders (including those represented
by their proxies) attended the AGM, representing a total number of
163,532,750 shares and accounting for 35.76% of the Company’s
total share capital. The AGM was convened in compliance with the
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC as well as the Articles of
Association of the Company. The AGM was chaired by Mr. Zhang
Daiming, the Chairman. The following ordinary resolutions were
passed at the AGM:

(i) The following ordinary resolutions were passed at the AGM:
1. To approve the annual report of the Company for the
year 2014;

2. To approve the report of the Board for the year 2014;

3. To approve the report of the supervisory committee of
the Company for the year 2014;

4. To approve the audited financial statements for the year
2014;

5. To approve the profit distribution plan and the distribution
of a final cash dividend of the Company for the year
2014;

6. To approve the appointment of ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the
Company’s international and domestic auditors for the
year 2015;

7. To approve the remuneration of the Directors and the
Supervisors for the year 2015.

(ii) The special resolution to approve proposed amendments to the
articles of association of the Company was passed at the AGM.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published in the
local newspaper, Securities Times, JuChao website as well as on
HKExnews and the Company’s website, on 25 June 2015.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D

49



50

BRERRGEIT

Summarised Report of the General Meeting

RANF|2015F £ ZRERHRRERS -
2015F B — RARFA R R K& 2015
FE—IRHBIERIRE A2 @5 1K2015
F11 13 E(EAEER) - EMEN
4 B FTAR L R AR ABE EFIE AR
NSRS N REHRKE - AKX
BRAESHESESHAE © B2015F12
A20BERARMEMBR - HARBIEERE
MBI ERAARN - HEREREA
FHREEBRRAREIA  REBEEX
REER AR 1D 162,647,9630% - 15 A TA
FORMERLD 4AEN35.57% « HIFEARIE
ARG R & % AR AL R R IR A K 5
A RERBRRENIZD 157,653,963
f% - (R RARABRREARBKD RN
51.30% : HEHBBRIBR RS HIBSE
EHOHBRBREREBRERKRIL2A - RE
AR RERAKA7,218,0000% + 152 A
BFOREHRIL D 42 81H94.81% © AKX
EREAECHARFTE(PFEARLINE
NELEYFAR AT AR ER)SERR
o REHEFERERBAEES -

(=) EREFBIRAEBB T TIREER -
FRRlRERR

1. FHREBT(ARRRNA
FERFBITABIRSE IR EY
EEY

2. FFZBBTCERAREAR
FEITABRBRET RN E
) FEBEETNETFH

ES

3. FFBBTCERARIEAR
FRBETARKREEENZ

=)

4. FEBBET(ERARER
METARBRESEESE
RRITTIED TR ENFAZ)

5. F#BBT(ERARIER
FEITRRS LB Z0

EEY

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

©)

On 13 November 2015, the notice of the 2015 second extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”), the first A Share Class Meeting, the first
H Share Class Meeting of the Company was published in Securities
Times, the JuChao website, HKExnews and the Company’s website
and notice was served on the shareholders of H Shares by prepaid
post. The second EGM was convened by the Board of Directors and
held at the Company’s registered office on 29 December 2015. Seven
shareholders (including those represented by their proxies) attended
the second EGM, representing a total number of 162,647,963 shares
and accounting for 35.57% of the Company’s total share capital. Five
shareholders (including those represented by their proxies) attended
the first A Share Class Meeting, representing a total number of
157,653,963 shares and accounting for 51.30% of the Company’s
total A share capital; two shareholders (including those represented by
their proxies) attended the first H Share Class Meeting, representing
a total number of 7,218,000 shares and accounting for 4.81% of
the Company’s total H share capital. The EGM was convened in
compliance with the provisions of the Company Law of the PRC as
well as the Articles of Association of the Company. The EGM was
chaired by Mr. Zhang Daiming, the Chairman.

(i) The following resolutions were passed at the EGM:
Special Resolution

1. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
fulfilment of conditions on the Company’s non-public
offering of A shares

2. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
plan on the Company’s non-public offering of A Shares,
which includes eleven sub resolutions approved item by
item

3. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
proposal on the Company’s non-public offering of A
shares

4. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
feasibility study report on use of proceeds from the non-
public share offering of A shares

5. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
connected transactions involved in the Company’s non-
public offering of A shares
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6. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
conditional share subscription agreement signed between
the Company and various specific entities, which includes
five sub resolutions approved item by item

7. To consider and approve the resolution regarding
authorising the Board of Directors to handle all matters in
relation to Company’s non-public offering of A shares

8. To consider and approve the resolution regarding
the amendments to the articles of association of the
Company and the attachment thereto

Ordinary Resolution

1. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
2015 First Phase Employee Stock Ownership Scheme
(Draft) of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (By way of subscribing A shares in the non-public
offering of A shares)

2. To consider and approve the resolution regarding
authorising the Board of Directors to handle all matters in
relation to the Employee Stock Ownership Scheme

3. To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
connected transactions under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, which includes six sub resolutions
approved item by item

4. To consider and approve the resolution regarding
shareholders’ return plan for the next three years

5. To consider and approve the resolution to amend
the “Administrative measures of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Company Limited on Capitals Raised”

6. To approve and confirm the agreement entered into
between the Company and Shandong Hualu Hengsheng
Chemical Company Limited (the “Hualu Hengsheng”)
dated 29 October 2015 and the proposed annual caps
in relation to the purchasing of chemical products by the
Company and/or its subsidiaries from Hualu Hengsheng
and/or its subsidiaries in the sum of RMB80,000,000,
RMB100,000,000 and RMB120,000,000 for 2016, 2017
and 2018 respectively under such agreement
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(i)

To approve and confirm the agreement entered into
between the Company and SXPGC dated 29 October
2015 and the proposed annual caps in relation to the
selling of waste materials, water, electricity and steam by
the Company and/or its subsidiaries to SXPGC and/or
its subsidiaries and the purchasing of accessories, raw
materials and packaging materials by the Company and/
or its subsidiaries from SXPGC and/or its subsidiaries
in the sum of RMB180,000,000, RMB195,000,000 and
RMB210,000,000 for 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively
under such agreement

The following special resolutions were passed at the A Share
Class Meeting:

1.

To consider and approve on the resolution regarding the
plan on the Company’s non-public offering of A shares,
which including eleven sub resolutions

To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
proposal on the Company’s non-public offering of A
shares plan

To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
connected transactions on the Company’s non-public
offering of A shares

To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
conditional share subscription agreement signed between
the Company and various specific entities, which includes
five sub resolutions

To consider and approve the resolution regarding
authorising the Board of Directors to handle all matters in
relation to Company’s non-public offering of A shares
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(i)

The following special resolutions were passed at the H Share
Class Meeting:

1.

To consider and approve on the resolution regarding the
plan on the Company’s non-public offering of A shares,
which includes eleven sub resolutions

To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
proposal on the Company’s non-public offering of A
shares plan

To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
connected transactions on the Company’s non-public
offering of A shares

To consider and approve the resolution regarding the
conditional share subscription agreement signed between
the Company and various specific entities, which includes
five sub resolutions

To consider and approve the resolution regarding
authorising the Board of Directors to handle all matters in
relation to Company’s non-public offering of A shares

An announcement of the above resolutions was published in
the local newspaper, Securities Times, the JuChao website,
as well as on HKExnews and the Company’s websites, on 30
December 2015.
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Dear shareholders,

| hereby present for your review the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

In the fiscal year ended 31 December 2015, the operating income of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) prepared under PRC accounting
standards was RMB3,597,033,000, representing an increase of 0.20% as
compared with 2014. The Group recorded its profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of RMB83,062,000, representing an increase
of 63.75% as compared with that of year 2014. Earnings per share was
RMBO0.18.

The Board of Directors has announced and proposed a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMBO0.02 per share (approximately
HK$0.025 per share, including income tax*).The proposed dividend is
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company for the year 2015.

* Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Implementing Regulations of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (collectively, the “Enterprise
Income Tax Law”) that came into effect in 2008, any domestic enterprise of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) shall, as of 1 January 2008, withhold the
enterprise income tax upon the distribution of dividend payable to the non-resident
enterprise shareholders and the payer shall serve as the withholding agent.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the Company shall be obligated to
withhold 10% enterprise income tax when it distributes the 2015 Final Dividend to
non-resident enterprise shareholders of H-shares, including Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Nominees Limited, as listed on the Company’s register of holders
of H-shares on Monday, 11 July 2016.

Any resident enterprise (as defined in the Enterprise Income Tax Law) listed on the
Company’s register of the holders of H-shares that is duly set up in the PRC or is set
up in accordance with the laws of a foreign country (or a region) with a PRC-based
de facto management body, and does not wish the Company to withhold the said
10% enterprise income tax, shall submit to Hong Kong Registrars Limited a legal
opinion issued by a PRC qualified lawyer (and inscribed with the seal of the relevant
law firm) confirming its resident enterprise status no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
4 July 2016.

Pursuant to the rules of exemption of individual foreigners from individual income
tax on dividend distributed by foreign-invested enterprises, which are set out in the
Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Certain
Policies Regarding Individual Income Tax (Caishui [1994] 20) ( (A ESE R IE4E R
FREAFTSEE TBERMER @A) (WH[1994] 205%)) dated 13 May 1994, when
the Company distributes the 2015 Final Dividend to its individual shareholders of H
shares whose names appear on the Company’s register of holders of H-shares on
Monday, 11 July 2016, the Company will distribute in full the 2015 Final Dividend to
such individual shareholders of H Shares.
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Business Review

In 2015, the Company overcame various unfavorable factors including
stagnant market demands for pharmaceuticals, firmly implemented
its greater preparations strategy, actively took measures to reduce
manufacturing costs, and vigorously reduced procurement costs.
Meanwhile, it endeavored to advance technological progress and new
products development, and continuously improved basic management.
Accordingly, the Company maintained a sound growth momentum for
production and operations. A review of the Company’s principal business is
as follows:

1. Vigorously carrying out restructuring and focusing on product
layout

In 2015, the sales revenue of the preparations segment accounted
for 46.10% of the total revenue of the Group, representing a year-
on-year increase of 2.0 percentage points and making it the segment
with the rapidest growth. Revenue from five strategic preparations
varieties including rabeprazole and Jiening (/1 %8) totaled RMB130
million, increased by 17.3% over the preceding year.

While stabilizing the business scale of the bulk pharmaceutical raw
materials, featured pharmaceutical raw materials including glimepiride
and Carbidopa have been on commercial sale with a sound growth
momentum. The trail production and preparation of Drug Master File
(DMF) in respect of a number of products have been carried out in
the multi-function industrialization center, ready for the forthcoming
international registration in Europe and the US.

The Company has completed the main building construction of the
International Cooperation Center for Modern Pharmacy (phase )
project and the civil works of the Medicine Industrialization Center
of Modern Chemistry (ll). The “short, flat and quick” technical
transformation was going smoothly to further increase the production
capacity.

2. Devoting great efforts in innovation of the marketing pattern to
seek breakthroughs in market development

The Company fully capitalized on its subsidiary in Europe and the
US as bridgeheads to lay a foundation for the entry of its self-
brand preparations products into the Europe and the US markets
by engaging professionals and expediting Abbreviated New Drug
Application (ANDA) of its pharmaceuticals.

Driven by innovation of business model, the development of Xinhua
Drug Store and the online drug store made a great step forward. The
terminal sales business of preparations enjoyed rapid growth with the
development of the B2B e-commerce platform going smoothly.

The Group seized the opportunities amid the sluggish petrochemical
market to improve its tendering and price comparison measures and
other practices, leading to a significant reduction in procurement
costs.
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Business Review (continued)

3.

Putting great effort in technological innovation to consolidate
development foundation

The strong advocacy of the guideline regarding technological
innovation and cost reduction and the introduction of the supporting
incentive policies, led to the promotion and applications of an array of
new technologies and new equipment, and the automation reform of
the production facilities, thereby increasing productivity. Currently, the
Group had approximately 65 applications for new products pending
approval from the Center for Drug Evaluation of the PRC (CDE).
During the year, the Group was granted 22 patents including 15
patents for invention.

Enhancing overall strength and reinforcing fundamental
management

The Group further promoted lean production management and
arranged production in a thorough manner to guarantee the market
supply. During the year, significant breakthroughs in cost reduction
were made to save a total of RMB18.25 million in raw materials.

During the year, the Group received a total of 158 audits by
foreign clients, and its aspirin, Hydrocortisone and Caffeine passed
international official audits. The Solid Preparations Workshop has
passed a number of quality audits for transnational corporations and
social responsibility audits. The Group’s pipemidic acid, theophylline
and aminophylline passed the certification of Good Manufacturing
Practices (GMP) and its fish oil products were granted the food
production license. The Group’s injection also passed the GMP
follow-up audit performed by China Food and Drug Administration.

The Group fully implemented 5S management that led to the
improvement of its production site management level. With its ongoing
intrinsic safety construction, the Company passed the Second
Grade (Provincial) Safety Standardization Audit without a hitch and
accomplished its annual safety target. The environmental protection
tasks were carried out smoothly with 100% effluent reaching the
emission standards and a significant reduction in Chemical Oxygen
Demand (COD) treatment costs.

Initiating non-public issuance of additional A shares and
making its own plan for the Thirteenth Five-year Plan period

On 8 October 2015, the Company announced the proposed placing
of additional A shares of the Company (including the proposed first
phase employee stock ownership scheme), and has been approved
in the shareholders’ meeting. Upon approval of the adjusted
proposed placing of A share by State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Shandong, it is expected that
an application of the proposed placing of A share will be submitted
to China Securities Regulatory Commission. It is expected that the
proposed placing would involve issuance of not more than 67 million
A shares to raise approximately RMB627 million. If succeeded, the
proposed placing will create sound conditions for the Company’s
development during the Thirteenth Five-year Plan period.
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Prospects

During the Thirteenth Five-year Plan period, the Group is expected to be
provided with important opportunities to improve park layout, accelerate
transformation and upgrading, and achieve healthy development.

In 2016, the Group will face plenty of opportunities for development.
The accelerating reform of medical insurance, two-child policy and the
aging population provide strong support for the rapid growth of the
pharmaceutical industry. The downward trend in RMB exchange rate and
the interest rate, the declining international crude oil price and the ongoing
low prices of petrochemical materials, are favorable for the Company to
curb production costs. As the time for approval of new drugs has been
shortened, the Company expects to have replenishment of new medicine
resources in the near future, which will help foster new growth points for the
Company. In addition, consistency evaluation brings rare opportunities to
enterprises with strong scientific research strength.

The Group is also confronted with lots of difficulties. The marketing
environment is harsh due to weak global economy, unabated downward
pressure on domestic economy, sluggish market demands, worsening
international trade protectionism and escalating oversupply. With
the deepening reform of medical insurance, open tendering for drug
procurement across the nation still favors low-price tenders, thus affecting
the profitability of preparations. Expenses on environmental protection and
safety are increasing with growing pressure of rigid cost rise.

In the first year of the Thirteenth Five-year Plan, the Group will focus on the
following tasks:

1. Innovating in marketing model and expanding the scale of
operation

The Group will firmly implement its greater preparations strategy to
make new breakthroughs in preparations development. It strives to
innovate in its marketing model, devoting more efforts in tendering,
conduct precise planning, and put great efforts in marketing of
the key strategic drugs and major generic drugs so as to drive the
overall preparations development with key varieties. Drawing upon
its overall strengths in complete industrial chain, multiple varieties
and renowned brands, the Company will facilitate the synergies
between pharmaceutical raw materials and preparations and between
preparations and preparations workshops, and integrate marketing
efforts with marketing resources to further tap market potential and
increase the overall strength.

The Group plans to boost its advantage in the development of
pharmaceutical raw materials business by making the business
stronger with great care. The Group will lay great stress on the
international and domestic marketing of its key pharmaceutical raw
materials and new products to improve its strength in pharmaceutical
raw materials. The Group will build on its comprehensive and
characteristic advantage in pharmaceutical raw materials to make
innovative and exclusive product strategies and implement the
differential operation strategy so as to maximize profits.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D

57



58

EER®BE

Chairman’s Statement

RRRE(F

HIMERER  MXBERE (D)

BIFTE BN - RINEMEERAEE
TERS  KNBERETFEL  BRK
R TEBERABEERSES - MK
HEBMEHTELHE - Bl FKmHA
% FRAE  AREEZNER L
AAARBERIE - MRBEREE - E—F
MEMEREEERELLE - R
EEEREE - - INRREIE
B EALEYE -

RERRES  BERHNARR

IRFT A - HEERED - FE
mi - MREMIEBFERE - ¥
RIS EMBE - TERERER
RIERMNERMRD - FABUS2{EIA L
FTEmEEHR I - BUSSE A LRt
o FER BB 218 A L EE F HIANDA
AEfl - EEFEREmGE —BUIERE
FRTEEEE - BRAEERFES
& BB E R IT B KAE -

ICREI S - ERERBFN - 5F
HEEARE - BRIRROIE -
MAEENE - BEETBNREER
FXARTEARIE s TE - FrRAa R
A TRBERER - IRTERE
BERBMRE - BREMRBEFT

HEETEMER K - IMRREEA
55 LB ERTHAREL -

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

Prospects (continued)

1.

Innovating in marketing model and expanding the scale of
operation (continued)

The Group will make innovations in marketing model to explore
new business. The Group will also grasp opportunities to vigorously
develop e-commerce and create a business landscape featuring
interaction and mutual promotion between online and offline business.
The Group will also step up the development of sales terminals
(including drug stores and hospitals) for its preparations business,
explore new business and accelerate development to expand its scale
of operation based on healthcare operation. Moreover, the business
scope of Xinhua Drug Stores will be extended and store expansion
will be expedited with further improved standardized management, so
as to enhance the corporate influence.

Facilitating technological advances to foster new growth
drivers

The Group will speed up R&D of new products to offer impetus for
future growth. The Group will prioritize its product layout, expedite
its ongoing R&D projects, form a rational product mix and make a
product layout suitable for the Company’s development. The Group
aims to obtain more than two production licenses for new products
and more than five clinical trial approvals. The Group will start
ANDA registration for more than two products and take the initiative
to conduct product quality consistency evaluation. The Group
will actively carry out international R&D cooperation and draw on
international resources to enhance its R&D level.

It endeavors to make technological progress and enhance the
competitiveness of its products. The Group will continue to implement
the cost reduction and extra commission measures and motivate staff
to reduce product costs by increasing related rewards. The Group
will carry out in-depth research and industrial applications of new
processes and technologies to achieve breakthroughs in processes
and technologies in order to improve product competitiveness.

The Group will also speed up the industrialization of new products
as well as commercialization of a number of new products including
carbasalate calcium.
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Prospects (continued)

3.

Seizing the opportunities from the international industry
transfer and accelerating the implementation of the
internationalization strategy

The Group will advance its internationalization strategy in respect of
product export, project cooperation, industrial and capital output.
Meanwhile, it will proactively push ahead with international registration
of products and carry out more extensive international cooperation
on product processing, product development and market expansion,
etc.

While maintaining the normal production of Redoxon, Saridon and
Ibuprofen, the Group will complete construction of the International
Cooperation Center for Modern Pharmacy as scheduled, seize the
opportunities for production transfer of transnational pharmaceutical
companies, and draw on the Company’s overall strength to
accelerate project cooperation.

Making scientific planning to ensure smooth project
development

Through coordination, scientific arrangements and strict
implementation of plans, the Group will make sure that the
International Cooperation Center for Modern Pharmacy Project and
the project of Medicine Industrialization Center of Modern Chemistry
(Il are going smoothly, and guarantee the construction quality and
project progress.

Enhance basic management to promote healthy development
of the Company

The Group will continue to carry out activities to make breakthroughs
in cost reduction, achieve leading technical indicators and consolidate
its lifeline of safety, environmental protection and quality. According
to the concept of “Clean production, recycling economy”, the
Group will build on new processes, new technologies, automation
and applications of new energy conservation and environmental
protection technologies to make technological progress, optimize
production arrangements, improve management efficiency and find
out breakthrough points by analyzing cost elements.

The Group will increase turnover of capital, and in particular, strictly
assess accounts receivable and perform credit risk control to lower
capital risks. The Group will also strength the on-site risk audits on its
clients, and carefully conduct risk assessment and credit control for
its clients to lower operational risks.
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6. BERBREETETEE 6. Promoting capital operation in an active and prudent manner
AF TVERTEE - IR TVEEE - Bk The Group will better coordinate its tasks and work faster to complete
AMRIEEE  ERE N RIEE LY 18 the issuance of A shares as soon as possible, so as to create sound
SR HHER - A ATIEE RS conditions for Company’s project construction and development
MI+=h IBEREER TG - during the “Thirteenth Five-year Plan” period while improving

development quality and anti-risk capacity.
BORHEENEIEWET  EEEED The Group will also actively conduct study on merger and
¥ DELEXLEE RERtENER acquisition (M&A), select target companies for M&A and endeavor
BR - RRESEEMEIKR to reap substantive M&A fruits as soon as possible for the purpose
of optimizing its industrial structure and improving company
performance.

R Zhang Daiming

BEER Chairman

D e (L5 e 1 Zibo, Shandong, PRC

—E-RFE=A=1+H 30 March 2016
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The Board of Directors hereby submits to the shareholders the report of the
Board of Directors for 2015 and the audited accounts of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

() Management Discussion and Analysis

1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company

The Group is mainly engaged in the development, production
and sale of pharmaceutical raw materials, preparations, medical
intermediate and other products. The profit of the Group is

HORPA T & ZEFRE o mainly attributable to its principal operations.

#it (A B #7T) Outline (RMB)

HE Item 2015 2014 i8R Increase
(%)

EEBA Operating income 3,597,033,209.79  3,589,749,770.93 0.20

DN Costs in the period 2,760,385,994.80  2,854,928,187.30 (3.31)

HRE A Expense in the period 724,622,698.53 655,307,458.18 10.58

A Research and 117,845,628.94 84,833,482.91 38.91

development investment
EEEBELRN Net cash flows from 348,636,176.12 346,342,064.00 0.66
WEemEFHE operating activities
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The research and development investment increased sharply
was mainly attributable to the increase of investment in research
and development on the new product of the Company.

Sales Analysis

Under the PRC accounting standards, the Group had an
operating income of approximately RMB3,597,033,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015. Sales of chemical bulk
drugs, preparations, medical intermediate and other products
accounted for 41.09%, 46.11%, and 12.80% respectively of
the total sales of the Group, representing a decrease of 1.34
percentage points, an increase of 1.98 percentage points, and
a decrease of 0.64 percentage points as compared with that of
last year.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)

Sales Analysis (continued)

In 2015, the sales revenue of the Group’s chemical bulk drugs
amounted to RMB1,477,861,000, representing a decrease of
2.95% as compared with that of last year. The decrease was
mainly because that chemical bulk drugs market competition
increased, some of the Group’s chemical bulk drugs sales
volume decreased.

The sales revenue of preparations was RMB1,658,771,000,
representing an increase of 4.69% as compared with that of
last year. The growth was mainly due to the Company seized
the opportunities of winning the bid in basic medicines and
the low-cost drug policy, carried out restructuring on product
layout, the sale scale of high value-added and basic medicines
increased.

The sales revenue of medical intermediate and other products
was RMB460,401,000, representing an decrease of 4.57%,
the decrease was mainly due to the increasing of medical
intermediate market competition, both the products’ sale
volume and price decreased.

Results Analysis

For the year ending 31 December 2015, the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company prepared in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards was approximately
RMB83,062,000, representing an increase of 63.75% as
compared with that of last year. The increases in profit were
mainly attributable to the following initiatives adopted by the
Company: significant adjustment to the product structure
achieving expansion in the sale scale of high value added
products; in depth research on technological breakthrough
leading to reduction of energy and consumption; and continual
price comparison policy in procurement process attaining
reduction in production costs.
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(—)EEEEMsTRSR(EZ) () Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
1. FTEENEEREESKRE) 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)
REPH(E) Results Analysis (continued)
FEER Major Products
1520155
HMEETR (%)
As %of total
ETEER Major Products sales in 2015
A.  {LBFEEE A.  Chemical bulk drugs
B Ibuprofen 9.15
= Iy Analgin 5.92
INYEE Caffeine 7.08
The%e Levodopa 4.65
] &) T AR Aspirin 3.59
QUELEAR Aminopyrine 2.35
BERAZE LM Isopropyl antipyrine 0.77
B. =& B. Preparations
B B MR AGR Ar Rabeprazole sodium 1.96
JEAi78 Crushing dispersible tablets 1.89
BHEER Compound liquorice tablets 1.22

HAE S ER GBI - #E
BRRa9ZHT

R2015F12 A31 B AEEEEE
BAREL 492 122F T BF )
ANR#E 4,245 150 F TTIE A RE
246,972F L FF5.82% @ 2E&
EFANTERARAFREEE
FRFEHEBE S KEKRER
120 e

R2015F12 A31 AL @ E KA
£ B AREEA76,280T IT * WHA)
AR#328,769 F T N AR
147,520 F 7 * £7F44.87%
ANETBERABAFRELEELER
F o

R20155F12 431 B AL EH eI 2
B A AR5 147TIT  LLEH)
#IN74.69% @ FERABKRERE
HIRTTHREZEOER - @BiBY
SNFEEENZE  BREES N
BT ©

Analysis of financial situation and operating results in
accordance with PRC accounting standards

Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB4,492,122,000 increased by approximately
RMB246,972,000 or 5.82%, as compared with the figure of
approximately RMB4,245,150,000 at the beginning of the year.
The increase in total assets was mainly due to the increase
of the profits generated this year leading to the increase of
currency funds and notes receivable.

Currency funds of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB476,289,000, increased by approximately
RMB147,520,000 or 44.87%, as compared with the figure of
approximately RMB328,769,000 at the beginning of the year.
The increase in currency funds was mainly attributable to the
profits generated this year.

Notes receivable of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB225,147,000, representing an increase
of approximately 74.69%, as compared with the figure at the
beginning of the year. The increase in notes receivable was
because the Company carried out Bank Notes Pool with the
bank this year, issuing notes payable and decreasing the
payment of notes receivable.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)

Analysis of financial situation and operating results in
accordance with PRC accounting standards (continued)

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company as
at 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB1,884,257,000,
increased by approximately RMB63,567,000 or 3.49%, as
compared with the figure of approximately RMB1,820,690,000
at the beginning of the year. This increase was mainly
attributable to the profits generated this year.

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2015 were
approximately RMB2,508,040,000, representing an increase
of approximately RMB174,759,000 or 7.49%, as compared
with the figure of approximately RMB2,333,281,000 at the
beginning of the year. The increase in liabilities was mainly
attributable to an increase in investment expenditure for project
construction and research and development, and in order to
ease the financial pressure, bank borrowings and notes payable
increased accordingly.

Operating profit of the Group amounted to RMB92,068,000
for the year of 2015, while the operating profit of the Group
amounted to RMB54,559,000 for the same period last year,
representing an increase of approximately RMB37,509,000
or 68.75%, as compared with the same period last year.
The main reasons for the change were due to the following
initiatives adopted by the Company: significant adjustment to
the product structure achieving expansion in the sale scale of
high value added products; in depth research on technological
breakthrough leading to reduction of energy and consumption;
and continual price comparison policy in procurement process
attaining reduction in production costs.

The Group’s sales expense amounted to RMB353,775,000 for
the year of 2015, representing an increase of approximately
11.33% as compared with the same period last year, the
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of terminal
sales expense.

The Group’s administration expense amounted to
RMB303,258,000 for the year of 2015, representing an
increase of approximately 14.24% as compared with the same
period last year, the increase was mainly attributable to the
increase of investment in research and development.
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1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)

Analysis of financial situation and operating results in
accordance with PRC accounting standards (continued)

The Group’s financial expense amounted to RMB67,591,000
for the year of 2015, representing a decrease of approximately
6.23% as compared with the same period last year, the
decrease was mainly attributable to the increase of exchange
gain.

To enhance R&D level, the Group’s investment in R&D
amounted to RMB117,846,000, representing an increase of
approximately 38.91% as compared with the same period last
year. The Group’s investment in R&D accounts for 3.28% of
operating revenue, representing an increase of 0.92 percent as
compared with the same period last year.

The Group’s net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the
year of 2015 was approximately RMB85,204,000. The increase
in currency funds was mainly attributable to that net cash flow
from operating activities was approximately RMB348,636,000.

In 2015, the Group recorded net cash flow from investment
activities amounting to RMB-110,176,000, representing a
decrease of 70.43% with that of last year. This decrease was
mainly due to the reason that the main relocation project of
the Company had been basically completed in 2014 and the
corresponding investment this year decreased.

In 2015, the Group recorded net cash flow from financing
activities amounting to RMB-163,549,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB159,875,000, the decrease
was mainly attributable to the increase in repayment of bank
loan and the occurrence of a structured deposit.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

BREA

Operating
revenue

1,477,861,463.23

1,658,770,753.62

460,400,992.94

3,597,033,209.79

2,563,087,200.79

480,760,000.00

240,234,000.00

312,952,000.00

3,597,033,209.79

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)

Analysis of financial situation and operating results in
accordance with PRC accounting standards (continued)

The Group’s operating revenue classified by products and

by geographical location in accordance with PRC accounting
standards is as follow (RMB):

BRUAL BRAZYL EfEL

EXR% EE  LERMEE  LEREER LRGSR
Operating  Operating cost Gross profit

revenue change changeas  rate change as

ascomparedto  comparedto  compared to

Operating Gross the same the same the same

cost profitrate  period last year period last year period last year
1136,272,128.12 2.11% (2.95%) (8.70%) EN484EEAE
Increase

4.84 point

1,029,075,729.85 25.90% 469% 394% EN0s3EENE
Increase

0.53 point

395,038,136.83 14.20% (4.57%) (7.67%) EM2.88EAAE
Increase

2.88 point

2,760,385,994.80 23.26% 0.20% (3.31%) EM2.79EEAY
Increase

2.79 point

1,882,649,994.80 26.05% 10.08% 6.74% ENM2.0EENE
Increase

2.30 point

414,639,000.00 13.75% (18.13%) (19.04%) EM0.96EEAH
Increase

0.96 point

199,917,000.00 16.78% (35.10%) (37.14%) EM270EEAE
Increase

2.70 point

263,180,000.00 15.90% 2.92% 0.84% EMM.74EENY
Increase

1.74 point

2,760,385,994.80 23.26% 0.20% 831%) M2 7oA
Increase

2.79 point
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As at 31 December 2015, the current ratio and the quick ratio
of the Group was 84.65% and 56.64% respectively, and the
rate of accounts receivable turnover (rate of accounts receivable
turnover = revenue/average trade and bill receivables x 100%)
and the rate of inventory turnover (rate of stock turnover = cost
of sales/average inventories x 100%) were 1,148.67% and
486.26% respectively.

The Group’s demand for working capital did not show
significant seasonal fluctuation throughout the year.

The Group’s main source of funds was loans. As at 31
December 2015, the total amount of outstanding loans was
approximately RMB1,545,756,000. As at 31 December
2015, currency funds and in bank of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB476,289,000 (including bank acceptance
drafts deposits of approximately RMB9,650,000 and structured
deposit of RMB100,000,000).

On 31 December 2015, the Company and the Company’s
subsidiary Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. pledged currency funds of RMB100,000,000 and
RMB9,650,000 to the bank for the bank acceptance
respectively. Besides the above transaction, the Group did not
have other assets pledged.

In 2015, the properties consisting of state-owned relocated
idle land together with the building and fixtures erected
thereon of old factory area held by the Company were partially
expropriated by local government, the expropriation brought
about revenue amounted to approximately RMB21,789,000.

Apart from the above transactions, the Group did not have
any material investment, acquisitions or any disposal of assets
during the reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK
(continued)

The classification of the performance results of the Group is
referred to in the section headed “Analysis of financial situation
and operating results in accordance with PRC accounting
standards”.

As at 31 December 2015, the number of staff employed by the
Group was 6,348, and the total amount of salaries and wages
for 2015 was approximately RMB324,158,000.

The asset-liability ratio of the Group was 55.83% (asset-liability
ratio = total liabilities/total assets x 100%).

The bank balance of the Company will mainly be used as
working capital for project construction and working fund of the
Company.

The assets and liabilities of the Group were mainly recorded
in Renminbi. For the year 2015, the revenue from the Group’s
exports was approximately US$171,683,000, which exposed
the Group to certain risks associated with the fluctuation of
exchange rates. Therefore, the Group has taken the following
measures to lower the risks from the fluctuation of exchange
rates: (1) the Group has increased the price of its export
products to decrease the risks of fluctuation of exchange
rates; (2) the Group has made arrangements with overseas
customers when entering into material export contracts that
the risks associated with the fluctuation in exchange rates shall
be borne by both parties if the fluctuation exceeds the range of
exchange rate fluctuation agreed by both parties; (3) Foreign
currency accounts receivable pledge loans, reducing the risk of
exchange rate fluctuations.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company

(1)

The total registered capital of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$6,000,000, and
the Company holds 50.1% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and selling
Ibuprofen. As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB71,762,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB65,699,000. In 2015, the
operating income and the net profit of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB15,636,000 and RMB5,950,000
respectively, representing a decrease of 10.06% and
a decrease of 19.32% respectively as compared with
that of last year. The decreases were mainly due to
the decline in production volume as a result of the
preparation for the site quality audit by the FDA of the US
and the domestic GMP during the year.

The total registered capital of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$1,500,000,
and the Company holds 75% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and selling
calcium polycarbophil bulk pharmaceutical products.
As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB13,442,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB13,343,000. In 2015, the
operating income and the net profit of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB5,919,000 and RMB689,000
respectively.

The total registered capital Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trade Company Limited is RMB48,499,000, and
the Company holds 100% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of biological
products, prepared Chinese herbal medicine for
decoction, traditional Chinese medicine, pharmaceutical
raw materials, preparations, antibiotic preparations
biochemical medicine, health food, medical appliances,
drugs and products for birth control and cosmetics
etc.. As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB342,199,000,
and the equity attributable to shareholders of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB57,000. In 2015, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB1,324,026,000, representing an increase of 11.39%
as compared with that of last year. The net loss of the
subsidiary was RMB691,000, representing a decrease
of 105.14% as compared with that of last year. The
decrease was mainly due to the Company enhanced
market development, as the expense of market
development increased.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

)

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Import and Export Company Limited is
RMB5,000,000, and the Company holds 100% of its
equity interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the
import and export of goods and technologies, marketing
and re-exports. As at 31 December 2015, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB33,716,000,
and the equity attributable to shareholders of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB25,054,000. In 2015,
the operating income and the net profit of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB74,546,000 and RMB4,846,000
respectively, representing an decrease of 17.72% and
an increase of 0.51% respectively as compared with that
of last year. The decreases were mainly attributable to
the chemical product market downturn, resulting in the
decrease of product sales.

The total paid-up capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Company Limited is RMB230,000,000,
and the Company holds 100% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and
selling chemical products. As at 31 December 2015,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB743,813,000, equity attributable to shareholders
of the subsidiary was approximately RMB332,822,000.
In 2015, the operating income and the net profit of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB598,670,000 and
RMB28,729,000 respectively, representing a decrease
of 9.68% and an decrease of 29.61% respectively as
compared with that of last year. The increase of net profit
was mainly attributable to the effect of the fluctuations
of price of chemical materials, resulting in the sharp
decrease of costs in materials.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

©)

The registered capital of Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain
Company Limited is RMB2,000,000 and the Company
holds 100% of its equity interest. The main operations
of the subsidiary are the sale of traditional Chinese
medicine, prepared Chinese herbal medicine for
decoction, chemical preparations, drugs for diagnosis,
drugs for birth control, medical devices, health foods and
cosmetics. As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of
the subsidiary were approximately RMB20,526,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB3,254,000. In 2015, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB47,444,000, representing an increase of 13.25%
as compared with that of last year. The net profit of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB116,000.

The registered capital of Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited is RMB6,000,000
and the Company holds 100% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of the
design of medical projects. As at 31 December 2015,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB13,886,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB11,423,000. In 2015, the operating income
was approximately RMB14,715,000, representing a
decrease of 16.33% as compared with that of last
year. The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB1,088,000, representing a decrease of 42.52% as
compared with that of last year. The decreases were
mainly attributable to the fierce market competition of the
pharmaceutical engineering design, resulting in a sharp
decrease in revenue.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

®)

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH is EUR769,000 and the
Company holds 65% of its equity interest. This subsidiary
is mainly engaged in the business of bulk pharmaceutical
and intermediates. As at 31 December 2015, the
total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB42,292,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB12,688,000. In 2015, the operating income
was approximately RMB81,823,000, representing a
decrease of 6.34% as compared with that of last year.
The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB1,895,000, representing an increase of 99.68%
as compared with that of last year. The increases were
mainly due to the subsidiary enhanced the controlling
of the expense, the expense decreased approximately
RMB821,000 as compared with that of last year.

Total registered capital of Xinhua (Zibo) Real Estate
Company Limited is RMB20,000,000, and the Company
holds 100% of its equity interest. This subsidiary was
established in December 2010 and is mainly engaged in
the business of real estate development and sales. As
at 31 December 2015, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB77,906,000, and the equity
attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB19,501,000. In 2015, the net profit of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB273,000.

Total registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi)
Company Limited is RMB19,000,000, and the Company
holds 100% of its equity interest. This subsidiary was
established in April 2012 and is mainly engaged in
the business of powder injection and tablets. As at
31 December 2015, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB43,534,000 and the equity
attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB5,934,000. In 2015, the net profit of
the subsidiary was approximately RMB464,000.
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(I Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

(11)

Total registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(America) Company Limited is US$1,500,000, and
the Company holds 100% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary was established on 29 January 2013 and is
mainly engaged in pharmaceuticals, chemicals, health
products research and development, certification and
import and export business. As at 31 December 2015,
the total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB17,817,000 and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB9,506,000. In 2015, the net profit of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB933,000.

The Company holds 60% equity interests in Shandong
Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company
established in 1993. On 29 September 2014, the
Company entered into a property rights transaction
contract with Hualu Holdings and acquired 40% of its
state-owned property right in Xincat Pharmaceutical at a
consideration of RMB102 million. On 23 October 2014,
Xincat Pharmaceutical completed its change in business
registration. Upon the change, the Company and Hualu
Holdings hold 60% and 40% equity interests in Xincat
Pharmaceutical, respectively. The registered capital of
Xincat Pharmaceutical is RMB84.93 million and its main
operation includes tablets, hard capsules (inclusive of
cephalosporins, inclusive of penicillins, inclusive of anti-
cancer agents), granules, dry suspension (inclusive
of cephalosporins, penicillins), bulk drugs (mitiglinide
calcium), and freeze-dried powder (anti-tumor). As at
31 December 2015, the total assets of the company
amounted to RMB197,292,000 and shareholders’ equity
amounted to RMB125,998,000. In 2015, it achieved
operating revenue of RMB221,896,000, representing a
decrease of 5.50% as compared with that of last year. It
recorded a net profit of RMB17,855,000, representing a
decrease of 0.52% as compared with that of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

(13) The Company holds 100% equity interests in Shandong
Xinhua Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd.,
which was established in April 2014 with a registered
capital of RMB8 million. It was mainly engaged in
electrical equipment engineering, installation and test
of chemical equipment and electrical equipment, as
well as sales of mechanical, hardware and electrical
equipments. The total assets of the company amounted
to RMB9,677,000 and shareholders’ equity amounted
to RMB8,390,000. In 2015, it achieved a net profit of
RMB246,000.

Analysis of core competitiveness

The Company enjoys an advantage of large scale operation,
and is the largest production and export base for antipyretic
analgesic drugs.

The Company has an advantage in fundamental management
and passed the ISO9001, ISO14001, ISO10012 and ISO22000
certifications one after another.

The Company has an advantage of international operation.
With seven items of the Company’s products having passed
the American FDA certification and ten items having obtained
the European COS certificate, the Company’s products were
sold to more than 50 countries and regions in the world. The
Company is one of the first 15 pioneering enterprises which
implement a global strategy.

The Company has an advantage in technological innovation.
The Company is a national high and new technology enterprise,
a key high and new technology enterprise under the National
Torch Program, and a key enterprise in the bio-pharmaceutical
industrial base under the National Torch Program. The
Company has a national-level enterprise technology centre,
established enterprise post-doctoral research station, and has
extensive cooperation with more than 50 scientific and research
institutions and universities.
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(1) Working Report of the Board

1.

During the year, the Board of Directors passed
resolutions on ten occasions:

)

On 27 January 2015, the First extraordinary meeting
2015 of the Eighth Board was convened by way of
written resolutions, and the results of the meeting were
published in Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
28 January 2015.

On 27 March 2015, the Second meeting of the Eighth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered
office, and the results of the meeting were published in
Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao website, HKExnews
and on the Company’s website on 30 March 2015.

On 24 April 2015, the Third meeting of the Eighth Board
was convened at the Company’s registered office, and
the results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, JuChao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 25 April 2015.

On 12 June 2015, the Second extraordinary meeting
2015 of the Eighth Board was convened by way of
written resolutions, and the results of the meeting were
published in Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
13 June 2015.

On 30 July 2015, the Fourth meeting of the Eighth Board
was convened at the Company’s registered office, and
the results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, JuChao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 31 July 2015.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D

75



76

EESHRE

Report of the Board of Directors

(Z)EEETHEE(E)

1. EFFERN FAFEFEFHREB
PA+REM®: (2

6) RABIHR20155F10A8H LA
EARFARBHEEN\BE
@%ﬁl/\an§ *ﬁ%@L\m
FIER2015F10 HOA(E
AR  BEEENHS B
N R s I NN
uh o

(7))  ARAHR2015F10H23H
ERREMEBRENEES
SHENRNEE  BEAST
BEA20155E10 A24 H(E 4
FrR) c EMEME - B8
BMZXHERS - ARAH
U o

(8) AABM2015F10H29H
REEERAGSABHREN
EEEE2015FFE= XK
Hex HEASEHER
201510 A0 H( & & ¥
#&>> E/ﬁﬂénﬂ%ﬁ ?/%HW
RFTIEFES « ANATAE

©Q ARARK2015F12H16H
NEmFRFANBHAEN
EEEE2015F F I Xk
NeZ AEcSTHER
201512 B17 A(EH
)y BEEARME - BB
RFTIETES « ANAR B

(10) ZARARMKR2015%412 530H
NEBRASABHEEN
EEEE2015F 5 1Kk
Hegxk HEQERER
2015F 12 A31 H(E 45
)y BEHMENAE - BB
REFEETES  ANEHEL -

2. EETFRITRRERATRENR

2014F E A RIRR B E R 20154F 8
AHa)REE e

—Z—-REFIHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

(1) Working Report of the Board (continued)

1.

During the year, the Board of Directors passed
resolutions on ten occasions: (continued)

(6)  On 8 October 2015, the Fifth meeting of the Eighth Board
was convened at the Company'’s registered office, and
the results of the meeting were published in Securities
Times in the PRC, JuChao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 9 October 2015.

(7)  On 23 October 2015, the Fifth meeting of the Eighth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered
office, and the results of the meeting were published in
Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao website, HKExnews
and on the Company’s website on 24 October 2015.

(8)  On 29 October 2015, the Third extraordinary meeting
2015 of the Eighth Board was convened by way of
written resolutions, and the results of the meeting were
published in Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
30 October 2015.

(9  On 16 December 2015, the Fourth extraordinary meeting
2015 of the Eighth Board was convened by way of
written resolutions, and the results of the meeting were
published in Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
17 December 2015.

(10) On 30 December 2015, the Fifth extraordinary meeting
2015 of the Eighth Board was convened by way of
written resolutions, and the results of the meeting were
published in Securities Times in the PRC, JuChao
website, HKExnews and on the Company’s website on
31 December 2015.

Implementation of the Resolutions passed at the general
meeting by the Board

The dividend for 2014 of the Company was distributed by mid
August 2015.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

Brief introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers are
listed in the above section headed “BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS” under the
section “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.

Public Float

The Company has complied with the requirement in respect of the
minimum public float during this reporting period and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and
Supervisors are set out in note 11.3.1.

Individuals with the Highest Remuneration

The five individuals with the highest salaries paid by the Group during
the year 2015 were three Directors and two middle management of
the Company.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year has the Company, its holding company or
its fellow subsidiaries become a party to any arrangements to enable
any of the Directors, the Supervisors, or their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to take advantage by acquiring shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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(IlN) Others (continued)

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Company, its holding company, its controlling
shareholder fellow subsidiaries of the controlling company have
entered into any contracts in relation to the Company’s business in
which any Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Accounts

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2015 prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards are set
out in section headed “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group prepared
in accordance with PRC accounting standards for the last five financial
years is set out in section headed “SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AND
OPERATING RESULTS”.

Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group
recorded a net profit of approximately RMB36,745,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013, 10% of the net profit of the Company
was transferred to the statutory surplus reserves amounting to
approximately RM3,944,000. The Board has recommended to
distribute a final dividend at RMBO0.2 per 10 shares (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.25, tax inclusive) on 307,312,830 A Shares
and 150,000,000 H Shares in issue, which is aggregated to be
approximately RMB9,146,256.60. The Board also proposed that
no stock dividends shall be divided and no capital reserve shall be
converted into share capital.

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group
recorded a net profit of approximately RMB50,725,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014, 10% of the net profit of the Company
was transferred to the statutory surplus reserves amounting to
approximately RMB2,831,000. The Board has recommended to
distribute a final dividend at RMBO0.2 per 10 shares (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.25, tax inclusive) on 307,312,830 A Shares
and 150,000,000 H Shares in issue, which is aggregated to be
approximately RMB9,146,256.60. The Board also proposed that
no stock dividends shall be divided and no capital reserve shall be
converted into share capital.
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(IlN) Others (continued)
Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group recorded a
net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders of approximately
RMB83,062,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015, 10% of the
net profit of the Company was transferred to the statutory surplus
reserves amounting to approximately RMB4,152,000. The Board has
recommended to distribute a final dividend of RMBO0.2 per 10 shares
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.25, tax inclusive) on 307,312,830
A Shares and 150,000,000 H Shares in issue, which is aggregated to
be approximately RMB9,146,256.6.

Efy - ARMT Unit: RMB

SHEESHERD e HREPRER

BERLETAR LHAFBERE

ResieE (8R) BREYBFE BFEA LS
% of Net Profit

Net Profit attributable attributable to the

to the equity holders equity holders of

Cash Dividend of the Company the Company
Amount in consolidated in consolidated
(including tax) statements statements
(%)

9,146,256.60 83,062,257.17 11.01%
9,146,256.60 50,725,311.05 18.03%
4,573,128.30 39,1563,122.05 11.68%

2015 plan for annual dividends

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group recorded a
net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders of approximately
RMB83,062,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015, 10% of the
net profit of the Company was transferred to the statutory surplus
reserves amounting to approximately RMB4,152,000. The Board has
recommended to distribute a final dividend of RMBO0.2 per 10 shares
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.25, tax inclusive) on 307,312,830
A Shares and 150,000,000 H Shares in issue, which is aggregated
to be approximately RMB9,146,256.6. The Board also proposed that
no stock dividends shall be distributed and no capital reserve shall
be converted into share capital. The above recommendation will be
submitted to the 2015 Annual General Meeting of the Company for
approval.
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(IlN) Others (continued)

Principal Activities and Operations by Geographical Area

The turnover of the Group and the Company in various geographical
locations is set out in note 15.2 to the Accounts prepared in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards.

Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

Changes in share capital and information on shareholders are set out
in the section above headed “CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS”.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year 2015 are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholder’s Equity prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards.

Fixed Assets

Details of the changes in fixed assets of the Group and the Company
during 2015 are set out in note 6.11 to the Accounts prepared in
accordance with PRC accounting standards.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2015 are set out in notes 6.16, 6.25,
6.27 and 6.28 to the Accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards.

Interest Capitalised

During the year, there was no interest capitalised in respect of loans
borrowed by the Group for financing its construction-in-progress.

Staff Quarters

The Group did not sell any staff quarters to its employees during the
year ended 31 December 2015 but has been required to contribute
10% of the basic wages of the Group’s staff to the accommodation
scheme managed by the Shandong Province Zibo Municipal Finance
Bureau in accordance with the relevant regulations implemented
by the PRC government since 1 January 1998. For the year ended
31 December 2015, contributions to the accommodation scheme
made by the Group in this respect amounted to approximately
RMB15,681,000.
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Staff Basic Medical Insurance

Pursuant to the Plan for Implementation of Basic Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees promulgated by the Shandong
Provincial Government and the Schedule for Establishment of
Medical Insurance System for Urban Employees implemented by Zibo
Municipal Government, the Company implemented the Basic Medical
Insurance System for Employees in December 2004. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the total contribution of the Group to the
staff medical insurance was approximately RMB17,071,000.

Preferential Tax Treatment

In 2008, the Company and its controlling subsidiary, Shandong Zibo
Xincat Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Xincat Pharmaceutical”)
was recognized as the first batch of high and new technology
enterprises in Shandong Province. According to the national
measures in recognizing high and new technology enterprises, the
certificate of national high and new technology enterprises would be
valid for three years. The certificate shall be reviewed after three years
and re-recognized after six years.

According to the formal notice (Lu Ke (2015) No. 33) issued jointly by
the Department of Science and Technology of Shandong Province,
Shandong Province Finance Bureau, National Taxation Bureau of
Shandong and Local Taxation Bureau of Shandong Province, the
Company and Xincat Pharmaceutical are recognised as new and
high technology enterprises, the recognition would be valid for three
years, from 2014 to 2016. According to the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax, the Company and Xincat
Pharmaceutical could enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% with regard
to their enterprise profits tax for each of the three years after this
recognition.

Designated Deposits
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had neither placed
any deposits with any non-banking financial institutions, nor had
it placed any designated deposits. The Group does not have any
overdue time deposits.

Important Issues

Important issues of the Company for the year 2015 are set out in the
section headed “IMPORTANT ISSUES”.
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(1) Others (continued)
Five largest Suppliers and five largest Customers

The purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and five largest customers were 18.73% and 11.33% of
the Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
and largest customer were 4.79% and 3.34% of the Group’s total
purchases and total sales, respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2015.

3.34% -
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F. Hoffmann-La Roche AG
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{5 E
)] HERELe
Proportion of
Name of customer Sales Amount Total Sales
(AE#) (%)
(RMB) (%)
Perrigo Company 120,138,203.62 3.34
Mitsubishi Corporation 107,2783,363.28 2.98
CHINA SHANDONG GROUP LIMITED 61,431,501.93 1.71
F. Hoffmann-LaRoche AG 59,535,455.06 1.66
Huarun Weifang YuanDong 59,136,452.78 1.64
Medical Co., Ltd.
Total 407,514,976.67 11.33
hEE
] 1 RIS
Purchase Proportion of
Name of suppliers Amount Total Purchase
(AEHT) (%)
(RMB) (%)
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical & Industrial 43,456,348.48 4.79
Company Limited
Vinati Organics Limited 39,960,916.54 4.41
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical 29,445,025.65 3.25
Limited Liability Company
Zibo De Cong Chemical Limited Company 29,238,516.70 3.22
Shandong Jinling Chemical Industry 27,761,544.40 3.06
Company Limited
Total 169,862,351.77 18.73
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Five largest Suppliers and five largest Customers (continued)

As far as the Directors are aware, with the exception of Perrigo
International, Inc. (US) holding 49.9% equity interests in SINO-USA
Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd., the ultimate controller of
the Company, and Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited, a subsidiary of SXPGC, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, thus constituting related parties of the Company,
no other directors or their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange), or shareholders who own more
than 5% of the share capital of the Company have an interest in any
of the customers or suppliers of the Group mentioned above during
the year.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had redeemed, purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, there is no
provision for pre-emptive rights.

Retirement Scheme Arrangements

The Group participates in the State Social Retirement and Pension
Insurance Scheme (the “Scheme”) and pays the insurance premium
in accordance with the particular regulation issued by the local
municipal government whereby it is required to make an annual
contribution of 19% of the total salaries and bonuses paid to staff.
In turn, the local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of the
Group. Contributions to the Scheme are charged to the profit and
loss account as and when they are incurred. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the total contribution of the Group to the Scheme
was approximately RMB47,229,000.

Insiders Registration and Management on Insider Information

In 2010, the Board of the Company considered and approved
the Insiders Registration and Management System on Insider
Information ( ( AEEEHIFAZLEIEF|E) ), and have since
strictly implemented the regime. No cases of non-compliance were
discovered during the year.
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(IlN) Others (continued)

Social responsibility

Taking “protecting health and benefiting community” as its corporate
mission; the Company has made great efforts in fulfilling its social
responsibility in such aspect as saving lives, curing the sick, ensuring
product quality, protecting the legitimate rights and interests of its
shareholders, creditors, employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders; attaching great importance to environmental protection
and production safety; and actively participating in social welfare
undertakings.

In respect of energy saving and emissions reduction, the Company
was twice honored as an advanced enterprise in energy saving in
Shandong Province. As to environmental protection, the Company
was the first pharmaceutical enterprise in China to pass the ISO
14001 environmental management system certification audit, and
acquired a Shandong Province Class A clean production certificate,
making it a qualified entity in terms of standardized management of
hazardous waste in Shandong Province.

In accordance with trading principles of honesty and trustworthiness,
reciprocity and mutual benefit, and legal and regulatory compliance,
the Company has maintained good relationships of cooperation with
suppliers and distributors to provide consumers with quality products
and services. While endeavouring to achieve sustainable development,
the Company has strengthened strategic partnerships with customers
through holding meetings with suppliers and customer seminars, thus
achieving more efficient, harmonious and closer cooperation.

The Company cares about the growth and development of its
employees and has put more efforts in education and training for
various personnel. As such, the Company is named as the personnel
training base for the pharmaceutical industry in Shandong Province,
one of the top 100 Chinese enterprises in education and China’s
corporate training demonstration base. The Company’s golden and
blue-collar training base passed the review of the Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau of Shandong Province and was approved
as the first workstation for chief technologists of Zibo City.

Whenever any major disaster or accident occurs in China, such as the
“SARS” outbreak, Wenchuan earthquake, 4.28 Jiaoji Railway crash
and Yushu earthquake, the Company has always been one of the
first to donate money and medicine, thus fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility and commitment well.

In future development process, the Company will, as always, be a
law-abiding operator, and will contribute strongly to the community, as
well as play an active role in the sustainable development of society.
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(1ll) Others (continued)

Establishment and implementation of the accountability
system for material errors in annual reports

In order to improve the Company’s standard operation level and
strengthen the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of information disclosure, the Accountability System for Material
Errors in Annual Reports was considered and approved at the 10th
meeting of the sixth Board of Directors of the Company in 2011,
which has enhanced the accountability of the persons in charge of
information disclosure of annual reports and improved the quality
and transparency of the information disclosure of annual reports.
During the reporting period, the system was strictly implemented and
there was no correction of material accounting errors, supplement of
material omissions or modification of the operating results forecast.

Connected Transactions

Significant connected transactions carried out in the normal course of

B SREWNT : the Group’s business are summarised as follows:
—E-1% —T-mEF
HH Item 2015 2014
ARET ARET
RMB RMB
HERATREREAT Withholding company and its subsidiaries
—HEKEARER - Sale of water, electricity, steam and waste materials 9,345,428.53 12,444,169.79
—HELERBER L TRY ~ Sale of bulk pharmaceuticals and chemical raw materials 61,431,501.93 -
—RERMH — Purchase of raw materials 83,557,015.16 94,274,354.79
-HEERE ~ Payment of annual trademark licence fee 10,000,000.00 10,300,000.00
—FiE i - Acquisition of land use rights - 26,220,000.00
ait Total 16433304562  143,238,524.58
—(ERRBWA - Repair service income 71,801.71 88,523.03
~fedh - Rental expenses - 608,000.00
Htast Others total 71,801.71 696,523.03
HBERERAT With ultimate holding company
— S RHEHFIE - Interest expenses of loan 40,850,000.00 40,850,000.00
—XEFEHER - Underwriting expenses of loan 2,100,000.00 2,100,000.00
&t Total 42,950,000.00 42,950,000.00
HBOHER With minority shareholders
—HEERMER TR — Sale of bulk pharmaceuticals and chemical raw materials 120,138,203.62 140,763,790.59
&t Total 120,138,203.62 140,763,790.59
#ant Grand total 327,493,950.95 327,648,838.20
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Connected Transactions (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors), the above transactions were carried out in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business and on normal
commercial terms. The aggregate amount of the above transactions
for each of the years 2014 and 2015 did not exceed the annual cap
approved in the general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above under Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to
SEHK.

(1) On 26 October 2012, the Company and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (“SXPGC”) entered
into an agreement in relation to the Company and/or its
subsidiaries purchasing and selling certain products and/or
services from and to SXPGC and/or its subsidiaries for a period
of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 (the
“SXPGC Agreement”).

In relation to the SXPGC Agreement, the annual cap for the
Company and/or its subsidiaries purchasing and selling certain
products and/or services from and to SXPGC and/or its
subsidiaries for the year 2015 is RMB230,000,000.

In relation to the Company and/or its subsidiaries purchasing
and selling certain products and/or services from and to
SXPGC and/or its subsidiaries under the SXPGC Agreement,
the actual amount incurred in 2015 was RMB124,888,919.97.



EESHRE

Report of the Board of Directors

(Z)RiwR (=

REXH (&)

(1 &
MESEREREBEARTCH
TTRRAN A EN34.46% « B AR

RARABRREEZRR - 3tk
MRS - HEEER/ARRE
MBEATL - FEIt - FERER
BETHRZBRFERERS °

MLEABEBRERS  ARAE
M2012510A26 BEHAE -

MR1996F 12 A7H » KAQ A #E
FEEERTHEZBEREAE
((EEHTmE])  RERER
BRAPEKEBINNESR - fF
AZEiZ BFFBAARK
600,0007T * EESFEIEAR
100,000t ' EE2FEBEIAR
#4,100,0007CH) EIR » It F &
15 435 7 AR %51,100,000 7T B 7K
T BEEEER AL AL o

ApaHfEERR T —=
F=-AZ+=0%:TEESA
WEmE e HEEFAIR
REITIBE c BRENEZETIH
ERAE BETERTER
A R # 10,000,000 7T - 17 3% HA
R E201244 F1 B #£E20144F
12A318 1 BEFAHED
HEMER s TE - R —Y
FH+AZ++H  ARFHEFE
EEF T NERFEZHA
HntE - RE_Z—NEFER
B pEmTnE - A2aR
20154 + 20164 A 2017 F & F
ERNNERERTFEAARKE
10,000,0007T * A A R FEH 2015
F > 2016FFM2017FE K FEH IS A
=t A AR EER LT
BEEATFE BRI HENE
fAER AT T o

AR A EREE R R
MABEMN2016FARYE
10,000,000 LY R F B -
EEBR/ARBNEEANL
It - AR HERE TR ZHE
RISERIERR D ©

MLEMBERERS - AAFE
200910 A28 H » 201243 A
238 K2014F10 A27 BEE A
a4,

=

(IlN) Others (continued)

Connected Transactions (continued)

1)

(continued)

SXPGC holds and owns 34.46% of the total issued share
capital of the Company and is currently the largest shareholder
and a substantial shareholder of the Company. SXPGC is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
As a result, the transactions under the SXPGC Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions.

In relation to the above continuing connected transaction, the
Company issued an announcement on 26 October 2012.

On 7 December 1996, SXPGC granted the Company the
exclusive right to use the Trademark (the “Trademark Licence
Agreement”) for its existing and future products in and outside
the PRC at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000 increasing
at the rate of an additional RMB100,000 per year until the
annual fee reaches the cap of RMB1,100,000. Thereafter, the
annual fee shall remain at the level of RMB1,100,000 until the
agreement is terminated.

On 23 March 2012, the Company and SXPGC entered into
the Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement which
amends and supplements the Trademark Licence Agreement.
Pursuant to the Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement,
the annual licence fee for the Company to use the Trademark
is RMB10,000,000 for the period between 1 April 2012 to
31 December 2014. Other terms of the Trademark Licence
Agreement remain unchanged. On 27 October 2014, the
Company and SXPGC entered into the 2014 Supplemental
Trademark Licence Agreement. Pursuant to the 2014
Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement, the annual
licence fees payable by the Company for using the Trademark
are RMB10,000,000 for each of 2015, 2016 and 2017and the
annual licence fees shall be paid by the Company to SXPGC
on or before 30 June of each of 2015, 2016 and 2017. Other
terms of the Trademark Licence Agreement remain unchanged.

The Company paid the 2015 annual fee of RMB10,000,000
in accordance with the Supplemental Trademark Licence
Agreement. As SXPGC is a connected person of the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the Trademark Licence
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

In relation to the above continuing connected transaction, the
Company issued announcements on 28 October 2009, 23
March 2012 and 27 October 2014.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

©)

On 26 October 2012, the Company and Eastwest United
Group, Inc. (“Eastwest”) entered into an agreement in relation to
the Company and/or its subsidiaries supplying pharmaceutical
products to Eastwest for a period of three years from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2015 (the “Eastwest Agreement”).
The annual cap for 2015 under the Eastwest Agreement is
RMB20,000,000. The actual amount incurred in 2015 under
the Eastwest Agreement was RMBO. Eastwest is a substantial
shareholder of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, and therefore
Eastwest is a connected person of the Company. As a result,
the transactions under the Eastwest Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions. In relation to the above
continuing connected transaction, the Company issued an
announcement on 26 October 2012.

On 30 October 2013, the Company and L. Perrigo entered
into an agreement in relation to the Company and/or its
affiliates supplying pharmaceutical products to L. Perrigo
and/or its affiliates for a period of three years from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2016 (the “Perrigo Agreement”), unless
terminated on six months’ written notice. The annual caps for
2015 under the Perrigo Agreement is RMB56,000,000. The
actual amount incurred in 2015 under the Perrigo Agreement
was RMB4,521,634.62. L. Perrigo is a subsidiary of Perrigo
Company. Perrigo Company is a connected person of the
Company as it is the parent company of Perrigo International,
Inc., which is a substantial shareholder of SINO-USA Zibo
Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Xinhua
Perrigo”), a 50.1% owned subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, L. Perrigo, being a subsidiary of Perrigo
Company, is also a connected person of the Company and
the transactions under the Perrigo Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions. In relation to the above
continuing connected transactions, the Company issued an
announcement on 30 October 2013.
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(IlN) Others (continued)

Connected Transactions (continued)

©)

Before Perrigo Company, the parent company of L. Perrigo,
became a connected person of the Company on 1 January
2007, the then associated company of the Company, Xinhua
Perrigo, and Perrigo China Business Trust, a subsidiary of
Perrigo Company, entered into a written agreement dated
3 July 2006 for a period of 10 years. At that time, the
transaction was not a connected transaction. A major term
of the agreement was that Perrigo China Business Trust
agreed to purchase 100% of Xinhua Perrigo’s output of the
pharmaceutical product up to 1,500 metric tons per year. After
Perrigo Company became a connected person of the Company
on 1 January 2007, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions. The total consideration
for the 2015 was RMB115,616,569. In relation to the above
continuing connected transactions, the Company issued an
announcement on 5 September 2008.

On 28 June 2013, the Company and Shandong Hualu
Hengsheng Chemical Company Limited (“Hualu Hengsheng”)
entered into an agreement pursuant to which the Company
and/or its subsidiaries purchase certain chemical products
from Hualu Hengsheng and/or its subsidiaries (the “Hualu
Hengsheng Agreement”). The Hualu Hengsheng Agreement is
for a term commencing from the date when approval thereof
has been obtained both at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company and at Hualu Hengsheng’s board meeting(or
shareholders’ meeting) and ending on 31 December 2015. The
Hualu Hengsheng Agreement is terminable by either party with
a three-month’ prior written notice.

The annual cap for the Hualu Hengsheng Agreement for 2015 is
RMB200,000,000.

The actual amount incurred in 2015 under the Hualu Hengsheng
Agreement was RMB29,445,025.65. HHGC holds 100%
equity interest of Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Company
Limited. Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Company Limited
holds and owns 32.22% of the total issued share capital of
Hualu Hengsheng and is the largest shareholder thereof. HHGC
holds 100% equity interest of SXPGC. SXPGC holds and owns
34.46% of the total issued share capital of the Company and
is the largest shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, Hualu
Hengsheng, being an associate of HHGC, is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated
under the Hualu Hengsheng Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

In relation to the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company issued an announcement on 28 June 2013.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Connected transactions between the Company and Hualu
International Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Hualu International
Financial Leasing”)

On 12 June 2015, the 2015 second extraordinary meeting of
the eighth session of the Company considered and approved
the Finance Lease Agreement signed by the Company and
Hualu International Financial Leasing, its connected party,
pursuant to which Hualu International Financial Leasing
provides the Company with financial leasing services. The valid
period of the agreement is thirty-six months. Hualu International
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. is a foreign investment, financing
and leasing company established by Hualu Holdings Group
Company Limited, a de facto controller of the Company.
Transactions between the Company and Hualu International
Financial Leasing constitute connected transactions.

The abovementioned connected transactions has not yet taken
place for the year 2015.

The Board (including the independent non-executive Directors)
considered that all the above connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions had been negotiated on
an arm’s length basis and were on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary course of business. They also considered
the transactions had been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements terms that were fair and reasonable, and
the entering into the transactions was in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole.

The disclosed related party transactions with associates in the
auditors’ report were not continuing connected transactions
or connected transactions as defined by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. All the transactions mentioned in this section were
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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72 {0 Auditors
ARARRAEBAFEIRBHRRSE The accounts of the Company and the Group for this year prepared
AIfREMERE EBEKP NS EH in accordance with PRC accounting standards have been audited by
(P B Estan) & - ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (certified public accountants

in the PRC).

ARRIER-_ZE—RAFNAZF+MNEAR The Company had approved the appointment of ShineWing Certified
HOARA —_E—NFEFEFRRENS Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the Company’s
FEBEKPMEMERIAERRA] international and domestic auditors for the year 2015 at the annual
ZE—AFEREAREZEED o A A general meeting of 2014 on 24 June 2015. The Company intends to
RN _E-RNFEAENAQT - re-appoint ShineWing Certified Public Accountants as auditors of the
—hFERFRRAS LEFREBEK Company for the year 2016 at the annual general meeting for the year
RGN EB I RARRE T —RF 2015 to be held in 2016.
S 288 -

EREEG® By order of the Board

RIS Zhang Daiming

EELR Chairman

FRED e |1 o J1H Zibo, Shandong, PRC

—E-R"F=A=+H 30 March 2016
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To All Shareholders,

In 2015, all members of the supervisory committee of the Company (the
“Supervisory Committee”) proactively performed their tasks in protecting
the interests of the Company and its shareholders in accordance with the
requirements of the Company Law of the PRC, the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”) and the relevant PRC laws and
regulations in an active, diligent and faithful manner.

The Supervisory Committee convened six meetings this year:

The Second meeting of the Eighth Supervisory Committee was convened at
the Company’s registered office on 27 March 2015, in which the following
resolutions were passed:

(1) To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for the year
2014;

(2)  To approve the annual report and results announcement for the year
2014;

(8)  To approve the audited accounts of the Company for the year 2014;

(4)  To approve the resolution in respect of the provisions for impairment
of assets and treatment of related losses;

(6)  To approve the connected transactions and the use of funds for the
year 2014;

(6) To approve the resolution in respect of the changes in accounting
policies;

(7)  To approve the resolution in respect of the retroactive adjustment of
previous accounting period financial statement resulting from merger
into common control;

(8) To approve the self-evaluation report of the Company’s internal
control for the year 2014.

On 24 April 2015, the Third meeting of the Eighth Supervisory Committee
was convened at the Company’s registered office to approve the first
quarterly report of 2015.

On 30 July 2015, the Fourth meeting of the Eighth Supervisory Committee
was convened at the Company’s registered office to approve the interim
report of 2015.



EEgWmE

Report of the Supervisory Committee

“E-RETANBERREMEHE/\EE
FEFRORNEH  FHRBENARIFAFE
TTABR I B RIFEE

ZE-AFTAZF=AEAREMBAEN
EEFEEFNRER  BEHRBARA_F
—HEE=FERENAER -

“E-AFTATABERRERBHREEN
EEFEE_T-RFE-ABRHEH  F48
BENAREMEREZH - ARREREH
ZEEFBEB T HHHE -

AEFEREAFRIEARREEEFALHAN
RAEFEMEREARARABZEENTAERN
R OERRARER  RENARRAINE
EASARELTARROERE RS W E
B o RBRBIERAEOEEITERE -

ABFGRARDANF B NS
ATAE -

AEFSTRETERE - SERAEMWENT
ERSRREIANABRBFAG 2HHHE -
EEEgnTHERES  TARERARM —F
—RFRHRE BB RRAR RPN
REERCR -

EARFEERAARREEAERFASEE -

EAFERNRRAHRIB(EEANARE S E AR
FH)MBBREEMEEAT RSB Y
TR M AREES] o

EEEEM
EESTE
FXR

R o LR o JlH
—E-RF=A=+H

On 8 October 2015, the Fifth meeting of the Eighth Supervisory Committee
was convened at the Company’s registered office to approve the resolutions
in relation to the Company’s non-public offering of A shares and other
matters.

On 23 October 2015, the Sixth meeting of the Eighth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office to approve
the third quarterly report of 2015.

On 29 October 2015, the First extraordinary meeting of 2015 of the Eighth
Supervisory Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office to
approve the continuing connected transactions between the Company and
SXPGC, and the continuing connected transactions between the Company
and SHHCC.

Members of the Supervisory Committee attended the board meetings of
the Company and exercised effective supervision as to whether business
decisions made by the Board of Directors were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and in line with
the prospects of the Company and also in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company. The Supervisory Committee considered that the Company
can continue to operate in accordance with the law.

In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the connected transactions
entered into by the Company during the year were fair and reasonable.

The Supervisory Committee has carried out its duties diligently. The
Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the accounts and the Report
of the Directors to be submitted by the Board of Directors to the 2015
Annual General Meeting and has not found anything contained therein to
be questionable. In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the financial
report for the year 2015 reflects the true financial position and results of the
Company.

The Company was not involved in any significant litigation during the year.

During the year, the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting in all material aspects in accordance with the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control ( {12 &R 6| EL AR &) ) and
other relevant provisions.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Chairman of Supervisory Committee
Li Tianzhong

Zibo, Shandong, PRC
30 March 2016
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The Group was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration and
no material litigation or arbitration is pending or threatened or was
made against the Group during the reporting period.

The Group did not have material acquisitions and sales of assets, nor
any material mergers and acquisitions during the reporting period.

In the reporting period, there was no trust, sub-contract or lease of
assets between the Company and other companies.

During the reporting period, save and except the guarantee of bank
accepted bills of exchange of RMB50,000,000 provided by the
Company in favour of Shandong Xinhua (Shouguang) Company
Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary, and the guarantee of RMB67
million provided by the Company in favor of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) B.V., its subsidiary for an external loan
under internal guarantee, there has been no other material guarantee
provided by the Company, nor has there been any obligations that
have not been performed in full by the Company.

During the reporting period, there has been no investment by the
Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, they confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, except only
for the deviation where Mr. Zhang Daiming had acquired 11,900 A
shares of the Company via the SZSE trading system through auction
during the blackout period prior to the publication of the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2015, and such deviation
was reported to the SEHK. On 18 August 2015, the SEHK issued
a warning letter to Mr. Zhang Daiming privately in respect of such
deviation and no further action has been taken by the SEHK as at the
date of this announcement.
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10.

11.

NAEIEEREH 7. Amendments to the Articles
ARIREHAN A BIR2015F3 8 - 20155 During the reporting period, the Company amended the articles
6 AM2015F12 A = IXIER AR EFE - of association of the Company three times in March, in June and
B AR ERNZERD RIE2014FAF IR December 2015 respectively. The resolutions to amend the articles
RAEEZHAIB  2015FF — KR of association of the Company were approved by the annual general
BAREM2015EF —NEEBREASE meeting of 2014, the first extraordinary general meeting of 2015 and
BB - RRIERMBHFE AR the second extraordinary general meeting of 2015 respectively. The
AIERYARPEMRBER - (TBUER amendments to the articles of association of the Company conform
MBEMENEBERE  TEEB(E to “the Articles of Association of the Company” and China’s laws and
TRADERE regulations and administrative laws, and also conform to the Listing
Rules.
DAl FFRE% A EIR R B AL S 8.  Disclosure of undertakings by the Company or its shareholders
IR 3 holding more than 5% of shares of the Company: Nil
B S RIS SmERMTET— - 9.  The related party transactions are as set out in Note 11.
1% EAD 10.  Auditors
ABRAZEENEMSBRFRIAGDA The auditors of the Company and the respective remuneration of
IBIRE [P AZEENE | —&D - auditors are set out in the section headed “Auditors’ remuneration”
disclosed in the “Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report”.
FHEHEM EmARREER(ARET) 11.  Information about holding other listed companies (RMB)
AN REMRES
BHRE ESHE MpRELE BRHELL A HXREE REHES a8
Change of
Initial Proportion of Book value shareholder’s
investment  equity interest of end of Profit/loss of equity of
Stock Code  Stock Short Name amount in investee this period this period this period
601601 F B KR China Pacific Insurance 7,000,000.00 0.06%  144,300,000.00 2,500,000.00  (17,200,000.00)
601328 3@IR1T BANKCOMM 14,225,318.00 0.01% 52,931,648.00 2,219,184.00 (2,958,912.00)
A%t Total 21,225,318.00 - 197,231,648.00 4,719,184.00  (20,158,912.00)
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12.

13.

14,

Information of reception research, communication or interview during
the reporting period

On 14 January 2015, Yingda Securities, Zhonghai Fund, Cephei
Capital and others amounts 23 instituional investors researched the
Company. The relevant information was published on the Shen Zhen
Stock Exchange website.

Decreased in shareholding of substantial shareholders

From 28 January 2015 to 30 June 2015, SXPGC reduced its holding
of 1,888,932 A shares of the Company by secondary market auction,
and 968,000 A shares of the Company by judicial auction respectively,
amounting to a total of 2,856,932 A shares of the Company.

On 8 October 2015, the Company announced the proposed placing
of additional A shares of the Company (including the proposed first
phase employee stock ownership scheme), and has been approved
in the shareholders’ meeting. Upon approval of the adjusted
proposed placing of A share by State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Shandong, it is expected that
an application of the proposed placing of A share will be submitted
to China Securities Regulatory Commission. It is expected that the
proposed placing would involve issuance of not more than 67 million
A shares to raise approximately RMB627 million.
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All Shareholders of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited,

We have audited the financial statement attached hereafter of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as Xinhua
Pharmaceutical), including Consolidated and Parent Company’s Balance
Sheets dated on December 31, 2015, as well as 2015 Consolidated
and Parent Company’s Income Statements, Consolidated and Parent
Company’s Cash Flow Statements, Consolidated and Parent Company’s
Statements of Changes in Owner’s Equity, and Notes to Financial
Statements.

I. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The management of Xinhua Pharmaceutical is responsible for
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements.
These responsibilities shall include: (1) preparing financial statements
according to the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and
ensuring fair presentation; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining
necessary internal control to make sure that these statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Il. Responsibility of Certified Public Accountant
(CPA)

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Auditing Standards for Certified Public
Accountants of China. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In conducting those
risk assessments, the CPA considers the internal control related
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design proper audit procedures. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

lll. Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statement of Xinhua Pharmaceutical, in
all material aspects, has been prepared in accordance with rules
of Accounting Principle for Enterprise, and gives fair presentation
of the consolidated and parent company’s financial situation as of
December 31, 2015, and of the consolidated and parent company’s
operating results and cash flows of 2015.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
Certified Public Accountant: Tang Xuan

Certified Public Accountant: Pan Sujiao

Registered in Beijing, China
March 30, 2016
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2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

By - ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH (k3 EXREBE FHIRE
Balance at the Balance at the
Notes end of the year beginning of the year
WENEE - Current assets:
EEEe Monetary funds <1V 476,288,884.09 328,769,345.83
IAREEFTEREE Financial assets measured
HBEEABHER at fair value and with their
NEMmEE variance recorded into
current profits and losses
JEM =& Notes receivable N2V 225,146,715.24 128,882,485.92
EUER K Accounts receivable 7N 3VIQ) 314,348,372.90 311,949,545.31
SEINE e 7N 4 VIE4) 23,862,000.43 42,455,262.02
JEULFIE Interest receivable N5V 1,937,851.12
FEMRRE A Dividends receivable
Hfth UK Other accounts receivable 73 6VI(B) 42,363,264.11 40,653,822.52
7E TV 546,460,168.40 588,887,791.35
—FREHROIERBEE Non-current assets due
within one year
HibRehEE Other current assets 75 8VI(©g) 21,072,010.76 20,816,342.65
REEESH Total current assets 1,651,479,267.05 1,462,414,595.60
ERBHEE : Non-current assets:
AHHEsmEE Financial assets available for sale 7N 9VIQ) 200,431,648.00 220,590,560.00
BEZIHKRE Investment held to maturity
RAREUH Long-term accounts receivable
RERERE Long-term equity investment
KEHFEE Investment real estate 75~ 10VI(10) 78,919,116.83 69,585,332.70
BEEE N 1 VEH) 2,070,424,188.32 1,975,943,708.53
HEETR Projects under construction N 12V(12) 155,326,282.87 177,782,207.67
TiEmE Project materials
ETEERE Disposal of fixed assets
SEMEMEE Productive biological assets
HRAE Oil and gas assets
BIERE Intangible assets 7~ 13 VI (19) 294,564,809.70 312,962,415.75
R Development expenditure
Bk Business reputation 7N 14VI(14)
REGHER Long-term expenditures to be
FILFEREE Deferred income tax assets 75 15 VI(15) 25,577,123.86 25,870,893.52
HinIEREEE Other non-current assets 75~ 16 VI (16) 15,400,000.00
ERBHEESH Total non-current assets 2,840,643,169.58 2,782,735,118.17
EEH 4,492,122,436.63 4,245,149,713.77
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BHEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

i - AR
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH Item e FREBH FHERE
Balance at the Balance at the
Notes end of the year beginning of the year

mEARE: Current liabilities:
KEER Short-term borrowing 17 VI7) 530,000,000.00 429,978,928.59
AR BEFEZEE Financial liabilities measured at fair
FEET A HIERN value with their variance recorded
Ea =L into current profits and losses
ANESE Notes payable 75~ 18VI(18) 215,648,469.78 122,175,386.81
JETBRIR Accounts payable 75~ 19 VI (19) 380,787,628.21 361,102,897.10
SELEeE] Accounts received in advance 75 20 VI (20) 40,445,572.01 34,416,698.06
R <) B T 5 M Payroll payable 7021V 21) 30,882,312.65 36,287,700.18
ERXFHE Taxes and dues payable 7822 V1(22) 16,464,788.72 13,230,211.46
FERTFILE Interest payable 7N 23 VI(23) 1,206,341.11 587,252.16
JEAS AR Dividends payable 75 24 VI (24) 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
HAhfERIR Other payables 75~ 25 VI (25) 140,023,098.13 184,050,581.16
—FRE RS EE Non-current liabilities due 75~ 26 VI (26)
within one year 585,544,786.58 408,907,645.38
Hirs ek Other current liabilities 750 27 VI(©27) 4,602,000.00 5,042,000.00
RHAES Total current liabilities 1,950,915,596.72 1,601,089,900.43
FREEE: Non-current liabilities:
REMER Long-term loans <~ 28 VI (28) 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
ERES Bonds payable
He : B8R Including:  Preferred stocks
KERE Perpetual bond
RHEIFENRR Long-term payables 75 29 VI (29) 52,011,490.15
REAERTIE T 5 N Long-term payroll payable
BIEEMK Special payables 75+ 30 VI (30) 15,420,000.00 13,000,000.00
B aE Estimated liabilities 75 31VI(31) 9,440,000.00
B Deferred income X 32VI(32) 97,909,029.94 55,243,824.43
EIEFTERiaE Deferred income tax liabilities 75 15VI(15) 10,022,501.42 14,996,956.23
HtERBaE Other non-current liabilities 75~ 33 VI (33) 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
ERBARSEH Total non-current liabilities 557,124,521.51 732,190,825.66
AES Total liabilities 2,508,040,118.23 2,333,280,726.09

100 —ZE—-FAEFEHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



BHEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015
RELEE(Y ¢ | LIRETERBERMAER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

By - ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH Item et FERBH FHEE
Balance at the Balance at the
Notes end of the year beginning of the year
FBEEER : Shareholders’ equity:
(&N Capital Stock 7N~ 34 VI(34) 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
HitlEsmT A Other equity instruments
He : B8R Including:  Preferred stocks
KERE Perpetual bond
BEARRTE Capital surplus 75~ 35 VI (35) 513,092,452.66 507,192,452.66
B BTER Less: Treasury stock
Hipsr AUz Other comprehensive income 75~ 36 VI (36) 148,383,251.38 164,632,863.45
EIRHE Special reserve
BHATE Surplus reserve 7N~ 37 VI(37) 213,465,177.68 209,313,480.05
—ReE kAR General risk reserve
KA EEFE Undistributed profits 75~ 38 VI (38) 552,002,849.22 482,238,546.28
BERBAFIRRERSEH Total of equity assigned to
the shareholders of parent
company 1,884,256,560.94 1,820,690,172.44
DYRFEER Minority shareholders’ equities 7%~ 39 VI (39) 99,825,757.46 91,178,815.24
BRESSH Total of shareholders’ equity 1,984,082,318.40 1,911,868,987.68
AEMERERE Total of liabilities and

shareholder’s equity

4,492,122,436.63

4,245,149,718.77
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BB URHERERDERLT \ Prepared by: Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
NAIEEBER
Parent Company’s Balance Sheet
By - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
HH ltem Ktat FREE FIEE
Balance at the Balance at the
Notes end of the year  beginning of the year
MENEE - Current assets:
EHES Monetary funds +75 1 XVI (1) 291,940,435.73 184,170,408.47
LAREESEAE Financial assets measured at fair
BEETARHER value and with their variance
MEREE recorded into current profits and
losses
EWERE Notes receivable 75 2XVI(2) 156,857,770.10 76,825,330.83
FEUER TR Accounts receivable +75 3XVI(9) 432,002,639.73 336,402,023.26
BNFIA Prepayments +75 4 XV (4) 9,187,119.90 6,767,757.61
JEWIFILE, Interest receivable 1,937,851.12
FEUR R FI Dividends receivable
HoAth TR Other accounts receivable +75 2 5XVI(B) 406,903,717.08 461,385,127.78
& Inventories +75 6 XVI () 287,735,048.69 303,798,645.29
—FREIER Non-current assets due within
FEREBEE one year
HAihmeh & E Other current assets 75 7TXVI(7) 16,380,987.51
mEEESH Total current assets 1,602,945,569.86 1,369,349,293.24
JERENEE : Non-current assets:
AENESREE Financial assets available for sale 200,431,648.00 220,590,560.00
FEZIHEE Investment held to maturity
RERE R Long-term accounts receivable
REIRG IS A Long-term equity investment +75 8 XVI(8) 468,244,841.06 468,244,841.06
KEEEHE Investment real estate 78,919,116.83 69,585,332.70
EEEE Fixed assets 75 9XVI9) 1,503,751,384.33 1,387,022,719.90
FETRR Projects under construction 175+ 10 XVI (10) 109,112,518.04 150,772,847.53
TIEME Project materials
BT EEFE Disposal of fixed assets
SEMENEE Productive biological assets
HREE Oil and gas assets
EREE Intangible assets +75 11 XV (1) 200,290,752.13 212,462,695.49
FEES Development expenditure
kS Business reputation
ROGEER Long-term expenditures to be
amortized
BEFTSHEE Deferred income tax assets
HinIERENEE Other non-current assets
FRDEESEH Total non-current assets 2,560,750,260.39 2,508,678,996.68
EEMSE Total assets 4,163,695,830.25 3,878,028,289.92
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Parent Company’s Balance Sheet

2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015
MRELELY - LRIFERBRHAR AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

By ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH Item i3 FREBHE FYERER
Balance at the Balance at the
Notes end of the year  beginning of the year
MENRLE - Current liabilities:
SRR Short-term borrowing F75 0 12XVI(12) 330,000,000.00 368,567,151.39
AREEFEAE Financial liabilities measured at fair
BEETARHER value with their variance recorded
MemBaE into current profits and losses
LANES Notes payable 75 13 XVI(13) 396,348,469.78 64,370,636.81
FEfTERSR Accounts payable 75 14XV (14) 294,195,098.12 263,881,015.66
LG ] Accounts received in advance +75 15 XVI (15) 24,739,309.12 51,782,196.36
FEATER T 5 M Payroll payable 24,944,353.64 31,347,930.41
R E Taxes and dues payable F75 17 XVI(17) 5,422,569.42 3,172,246.82
FEATFI B Interest payable 1,206,341.11 587,252.16
FERT R Dividends payable 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
HoAth FEATRR Other payables +75 18 XVI(18) 109,971,581.19 155,561,373.47
—FREIHHIERE Non-current liabilities due within
=0 one year 585,544,786.58 408,907,645.38
Hitneh & & Other current liabilities 4,602,000.00 5,042,000.00
mEAESEH Total current liabilities 1,782,285,108.49 1,358,530,047.99
EEEEE Non-current liabilities:
REER Long-term loans 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
eI &S Bonds payable
Heb o BEK Including: Preferred stocks
KEBTE Perpetual bond
RHAFE X Long-term payables 52,011,490.15
R HARE (T T3 A Long-term payroll payable
HIEEMNK Special payables 15,420,000.00 13,000,000.00
TEETAE Estimated liabilities
EIEW Deferred income 97,909,029.94 55,243,824.43
EEFEHRARE Deferred income tax liabilities 9,078,943.12 13,242,258.44
EMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
ERBAREH Total non-current liabilities 556,180,963.21 720,996,127.87
=Ry Total liabilities 2,338,466,071.70 2,079,526,175.86
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BATEERER

Parent Company’s Balance Sheet

2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015
IREBIEELY . | LRITERERMHERAT | Prepared by: Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

By ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH ltem i3 FREBHE FUHE
Balance at the Balance at the
Notes end of the year  beginning of the year
FREEES - Shareholders’ equity:
A Capital Stock 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
HgEmT A Other equity instruments
He @5k Including: Preferred stocks
XIEfE Perpetual bond
W UN - Capital surplus 527,841,785.86 516,349,785.86
& EER Less: Treasury stock
Hibara W Other comprehensive income 149,605,380.50 166,740,455.70
HIEHE Special reserve
BEBNTE Surplus reserve 207,023,538.55 202,871,840.92
RO BRI Undistributed profits 483,446,223.64 455,227,201.58
BRESSET Total of shareholders’ equity 1,825,229,758.55 1,798,502,114.06
AEMERESE Total of liabilities and

shareholder’s equity

4,163,695,830.25

3,878,028,289.92
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20154 12 A 31 B | December 31, 2015
RELEE(Y | |LIRTERBERMAMR AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
CXciRINEES
Consolidated Income Statement
B - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
15H Item 0fz3 FEREH EFEBER
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
— EREBA l.  Gross revenue 3,597,033,209.79 3,589,749,770.93
Hep o ZEWA Including: Operating revenue 7N+ 43 V1 (43) 3,597,033,209.79 3,589,749,770.93
Z. BERXdE% Il. Total operating cost 3,510,262,563.27 3,543,107,741.74
Hefp: BERAK Including: Operating cost 75~ 43 VI (43) 2,760,385,994.80 2,854,928,187.30
HER S RMM Business taxes and surcharges 7% + 44 VI (44) 29,952,900.45 20,613,746.32
HEER Selling expenses 7N+ 45 VI (45) 353,774,618.80 317,762,961.34
ERER Administration expenses 73~ 46 VI (46) 303,257,072.10 265,461,966.74
HBER Financial expenses N 47 VI (47) 67,591,007.63 72,082,530.10
AERMERX Assets impairment loss N 48 VI (48) (4,699,030.51) 12,258,349.94
m: RARBEEEEUNE Add: Incomes from changes in
(BT - 553E51) fair value (losses to be
listed with “-")
BB WS (BRI Investment incomes (osses 75 49 VI (49)
SRiES) to be listed with “-”) 5,297,149.68 7,917,247.80
Hep o HEE R EA Including:  Income from
BEhEN investment into
"ENE affiliates and
joint ventures
=. SEF)H(SELI-5%E5) 1. Operating profits (losses to be
listed with “-”) 92,067,796.20 54,559,276.99
me EEINEA Add: Non-operating income 7%+ 50 VI (50) 52,812,749.90 116,868,592.12
Hep: ERBIEE Including:  Gains from 78+ 50 VI (50)
BRENG disposal of
non-current
assets 23,589,138.12 496,349.14
B EENR Less:  Non-operating expenditure 75 * 51 VI (51) 27,150,931.07 79,942,714.93
B ERBAE Including:  Losses from 73 51V (51)
REBX disposal of
non-current
assets 5,428,247.19 65,522,427.61
. iR (HiaaEll-] IV. Total profits (total loss to be listed
IES) with #-*) 117,729,615.03 91,485,154.18
o ETER Less:  Income tax expense 7N 52 VI (52) 23,720,864.46 23,150,467.44
A, BRBECGPEEL-B%ES) V. Net profits (net loss to be listed
with “-*) 94,008,750.57 68,334,686.74
FENSLRRRAFEFE Net profit which belongs to
shareholders of parent company 83,062,257.17 50,725,311.05
LERRER Minority interest income 10,946,493.40 17,609,375.69
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2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015

RELVERLY ¢ L ERETERBRHAR AT | Prepared by: Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
RN ES
Consolidated Income Statement
B AR
Unit: RMB Yuan
15H Item 0fz3 FEREH EFEBER
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
N Bt BnNRe s VI. Net of tax of other comprehensive
income (16,054,163.25) 77,455,484.54
RRIFAENEAM Net of tax of other comprehensive 7N 57 VI(57)
?%é”ﬁl%ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ?éi%%ﬁ income that belongs to the owners of
parent company (16,249,612.07) 78,074,939.12
(=) g TeeEnEs () Other comprehensive income not
BamMEM subject to reclassification to
el profit or loss in future
1. EFHERT 1. Changes in net indebtedness
amaTElFE or net assets subject to
BEIF remeasurement of defined
BEMNE benefit plans
2. ERETER 2. Shares enjoyed in other
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ\ﬁé comprehensive income not
DEEER subject to reclassification
E’Jﬁﬁﬂw a to loss or profit in
L EalEYS investment-receiving
Eokpac company under equity law
(=) LM%H#%"*E%ETEA () Other comprehensive incometobe 75 * 57 VI (57)
R E AR A W reclassified to profit or loss
in future (16,249,612.07) 78,074,939.12
1. BERE MERR 1. Shares enjoyed in other
BEMEE comprehensive income to
BRfEER be reclassified to loss or
HEfARE I profit in investment-receiving
wREAR company under equity law
Lk
2. TAHESRE 2. Profit and loss of change in 7N 57 VI(B7)
ERREEE fair value of financial assets
BiEa available for sale (17,135,075.20) 79,202,007.20
3. %ﬁ 3R E 3. Profit and loss of held-to-
BRBEANHE maturity investment
HESHERE reclassified to available-for-
ik sale financial assets
4, BeneEMHE 4. FEffective part of cash flow
Eliok=pve: 5ol hedging profit and loss
5. SNEBIISIE 5. Conversion difference of 73 57 VI(57)
mEEE foreign currency statement 885,463.13 (1,127,068.08)
6. Efs 6. Others
FERDERRMNE Net of tax of other consolidated
fir AT g F 5 income that belongs to the
minority shareholders 195,448.82 (619,454.58)
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2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015
RELEE(Y ¢ | LIRETERBERMAER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

B OFAE R

Consolidated Income Statement

B - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
HE Item K FEREH FERES
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
t. FekSEE VII. Total comprehensive income 77,954,587.32 145,790,171.28
S SN E: Total comprehensive income
IRE MR attributable to the shareholders of
parent company 66,812,645.10 128,800,250.17
FERDERREL Total comprehensive income
IRA NGRS attributable to the minority
shareholders 11,141,942.22 16,989,921.11
I\, BERKE : VIIl. Earnings per share:
(=) EXgkks () Basic earnings per share 75~ 56 VI (56) 0.18 0.11
(Z) WEgRYE (I) Diluted earnings per share 7% * 56 VI (56) 0.18 0.11
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Parent Company’s Income Statement

RELVERLY ¢ L ERETERBRHAR AT | Prepared by: Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Bfy : ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan
15H Item it FEREH EFEBER
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
— EEBA l.  Operating revenue +75 22 XV1(22) 1,829,921,125.48 1,865,023,003.52
W EERA Less:  Operating costs 1752 22 XVI (22) 1,477,547,675.84 1,574,608,438.50
ZER S RN Business taxes and surcharges 175 * 23 XVI (23) 16,656,443.60 9,749,572.39
HEER Seling expenses +75 24 XVI (24) 35,989,351.67 32,018,744.37
EREA Administration expenses +75 2 25 XVI (25) 226,791,422.74 190,916,624.66
FBER Financial expenses 75+ 26 XVI (26) 63,178,875.43 73,410,759.01
BERERE Assets impairment loss 752 27 X1 27) (3,839,915.51) 2,605,121.57
m: 2REEEHKE Add:  Incomes from changes in
(BRIAT-157E7) fair value (losses to be
listed with “-”)
BB W (B AT-] Investment incomes (losses 175 * 28 XVI (28)
SRIETI)) to be listed with “-”) 7,490,573.93 12,341,385.00
Hep - HEE RN Including:  Income from
BETERN investment
& into affiliates
and joint
ventures 3,2569,406.22
Z. BEENE IIl. Operating profit
(BRI - IsRia %)) (with “-” for loss) 21,087,845.64 (5,944,871.98)
m: EEINEA Add:  Non-operating income 45,382,720.68 116,155,014.68
Hep: ERBEE Including: ~ Gains from
BEMNE disposal of
non-current
assets 23,366,940.30 1,521,5634.91
B EENTH Less:  Non-operating expenditure 20,591,099.38 77,693,155.97
Hep: ERBEE Including:  Losses from
REBX disposal of
non-current
assets 4,268,433.75 65,310,886.67
=, fiBEsE(SREEN lll. Total profit
[- I5RE&5) (with “-” for total loss) 45,879,466.94 32,516,986.73
W FSHER Less:  Income tax expense +75 29 XVI (29) 4,362,490.65 4,207,022.69
pu. BFE IV. Net profit
(FBESBLL - BRES) (with “-” for net loss) 41,516,976.29 28,309,964.04
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20154 12 A 31 B | December 31, 2015
RELEE(Y | |LIRTERBERMAMR AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
- — N
NP D
Parent Company’s Income Statement
By ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan
15H Item it FEREH EFEBER
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
A, G aWamiREB® V. Netof tax of other comprehensive
income (17,135,075.20) 79,202,007.20
(=) ETEEENBS () Other comprehensive income
Bamm AR not subject to reclassification to
profit or loss in future
1. EMfEREXE 1. Changes in net indebtedness
EFafEwn or net assets subject to
FEENE remeasurement of defined
benefit plans
2. BRETEWRE 2. Shares enjoyed in other
BT EEDE comprehensive income not
EBREME A subject to reclassification
BlEPEAN to loss or profit in
A58 investment-receiving
company under equity law
(Z) DEBEDEEEREN () Other comprehensive income
Hipfr e to be reclassified to profit or
loss in future (17,135,075.20) 79,202,007.20
1. BERETERIEE 1. Shares enjoyed in other
BRI BES comprehensive income
HiEBEmEL to be reclassified to loss or
LAKETES profit in investment-receiving
ofES company under equity law
2. AHLESREE 2. Profit and loss of change in
DhEEES fair value of financial
182 assets avaiable for sale (17,135,075.20) 79,202,007.20
3. RHERIBRES 3. Profit and loss of held-to-
DEARREE maturity investment
TRHEERR reclassified to available-for-
sale financial assets
4, BeREEHESE 4. Effective part of cash flow
EopSpyeiva hedging profit and loss
5. INEBIEImANE 5. Conversion difference of
=% foreign currency statement
6. Hi 6. Others

N GEHREH

£, BHNE :
(=) BASRKS
(=) WERSRK

VI. Total comprehensive income

VII. Earnings per share:
() Basic earnings per share
(I) Diluted earnings per share

24,381,901.09

107,5611,971.24

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IWERHFERERGER D

109



110

2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015

RELVERLY ¢ L ERETERBRHAR AT | Prepared by: Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
N/ ~ =
BEHRETRER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
B - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
15H Item 0fz3 FEREH EFEBER
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
— RETHELEMBQRE - Cash flow from operating activities:
HERM « RESHEKE Cash received from sales of
opkn goods or rendering services 2,403,952,752.66 2,458,509,362.57
BB BIRE Refunds of taxes and levies 13,101,270.51 27,148,689.31
W B B fth BRAR R B A R A Other cash received from 75~ 58(1) VI 58(1)
Be operating-related activities 148,028,157.85 160,717,813.92
BEEBRETANG Subtotal of cash inflows
from operating activities 2,565,082,181.02 2,646,375,865.80
HEEM  BXEB Cash paid for goods purchased
MRS and labor services received 1,123,709,415.23 1,371,345,073.35
TR BINRAS Cash paid to and for employees
IZHEE 481,758,553.46 389,341,035.31
IRNEERE Cash paid for taxes and surcharges 222,386,782.38 169,995,505.99
FREMEBLEEEBRN Other cash paid related to operating 75  58(1) VI 58(1)
Be activities 388,591,253.83 369,352,187.15
KETEEIR SR M/ T Subtotal of cash outflows from

R EDELNRDREFE
. RREDELMRERE

KEEERRINRE
RERERERENRS

REETERE  BREEM
HttRHEERENRS
EikE]

REFRAINAMEEEN
WERREFE

WE A REERBHARN
R

RERGRERAG

BRETEE  BFEEMN
HtRHEEXNNRE
REXMMERE

BEFARRAMEREN
XNHREFE

N EMEEEEDHEBN
R

RERGHRS R

REBDELHN
REne ¥

operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow generated from investing

activities:

Cash received from sales and
redemption of investments

Cash received from returns on
investments

Net cash received from disposal of
fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Net cash received from disposal of
subsidiaries and other business entities

Other cash received related to investing
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing
activities

Cash paid for acquisitions of fixed assets,
intangible assets and long-term assets

Cash paid for acquisitions of
investments

Net cash paid for acquisitions of
subsidiaries and other business entities

Other cash paid related to investing
activities

Subtotal of cash outflow from investing
activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

2,216,446,004.90
348,636,176.12

20,334,000.00

5,297,149.68

33,278,245.09

58,909,394.77

169,085,638.30

169,085,638.30

(110,176,243.53)

2,300,033,801.80
346,342,064.00

2,280,000.00

5,637,247.80

2,046,170.42

9,963,418.22
260,172,681.58
20,334,000.00

102,000,000.00

382,506,581.58

(372,543,163.36)
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5

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERBBRHERAT | Prepared by

2015 % 12 B 31 B | December 31, 2015

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical

Company Limited

B - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
15H Item 0fz3 FEREH EFEBER
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
=, EYERELHRERE . . Cash flows from financing
activities:
RUEE B IR 2 Cash received from capital
contributions
Hep - FREIGRDERE Including: cash received from
RERE RS subsidiaries’ absorption
of investments from
minority shareholders
EERMRE R e Cash received from loans 923,110,978.80 725,457,223.75
ETEFREINRS Cash received from bond issues
WEEMEREEESEBRE Other cash received relating to 7%~ 58(1) VI 58(1)
Be financing activities 72,000,000.00
EEEHRSMANG Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities 995,110,978.80 725,457,223.75
Cash paid for repayment of debts 939,689,292.04 642,595,621.56

BEREBMXNORE

DERA - MERENFIE
xRS

Hep: FRARXNGREIH

RREORA ~ A

XNAMREE R AR
e

EREPRLMM/ NG

EERPELORDREFE

. ERERRESRASF

AhmRE

. BERFSERMPAMEA V.

m: HORERREE
B

Cash paid for distributing dividends
and profits or paying interest
Including: dividends and profits paid to
minority shareholders by

subsidiary

Other cash paid related to financing

activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from
financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

. Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash and cash

equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the period

N BERRERFSEEMRE VL. Cashand cash equivalents at

the end of the period

7%~ 58(1) VI 58(1)

88,458,441.84

2,495,000.00
130,512,202.36

1,158,659,936.24
(163,548,957.44)

10,202,744.17

85,203,719.32

281,435,164.77

366,638,884.09

85,303,545.61

1,497,000.00
1,232,500.00

729,131,667.17
(3,674,443.42)

284,966.59

(29,590,576.19)

311,025,740.96

281,435,164.77
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MRELELY - LRIFERBRHAR AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
= ==
NEIEERER
Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement
By - ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan
ltem Wizt XERER FEEEE
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year

- EEERELMTERE

HERm - RESHERE
HNHE

YRR ERE

YRR R EE B
MRE

EBEHREAA it

BEA® EXBBEXH
MRz

IRHEBTARARR I XA
MRE

XRNBERE

XA RSB AR
0k

BEETHRERH D

EREHELHRLRERN
. RREDEENHRLRE
e B REIMR S

RERERERIINES
REETAE  BVEEMEM
RYBERENRSFE

RETFRARAREMEEELE
ik

WE AR AR B AR
ik

RAZDREAA D&

BRETEE  BVEENHM
RHEEM NG

REXIHRE
BSFRARREMEREN
XHREIFE
XNEMERE RS EBNRS
REEHRERH D

RATHELHRLRE PN

Cash flow from operating activities:

Cash received from sales of goods or
rendering services

Refunds of taxes and levies

Other cash received from operating-related
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating
activities

Cash paid for goods purchased and labor
services received

Cash paid to and for employees

Cash paid for taxes and surcharges

Other cash paid related to operating
activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from
operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow generated from investing
activities:

Cash received from sales and redemption
of investments

Cash received from returmns on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other long-
term assets

Net cash received from disposal of
subsidiaries and other business entities

Other cash received related to investing
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing
activities

Cash paid for purchasing and constructing
fixed assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets

Cash paid for acquisitions of investments

Net cash paid for acquisitions of subsidiaries
and other business entities

Other cash paid related to investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflow from investing
activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

1,303,965,360.52
5,520,704.57

118,396,716.51
1,427,882,781.60
463,276,485.82

304,097,296.53
81,665,300.85

159,549,796.15

1,008,588,879.35
419,293,902.25

7,490,573.93

31,473,648.62

38,964,222.55

147,378,385.02

147,378,385.02
(108,414,162.47)

1,404,676,341.85
18,840,448.46

113,516,836.96
1,537,033,627.27
753,185,457.21

254,143,014.50
61,675,318.71

149,682,358.64

1,218,586,149.06
318,447,478.21

2,280,000.00
6,801,979.78

1,8561,810.00

10,933,789.78
218,199,447.94
8,000,000.00

102,000,000.00
8,180,000.00

336,379,447 94
(325,445,658.16)
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RELEE(Y | |LIRITERBERMAEMR AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
A— ==
/N Iﬁ@mu%%
Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement
iy - ARBT
Unit: RMB Yuan
RH Item Wizt TEREH FEEEE
Amount of Amount of
Notes Current Year Last Year
= BHEDELEMBARE . Cash flows from financing activities:
tereetiellinfkq Cash received from capital contributions
REETRENES Cash received from loans 723,110,978.80 649,045,446.55
BOIEHFIGINE S Cash received from bond issues
WE R EEETEERBOBRS  Other cash received relating to financing
activities 72,000,000.00
BREADASTA M it Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities 795,110,978.80 649,045,446.55
Cash paid for debts 878,277,514.84 602,595,621.56

BREBXINRS
7

ERA - MERERME XM

MRE

XREMEEEEYERENRE
EREDREAL Dt
RREDEEHRETERR

. EXSBHRORALFRY

HRE

ReRRESRMPAME
- BRE LR FENHE

N MXRERASFRMBA

Cash paid for distribution of dividends or
profits or for interests

Other cash paid related to financing
activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the period

. Cash and cash equivalents at the end

of the period

85,963,441.84
122,166,924.38
1,086,407,881.06
(291,296,902.26)

6,871,370.80

26,454,208.32

165,486,227.41

191,940,435.73

82,771,509.83

1,232,500.00
686,599,631.39
(37,554,184.84)

342,190.31

(44,210,174.48)

209,696,401.89

165,486,227 .41
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20154 12 A 31 8 | 2015

RELEE(Y ¢ | LIRETERBERMAER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

2y ARBTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

SERER
Amount of Current Year
BRERBLFRRES
Equity assigned to the shareholders of parent company
RfREIR
Other equity instruments
HE [ 23 iR i Rt RELH & RER Rfisaka BREE BEOH -RERER FARHA JHRRRE  AAZHAAR
Other Minority Total of
Capital Preferred Perpetual Capital Less: Treasury comprehensive Special Surplus General risk Undistributed shareholders’ shareholder's
ltem Stock stocks bond Others surplus stock income reserve reserve reserve profits equities equity
- LEEREE
. Balance at the end of previous year 457,312,830.00 507,192,452.66 164,632,863.45 209,313,480.05 482,238,546.28 01,178815.24  1,911,868,987.68
m: EHEREE
Add: Changes in accounting policies
HHEEEE
Carrections of prior period
accounting errors.
R-fETeRa%
Business merger under jint control
At
Qthers
I FEEDRE
II. Balance at the beginning of current year  457,312,630.00 507,192,452.66 164,632,863.45 209,313,480.05 482,238,546.28 01,178815.24  1,911,868,987.68
Z RERRLBEMRDL - 1A
ll. Current year increase/decrease
(decrease to be listed with “') 5,900,000.00 (16,249,612.07) 4,151,697.63 69,764,302.94 8,646,042.22 72,213,330.72
(=) Hehags
() Total comprehensive income: (16,249,612.07) 83,062,257.17 11,141,942.22 77,954,587.32

(2) BRBRAHRSER

() Invested and decreased capital of
shareholders

. RERAEER

. Shareholder's contribution capitel
. RURETAREERARL

. Contribution capital of holder of
other equity instruments
Rigxif ABREEHEE
Amount of share (based) payment

@ e

recognized as share holder's
interest

i

Others

=

—E-FHEEH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



BOFEEEREHR

20154 12 A 31 8 | 2015

RELEE(Y ¢ | LIRETERBERMAER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

RE

ERER

Amount of Current Year

2y ARBTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

BRRBLRRRAZ

Equity assigned to the shareholders of parent company

REHEIA

Other equity instruments

B% B5R K

Capital Preferred
Stock stocks bond

Perpetual

i RELR

Capital
Others surplus

A BB

Less: Treasury

stock

Rftisaka BAEE
Other

BRAR

comprehensive Special Surplus

income reserve reserve

—RERER

General risk

reserve

*AEHE JHBRNE  FEERNAAH
Minority Total of
Undistributed

shareholders’ shareholder's

profits equities equity

(Z) #EAR

(U

(®)

Proft distribution

. EREHLHR
Appropration of surplus reserves
. ER-RERER
Appropriation of general isk
resene

4 (ERRNAR
Distribution o owners

{or sharefolders)

4 ER

4. Others
BREEATEE

e e

(V) Intemal camyover in shareholder's

equities
1. ERDRBETAEL
. Capital surplus converted

to capttal
. BRORBEERAL
‘Surplus reserve converted

tocapttal

3. EELERAEER

3. Surplus reserve fo recover losses
4 A

4. Others

(7) $EER

M

Special reserve
1. AERR
1. Appropriation in current year
2. RERR
2. Amount used in current year

(%) 24
V) Others

B SEEREH

IV. Balance at end of current year

467,312,830.00

5,900,000.00

513,002,452.66

4,151,697.63

4,151,697.63

148,383,251.38 213,465,177.68

(13,207,954.23) (2,495,000.00) (11,641,256.60)

(6,151,697.63)

[©14625660)  (249500000)  (11,641,25660)

5,900,000.00

552,002,849.22 99,825757.46  1,084,082,318.40
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LEREE
Amount of Last Year

i - AR
Unit: RMB Yuan

BERGATRRER
Equity assigned to the sharefolders of parent company

B

Capital
Stock

AtRETR
Other equty instruments

L% KR i FL | HIEER AfhredeE
Other
Preferred Perpetuel Capial comprenensive

stocks bond Others surplus stock income

Less: Treasury

R BHDRE

Specisl Surplus

fesene fesene

—HEREE RARHE

General Undistiouted
risk resenve profts

JEhFER
Minority
shareholders’

eouities

[ e
Total of
shareholder's
equity

- LEEREE
|, Balance at the end of previous year
m: EHEREE
Add: Changes in accounting policies
HHEEEE
Carrections of prior period
accounting errors.
R-E8TeRA%
Business merger under jint control
Aft
Qthers

I SEEDRE
Il. Balance at the beginning of current year

I SEEREBAERIN - BRAF)
Ill. Current year increase/decrease
(decrease to be listed with “-")
(=) Bakagg
() Total comprehensive income:
(2) BRBRAHRSER
() Invested and decreased capital of
shareholders
. RERARER
. Shareholder s conirbution capital
. EbRSIARAZRAEL
. Contribution capital of holder of
other equity instruments
RiAxif ABREEHEE
Amount of sharefoased )
payment recognized as share
folder"s interest
i
Others

s

P

R

457,812.830.00

457,812.830.00

609,192,452.66 86,557,924.33

609,192,452.66 86,557,924.33

(102,000,000.00) 78,074,930.12

78074,830.12

[10200000000)

(102000000.00)

20648248365

20648248365

28309940

443,490,488.23

443,490,488.23

38,748,058.05

50.726,311.05

8031411800

8031411800

10,864,697.24

16,980921.11

1,883,350,206.87

1,883,350,206.87

2851869081

146,790,171.28

(102000000.00)

(102,00000000)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
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1 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

LEREE

Amount of Last Year

2y ARBTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

Equity assigned to the shareholders of parent company

23

Capttal
Stock

EfpRsT2
Other equity instruments

ERk

Preferred
stocks

KR

Peretual
bond

i AR0E

Captal
Others surplus

Afbtaka
Other
comprenensie

Income:

ERE

Special
resene

BB

Surplus

fesene

—HEREE

General

risk resenve

RARHE

Undistributed
profits

JHbREE  FERERAT
Minority Totalof
shereholders’ shareholder's

eouities eouity

(2) AR
) Proft distrioution
. EREHLHR
Appropration of surplus reserves
. ER-RERER
Appropriation of general isk
resene
HER(IBER0IE
Distrioution o owners
{or shareholders)
4 iR
4. Others
(1) BREanDLE
(V) Interal caryover in shareholder s
equities
1. ERLRBETAELR
. Capital surplus converted

e

to capttal
. BRORBEERAL
Surplus reserve converted

tocapital
BRLEARSR
. Surplus reserve to recover losses
i
4. Others
(7) $EER
(V] Specil reserve
1. KERR
1. Appropriation in current year
2. KERR
2. Amount used in current year
(R) A4
V) Others

= e e

B, XEEFRH
IV. Balance at end of current year

457,312,830.00

507,192,452.66

164,632,86345

28309940

283099640

209,313,480.05

(11,977,283.00)

(2.830,996.40)

(0,146,256.60)

482238,546.28

(6125,22387)  (15.271,48047)

(6125,22387)  (15.271,48047)

9117881524 1,911,868987.68
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BARREEREBER

Parent Company’s Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

FERER
Amount of Current Year

By - ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

L1 k%

Capital
ltem Stock

AfRAIR

Other equity instruments

Bk KR it BELH i EER

Preferred Perpetual Capital  Less: Treasury
stocks bond Others surplus stock

RftiRabE
Other
comprehensive
income

BHER

Special
reserve

EROH FAENA  FREHAAH
Total of
Surplus  Undistributed ~ shareholders’

reserve profits equity

- LEERRE
| Balance at the end of previous year
n: EHEREE
Add:  Changes in accounting policies
HEEREE
Corrections of prior period accounting errors
i
Others

457,312,830.00

Z REERE

Balance at the beginning of current year

457,312,830.00

. SEERQDEH(RDN- BRET)
. Current year increase/decrease
(decrease to be listed with “-")
(=) Hahaes
() Total comprehensive income
(2) BRBAMEDER
Il Invested and decreased capital of shareholders
1. BRRALER
1. Shareholder's contribution capital
2. EESTAREERAER
2. Contribution capital of holder of other
equity instruments
3 BRAXMARRERNLE
3. Amount of share-based payment
recognized as shareholder's interest
4 Ef
4. Others
(2) HEAE
(Il Proft distribution
1. ROBBLE
1. Appropriation of surplus reserves
2 HRENHAR
2
3

Distribution to shareholders
. Ef
3. Others
(m) BREZADES
(M) Interel carmyover in shareholder's equities
1. BADEBERNAL
1. Capital surplus converted to capital
2. BRDREERNELR
2. Surplus reserve converted to capital
3. BHLEEWER
3. Surplus reserve to recover losses
4 ER
4. Others
(7) ZRER
(V) Special reserve
1. RERR
1. Appropriation in current year
2 KERR
2. Amount used in current year
(%) £
(V) Others

B 3EEREH

IV Balance at end of current year 457,312,830.00

516,349,785.86

516,349,785.86

11,492,000.00

5,592,000.00

5,592,000.00

5,900,000.00

527,841,785.86

166,740,455.70

166,740,455.70

(17,135,075.20)

(17,135,075.20)

149,605,380.50

202,871,84092  455,227,201.58  1,798,502,114.06

20287184092  455,227,201.58  1,798,502,114.06

415160763 2821902206  26,727,64449

451697629 24,381,001.00

5,592,000.00

5,592,000.00

415160763 (120795428)  (9,146,25660)

415160763 (4,151,697.63)

(9,146,256.60)  (9,146,256.60)

5,900,000.00

207,023,538.55  483,446,22364  1,826,229,758.55

—E-REER |
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BARAREERESEBR

Parent Company’s Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

B2 - ARBTT
Unit: RMB Yuan
LEutE

Amount of Last Year

EfpEETE
Other equity instruments
RE [ies Bk A i BARE HoEER  Eftsaka ERGR BB0E AAEAE  FEEREA
Other Total of
Capital Preferred Peretual Captel  Less: Treasury ~ comprehensive Special Surplus Undistributed shareholders”
Item Stock stocks bond Others surplus stock income reserve resenve profits equiy

- LEEFRA
. Balance at the end of previous year 457,312,830.00 579,119,077.15 87,538,448.50 20004084452 43389449054 1,762,905,690.71
m: GHEREE
Add: Changes in accounting policies
HHEREE
Corrections of prior period accounting errors
i
Others

Z SEEORE
Balance at the beginning of current year 457,312,83000 579,119,077.15 87,538,448.50 20004084452 43880449054 1,762,905,690.71

. BEERQDEH(RDU- RAT)
. Current year increase/decrease
(decrease to be listed with ") (62,769,291.29) 79,202,007.20 283099640  16332711.04 3559642335
(=) FahaeE
() Total comprehensive income 79,202,007.20 2830996404 10751197124
(2) BREAMESER
(I) Invested and decreased capital of shareholders (62,769,291.29) (62,769,291.29)
1. BRRALER
1. Shareholder's contribution capital
2. EESTAREERAER
2. Contribution capitel of holder of other
equity instruments
3 BREXMFARREENLE
3. Amount of share-based payment
recognized as shareholder's interest
4 Ef
4. Others (62,769,291.29) (62,769,291.29)
(2) HEDE
(I Proft distrioution 28309940 (1197725300)  (9,146,256.60)
1. ROEBLE
. Appropriation of surplus reserves 283099640  (2830996.40)
HRENHR
. Distribution to shareholders (9,146,25660)  (9,146,256.60)
. Ef
Others
(m) BRERADLEE

1
2
2
3
3
(M) Interel carmyover in shareholder's equities
1. BADESERIAL
1. Capital surplus converted to capitel
2. BRDREARNER
2. Surplus reserve converted to capital
3 BELERBEE
3. Surplus reserve to recover losses
4 Ef
4. Others
R
(V) Special reserve
1. REER
1. Appropriation in current year
2 KERR
2. Amount used in current year
(7) £
(V) Others

8

B FFEREH
IV, Balance at end of current year 457,312,830.00 516,349,785.86 166,740455.70 20287184092 46522720158 1,798,502,114.06

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IR EHEREER B HRA A 119
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Company Profile

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as “the Company”, and collectively referred to as “the Group” when
containing subsidiaries) was established in 1993 by the restructuring
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory. The Company offered
H share of the People’s Republic of China to the public in Hong Kong
in December 1996, and offered A share of the People’s Republic
of China to the public in Shenzhen in July 1997. The Company was
transformed into a foreign-funded joint stock company limited after
being approved by the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation of the People’s Republic of China in November 1998.
The Company increased the issuance of 30 million shares of ordinary
share and reduced the issuance of 3 million shares of state-owned
shares after the approval in September 2001.

As of December 31, 2015, the registered capital of the Company is
RMB457,312,830.00, and the capital structure is as follows:

BinEE (LB LE G
Quantity Proportion to Total
Bt Class of Shares of Shares Share Capital
(%)

—. BIREE4RERSE 1. Subtotal of restricted tradable
outstanding shares 8,925 0.002

AR B RE = B R A share restricted tradable senior
management-held shares 8,925 0.002

—. EREEM4AMRBERSE 1. Subtotal of no restricted tradable

outstanding shares 457,303,905 99.998
AR I mAS (AR RMB common stocks (A share) 307,303,905 67.198
BHN EMINERR (HAR) Overseas listed foreign shares (H share) 150,000,000 32.80
= B lll. Total number of shares 457,312,830 100.00

ARREBNERZE  BUEMHELE
RF % BB R TEM -

—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

The Company is mainly engaged in the development, manufacturing
and sale of chemical raw medicines, preparations and chemical
products.
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SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Company Profile (Continued)

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Shandong
Xinhua Group”), and the ultimate controller is Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “Hualu Holdings”). The General Meeting
of Shareholders is the Company’s authority, which exercises the
Company’s business policy, financing, investment, profit distribution
and other resolution rights of significant events according to the
law. The Board of Directors is responsible to the General Meeting of
Shareholders, and shall exercise the business decision-making right of
the Company in accordance with law; the managers are responsible
for organizing the implementation of resolution matters of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors and managing
the production and operation of the Company.

The Company is registered in Chemical Industry Zone, High-tech
Industrial Development Zone, Zibo City, Shandong Province.

Scope of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s consolidated financial statements consist of 14
companies, including Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. and Shandong Zibo
Xincat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Compared with previous year, no
change occurred to the scope of consolidation in current year.

See relevant contents of “VII. Variation of Scope of Consolidated

Financial Statement” and “VIII. Rights and Interests in Other Entities”
in the Notes for details.
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Preparation Basis of Financial Statements

1.

Preparation basis

On the going-concern basis, the financial statements of
the Company have been prepared in accordance with
actually-occurring transactions and items, the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC and other relevant regulations (hereinafter
generally referred to as “ASBE”), Preparation Rules for
Information Disclosures by Companies Offering Shares to the
Public No. 15 — General Provisions on Financial Reports (revised
in 2014) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission
(CSRC), disclosure requirements in Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities issued by Hong Kong Exchange and Companies
Ordinance, and “IV. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates” of these Notes.

The Group has been applying the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong (i.e. “Hong Kong Accounting
Standards”) in the financial statements for the disclosure
of Hong Kong information since listing. According to the
Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of Mainland
Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland Audit Firms
for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong
published by Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 2010,
the Company decided to prepare the financial statements in
accordance with ASBE issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC and other relevant regulations (Chinese Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as “CAS”)) from this financial
year, and adopted the CAS for retrospective application, and
applied as the comparative financial information for transforming
into CAS as of December 31, 2014 (Note: the previous year is
2014). The reconciliation and impact of the Group stockholders’
equity and its profit of transforming the accounting standards
generally accepted in Hong Kong into CAS are contained in
the supplementary information of this Financial Statements “2.
Reconciliation of the Group’s Net Profit and Net Assets for the
Transformation from HKAS to CAS”.

Going concern

It is believed reasonable that the Group’s financial statements
have been prepared based on going concern for recent
profit-making history and sourced financial support.
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M. EREHBRREE G

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

BEAFEHENHEH

RAB0I5FEHBHRERFTAD
¥ertElmER AE - B
Mo T AR F) R AREE 20159
12 A31 BB EAR R, « (C &R

MREREZEMES -

Estimates

Declaration on compliance with ASBE

The financial statements of the Company of 2015 have met the
requirements of ASBE and truly and fully reflected the financial
conditions, operating results and cash flow of the Company
and the Group as of December 31, 2015.

BEHEE 2.  Accounting period

et FEAEE1A1BE12A31 The accounting period runs from January 1 to December 31 (in
Bk e Gregorian calendar).

IR 3. Bookkeeping base currency
ARARNREBZSARTFARIUAARE Bookkeeping base currency of the Company and its domestic
B IRALIEE  BINETSUAFTTE subsidiaries is RMB, and that of foreign business is local
HE B ATLRARE o currency.

RNEB GRS RREFTEEA The currency adopted by the Group for preparation of the
WEEABARE - financial statements is RMB.

A—#EHTHER—ZEHTLE 4. Accountant arrangement methods for business

A RE

REBIERAHTT - R —EH
ThEAHFTRENEEME
& - EAMBRKAHITERK
BT A HHIRR T RE EER
B -RBMFEEREEMBREX
NoeHYEREEENESE
FEBEARNTE  EARET R
B EBBFUE o

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

combination under same control and different controls

The assets and liabilities acquired by the Group, as the merging
party, in the business merger under the control of the same
entity are calculated based on the book value in the ultimate
controlling party’s consolidated statements of the merged
party on the merging date. Capital reserve is adjusted for the
difference between the book value of the acquired net assets
and the book value of the merger consideration paid. In case
where the capital reserve is not sufficient for off-setting, retained
earnings are adjusted.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

4.

Accountant arrangement methods for business
combination under same control and different controls
(Continued)

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired from the acquire in the business merger not under
common control are calculated based on the fair value on the
acquisition date. The merging costs are the cash or non-cash
assets paid, liabilities issued or assumed, the fair value of
equity securities issued by the Group on the acquisition date
for acquiring control rights on the acquiree, as well as all
costs directly related to the business merger (for business
merger completed step by step through multiple transactions,
the merging costs are the sum of costs of all individual
transactions). Where the merging costs are greater than the
fair value of identifiable net assets acquired from the acquiree
during business merger, the difference thereof is recognized
as business goodwill. Where the merging costs are less than
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired from the
acquiree during business merger, the fair value of all identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired from the
business merger, as well as the fair value of non-cash assets
of the consideration or the issued equity securities etc., are
rechecked. Where the merging costs are, after rechecking, still
less than the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired from
the acquiree during business merger, the difference is included
into current non-business income.

Compilation method of consolidated financial statements

The Group’s consolidation scope includes all subsidiaries and
structured entities.

During preparation of consolidated financial statements, in the
event that accounting policy or accounting period adopted by
subsidiaries are not in line with that of the Company, financial
statements of subsidiaries shall be adjusted according to the
accounting policy and accounting period of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M. EEFesBRREsHEE(E)

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)

SHBERRNDEBR S E(E) 5. Compilation method of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)
AEHEEANNBEE AN Al significant internal transactions, balances and unrealized
5 AXRBBLRAERNBEBES profits shall be offset during preparation of consolidated
HMEEEFTTFLAEE - T2 financial statements. The portion of subsidiary owners’ equity
B EEZFTITIBEBRE QRN which does not belong to the parent company and the portion
RN B BFIEES - HtREe of minority equity in the current net profits and losses, other
WHRGEWFEERBRN D comprehensive income and total comprehensive income must
RERERMMDEE - D RIEA e be respectively listed under “minority equity, minority interest
BRI DEPRERER - VB income, other comprehensive income attributable to the
BiE  BBERLERENEMLE minority, and total comprehensive income attributable to the
BWRNEBNLVERENLGTES minority” in the consolidated financial statements.
W BsE TR B AR -
HRR—IEH TN EAMIREHR For the subsidiary acquired in the business merger under
FRRA) EEERRENR @ RE common control, its business performance and cash flow
BA0HE BHETMAS I 3R are included into the consolidated financial statements from
R RELL A FIEHRERE - the beginning of the current period of the merger. During
W FEMERROMBEERET the preparation and comparison of consolidated financial
FE  BRAHETANREE statements, related items in the financial statements of the
BE B S AR ) 77 B 1A 1R ) B Bh previous year are adjusted, and it is deemed that the entity of
—BFfE- financial statements formed after the merger has existed since
the beginning of control by the ultimate controlling party.
EHRIER —ZH T ES FIE For the subsidiary acquired in the business merger not under
BWFRFE CEXRIBERE the control of the same entity, its business performance
AN B ESIEGIE 2 BRMA and cash flow are included into the consolidated financial
BHEEME - EREE IS statements since the date when the Group acquires the
HwEE - UEEHEETH R H#A control rights. During the preparation of consolidated financial
BE - BERIEBFEAENARE statements, financial statements of the subsidiary are adjusted
BAEMHTFARMNYBHRFE based on the fair values of identifiable assets, liabilities and
1THEE - contingent liabilities identified on the acquisition date.
HeRBR&EED 6. Cash and cash equivalents

AEERERERZASHEER
B2 A K AT ABE R AR S A B9 75
Ko HERERZASEEBWIE
FEHRTEBEIEA - REIE
B HRERRCHSREAELA
EEZHERBRRDHIRE

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Cash shown in the cash flow statement of the Group refers to
the cash on hand and deposits that are available for payment at
any time. Cash equivalent in the cash flow statement refers to
the investments which have a holding period of not more than
3 months, and are of strong liquidity and readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with low risk of value change.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

7. SMEEBMIINEMBERERE 7.  Foreign currency transactions and conversion of foreign
currency financial statements
(1) IMEXE (1)  Foreign currency transaction
REBINER FIRZ FHE The foreign currency amount in a foreign currency
& A — B A BN HRRE = {5 I transaction of the Group is converted into RMB amount
SHITEARARKESE - R based on the spot exchange rate on the first day of
BEABERB  INEERHE transaction month. Monetary items calculated in foreign
THEHRAEERBERANA currency in the balance sheet shall be translated into RMB
HEXRTE A AR - BTE at the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date; the
ERTTEETER T AiBES exchange difference shall be included into current profit
FEMEENMUBENERE and loss, after disposal of the balance of exchange that is
g ARINEZFIERESE formed by foreign currency loans borrowed for acquiring
KIE X =R IR A AR R A or producing assets which meet capitalized terms.
RIESN  HEET ASHE Foreign currency non-monetary items calculated at fair
% o LA EER ERINE value are converted into RMB by using the spot rate on
FEWMIEE - SRAARE the date when the fair value is determined. The generated
BT HREEXRTE B conversion difference is included into current profits and
AR®  FEAMFTEZ losses or other comprehensive income directly as the
B EAAREBEESERE change of fair value. Foreign currency non-monetary
FTAE B AR5 UL items measured at historical cost are still converted
7 o LA LA R 2 HIINEE based on the spot exchange rate of the transaction date,
FEWMHIER - DERARS with the RMB amount unchanged.
THEEHMEBERAHE - T
WEEARKESE -
(2) IMEHBHEZITE (2) Conversion of financial statements in foreign
currency
INEEEBERTPEE - 8 The asset and liability items in the foreign currency
BEEARABRERERA balance sheet shall be translated as per the spot
MBNERME RITE © FTE & exchange rate on the balance sheet date; the owner’s
FEBEEBRIASEFE] equity items, except for the items of “undistributed
SN ¥R EE SRS A R R BN ER profit”, shall be translated as per the spot exchange rate
ERFTE ; FERBPAUA on the transaction date; the income and expenditure
HEAEER KARSEE items in the profit statement shall be translated as per
HEBNEAME RITE - Fulidr the spot exchange rate on the transaction date. The
HEEMIINERRITEE above translation balance of foreign currency financial
o HHEHMLASWEEE P statements shall be included into other comprehensive
PR o SNER &R EIRAR income items. Foreign currency cash flow is translated
EREE A HARNHEAE =7 as per the spot exchange rate on the date when the said
o [EREHHIBE NES cash flow occurs. The amount of influence of exchange
EEVNTEE  ERER rate change on cash and cash equivalents shall be listed
EXRPEFIIR - in the cash flow statement separately.
126 —E—FEFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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8. GHEENEMAR

1

TREEMNDRE - AEEEZ
REBNMEEEEHHES
WERMEESRUAAEE
SEREEHHAS AR
MEREE  IHLEDR
BE  BERFUR - HAEZ
HRE AR -

1) NAAREEAERHR
BEEt AE RSN
TREERERADN
IZENREHAE
ENTREE -

2 HHHEESREER
59146 HE R S B 4 4
TE R ERIEDT
EEREERARWE
DREMBENERE
= o

3)  EYSRAEREELRE
ST RBEHRE - O
Yo & B8 B € = A FESE
WIETESRAE -
BREKRERE - BYK
BRAR - EUCRIE &
WSS ) e L A 8 W 3R

4) BAZRIMBERE
FMBEE - mkE
BMEERARHE - B
BIEEARESE M
BENREED BN
ITESREE -

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities

(1)  Classification of financial assets: the financial assets
owned by the Group are classified into four categories
according to the investment purposes and economic
nature, including the financial assets measured at fair
value with their variance included in current profits and
losses, financial assets available for sale, receivables and
investments held to maturity.

1) Financial assets measured at fair value with their
variance included in current profits and losses refer
to the financial assets mainly held for sale in the
short term.

2) Financial assets available for sale refer to
non-derivative financial assets designated as
available for sale, and financial assets not identified
to item under “others” at the time of initial
recognition.

3) Receivables refer to non-derivative financial assets
which have no quotation in the active market, but
have fixed or determinable recoverable amount,
including notes receivable, accounts receivable,
profit receivables, dividend receivables, and other
receivables.

4) Investment held to maturity refers to non-derivative
financial assets which have fixed maturity date,
fixed or fixable recovery amount which the
management has clear attention and ability to hold
to maturity.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

@

Recognition and measurement of financial assets:
Financial assets are recognized at fair value in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to a
financial instrument contract. For financial assets that are
measured at fair value with their variance recorded as
losses or profits in the current period, related transaction
expenses at the time of acquisition should be included
in the current loss and profit; the related transaction
expenses of other financial assets should be included in
the initial recognition amount.

Financial assets measured at fair value with their variance
included in current profits and losses and financial assets
available for sale are subject to subsequent measurement
at fair value. Receivables and investments held to
maturity are listed at amortized cost by effective interest
method.

The changes in fair value of financial assets measured
at fair value with their variance included in current profits
and losses are included in profit and loss from fair value
changes; interests or cash dividends gained during
holding of the assets are recognized as investment gain;
at the disposal, the difference between the fair value and
the initial booking amount is recognized as investment
profit and loss and profit and loss from fair value changes
is adjusted at the same time.

Besides the impairment loss and the exchange gain
or loss formed from foreign monetary financial assets,
changes of fair value of the salable financial assets will be
put into shareholders’ equity, the accumulated amount
of fair value changes which was directly put into equity
won't be transferred into current profit and loss until the
derecognition of this financial assets. The interests of
available-for-sale debt instrument investments calculated
based on actual interest rate method during the holding
period, and the cash dividends declared to be distributed
by the investees and related to available-for-sale equity
instrument investments, shall be included into the current
profits and losses as investment income.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

©)

Impairment of financial assets: In addition to the financial
assets measured at fair value with their variance included
in current profits and losses, the Group will check the
book value of other financial assets on the balance
sheet date, and the provision for impairment shall be
determined if there is objective evidence that a financial
asset has decrease in value.

For the stock investment, bonds investment and other
financial assets available for sale which have quotation in
the active market, the Group will recognize the fair value
according to the quotation of such assets in the active
market at the end of the year, which decreases up to
50% or above when compared with the costs recognized
in accordance with the sum of fair value and relevant
transaction expenses for payment of consideration when
acquiring such assets; and if the assets continue to
decrease for 12 months or longer as of the balance sheet
date, the Group will recognize the accumulated provision
for impairment which should be provision for impairment
according to the difference between the costs and the
fair value at the end of the year.

When the financial assets measured by amortized cost
have decrease in value, the provision for impairment
shall be determined according to the balance between
the value of expected future cash flow (excluding the
future credit loss which has not happened yet) and
the book value. If there is objective evidence showing
the value of this financial asset has recovered, and it is
objectively related to the matters occurring after the loss is
confirmed, the impairment loss confirmed before shall be
reversed and calculated as current profit and loss.

When the financial assets available for sale have
decrease in value, the cumulative loss recognized directly
as stockholders’ equity before due to the decrease of
fair value shall be transferred out and recognized as the
impairment loss. For available-for-sale debt instrument
investments for which the impairment loss has been
confirmed, if the fair value of periods following has
increased and it is objectively related to the matters
occurring after the loss is confirmed, the impairment
loss confirmed before shall be reversed and calculated
as current profit and loss. For available-for-sale equity
instrument investments for which the impairment loss has
been confirmed, the increase fair value of the following
periods shall be directly recognized as stockholders’
equity.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

()

Transfer of financial assets: Financial assets meeting
one of the following conditions shall be derecognized: M
the contract right to collect the financial asset cash flow
has been terminated; @ the financial assets have been
transferred and the Group has substantially transferred
all the risks and rewards on the financial asset ownership
to the transferee; @ the financial assets have been
transferred, even if the Group has neither transferred
nor retained the risks and rewards on the financial asset
ownership, the control over the financial assets is waived.

Where the Company neither transfers nor retains any
risks and rewards on the financial asset ownership, if the
control over the financial assets is not waived, relevant
financial assets should be recognized according to
the extent to which they are involved in the transferred
financial assets, and relevant liabilities should be
recognized correspondingly. “Continuing involvement in
the transferred financial assets” refers to the risk level the
enterprise will be faced with due to the change in value of
such financial assets.

If the entire transfer of the financial assets meets
derecognition conditions, the difference between the
book value of transferred financial assets and the sum of
consideration received from the transfer and accumulated
amount of changes in fair value previously recognized
in other comprehensive income should be included in
current profits and losses.

Where the partial transfer of the financial assets
meets derecognition conditions, the book value of the
transferred financial assets should be amortized between
the derecognized and non-derecognized portions as per
their relative fair values respectively; and the difference
between the sum of consideration received from the
transfer and accumulated amount of changes in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
and amortized to the derecognized portion, and the
aforesaid book value amortized should be included in
current profits and losses.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at the time
of initial recognition, as financial liabilities measured at fair
value with their variance included in current profits and
losses and other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include tradable financial liabilities and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss designated at the initial
recognition. For such financial liabilities, subsequent
measurement should be performed based on fair value.
Profits or losses arising from the changes of fair value
as well as the dividend and interests expenditure related
to the said financial liabilities should be included into the
current profits and losses.

Other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Where the current obligation of financial liability has
been terminated entirely or partially, the financial
liability or obligation that has been terminated shall be
derecognized. The difference between the book value of
the derecognized part and the paid consideration shall be
included in current profits and losses.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

8. SMEEMESMARE) 8.  Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
6) SRAENSBEBEODR (6) Determination methods for fair value of financial assets
BEWETE and financial liabilities:
1) SRITAGEERM 1) When an active market exists for the financial
SR RIS T K instruments, the market quotation in an active
MZHMERNEEH market is used to determine its fair value. In the

DAEE - EFR™T
HE - AEBBEREE
B B & B Sk B AR R

active market, financial assets held by the Group
or financial liabilities to be assumed by the Group
should take the current bid price as the fair value

e REENRITE of corresponding assets or liabilities; the financial
BIERIEEEEXA assets to be acquired by the Group or financial
BERRAEE: K& liabilities assumed by the Group should take the
BEANSREE current offer price as the fair value of corresponding
HEFRENCRIBE assets or liabilities. Where the financial assets
LARITEEERANE or financial liabilities have no current bid and

BEXBENAARE
B SREEXEH
BELARITHEMN
2E  BRAIXFHA
BEERFREEE
BEAREew - AIZRA
RARX BT IS HE
BEZEREERS
BEENRAAEE-
R R 5 BIREHER
BEAETEREL
o 2ZRUSHBE
EREBBERNIRT
BRI - ABR
S H) TS RE -
ARETE % R B E K
TRAEAENQAE
B8 - AEEB AN
FBIERAIZHH
MSMETEARE
B HEIXHH
mISHREELEER
B UBEZERE
EXTBMBENAAR
BE-

offer price, but the economic environment after
the latest transaction date has not undergone
significant changes, the market quotation of the
latest transaction should be used to determine
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities. Where the economic environment
after the latest transaction date has undergone
significant changes, the current price or interest
rate of similar financial assets or financial liabilities
should be referred, and the market quotation of the
latest transaction should be adjusted to determine
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities. In case the Group has sufficient evidence
indicating that the market quotation of the latest
transaction is not the fair value, the said market
quotation shall be adjusted properly to determine
the fair value of the said financial assets or financial
liabilities.

2) SmMIETHFEER 2)  When an active market does not exist, the fair
miHH - FHAMER value of financial is determined through valuation
T EHE AR EE - techniques; Valuation techniques include reference
HERMEELER to the prices used by the well-briefed parties
BIBRY BEERXHH which transact out of free will in the latest market
BARIMETHMS transactions, reference to the current fair value of
RGP ERIER - other financial assets which are similar in nature,
LREE FHERNOE discounted cash flow technique, and option pricing
HemEENERA model.
AEE - REREN
TAMEARE E BER
=,

132 —E-REFHK | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



AR ER AR R BRAS BIRE RSN

B R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HEARMETFIT | Monstary

unit 1c

M. EEFesBRREsHEE(E)

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)

9. MBHRREIRER 9.

REB K T HIE A R U IR
RRBARERIRE « BFELM
o WE BETEE BRERE
BENE  BHEBREBANES
BHIZEMAER AR R RN E
FEMERSE  BHELEER
BiTEERT  HMEEZSER
AR i B A MR [m] W [ Y mT BE 1
PR e

HATRE B A RIERIBARARIE
ERE  BREBRIRERETT
BERH - FHEEERER - 5HA
EHELD c HNEREEERRH
FEE ORI m & MR - R
& BIRE R AL ERDIERIR
8K R IR AR AR -

(1) BEHELEEXYERTER
RREma B A

Bad debt provision for receivables

The Group recognizes bad debts when the following conditions
are met: the debtors are dissolved, bankrupt, insolvent, in
serious shortage of cash flows or suspended its business
due to natural disasters and unable to settle the debts in the
foreseeable period; or debtors are defaulted for repayment;
or there are other evidences indicating the debts cannot be
recovered or are not likely to be recovered.

The Company applies the allowance method for the accounting
of potential bad debts and performs the impairment test
separately or integrally in the end of period, with accrued
bad-debt provision included in current profit and loss. As for
receivables for which there is authentic evidence showing that
they are impossible to be recovered, the Group will recognize
them as bad debt loss after approval through specified
procedures and write off the drawn bad-debt provision.

(1) Receivables with significant individual amount and
single accrued bad-debt provision

ERSREBANHEKERSBRE

Criteria or amount standard for determining
whether the individual amount is significant

EREREAY EHHBERERD
FHEIE

Drawing method for account receivables with
significant individual amount and drawn bad
debt provision on single item

1% B 1R & FR R B5008 T Y UK IEAR &
BARYRIA

Regard receivables with an individual amount of over
RMB5 million as significant receivables

REERFRSREREENEKE
EBEMZERE  SHEERER

The provision of bad debts is drawn according to the
difference between the present value of future cash
flows and the book value of receivables

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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@2
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V.

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

9. Bad debt provision for receivables (Continued)

EiEEREERESiE%E (2) Account receivables with bad debt provision drawn
IREFEKZIE by combination of credit risk features
BEHSHKE Basis for determining combinations
AREcAES UGB8R R E RIS EEI D EE
Account age combination Dividing the combinations by taking the account age of
receivables as credit risk features
B SHREERAS ARBEE S A R KRB HEE
Combination of relationship with transaction object Dividing the combinations based on current accounts of
related parties
HRFIEEEAS FTEREFENRS - BYH DRSS HRRIE
Combination of special account nature Mainly including the tax to be deducted, the export tax
rebate receivable and other special accounts
RS RERERORS Method for bad debt provision withdrawn by
combination
IREcHE S RIRER DI AR IRE R
Account age combination Drawing of bad debt provision by aging analysis
2 5 HRBFR Hih 7 AR
Relationship with transaction object Drawing of bad debt provision by other methods
RHRRIBEEEE Hh 5 At RE R
Combination of special account nature Drawing of bad debt provision by other methods
1) BRI BE B8 55 i 0 B JE 1) Drawing proportion of bad debt provision for
U S IE 1 BR VE (s 5112 receivables by aging analysis:
o -
AR Hfth R =R
FHELLBI FHELL B
Drawing Drawing
Proportion of Proportion of
Account Other Account
IRES Account Age receivables receivables
(%) (%)
1FUARN Within 1 year 0.5 0.5
1-24F 1-2 years 20 20
2-34F 2-3 years 60 60
3FEPF Over 3 years 100 100
| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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9. MBBRIRMREM(Z)

@2

3

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

Bad debt provision for receivables (Continued)

BIEAmEEHRES R (2) Account receivables with bad debt provision drawn
MREmEI#E (Z) by combination of credit risk features (Continued)
2) ERAAEMIELEWK 2)  Drawing of bad debt provision for receivables by
HIEERREFAIE - other methods:
B2 HEREAEFE A 7 FEW IR T AT IR I BR

Relationship with transaction object

Rk FORIEEAE

Combination of special account nature

Do not draw bad debt provision for receivables from
related parties

FEAOBS - BUH DR ERHR IR E BSGR
TEERAEE

Do not draw bad debt provision for the tax to be
deducted, the export tax rebate receivable and other
receivables with special account nature

EReEETEXAERTH
AR EA

(3) Account receivables with insignificant amount but
drawn bad debt provision on single item

BIEFHR R REANIE S

Reason for drawing of bad debt provision

on single item

ERRABNFHRE A
Drawing method for bad debts provision

BIR QRN EABRREA FHEERERE T o R E E A58
JE W IR

Receivables with insignificant and bad debt provision drawn by
combination not reflecting risk features of the receivables

BIBEEAKRRSRERERNAROEENERE  HEERER

The provision of bad debts is drawn according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and the book
value of receivables

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

10.

Inventories

The inventories of the Group mainly include raw materials,
packing materials, low value consumables, products in process,
and commodities in stock.

The inventories implement the perpetual inventory system,
and are valued by the actual cost when acquired. The actual
costs of requisitioned or issued inventories are determined by
the weighted average method. Low value consumables and
packaging materials are amortized by one-off write-off method.

Ending inventories are valued by the cost or net realizable value,
whichever is lower. For estimated irrecoverable part of cost due
to inventory damage, obsolescence of all or partial inventories,
or sale price lower than the cost, provisions for decline in value
of inventories are withdrawn. Provisions for decline in value of
inventories for goods in stock and bulk raw materials are drawn
based on the difference between the cost of single inventory
item and its net realizable value; for other numerous raw and
auxiliary materials with low prices, provisions for decline in value
of inventories are drawn based on their categories.

For merchandise inventory directly available for sale such as
goods in stock, unfinished products, and materials available for
sale, its net realizable value is determined as per the estimated
selling price deducting estimated selling expenses and relevant
taxes; for material inventory available for production, its net
realizable value is determined as per the estimated price of
finished product deducting estimated cost till the completion
date, estimated selling expenses, and related taxes.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

11.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Long term equity investments

The Group’s long-term equity investments are mainly
investments into subsidiaries, associated ventures, and joint
ventures.

The Group’s criterion for joint control is that all parties or group
of parties jointly control the arrangement, and policies of relative
activities of the arrangement must be subject to unanimous
consent of parties sharing the control.

The Group’s recognition basis for significant influence is that
the Company holds the voting share of the invested entity
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, which is more than
20% (included) but less than 50%. If there is clear evidence
that the Group can not participate in decision making related to
production and operation of the invested entity in that case, no
significant influence can be formed.

When control over the invested entity exists, the invested entity
becomes subsidiary of the Group. As to long-term equity
investments acquired in business merger under common
control, the portion of book value of net assets in the ultimate
controller’s consolidated statements of the merged party on the
merger date shall be recognized as the initial investment cost of
long-term equity investment. Where book value of net assets of
the merged party on the merger date is negative, the long-term
equity investment cost is determined as zero.

For long-term equity investment acquired via business merger
under different control, the merger cost is taken as the initial
investment cost.

Apart from aforementioned long-term equity investment
acquired through business merger, as to long-term equity
investment acquired by cash payment, the actually paid
amount is taken as the investment cost; as to long-term equity
investment acquired through issuing equity securities, the fair
value of the issued equity securities is taken as the investment
cost; as to long-term equity investment invested by investors,
the value specified in investment contract or agreement is taken
as the initial investment cost; as to long-term equity investment
acquired through debt restructuring and exchange of
non-monetary assets, the initial investment cost is determined as
per provisions of relevant accounting rules.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

11.

Long term equity investments (Continued)

The Group uses the cost method to calculate investments in
subsidiaries and equity method to calculate investments in
associated and joint ventures.

For long-term equity investments subsequently calculated by
the cost method, when more investments added, the book
value of the long-term equity investment cost is increased
based on the fair value of cost paid for added investments and
related transaction expenses. Cash dividend or profit declared
by the invested entity is recognized as current investment profit
in accordance with the amount to enjoy.

For long-term equity investments subsequently calculated
by the equity method, the book value of long-term equity
investment is increased or decreased accordingly with variance
of owner’s equity of the invested entity. When determining
the portion of net profit to enjoy in the invested entity, the
Group will adjust the net profits of invested entity based on
the fair value of identifiable assets in the invested entity when
investments acquired, by offsetting internal profit and loss
incurred in transactions with joint ventures and associates and
by calculating the portion attributable to the investing enterprise
based on the shareholding proportion, with net profit of
invested entity adjusted and recognized.

For the disposal of long-term equity investment, the difference
between the book value and actually obtained price shall
be included in current investment profit. For the long-term
equity investment calculated by equity method which has
been included in the owner’s equity due to other changes in
owner’s equity (excluding the net profit or loss) of the invested
unit, when disposed, the part which has been included in
the owner’s equity of such investment shall be transferred
to current investment profit according to corresponding
proportion.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

11.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Long term equity investments (Continued)

For loss of joint control or significant influence on the invested
unit due to disposal of partial equity investment or other
reasons, the residual equity after disposal is calculated as
per the financial assets available for sale, and the difference
between the fair value and book value of residual equity on
the date when losing the joint control or significant influence
is included into the current profits and losses. For other
comprehensive incomes from original equity investment
recognized by the equity method is subject to the accounting
treatment on the same basis as that adopted by the invested
unit for directly handling related assets or liabilities when the
equity method is not used anymore.

For loss control of invested unit due to disposal of partial
long-term equity investment, the residual equity after disposal,
if capable of realizing joint control or applying significant
influence on invested unit, is changed to the equity method
for calculation, the difference for disposal of book value and
consideration is included in the investment income, and the
residual equity is adjusted as it is calculated by the equity
method since it is acquired; the residual equity after disposal,
if unable to realize joint control or apply significant influence
on invested unit, is changed to accounting treatment based
on related regulations of financial assets available for sale,
the difference for disposal of book value and consideration is
included in the investment income, and the difference between
the fair value and book value of the residual equity on the
loss-control date is included in current profit and loss.

Various transactions of the Group from step-by-step equity
disposal to loss of controlling power do not belong to the
package deal, and every transaction is separately subject
to accounting treatment. Any transaction categorized as
package deal is subject to the accounting treatment oriented
for subsidiary disposal and loss of controlling power. However,
before the loss of controlling power, the difference between the
disposal price and book value of long-term equity investment
of the corresponding disposed equity for every transaction
is recognized as other comprehensive income, which is not
transferred into current profit and loss until the controlling
power is lost.

LR ERER D ER QA

139



140

B FSER R M EERRAS BIEERA N - LA RBETTHIR | Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial

B R R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

RIEREFERRS |

M. EEFesBRREsHEE(E)

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

12. BEHEME 12. Investment real estate
REEBREHFEHMEREE LM The Group’s investment real estate includes land use right and
Mt EREME LENERERE buildings which have already been rented.
&) o
REFKE R EIREKAE Entry value of investment property of the Group shall be its
RAKRER IMNEREMLFEHE cost. Cost of purchased investment property includes purchase
WA ABEEEEXR  HAEHEE price, relevant taxes and other expenditures that can directly
MAEEREBRZEEMAME be attributed to this asset; cost for self-constructing investment
o BITEERE R ERK property shall be composed of necessary expenditure for
X ABEZREEAEEDBE making this asset reach usable status.
FERAMRERATEENNEST HE
A o
REBERE T B E B A The Group shall conduct follow-up measurement of investment
WIETRENE  WEEHE real estate by cost model and shall withdraw the depreciation
AEam EREREATHER or amortization as per expected service life and net salvage rate
ERHRITE S - B RE by straight line method. The estimated life span, net residual
ENFEERSG  BREXRNK rate and annual rate of depreciation (amortization) of investment
FHEEHE) RNT real estate are as follows:
%5 IEER FrtiRERE FiNEE
(%)
Estimated Annual Rate
Category Period of Depreciation Residual Rate of Depreciation
(Year) (%) (%)
T AR EmEER
Land Use Right Benefit and transfer period 0 -
FEERZED 204
Premises and buildings 20 Years 5 4.75
BEREMERMENRENEAS When investment real estate is converted for self-use, such real
AR AlEE 2 AR - Kzik estate shall be changed into fixed assets or intangible assets
BHEEEEB AR TEENE since the date of conversion. When real estate for self-use is
WEE  BREMERRZRNE converted for gaining rental income or capital increase, fixed
ABEESERNEER - B8 assets or intangible assets shall be changed into investment
Wz A - BETEEENEFR real estate since the date of conversion. When conversion
BEEEHBABIREUREE - &4 occurs, book value prior to conversion shall be entry value after
R - LERATNERmEAEE conversion.
REIREMAIKERE -
EREUEEMERERESE » 8iEK If an investment real estate is disposed or withdrawn
JBRHFER BB TERERE permanently from use and no economic benefit can be
REVS B A - RIFFERZ obtained from the disposal, the recognition of the investment
BREMEME - REMFHE real estate shall be terminated. The disposal income from
HE - EE REIRENES selling, transferring, discarding or damaging of investment real
WA EREEEMEERE estate shall be deducted by the book value and relevant taxes
BRSBTS HiEs o thereof and then included in current profits and losses.
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

13.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to tangible assets held for commodity
production, manpower supply, renting or operation
management with a service life of over one year; and
meanwhile, economic interests related to the fixed assets are
likely to flow into the enterprise, and the cost of fixed assets
can be measured reliably.

Fixed assets are classified into premises & buildings, machinery
equipment, transportation equipment, electronic equipment and
others.

Valuation of fixed assets: fixed assets shall be initially measured
according to the actual cost as obtained, wherein, the cost
of outsourcing fixed assets shall include the purchase price,
value-added tax, import tariff, relevant taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to the fixed assets
to the expected conditions for use; the cost of self-built fixed
assets consists of the necessary expenses for building the
assets to the expected conditions for use; the fixed assets
invested by investors shall be taken as entry value as per
the value agreed in the investment contract or agreement;
however, if the value agreed in the contract or agreement is
not fair, it shall be accounted as fair value; for the fixed assets
for financial lease, the fair value of leased assets on the lease
commencement date and the present value of minimum leasing
payment shall be entry value, whichever is lower.

Depreciation method of fixed assets: except for the fixed
assets fully depreciated but still in use, the Group calculates
depreciation for all fixed assets. Straight line method shall be
adopted for calculating depreciation based on single item
per month. The depreciation expanses shall be separately
included into the costs or current expenses of related assets by
purposes. The expected net salvage value of fixed assets of the
Group is 5%. The expected net salvage, period of depreciation
and annual rate of depreciation are as follows:
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13. BEEREE)

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

13. Fixed assets (Continued)

X5 INEFER FiNES
(%)

Category Period of Depreciation Annual Rate of Depreciation
(Year) (%)

FEEREY

Premises and buildings 20 4.75

SR

Machinery equipment 10 9.50

EwRE

Transportation equipment 5 19.00

BB R EAD

Electronic equipment and others 5 19.00

BEEERAESHAERE - 8E
TEEBMMNRESL  BfEE
BX i ERRERE 4
Bl £ B E RN - 5T ABE
BERA  HNEBRBRNED
RIEFERHEERER  THEE
EEERBGMN - NELERT
ANEHBE -

ARERSEFERT - HEE
BEMBEHERER - WFR
R S R (T B AR A
/e LM AEAE:
it E R -

REHANBETEERAESR
BElEEER BT ERK - 8
& IR T E M B HE m E EUS
MABERE#ED  BABTE
EEHEBFERSH AT
B AR MABREEEAMEE
HEZEERERSHMmE T
BAEHEAR AEHRITE -

BEETEERKE  HEBRE
BERSEE TEELLEMNm
B RILHERZBEEEE © BlE
BENE - HiE - MEXREN
B2 & W AR B AR T B A AR RE
HBROS R AE B8
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Treatment for subsequent expenditure of fixed assets: if the
subsequent expenditures is related to fixed assets, including
repairing expenditure, renovation and reformation expenditure,
meet the recognition conditions of fixed assets, they shall be
included in the cost of fixed assets, and the book value of
replaced parts shall be derecognised; the expenditures which
do not conform to the recognition conditions of fixed assets
shall be included in current profits and losses when occurred.

At the end of the year, recheck and properly adjust the service
life, expected net salvage value and depreciation method of
the fixed assets. Any change shall be handled as changes in
accounting estimates.

The depreciation policies of fixed assets acquired by financial
lease shall be consistent with those of self-owned fixed
assets. For fixed assets, if it can be reasonably confirmed that
the ownership can be granted when the lease term expires,
the depreciation shall be drawn within the service life of the
acquired leasing assets; otherwise, the depreciation shall be
drawn within the lease term or the service life of leasing assets,
whichever is shorter.

If a fixed asset is disposed of or if no economic benefit will not
be obtained from the use or disposal, the recognition of such
fixed asset is terminated. The disposal income from selling,
transferring, discarding or damaging of fixed assets shall be
deducted by the book value thereof and relevant taxes and
then included in current profits and losses.
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SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

14.

15.

Projects under construction

Valuation for projects under construction: measurement
shall be made according to the actual cost. Self operating
projects shall be measured as per direct material, direct salary,
direct construction cost, etc.; contracted projects shall be
measured as per payable project cost, etc.; and the cost of
equipment installation works shall be determined according to
value of installed equipment, installation cost, commissioning
expenditure, etc. Costs of projects under construction also
include borrowing costs and exchange gain or loss that should
be capitalized.

Time-point for carrying forward the projects under construction
to fixed assets: starting from the date when the projects under
construction reach the expected conditions for use,, the
projects shall be carried forward to fixed assets based on the
estimated value and according to project budget, construction
cost or actual cost, and depreciation shall be withdrawn from
the next month. The original value difference of fixed assets
shall be adjusted after the completion settlement formalities
have been handled.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include loan interest, amortization of discount
or premium, auxiliary expenses and balance of exchange
caused by foreign currency loans. The borrowing costs for
construction or production, which can be directly included
in assets satisfying capitalization conditions, shall begin
capitalization when the expenditures of the assets and the
borrowing costs occur and construction or production activities
necessary for making the assets available for predicted use
or selling begin. The construction or production assets which
satisfy capitalization conditions shall stop capitalization when
the assets are available for predicted use or selling. Other
borrowing costs should be determined as expenditures when
incurred.

The amount of which interest of special loan actual occurring
in current period deducts the interest income from unused loan
capital which is deposited in banks, or deducts investment
income from temporary investment of the loan capital shall
be capitalized. The capitalized amount of general loan shall
be determined as per the weighted average of which the
accumulative asset expenditures exceed special loan asset
expenditures multiplied capitalization rate of general loan used.
The capitalization rate shall be calculated with the weighted
average interest rate of general loans.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

15.

16.

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The assets in compliance with capitalization conditions refer
to the fixed assets, investment real estate and inventory that
require considerable long time (usually referred as more than
one year) of construction or production to reach the their
intended usable and marketable condition.

If assets satisfying capitalization conditions are suddenly
suspended in acquisition or construction for more than three
months continuously, the capitalization of the borrowing
costs shall be suspended until the restart of acquisition or
construction of the assets.

Intangible assets

(1)

Valuation methods of intangible assets: intangible assets
of the Group mainly included land use right, software
license and non-patented technology. Intangible assets
through purchase shall be calculated as actual cost as
per actually paid amount and other relevant expenditures.
Intangible assets invested by investors shall be confirmed
as actual cost as per value as defined in the investment
contract or agreement; however, if the value as defined in
the investment contract or agreement is not fair, its actual
cost shall be confirmed as per fair value.

Amortization methods and period of intangible assets:
land use right of the Group shall be amortized evenly
according to its transfer years from the starting date
of transferring; software license and non-patented
technology of the Group shall be amortized evenly
by stages according to the shortest one among the
expected service life, the benefit period under contract
and the effective period stated by law. The land use
right shall be amortized as per the benefit and transfer
period, and the software license shall be amortized as
per the expected benefit period (5 years). The amortized
amounts shall be included into current profits and losses
or relevant asset costs according to beneficiaries.

The anticipated service life and the amortization method
of intangible assets with limited life shall be reviewed at
the end of each year. Any change shall be handled as
changes in accounting estimates. The Company shall
review the expected service life of intangible assets
with uncertain service life in each accounting period. If
any evidences indicate that the service life of intangible
assets is limited, the service life shall be estimated and
amortized within the expected service life.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

17.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Research and development

The expenditures for in-house research & development
projects are classified as those for research stage and those for
development stage according to natures of the expenditures
and whether a great uncertainty lies in the conversion of the
R&D activities into intangible assets.

For independently researched and developed intangible assets,
the expenditures in research stage shall be included in the
current profits and losses when incurred; and the expenditures
in development stage which meet the following conditions shall
be determined as that of intangible assets: 1) it is technically
feasible to finish and use or sell the intangible assets; 2) there
is and intent to finish and use or sell the intangible assets; 3)
there is a market for the product manufactured by using the
intangible assets or a market for the intangible assets itself; 4)
there are enough technologies, financial resources and other
resources to finish the development of intangible assets, and it
is able to use or sell the intangible assets; 5) the expenditures
in development stage of the intangible assets can be measured
reliably.

The expenditures in development stage which do not meet the
above conditions shall be included in current profits and losses
when incurred. The expenditures for development stage which
have been included in profits and losses cannot be recognized
as assets later. The capitalized expenditures for development
stage are included in the balance sheet as development
expenditures and are converted into intangible assets upon the
date when the R&D project is ready for its intended use.

LR ERER D ER QA

145



146

7B RS SRR MY R BRAS B BA SN

B R R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HUARKE TSR

X | Monetary unit for the notes

its is RMB unl
dance with PRC

to these Financial &

Rl |

RIEFEHS

M. EEFesBRREsHEE(E)
18. RHEIRERE

19.

—E-REFER

rEBRE—EEAGBRAHE
HIRERE  BTEE  #®ET
B -FHREmETNEFEES
HE#EITRE  EHENITR
B RAEEARERETHE -
AEBMBETRENR  HEmE
MEZEFRTIETHERLEE -

ERECELERETS  §FK
i’JiETT/)EWEEJJEfE HUHEIRE
EMn e R ETREA - LA
ZEAEMBENEEHMANEEHRM
B RETERH -

BERARAR  BZEENKREE
ERBEAIREERE - HEHE
RERBERE - L EENRE
BE—KHER - EARETHE
AFED - EENATRESER
BREENAABEREREER
B FREEERF RKRER
ENREMEZHANERSE

[k

BRI E AR IER — 2
B TEREHKABBEZTED
FEEAVRRENHREEN
HBE T A HRFEENERE
HEBEAM AR BEEDENE
o

EEH— ﬂﬁfﬁﬁ’]?ﬁiﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬂx
i%J: PR - B R AN
BOEABNEE  BAER

Eﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%@%ﬁ@ﬂp °

| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

18.

19.

Impairment of long-term assets

The Group shall check long-term equity investments, fixed
assets, projects under construction, intangible assets
determined by service life, etc. on each balance sheet
date. When the following signs exist, it indicates that asset
impairment may occur, and the Group will perform the
impairment test. For the intangible assets with undetermined
goodwill and benefit period, no matter there is an impairment
sign or not, the impairment test shall be performed at the end
of each year. If it is hard to test the recoverable amount of a
single asset, the test shall be performed based on asset group
or asset group combination.

If the impairment test shows that the book value of the assets
is greater than its recoverable value, the difference between
the two is recognized as loss from impairment. Such loss from
impairment, once recognized, shall not be reversed in later
accounting period. The recoverable amount of assets is the
net amount of fair value of assets deducting disposal fees,
or present value of expected future cash flow of the assets,
whichever is higher.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the stock investment cost or the
business merger cost under different control over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets that should be enjoyed or acquired
from the invested entity or the acquiree in the business merger
on the date when it is acquired or purchased.

The goodwill related to subsidiaries shall be separately listed in
the consolidated financial statements, and the goodwill related
to associated ventures and joint ventures shall be included in
the book value of long-term equity investments.
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IV. Sign

ificant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)

20.

21.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Payroll

Payroll of the Group includes short-term remuneration,
post-employment welfare and dismission welfare.

Short-term remunerations mainly include salaries, welfare, etc.
During the accounting period when the employees provide
service for the Group, the actual short-term remunerations are
recognized as liabilities, and included in current profits or losses
or relevant asset cost based on different beneficiaries.

Post-employment welfare includes basic endowment insurance,
unemployment insurance and classified as defined contribution
plan and defined benefit plan depending on the risk and
obligation the Company bears. As for the defined contribution
plans, the contributions which are made for individual subjects
in exchange for the staff’s services rendered in the accounting
period shall be recognized as liabilities on the balance sheet
date and included in current profits and losses or relevant asset
costs according to the beneficiaries. There is no defined benefit
plan in the Group.

When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the dismission
welfare provided due to the labor relationship termination
plan or the redundancy offer, or when the costs or expenses
(whichever is earlier) related to reorganization concerning the
dismission welfare payment are recognized, the liabilities of the
employee compensation arising from dismission welfare shall
be recognized and included in current profits and losses.

Estimated liabilities

Where the business related to external security, trade
acceptance discount, pending litigations or arbitrations, product
quality assurance, etc. meets the following conditions, the
Group will recognize it as liabilities: 1) current obligation borne
by the Group; 2) great possibility of economic benefit outflow
because of performing the obligations; 3) reliable measurement
for the amount of the obligations.

Metering method for estimated liabilities: estimated liabilities are
initially measured at the best estimate required to be paid when
performing relevant current obligations, with comprehensive
consideration of such factors as risks, uncertainties and time
value of money related to contingencies. Where the time value
of money is of great influence, the best estimate is recognized
through the discount of relevant future cash outflows. As of the
balance sheet date, the book value of the estimated liabilities
is reviewed and adjusted (if any change) to reflect current best
estimate.
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goods sales, rendering labor services and transfer of right to
use assets. When economic benefits related to transaction can
flow into the Group, and relevant revenue can be measured
reliably and meet the recognition criteria of special revenue of
the following various operating activities, relevant revenue can
be recognized.

)

Recognition principle for sales revenue: the revenue
from commodity sales is recognized under the following
conditions: major risks and rewards concerning the
ownership of commodity have been transferred to the
buyer; neither continuous management right usually
related to the ownership is retained nor effective control
over sold goods is effected; the amount of the revenue
can be measured reliably; relevant economic benefits
may flow to the enterprise; and relevant costs incurred or
to be incurred can be measured reliably.

Recognition principles for rendering of labor services: the
labor service revenue can be recognized when the total
labor service revenue and total cost can be measured
reliably, relevant economic benefits may flow into the
Group, and completion of labor service can be measured
reliably. If the labor services that are started and
completed in the same year, and the revenue of labor
service is recognized upon completion; if the start and
completion of labor service occur in different accounting
years, and under the condition that the result of rendering
labor transaction can be estimated reliably, the relevant
revenue of labor service shall be recognized through
percentage-of-completion method on the balance
sheet date, and the percentage of completion shall be
recognized according to the percentage of the occurred
cost in the estimated total cost.

Recognition principle for revenue from transfer of the right
to use assets: the revenue from transfer of the right to use
assets can be recognized when the economic benefits
related to transaction flow into the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

23.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Government subsidy

Government subsidy refers to monetary or non-monetary assets
acquired by the Group from the government for free. The
government subsidies shall be recognized when all the attached
conditions can be satisfied and the government subsidies can
be received by the Group.

As the monetary assets, the government subsidies shall
be measured based on the actually received amounts; the
subsidies paid according to fixed quota standards, or when
concrete evidence shows that relevant conditions specified
in fiscal support policies can be met and the fiscal support
funds can be received based on estimates at the end of
period, shall be measured based on the receivable amounts;
as the non-monetary assets, the government subsidies shall
be measured based on the fair value; if the fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, it shall be measured based on nominal
amount (RMBH1).

Government subsidy to the Group is divided into asset-related
government subsidy and revenue-related government subsidy.
The asset-related government subsidies refer to those obtained
by the Group and used for the acquisition or construction of
long-term assets or obtainment of such assets by other forms.
The revenue-related government subsidies refer to those other
than the asset-related government subsidies. If no assistance
object is specified in the government documents, the Group
shall determine based on the above principles.

Asset-related government subsidies shall be recognized as
deferred revenues, and shall be distributed equally within the
service life of related assets and included into current profits
and losses. Revenue-related government subsidies used to
compensate for related costs or losses during future periods
shall be recognized as deferred income, and it shall be included
in current profits and losses during the period when it is
recognized; those used to compensate for the incurred related
costs or losses shall be included in current profits and losses
directly.

LR ERER D ER QA

149



150

IR R MRS BTSN LA RK TR | Monetary unit for the notes t

B R R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIEPEEERIRES | Prepared in Ac

M. EEFesBRREsHEE(E)

24.

25.

—E-RFFR

REFRBREEMEEMSRA
&

BEFBREEMETEMEHE
BERBEEEMB BN HEMRE
HEEEENERE(EREER)
AHERER - BRIRIBTUER R
ST AR 5 FZ R AN TR AT 1S B
B AT 0B R AN A SRR, - AR [
B2 RERBRNELTHE
MEE - NEERBEXRA @ BL
EREENREMSHAE -
BEREHKREZEERFEZE
EHREEERAR R E -

7552 [ LAAR 7T BE ER 45 F R AR HD /T
BT ERNEATTSHE
BR - ERBAENEREER
EEMBEEMSHEE - BOH
ROBELEMEREE - E1EA2
RRHBMRAEEEES AN
FE NPT 15 58 A AR AR SE PR 15
MEER - BERLRELERESH
BEMNEmEE - ERATEERS
RHH AT TSR - R
SETAED -

H&

AEBEHERBASEED S
RMEREMCLEE -

MEHEREEL BB TEHE
7 P78 A R A 2 B [ A 3
MBS - AEBEREETE
EHEMBE - REEMKAE
BEEENAABEESKEEEN
REHREREPREE - R
BMEBRABRTEENARER
B REEENHEESRAEN
RTOAREE - BRENERC
BRARERARERR -

REMERIERBERE AN
HtHE - AEBEEREETH
HeEMERRAN S ERREZE
BORRT AR E ER A E B8
& AREEREETNESE
HE R & ERER B ROLHE
BN -

| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

24,

25.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
shall be recognized by calculating the difference (temporary
difference) between the tax base and book value thereof. As
to taxable income with deductible loss and tax deduction
that can be deducted in the future as specified by tax laws,
corresponding deferred tax assets shall be recognized as per
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
shall be measured at applicable tax rate during the anticipated
period for withdrawing such assets or during the period for
paying off such liabilities on the balance sheet date.

The Group recognizes the corresponding deferred income tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences to the
extent that the amount of taxable income to be offset by the
deductible temporary difference is likely to be obtained by the
Group. For recognized deferred tax assets, if it is predicted
that the amount of taxable income cannot be sufficient to
deduct the deferred tax assets in future period, the book value
of deferred tax assets shall be written down. If it is possible to
obtain sufficient amount of taxable income, the amount that has
been written down shall be returned.

Lease

Lease can be divided by the Group into finance lease and
operating lease at the start of lease.

Finance lease is a kind of lease in which all risks and rewards
regarding the ownership of the said assets are actually
transferred. At the commencement of the lease term, as the
Lessee, the Group shall deem the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments as the entry value of fixed assets acquired by finance
lease, and the minimum lease payment as the entry value of
long-term account payable. The difference between the two
entry values is deemed as unrecognized financing charges.

Operating lease refers to the lease other than finance lease. As
the Lessee, the Group shall include the rents in relevant asset
costs or current profits and losses by using the straight-line
method within each period of the lease term, while as the
Lessor, the Group shall recognize the rents as revenues by using
the straight-line method within each period of the lease term.
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IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

26.

27.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Accounting of income tax

The accounting of income tax of the Group will be conducted
by using balance sheet liability method. Income tax expenses
include current income taxes and deferred income taxes. Other
current income taxes and deferred income taxes or revenues
are included in current profits and losses, except for the current
income taxes and deferred income taxes that are related to the
transactions and items directly included in shareholders’ equity
and the book value of deferred income taxes generated by
business merger for goodwill adjustment.

Current income tax refers to the amount that is determined
by calculation for transactions and events occurring in that
phase and shall be paid by enterprises to the tax department
according to the tax laws, i.e. income tax payable; deferred
income tax refers to the difference between the due amount
of deferred income tax assets and liabilities that shall be
recognized by using the balance sheet liability method at
the end of the phase and the original amount that has been
recognized.

Important accounting policy and accounting estimate
change

(1) Changes in accounting policies

There were no changes in accounting policies in 2015.

(2) Changes in important accounting estimate

There were no changes in accounting estimates in 2015.
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. RE V. Taxes
1. IERERRE 1.  Main taxes and rates
RE rHR KR nE
Tax Category Taxation Basis Tax Rate
HE HIER BB E S Y EIER AN EH
VAT Difference after output tax deducts from input tax 6%, 13%, 17%
of purchased goods
EEEN A PN
Business tax Operating Income 5%
R FEE NS T RE
Urban construction tax Taxable amount of turnover tax 7%
HEEMM JER MBS AR
Educational surcharges Taxable amount of turnover tax 3%
7B &M N JEB MBI AR
Local educational surcharges Taxable amount of turnover tax 2%
FRriS Mt FEMMR PSR
Income tax Taxable income 15%, 25%
TR EMES B RN 88 Description of taxpaying subjects and income tax rates of
L different enterprises:
WmREREEE FRisRmM=E
Taxpaying Subject Income Tax Rate
ZAN/N|
The Company 15%
L RS BB R RN R
Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Company Limited 15%
SR EE B2 (BOM ) B RR A &)
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) Co., Ltd. 36.50-52%
IR R () BREBERA]
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (USA) Co., Ltd. B HF215-35% + )1 Fi8.84%
Federal tax rate: 15-35%;
state tax rate: 8.84%
Ht10RF LA
Other 10 subsidiaries 25%
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SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Income Tax

According to the reply in LKZ [2015] No. 33 document of
the Department of Science & Technology of Shandong
Province, Shandong Province Finance Bureau, Shandong
Provincial Office, SAT, and Shandong Local Taxation
Bureau, the Company is recognized as a high-tech
enterprise. On October 31, 2014, the Company
obtained the certificate of high-tech enterprise (No.
GR201437000377), with a validity period of 3 years.
According to Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax,
the Company enjoys the preferential tax policy of levying
enterprise income tax at a tax rate of 15%. In 2015,
the Company was in the tax preference period, and the
applicable income tax rate was 15%.

According to the reply in LKZ [2015] No. 33 document of
the Department of Science & Technology of Shandong
Province, Shandong Province Finance Bureau,
Shandong Provincial Office, SAT, and Shandong Local
Taxation Bureau, Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Xinda
Pharmaceutical”), a subsidiary of the Company, is
recognized as a high-tech enterprise. On October 31,
2014, Xinda Pharmaceutical obtained the certificate of
high-tech enterprise (No. GR201437000570), with a
validity period of 3 years. According to Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax, Xinda Pharmaceutical enjoys
the preferential tax policy of levying enterprise income tax
at a tax rate of 15%. In 2015, Xinda Pharmaceutical was
in the tax preference period, and the applicable income
tax rate was 15%.

Value-added tax

Export commodities of the Group enjoy the preferential
policy of VAT exemption, offset and refund.
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N. AHMBBRRTIEREERE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement
TEFTR B ISIRERER - RFRE Unless especially noted, among the following disclosed data in the
Bz oN - [ 9] Z4E2016F1 18 - financial statement, “beginning of the year” refers to January 1, 2015;
[ X EIE2016%12A318 » [ A4 “end of the year” refers to December 31, 2015; “current year” refers
ZIE2015F1 A1HE12A318 ' [ £ to from January 1 to December 31, 2015; “previous year” refers to
F | RIE2014F1A1HE=12A31H & from January 1 to December 31, 2014; and monetary unit is RMB.
EBRIABAREETT o
1. EB¥%#Ee 1.  Monetary funds
FERERE FHREE
HE Item Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Be Cash 146,951.21 233,817.99
RITER Bank deposit 328,491,932.88  284,051,006.40
HiWE¥ES Other monetary funds 147,650,000.00 44,484,521.44
A&t Total 476,288,884.09  328,769,345.83
Hrh FRIERIMNFIBAREE Including: total amount deposited abroad 18,754,260.64 5,977,634.59

FREMEEESHEIEPRITHE
L IE FERFE £ 17 509,650,000.00
Tt RXRBHOATETHEFR
20,000,000.007¢ * 118 A F 877
#710,000,000.007T * 14 B4
4 17 2100,000,000.00 7T * R A&
7% B A = 32 B 7= & 8,000,000.00
5T e

—E—-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

The ending balance of other monetary funds includes a
bank acceptance deposit of RMB9,650,000.00, a 7-day
call deposit of RMB20,000,000.00, a 1-month fixed deposit
of RMB10,000,000.00, a 1-year structured deposit of
RMB100,000,000.00, and a capital preservation finance
product with floating interest rate of RMB8,000,000.00.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(%) Statement (Continued)
2. MRElRRE 2.  Notes receivable
FXEH FUeHE
RiEES Category Ending Balance Beginning Balance
HRITHEGLER Bank acceptance bill 224,939,486.84 126,183,985.92
EEARIESR Commercial acceptance bil 207,228.40 2,698,500.00
a&t Total 225,146,715.24  128,882,485.92
(1) FEXEAREIEWKEIE (1) Notes receivable which have been pledged at the
end of the year
HZE2015F12A31B A% As of December 31, 2015, the Group had no notes
BERARERANEKRE receivable which had been pledged.
i o
2) FEXEHESEHUEESELSRE (2) Notes receivables which have been endorsed and
#* H R FEIRR B RiE within the period of date of balance sheet at the
end of the year
FEXREIL FERFEIL
EReHE BReH
Ending Ending Non-
Derecognized derecognized
I5H Item Amount Amount
RATHEAESE Bank acceptance bill 511,106,040.74
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(%) Statement (Continued)
3. EWER 3.  Account receivables
FXEH FUeHE
HE&H\ Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
JRE M BR 3R Account receivables 372,999,200.15  375,026,783.97
R IEEREE Less: Provision for bad debt 58,650,827.25 63,077,238.66
FER Net amount 314,348,372.90  311,949,545.31
(1) [ERIRFRE DT (1)  Aging analysis of account receivables
FEXEHE FesE
[ Account Age Ending Amount Beginning Amount
1FELAR Within 1 year 313,548,568.89 311,196,137.44
1-24F 1-2 years 724,878.49 419,590.00
2-3%F 2-3 years 74,925.52 333,817.87
HER Net amount 314,348,372.90  311,949,545.31
2) ERKEFSE (2) Classification of account receivables
331
Ending Amount
i ] L6l HRER HEHA
Provision for Proportion of
5B Item Amount Proportion Bad Debt Provision
(%) (%)
ERSEEAUEEREREE  Account receivables with significant individual amount
RIEIRER S and drawn bad debt provision on single ftem - - - .
REAHEEEERNENZ  Account receivables with provision for bad debts drawn
on combination - - - -
s Account age combination 361,689,166.94 96.97 58,650,821.25 16.22
ERSHEBRER Combination of elationship with ransaction bject 11,310,033.21 303
BRIEREAA Combination of special account nature
BAgt CGombination subtotal 372,999,200.15 100,00 58,650,827.25 15.72
EELERTEAEEEHIEE  Account recelvables with insignificant individual amount
EEMRIER but drawn bad debt provision on single item - - B, -
At Total 372,999,200.15 100.00 58,650,827.25 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(%) Statement (Continued)
3. EWERE) 3.  Account receivables (Continued)
2) EREFDEE) (2) Classification of account receivables (Continued)
ENeE
Beginning Amount
2% ] SHRER SR
Provision for Proportion of
HE Item Amount Proportion Bad Debt Provision
(%) (%)
EESREAVERRER Account recelvables with significant indivicual amount
EEMRIER and drawn bad debt provision on single tem
REAIBEEERNENE  Account receivables with provision for bad debts drawn
on combination - - - -
RRAA Account age combination 366,728,493.32 97.79 59,001,163.43 16.09
ERHEHEES Combination of refationship with transaction object 422221542
BRIEEEAA Combination of special account nature
BRI Combination subtotal 370,950,708.74 98.91 59,001,163.43 1591
EESRETEARE Account recelvables with insignificant indidual amount
RERERNRIER but drawn bad debt provision on single fem 407607523 100 4078075.23 10000
aif Tota 375,026,783.97 10000 63,077,238.66 -
1) HMEF - BERESN 1) In combination, account receivables with provision
LR IR A fE for bad debt drawn by aging analysis:
WebRs4 -
EXEH ENcE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
S BB LA RIS SRER SR
Account  Provision for Drawing Account Provision for Drawing
5 Item Receivables Bad Debt Proportion Receivables Bad Debt Proportion
(%) (%)
1EMA Within 1 year 303,757,322.30 1,518,786.62 05  308516,504.54 1,542,582.52 05
1-2F 1-2 years 906,098.11 181,219.62 20 524,487 51 104,897.51 20
2-3F 2-3 years 187,313.82 112,388.30 60 834,644.68 500,726.81 60
SEME Over 3 years 56,838,432.711  56,838,432.71 100 96,852,956.59  56,852,956.59 100
At Total 361,689,166.94  58,650,827.25 - 36672849332 59,001,163.43 -

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | ILRETZERERHERDF 157



AR ER AR R BRAS BIRE RSN

B R R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HEARMETFIT | Monstary

N EHMBEBRRETERAER

(&

1=

3. FEMARSR(E)

VI.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

3. Account receivables (Continued)

2 EBEKEZSEE) (2) Classification of account receivables (Continued)
2 HET - FKAEMT 2)  In combination, account receivables with provision
SRR IR E R E for bad debts drawn by other method:
kg -
IREEREA HES#
Amount of
Hewl Name of Combination Book Balance Bad Debts
HEZ S REIEMAE  Combination of relationship with
transaction object 11,310,033.21
CH Total 11,310,033.21
(3) FEEFHE - BE(2YkE]) (3 Bad debt provisions provided, reversed or
BIRIREMG ISR recovered in the current year
AKFFREREH In current year, the provided bad debt provision is
%4-3,026,411.4170 + K4 RMB-3,026,411.41 and the recovered or reversed bad
Uy (5] ok B2 o] 52 BR X fF & B8 debt provision is RMB600,000.00.
600,000.007T °
HAp AR F IR EA O 8 In which, bad debt provisions recovered or reversed in
EEmEEN the current year include:
FEEE
EfwiE (SUeE) & BERERERDKE FEEE(KE)FHE
Amount Recovered Reasons for
or Reversed in Recognition Basis for Reversals (Recovery)
Organization Name Current Year Bad Debt Provision in Current Year
IWRFTEEEGR AT ZREEERN 2R WEEBES
Shandong Xinbao 600,000.00 Consider debt paying ability and  Recover monetary funds
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. total amount withdrawing
A5fTotal 600,000.00
158 —E-REFHK | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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RIEREEFERRS | Preparec

N SEHMBBRREERBEE V.
(&)

3.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)
FEURRRR (Z) 3.  Account receivables (Continued)
(4) FEEEBEEHTEIE (4) Account receivables actually written off in the
current year
AN F T Az 8 B R ER K Account receivables written off in the current year is
158,703.407T * RIE=[E &S RMB158,703.40, the nonrecoverable payment caused
B AR N RGN E A E by cancellation of Yantai Longcang Pharmaceutical Co.,
FWEER - NEETF LA Ltd., shall be written off by the Group.
(5) HRETGERENEREREET (5) Account receivables with top five ending balance
B ERIEI IR 187 collected as per the borrowers
(B ARERRE
RREEHB HAR R
E o FRBE BR :5]24:7] FXRBE
Proportion in
Total Ending
Balance of  Ending Balance
Account of Bad Debt
Organization Name Ending Balance Account Age Receivables Provision
(%)
IR EEEGR AR 40,589,520.51  34FA k- 10.88 40,589,520.51
Shandong Xin Kang Qi Pharmaceutical Over 3 years
Co., Ltd.
TR ER 24,023,559.77 1EAR 6.44 120,117.80
Zibo Central Hospital Within 1 year
Mitsubishi Corporation 14,979,780.32 16 LAR 4.01 74,898.90
Mitsubishi Corporation Within 1 year
aEHRARER 10,766,895.08 14 LARK 2.89 53,834.48
The People’s Hospital of Gaoqing Within 1 year
County
MEERBEHEERANT 9,723,531.34 3%+ 2.61 9,723,531.34
Zibo Huabang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Over 3 years
At
Total 100,083,287.02 26.83 50,561,903.03
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N EHMBEBRRETERAER

VI.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(%) Statement (Continued)
4. FMEARIE 4.  Prepayments
(1) FfIsBERE (1) Age of prepayment
EXREE FeRE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
4] 54 B el
I5H Item Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
(%) (%)
1 AR Within 1 year 23,768,597.49 99.61 42,362,722.79 99.79
1-24F 1-2 years 81,085.11 0.34 85,398.63 0.20
2-3%F 2-3 years 10,398.03 0.04 1,919.80
3FEA Over 3 years 1,919.80 0.01 5,220.80 0.01
A&t Total 23,862,000.43 100.00 42,455,262.02 100.00
(2) BEMEREENERGHE (2) Prepayments with top five ending balance collected
BIBBRITET ISR as per the prepaid party
BB &8 E& it RBEHEER
Reasons for
Organization Name Amount Account Age Proportion Non-settlement
(%)
ZRHE I EER D BRAA] 1,742,081.58 1R 730 BEYRE
Anhui Wanbei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Within 1 year Goods arrival failure
IR & B TRHBRAF] 1,441,071.86  15EUURA 6.04 EYIRE
Shandong Jinling Chemical Co., Ltd. Within 1 year Goods arrival failure
Bl LEREE N A RDSEHRELF 1,256,904.30 1R 527 EYFE
Zibo Power Supply Company of State Within 1 year Goods arrival failure
Grid Shandong Electric Power
Company
IWEREREHME RN BER DA 1,188,339.17 14FIAR 498 EYIKE
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Within 1 year Goods arrival failure
Limited Liability Company
A REREFRAT 1,080,000.00 15K 452 BEYRE
Henan Jinghua Pharmaceutical Co., Within 1 year Goods arrival failure
Ltd.
A3t
Total 6,708,346.91 28.11
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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N SEHMBEBRREERBEE V.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(4&) Statement (Continued)
5. ElRFL 5.  Interests receivable
EREH FHIEAREE
HH ltem Ending Balance Beginning Balance
TEHATF 3K Fixed deposit 1,937,851.12
At Total 1,937,851.12
6. HifEk 6.  Other receivables
FEREH FUIEE
HE&HE Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
E A FER Other receivables 66,701,547.70 75,480,601.00
B RERER Less: Provision for bad debt 24,338,283.59 34,826,778.48
JFER Net amount 42,363,264.11 40,6583,822.52

(1) RUGELFEESHT

(1) Aging analysis of other account receivables

FXemn FUeHE
[ Account Age Ending Amount Beginning Amount
1A Within 1 year 32,691,319.89 27,453,551.01
1-24F 1-2 years 2,857,766.27 13,171,143.69
2-3F 2-3 years 6,805,884.59 20,834.46
3FE L Over 3 years 8,293.36 8,293.36

HEE Net amount

42,363,264.11 40,653,822.52

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(%) Statement (Continued)
6. HftufElR(Z) 6.  Other receivables (Continued)
2 REMEKHFHE (2) Classification of other receivables
FXeH
Ending Amount
&F L% HRER 4]
Provision for Proportion
H Item Amount Proportion BadDebt  of Provision
(%) (%)
EESEEAUEEHEEE  Other recelvables with significant individual amount
EENEM RN and bad debt provision drawn on single item 6,600,000.00 990 3,300,000.00 50.00
RBARERERD Other receivables with bad debt provision drawn on
L0 e combination
BEAA Account age combination 36,333,954.27 5447  21,038,283.59 57.90
HRFUZBEEA Combination of relationship with transaction object 204,987.15 0.44
BhRIELERA Combination of special account nature 23,472,606.28 35.19
At Combination subtotal 60,101,547.70 90.10  21,038,283.59 35.00
EESEHTEABEENE  Other recelvables with insignificant inividual amount
BRI AN but drawn bad debt provision on single item
A3t Total 66,701,547.70 100.00  24,338,283.59 -
e
Beginning Amount
| ] SHER S fl
Provision for Proportion
5B Item Amount Proportion Bad Debt of Provision
(%) (%)
EEHEAVERRER Other receivables with significant individual amount and
ERNEEI bad debt provision drawn on single item 6,600,000.00 8.74 3,300,000.00 50,00
REAEEBEENEGENST  Other receivables with bad debt provision drawn on
combination
Ekas Account age combination 48,825,009.64 6469 3018758451 61.83
H0542BEAA Combination of relationship with transaction object 829336 0.01
BRIELEAA Combination of special account nature 1870810403 2479
Bat Combination subtota 67,541,407.08 8049 30,187,58451 4469
ERSEETEABEBEHZEEE Other recelvables with insignificant incividual amount but
BN EM R drawn bad debt provision on single item 1,339,193.97 177 1,339,193.97 100.00
At Total 75,480,601.00 100.00 34,826,778.48 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
6. HftafElR(Z) 6.  Other receivables (Continued)
2) HMEKZFSEE) (2) Classification of other receivables (Continued)
1) FREBFLHEEAL 1) Other receivables with significant individual amount
E IR AREE R but provisions for bad debt withdrawn on single
E W - basis at the end of the year:
BEf&a IRmEsE WIESE GHELH(%) HREHR
Amount of Drawing Reasons for
Organization Name Book Balance Bad Debts Proportion  Withdrawing
ARERBERRETAA 6,600,000.00  3,300,000.00 50.00 ZEUEAHEE
Nanjing Huadong Pharmaceutical Consider possibility
Co., Ltd. of recovery
G
Total 6,600,000.00  3,300,000.00
2)  HHAET - HERESNT 2)  In combination, other receivables of provisions for
JEET IR IR EE A bad debt are drawn by aging analysis:
AbJEHL -
FXEH E2e X
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
& FR%R hg ] &% SHEE EHRILA
Provision for Drawing Provision for Drawing
T Item Amount Bad Debt Proportion Amount Bad Debt Proportion
(%) (%)
1L Within 1 year 13,246,644.16 66,233.22 05  15789,523.89 78,947.62 05
1% 1-2 years 1,540,481.39 308,096.28 2 3,632,518.00 726,503.60 20
2-3% 2-3 years 2,207,186.57 1,324,311.94 60 52,086.14 31,251.68 60
SENE Over 3 years 19,339,642.15  19,339,642.15 100 2935088161 29,350,881.61 100
At Total 36,333,954.27  21,038,283.59 - 4882500064  30,187,584.51 -
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6. HtmEW®R(E)

@2

3
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Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)

6. Other receivables (Continued)

HEMERFSEE) (2) Classification of other receivables (Continued)
3) HMET - FRAARMT 3)  Inthe combination, other receivables with provision
ST IREEM A for bad debts drawn by other method:
b JEHL -
IRTEHER ¥R HIESEH
Book Amount of
Hewis Name of Combination balance Bad Debts
HEZ B RREEEMAE  Combination of relationship with
transaction object 294,987.15 -
BRHIETERE Combination of special account nature  23,472,606.28 -
A&t Total 23,767,593.43 -
FEZEFHE © B (2YE]) (3) Conditions about provision of bad debts of accruing
EEEmER proportion and turning (or withdrawal) in the
current year
REGFIREREHES S In current year, the provided bad debt provision is
4,911,455.90 7T © 7K F I8 RMB4,911,455.90 and the recovered or reversed bad
o] ok 2 [0 & AR M5 & &8 debt provision is RMB15,399,950.79.
15,399,950.797T °
HAh AR FERERE DK In which, bad debt provisions recovered or reversed in
EeEEEN : the current year include:
Efigi *EELD(EKE) & RERBRERDKE SFEEE(SHKE)RE
Amount Recovered Reasons for Reversals
or Reversedin  Recognition Basis for (Recovery) in
Organization Name Current Year  Bad Debt Provision Current Year
IWRMEEBLTARRA 11,323,875.56 FREK - 28R WmEBES
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical & Long period, total amount
Industrial Company Limited withdrawing Recover monetary funds
LWRASEEEFRAR 3944221271  ERERENZEIR WEEEES
Consider debt paying ability and
Shandong Baoyimei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. total amount withdrawing Recover monetary funds
IIRMEHBERR AR 131,847.96 ZEEERN2HEHE WmEBEL
Shandong Xin Kang Qi Pharmaceutical Co., Consider debt paying ability and
Ltd. total amount withdrawing Recover monetary funds
CE
Total 15,399,950.79
| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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6. HtmEW®R(E)
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6. Other receivables (Continued)

= VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

T ERERBEEEK (4) Other receivables actually written off in the current
=
N A B B H b FE Uk There are no other receivables to be written off in the
Ko
RUOERFEZEFTEE S HE (5) Classification of other receivables by nature
-2/
FRIREERE FUERARTE
Ending Book Beginning Book
MIAMH" Nature Balance Balance
BERES  He Guarantee deposit and security deposit 7,717,041.59 3,121,594.71
HR® Petty cash 1,515,779.22 2,623,900.74
FEU R AN Tax receivable and to be deducted 15,033,776.86 18,973,126.92
MEHERES Finance lease deposit 8,000,000.00
EiLEN Claim 6,600,000.00 6,600,000.00
JEUL £ HhAF (B 3R Land compensation receivable 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00
JEfHIEEE - 553 E  Advance payment of R&D fees,
consulting fees 104,276.6 5,473,191.88
TEHEE R Advance investment funds 2,400,000.00 2,400,000.00
Efth Others 17,330,673.43 28,288,786.75
At Total 66,701,547.70 75,480,601.00
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N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(4&) Statement (Continued)
6. HaEkERZ) 6. Other receivables (Continued)
(6) BREXITERFRIEFERETHT (6) Conditions about other payment receivable of top
AZHEMEWRFIER - five balance as at December 31, 2015 collected by
the borrowers
Efigi &8 i Lf ERERERRE HHEANE
Ending Balance
of Bad Debt
Organization Name Amount  AccountAge  Proportion Provision  Nature or Contents
(%)
FRERHERERR AR 8,000,000.00 S 11.99 RiED
Pingan International Financial Within 1 year Security deposit
Leasing Co., Ltd.
RIERE & TR 8,000,000.00 3FELAE 11.99 [EMTEE R
Payment for the land of Houzhen Over 3 years 8,000,000.00  Compensation receivable
Project Area
MRERBEBRAMLR 6,600,000.00 126 9.90 REEX
Nanjing Huadong Pharmaceutical 1-2 years 3,300,000.00  Claim
Co., Ltd.
HERMRITHEXEREFEE  2,400,000.00 126 3.60 B
BEEEAR
State-owned Assets Management 1-2 years Advance investment
Company of Zibo Hi-tech funds
Industrial Development Zone
RHERRMER LR 440,000.00 2 AR 0.66 BRI
Langchao Tongyong Software Co., Within 2 years 48,400.00  Temporary payments
Ltd.
Bit
Total 25,440,000.00 38.14  11,348,400.00
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
7. HGERBEER 7.  Provision for inventory falling price
(1 HRESHE (1) Classifications of inventories
Exed ENcE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
i BEER FERE BEHE HERE BEEA
Impairment Impairment
HE Item Book Balance Provision Book Value  Book Balance Provision Book Value
(%) (%)
RitH Raw maferials 5579579246 138701567 5440877649 6794383264 105340685  66,890,425.79
EER Products in process 190,400,704.36 201421326  188,386,491.10  192,563,750.62 13722847 192,416,522.15
BREER Goods in stock 298,505,294.97 7554852205  290,956,772.92  319,234,246.76 483111451 314,403,132.25
EESHR Low-value consumables 10,868,431.40 10,868,431.40  13,338,014.67 13,338,014.67
WEEDE Specally approved reserved
supplies 1,839,696.49 1,839,696.49 1,839,696.49 1,839,696.49
A3t Total 557,409,919.38  10,949,750.98  546,460,168.40  594,909,541.18 6,021,749.83  588,887,791.35
(2) FREEEH (2) Provision for inventory falling price
EREN ENeR FHRE FHRY EXeE
Beginning ~ Withdrawal in Decrease in Current Period
Classification of inventories Amount  Current Period Rt B# Ending Amount
Other
Transfer-out Write-off
EhrE Raw materials 1,053,406.85 1,138,935.84 805,327.02 1,387,015.67
EEM Products in process 137,228.47 2,014,213.26 137,228.47 2,014,213.26
EFEm Goods in stock 483111451 671921571 4001,808.17  7,548,522.05
At Total 6,021,749.83 9,872,364.81 494436366  10,949,750.98
FEREEBENTHET A2 For method of provisions for decline in value of
RARMZNDN - EE®FK inventories, see the note “IV. Important Accounting Policy
KREFHEFT10 FE] - and Accounting Estimate 10. Inventory”.
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(&

Ol

7. FRRBREERE)

Statement (Continued)

7. Provision for inventory falling price (Continued)

(3) HFREREEMmEIE (3) Withdrawing of provisions for inventory falling price
HH EEMTEREBEMNABEKE TFEEONERFEA
Reasons for Withdrawing
Item Recognition Methods for Net Realizable Value or Write-off in Current Year
RATRE TaEt Al SIS EE N BRE AR BHEHE
Raw materials Expected net realizable value is lower than the book cost Produced and sold
TEEE TEET AT IR FEEARRE A BEEIHE
Products in process Expected net realizable value is lower than the book cost Completed and sold
JEER AT T Al #IRFEE AN BRE R AR BiHE
Goods in stock Expected net realizable value is lower than the book cost Sold
8. HtREHEE 8.  Other current assets
HE FEXREH FUeE MHE
Ending Beginning
Item Amount Amount  Nature
TR EMEN TEBEEMETR
Enterprise income tax prepayment 6,5 49,889.15 482,342.65 Enterprise income tax prepayment
R B E AT FHEINEIER
Input taxes of VAT to be deducted 14,390,046.15 Input taxes under deduction
B & 3 [0 B & 3% O
National debt reverse repurchase 20,334,000.00  National debt reverse repurchase
FRFHBEITER Taft e &
Private placement fee 132,075.46 Prepaid attorney fee
A&t
Total 21,072,010.76 20,816,342.65
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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9. THHESWMEE

(1)

2

&

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)

9. Financial assets available for sale

HHELHEERR (1)  Financial assets available for sale
EXEE EHE
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
EakE BEER EaERE BERE HEER FEER
Book  Provision for Book Book Provision for Book
R Item Balance  Impairment Value Balance Impairment Value
RIERATE Equity instrument
avallable-for-sale 230,431,648.00  30,000,000.00 200,431,648.00 250,590,560.00  30,000,000.00 220,590,560.00
R BB ED Measured by fair value 197,231,648.00 197,231,648.00  217,390,560.00 217,390,560.00
EOGEE Measured by cost 33,200,00000  30,000,00000  3,200,00000 3320000000  30,000,000.00  3,200,000.00
Ait Totdl 230,431,648.00  30,000,000.00 200,431,648.00 250,590,560.00  30,000,000.00 220,590,560.00
Wg’ﬂ ELMBEHD T (2) Analysis of financial assets available for sale is as
F: follows:
FREH FUeT
HE ltem Ending Amount Beginning Amount
i Listed
o (BABBRSN) China (excluding Hong Kong) 197,231,648.00  217,390,560.00
E ) Unlisted
P B (FBRRSN) China (excluding Hong Kong) 3,200,000.00 3,200,000.00
&t Total 200,431,648.00  220,590,560.00
EFENR BEHEHTH (3) Financial assets available for sale measured at fair
HESHEE value at the end of the year
AHHEESTR
(UARERE)
Available-for-
sale Equity
Instrument
(Measured at
HH Item Fair Value)
Mz T AR Cost of equity instrument 21,225,318.00
FRANEE Ending fair value 197,231,648.00
RERt AR AR S HEm Y Amount of changes in fair value accumulatively
AnEEZEHeE included in other comprehensive income 176,006,330.00
BEHRBESRE Amount of impairment provision provided

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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(& Statement (Continued)
9. TWHHESMEEZ) 9.  Financial assets available for sale (Continued)
(4) FEXEZEREXHEATHLE (4) Financial assets available for sale which are
eMEE measured as per the cost at the end of the year
BESHE
Book balance
0 FEEm EERD FX
At Beginning Increase in Decrease in At End of
HIREEA Invested Entity ofthe Year ~ CurrentYear  Current Year the Year
TIEEETEE5T Ruiheng Pharmaceutical
e -UNS Technology Investment
Company 3,200,000.00 3,200,000.00
PG Tiantong Securities 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
=Xl Total 33,200,000.00 33,200,000.00
REER
Provision for Impairment
ERRERN
) FEEm FERD X RRUEA  FERRIH
Current Current Shareholding  Cash Bonus
Year Year Ratio in in Current
HREEM Invested Entity Beg. Increase Decrease Ending Investees Year
(%)
THIBRER Ruiheng Pharmaceutical
RENT Technology Investment
Company 291 174,625.00
RAES Tiantong Securities 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Ait Total 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 174,625.00
(5) TRHELBTEREER (5) Pro_vision for impairment of financial assets
available for sale
AHHE AHE
ERTH ERIR
(MafEtE) (BBFERE) &t
Available-for-  Available-for-
sale Equity sale Equity
Instrument Instrument
Classification of Financial (Measuredat  (Measured by
AMHHESMEESE  assets available for sale Fair Value)  Cost Method) Total
FURHRRESE Amount of impairment provision
provided at the beginning of the year 30,000,000.00  30,000,000.00
FREFERERSE Amount of impairment provision
provided at the end of the year 30,000,000.00  30,000,000.00
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10.

Statement (Continued)
BENEE 10. Investment real estate
(1) BREHENRESHEEHE (1) Investment real estate measured by cost
REREN Tith{EFIE &t
Premises and Land
5HH ltem Buildings Use Right Total
—. [FERE I Original book value
1. F8E 1. Beginning balance 86,206,846.80  8776,121.00  94,982,967.80
0. RERNSE 2. Increased amount in the current year 19,481,607.96  5345603.63  24,827,211.59
(1) SME (1) Purchase 1,898,040.00 1,898,040.00
2 BTiE/ (2) Fixed assets/transferred from projects
EEIREA under construction 19,481,607.96 3,447,563.63  22,929,171.59
3 KNERLEE 3. Decreased amount in the current year
4. ERHE 4. Ending balance 105,688,454.76  14,121,724.63  119,810,179.39
Z.BEHREMBEHMS 1. Accumulated depreciation and
accumulated amortization
1. B85 1. Beginning balance 24,520,003.10 877,632.00  25,397,635.10
2. AEHENEE 2. Increased amount in the current year 14,615,191.76 878,235.70  15,493,427.46
(1) FHRZEE (1) Withdrawing or amortization 4,081,770.11 31990391  4,401,674.02
Q) EEEEBA (2) Transferred to fixed assets 10,533,421.65 558,331.79  11,091,753.44
3 KERIEHE 3. Decreased amount in the current year
4, FREHE 4, Ending balance 39,135,194.86 1,755,867.70  40,891,062.56
= R EER Mll. Provision for impairment
M. REEE IV. Book value
1. FRIEEER 1. Ending book value 66,553,269.90  12,365,856.93  78,919,116.83
2. FEREEEA 2. Beginning book value 61,686,843.70 7,898,489.00  69,585,332.70

AEBRABZNLEMN
EHEMITEMEHEAS
4,401,674.02 0 ( £ F &
8 1 4,242,313.677T) ° year.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

The amount of depreciation and amortization for investment
property recognized as profits or losses is RMB4,401,674.02
(amount of previous year: RMB4,242,313.67) in the current
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N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
10. REUBHEE) 10. Investment real estate (Continued)

2 FLEREHEHENYL (2) All investment real estates of the Company are
F o B 55 Ay it 19 18 7 e B located in the territory of China and in the medium-
(10-50%F ) FEEE - term (10-50 years) phase.

B) FWEEREBENREME (3) Investment real estates with certificate of title not
mE settled
HH FEEE SHREEEERERA

Reasons for
Unsettlement of the
Item Book Value Certificate of Title
BEDRAF AR5 7,386,108.07  IEfE#iIE
No. 1 Scientific Research Centre in the Headquarters In progress
1A IR EE K E13-22/F 34,414,880.42 [EFEHIEAR
13-22/F, Xinhua Mansion in the Headquarters In progress
BEPER A A E (BEE) 5,488,362.75  IEfEiiIEA
Comprehensive office building (Block B) in the Headquarters In progress
A5t
Total 47,289,351.24
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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1. BEERE 1.
(1) BEZEHHE

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

Fixed assets

(1) Detail list of fixed assets

L i1 ]
FEREY HaERG E8Rhk REf &t
Electronic
Premises and Machinery  Transportation ~ Equipment and
HE Item Buildings Equipment Equipment Others Total
- FERE I Original book value
1. FUBE 1. Beginning balance 1,139,772,783.08 1964,708,300.73  24,14429864  58918,236.50 3,187,543,618.95
2. KEENEE 2. Increased amount n the current year 142,716,840.92 16824383579 378206747 850154476 323,244,297 94
(1) B (1) Purchase 22565,628.82  27,411,029.37 3,782,067.47 5998,196.60  59,746,921.26
() FRIEEA (2) Transferred from projects under
construction 120,161,221.10  140,832,806.42 250334916 263,497,376.68
3 AEREE 3. Decreased amount in the current year 22,642,190.12  37,846,633.96 42845384 79738293 61,614,660.85
(1) BESHE (1) Disposal or scrapping 546442789 37,846,633.96 42845384 79738293 44,536,898.62
() BAREH (2) Transferred to
FHE investment real estate 17,077,762.23 17,077,762.2
4 ERBE 4. Ending balance 1,260,947,442.88  2,095,105,50256  27497,912.27  66,622,398.33 3,449,173,266.04
L RihE II. Accumulated depreciation
1. FHBE 1. Beginning balance 317988,657.77  835,207898.33 1797287072 3830242757 1,200471854.39
2. KEENEE 2. Increased amount n the current year 5300645360  148902,16435 234702287 630656570 21146240661
(1) &2 (1) Provision 53906453.69  148,902,164.35 2,345,332.64 6,198,691.30  211,352,641.98
G (2) Other increase 18025 10787440 10076463
3 RER)EE 3. Decreased amount n the current year 12,101,05268  29)533,319.34 367,350.66 768645.31  42,770,367.99
(1) RERHE (1) Disposal or scrapping 156763103 29)533,319.34 367,350.66 768645.31  32,236,946.34
() BAREA (2) Transferred to
REWRNE investment real estate 105533,421.65 105533,421.65
4, ERBE 4. Ending balance 309,794,058.78  954,576,743.34  19,952,742.93  43:840,347.96 1,378,163,893.01
= WEER Ill. Provision for impairment
1. ENEE 1. Beginning balance 2,120877.89 717814 212805608
2 KEENEE 2. Increased amount i the current year 185,527.13 185527.13
(1) &2 (1) Provision 185,527.13 185,527.13
3 AFHOEE 3. Decreased amount in the current year 172840845 1,728 408.45
() RELHE (1) Disposal or scrapping 1,728,408.45 1,728,408.45
4 FRBE 4, Ending balance 577,996.57 7.178.14 585,174.71
W, GEEE V. Book value
1. EXREEE 1. Ending book value 900,153,384.10  1,139,950,762.65 7545169.34  22,774,872.23 2,070,424,188.32
2. FNEEER 2. Beginning book value 821,784,125.31 1,127,379,624.51 6,171,427.92  20,608,630.79 1,975,943,708.53

AEEIBEZNET
BEMITEMBHEE L
211,352,641.98 L ( - &%
%8 : 185,023,339.647T) °

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

The amount of depreciation and amortization for fixed assets
recognized as losses is RMB211,352,641.98 (ending balance:
RMB185,0283,339.64) in current year.
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11. EEEEE)

VI. Notes

to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)

11. Fixed assets (Continued)

(2) FEEEEBEWIGFER (2) All buildings of the Group are located in the
BBt E R AR (10- territory of China and in the medium-term (10-50
504 )FEER - years) phase.
B) EHFHENEEESE (3) Temporarily idle fixed assets
HE IRERE RAAE i E 2 R BEPE faif
Original Book ~ Accumulated Provision for Net Book
ltem Value Depreciation Impairment Value Remarks
FREEEY)
Premises and buildings 3,863,572.78 930,333.54 2,933,239.24
WEERE
Machinery equipment 10,009,819.60 6,767,689.52 576,878.79 2,665,251.29
BFRERAM
Electronic equipment and others 413,279.92 379,897.90 7,433.09 25,948.93
At
Total 14,286,672.30 8,077,920.96 584,311.88 5,624,439.46
(4) BERMEHEHEANEES (4) Fixed assets acquired by finance lease
Z
RFEXR EEEME:A At the end of the year, the fixed asset with a book
58,465,028.25 7T ( IR B & value of RMB58,465,028.25 (original value of
102,914,782.46 7T ) W [E & RMB102,914,782.46) is rented by financial lease. The
BEEZMERAN - AEOT specific analysis is as follows:
LN
F£X RERE RitinE BB R REERE
Original Book Accumulated Provision for
End Value Depreciation Impairment Book Value
HeERER
Machinery equipment 102,914,782.46 44,449,754.21 58,465,028.25
At
Total 102,914,782.46 44,449,754.21 58,465,028.25
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11. EEEEE)
(5) FHEERBENEEZSE

AE R E B E
FAEEERERREA
547,586,453.76 7T (F 1 &
% : 501,196,558.617C) K
BE EE#FEZEEINE
oo B El R A RERAR
BEERFET  AREE
EREEERER TR
MR RERES Y EREF
HZEEEZEYNEREF
B HAREEMESBEEY
TERERTE  TES
RETEERELEE BT
SEAEARMBIIAA

7

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

11. Fixed assets (Continued)

®)

Fixed assets whose title certificates are not
obtained yet

At the end of the year, the fixed assets include
the house property with the original book value
of RMB547,586,453.76 (beginning amount:
RMB501,196,558.61) and its certificate of title is in
progress. Since the above house property is handled in
accordance with relevant legal procedures, the directors
of the Company can make sure that transfer of the
property title will not have any substantial legal obstacles
or affect normal use of such house buildings by the
Group, and will not exert significant impact on normal
operation of the Group and not be required to draw
provisions for impairment of fixed assets, and will not
incur significant additional costs.

HAE REEE FHREEEERERE
Reasons for
Unsettlement of the

Item Book Value Certificate of Title

—AREE 208,846,248.15 F{EiigEr

House property of No. 2 factory In progress

—DEREE 56,962,618.68 IE/E#iIErR

House property of No. 1 factory In progress

REHEmEE 83,929,721.55 I[FEHIEAH

House property in the headquarter park In progress

AR R R E 1,855,900.14  EfeyiErh

House property in the parent factory park In progress

ENEREE 116,581,074.06 I[EFE#IESH

House property in Shouguang park In progress

FERIEREE 9,916,403.18 I1FfE#IEr

Xinda pharmacy research and development building In progress

A3t 478,091,965.76

Total
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N SHMEEETEIFEHEE VL. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(&) Statement (Continued)
12. #ERIE 12. Projects under construction
(1) HTEEIEB#HF (1) Detail list of projects under construction
FXeH EeE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
EERER REER EE#E FERE HEER FEFE
Provision for Net Book Provision for Net Book
bl Item Book Balance Impairment Value Book Balance Impairment Value
BREZERAERD Modern medicine center for
international cooperation 33,557,952.02 33,557,952.02 2,304,070.00 2,304,070.00
HRERRREBE Moderm chemical medicine industrialization
EEARD center in Hutian Industrial Park 15,828,477.70 15,828477.70  2,395,708.88 2,395,708.88
RIRH2000T/ RISk New 2000T/d sewage treatment system
REZGHRER project of the Ministry of Environmental
Protection 10,569,018.42 10,569,018.42
1025 MHMERSERE New product renovation project
of No. 102 workshop 8,438,824.62 8,438,824.62
BEEEARIR Warehousing project in Hutian Industrial Park 10,164.07 10,164.07  3,974,004.80 3,974,004.80
FREBKVEETE 35KV power transformation project in
Hutian Industrial Park 7,238.53 7,238.53 2,507,238.53 2,507,238.53
HRERTKEEER Sewage treatment project in
Hutian Industrial Park 1,009,378.29 1,009,378.29  13,325,907.66 13,325,907.66
KRR EARER Salicylic acid equipment adjustment project 205,332.69 205,332.69
EHE - Innovation park-annex building 71,514.98 7151498 4,087,56157 4,087,561.57
B ZTMPCPCE i Barbital TMPCPG product relocation 3,959,211.89 3,959,211.89
naZNERRELE Pentaammine series product
warehousing project 11,331.33 11,331.33 3,377,862.36 3,377,862.36
HREEZ A Analgin series product project in
EmIE Hutian Industrial Park 199,222.17 199,222.17 8,863,885.51 8,863,885.51
HRERARIR Utilties project in Hutian Industrial Park 2,815,678.67 2,815,678.67
HESH=BFRI£ETR  Industrial park project (phase Il
in the eastern zone of Xinhua Shouguang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. 14,010,767.85 14,010,767.85  12,217,894.22 12,217,894.22
GMPHIEER GMP renovation project 26,103,467.19 26,103,467.19  6,737,117.10 6,737,117.10
Hth Others 45,303,593.01 45,303,593.01  111,216,066.48 111,216,066.48
At Totd 155,326,262.87 155,326,28287  177,782,00767 177,762,207 67
— —— — —
if{-‘t}ilﬁ,}iéﬁfﬁi By the end of year, the investment in projects under
= i Eéfig’ﬁﬂ Ej H I% 375 construction largely decreased, because the projects of analgin
;&%ﬂ%% E‘JAE””I&%@J and pentammine series products in Hutian Industrial Park had
%Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂk% P AR reached the predetermined serviceable conditions in current
FEREFTE - year and pre-transferred into fixed assets.
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N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
12. EBIBRE) 12. Projects under construction (Continued)
2 EBAXEBIERFHSEIER (2) Changes in major projects under construction

FERD
Decrease in Current Year

el 358 SAERRE Rtdd FXeH

Beginning Increasein  Transferred to Other
I84H Name of Project Amount  CurrentYear  Fixed Assets Decreases  Ending Amount
ARESERAfERL  Modem medicing center for
international cooperation 2,304,070.00  31,253,882.02 33,057,952.02
WEEESREZE  Modem chemical medicing industrialization
EXfmd center in Hutian Industrial Park 230570888 13432,768.82 15,808,471.70
SRIREI2000T /35K New 2000T/d sewage treatment system
RRZEHEER project of the Ministry of
Environmental Protection 10,569,018.42 10,569,018.42
100ERIMERMEEE  New product renovation project
of No. 102 workshop 8,438,824.62 8,438,824.62
HERRRHTE Warehousing project in
Hutian Indlustrial Park 3,974,004.80 136,159.27 4,100,000.00 10,164.07
HHERSKVEETE 35KV power transformation project
in Hutian Industrial Park 2,507,238.53 2,500,000.00 7,238.53
HEEETKREER  Sewage reatment project i
Hutian Indlustrial Park 13,325,907.66 845347063 20,770,000.00 1,009,378.29
KRS EARER Salicylc acid equipment
adjustment project 15,905,33269  15,700,000.00 205,332.69
BETR-Hig Innovation park-annex building 408756157 205264799 5609,708.58 458,986.00 7151498
EHZTMPCPCER B Barbital TMPCPC product relocation 3,959,211.89 797,392.09 4,756,603.98
TAZJEREETIR  Pentaammine series product
warehousing project 3,377,862.36 4,803,468.97 8,260,000.00 11,331.33
HRERRMLZ Analgin series product project in
EnIi Hutian Indlustrial Park 8,803,380.61  58,784,331.01  67,360,000.00 88,994.35 199,222.17
HHERARIE Utilties project in Hutian Industrial Park 281567867 8804,321.33  11,620,000.00
HESH-HRE Industrial park project (phase Il in the
T#RTE easter zone of Xinhua Shouguang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. 1221789422 1616154714 14,368,673.51 14,010,767.85
GMPHERE GMP renovation project 6,737,117.10  19,396,264.62 29,914.53 26,103,467.19
b Others 111,216,06648  46,717,357.86  108,422,476.08 420735625 45,303,593.01
Eh) Total 177,782,207.67  245,7%,787.48  263,497,376.68 475533560  155,326,282.87
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(4& Statement (Continued)
12. EBIE(ZE 12. Projects under construction (Continued)
2 EXGEBEIEFEEEEER (2) Changes in major projects under construction
TRRAK HRESL  Eh:FFEAR FER
IR%H AR RELA IRER RiteH Fe(8 4] BltE ReXE
Including:
Proportion Accumulated Amountof  Capitalization
of project amount of capitalization Rate of
investment Engineering capitalized interest interestin  Financial
Name of Project Budget in budget schedule of interest current year current year  resource
(%) (%) %)
BRESFEAERL  Modem medicie center for
intemational cooperation 400,000,00000 839 3000 BA
HEEERALZEE  Modem chemical medicine
EFAD industrialzation center in
Hutian Industrel Park 50,000,000.00 31.66 3000 BA
SERT000T/BHEK New 2000T/d sewage treatment
REZSHEER system project of the Ministry
of Environmental Protection 15,000,00000 7048 7000 BE
100EHMERSEEE  New product renovation project
of No. 102 workshop 9,880,000.00 8541 9,00 BA
HREERHIE Warehousing project in
Hutian Industrial Park 9,700,000.00 103.20 9.00 EY
HEEBSKVEETE 35KV power trangformation
project in Hutian Industrial Park ~~10,000,000.00 9307 9300 =L}
HRERTKEEEE  Sewage treatment projectin
Hutian Industrial Park 63,000,000.00 93.30 9.00 E)
iR EREER Salcylc acid equipment
adustment project 14,768,00000 107.70 9,00 =
BliTE - Innovation park-annex buiding 16,160,000.00 106.34 10000 a5
EHETMPCPCERE  Babial TMPCPC
product relocation 55,000,000.00 9.28 100.00 L
TRZJIEREBTE  Pentaammine series product
warehousing project 15,000,000.00 92.88 90.00 =L}
HERREHZS) Analgin series product project
ERIE in Hutian Industrial Park 377,220,000.00 11581 10000 14263468.87 e
HRRBLRTR Utities project in Hutian
Industrial Park 57,000,000.00 89,70 9%.00 L
HESK-HFE Industrial park project (phese Il in
IXETE the eastern zone of Xinhua
Shouguang Pharmaceticals
Co. Lid. 121,000,000.00 245 25.00 L
GMPHEER GIIP renovation project 28,300,000.00 2.3 10000 =L}
At Tota 1,242,028,000.00 14,063,468.87
— —
HtbRg > Z AR EEEMD Other decrease is mainly because the income of pilot
W ASHSRAE 2 TAZAAN © production products has been used to offset the costs of

projects under construction.

178 —Z-FHEFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



AN FS IR R MY BRAS BIEE RSN - U ARETFIR | Monetary

B R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

unit 1c

N EHMBEBRRETERAER

(&

1=

12. EBIBRE)

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

Projects under construction (Continued)

B8 FEEUEBIEFEXIHFE (3) No impairment is incurred on the projects under
BEEE  FiHEEBTE construction of the Group at the end of the year.
BEER - No provision for impairment of projects under

construction is drawn.
13. EREE 13. Intangible assets
(1 EEEE (1) Intangible assets
TibfERE BiHERR T Rt &it
Software  Non-patented
%B Item Land Use Right License  Technology Others Total
- BERE I Original book value 354,307,337.03 74233717.22  23,49,005.93 2,438,760.00  387,665,480.18
1. FU5E 1. Beginning balance 3,629,080.00 372,292.46 158,680.00 4,160,052.46
2. KEENEE 2. Increased amount n the current year 3,629,080.00 372,292.46 158,680.00 416005246
(1) BB (1) Purchase 12,759,950.13 51,777.17 12,811,727.90
3 AFROEE 3. Decreased amount in the current year 9,312,386.50 9,312,388.50
() B2 (1) Disposa 3,447 563,63 5177177 3,499,341.40
0 £t 1) Others MGIT6A600 774380191 2349600598 250744000 37901380474
4 ERBE 4, Encing balance
ZEiEy II. Accumulated amortization
1. ¥5% 1. Beginning balance 52,943,043.08 5201,951.68  15,587,869.67 970,20000  74,703,064.43
2 KEENEE 2. Increased amount in the current year 7,749,006.33 67841101 3389.201.15 588,264.00 1240497249
(1) 3R (1) Provision 7,749,096.33 678,411.01 3,389,201.15 50450400 12,321,212.49
() Etosgm (2) Otherincrease 83,760.00 83,760.00
3 KFH)2E 3. Decreased amount in the curent year 2,659,041.88 2,650,041.88
() K& (1) Disposal 2,100,710.09 2,100,710.09
Q) i () Others 558,331.79 558,331.79
4, ERBE 4. Ending balance 58,033,097.53 5880,362.69  18,977,070.82 1,508464.00  84,448,995.04
= RERR Ill. Provision for impairment
W, GEEE V. Book value
1. ERERER 1. Ending book value 287,143,369.37 1,863,529.22 451893511 1,088976.00  294,564,809.70
2. ENEEEE 2. Beginning book value 301,364,293.95 2,221,425.54 7,908,136.26 1,468560.00  312,962,415.75
’ @é$/& AIZFR i% * “Others” are client sources purchased from American Midwest
B2 ﬂfm%@ﬂp@\ﬁﬂﬁﬁ Co., Ltd. by the subsidiary of the Company (the American
ERRBENTFER - subsidiary).

AEERBEZNER
12,321,21249 70 ( E F 4
%8 1 11,541,443.287T) °

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

The amount of depreciation and amortization for
intangible assets recognized as profits or losses
is RMB12,321,212.49 (amount of previous year:
RMB11,541,443.28) in the current year.
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13. EEEEE(E)

@2

&)

—E-REFER

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

13. Intangible assets (Continued)

FEE L EFIER (2) All land use rights of the Group are located in the
EREA G ERFR(10- territory of China and in the medium-term (10-50
505 )BBER - years) phase.
FEE T L EFEEE (3) The following land use right certificates of the
IETEHEZ AR - Group are in progress:
RERKNEBEREE At the end of the year, the net value of the land use
AR R ER 1S 4 i fF A R rights without land use right certificates in the intangible
FH L EREFEEA assets of the Group is RMB4,228,427.75 (beginning
4,228,427.75 7T ( F ¥ & amount: RMB15,462,402.78) and relevant land use right
%4 1 15,462,402.787C) * certificates are in progress. As the above purchased
8 b 5 PR B IE AL 9% 32 assets are handled in accordance with relevant legal
FR oo EBRA AN B E TSR agreements, the directors of the Company think that
RIEEA EHEETT - AR transfer of the property title will not have any substantial
AEERAEERER T legal obstacles and thus will not exert significant impact
EEE R EERER - At on normal operation of the Group and not be required to
HALBMIEFEEWTHE draw provisions for impairment of intangible assets, and
KREARFE  NEFHEE will not incur significant additional costs.
WEERBELERE b ITEE
B REBINAA
mE IREEE XHIIEREEFREA
Reasons for
Unsettlement of the
Item Book Value Certificate of Title
MESRENEEREERB IR 4,228,427.75  HIEHHIEH
Eastern chemical industrial area of high-tech In progress
industrial development zone in Zibo High-tech Zone
| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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VI. Notes to Main Items in Cons

olidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
14. w8 14. Goodwill
(1) BEERE (1)  Original value of goodwill
el FEEM EERD FREH
Balance at Balance at
Name of the beginning Increase in Decrease in the end of
HREEMRE Invested Entities of the year current year current year the year
MEHE(ER)
BRAR Xinhua (Gaomi) Co., Ltd. 2,715,585.22 2,715,585.22
2 EEREER (2) Provision for impairment of goodwill
FEned FE1EM FERYD FEXe#
Balance at Balance at
Name of the beginning Increase in Decrease in the end of
HRERARE Invested Entities of the year current year current year the year
HELE(RR) Xinhua Pharmaceutical
BRAT] (Gaomi) Co., Ltd. 2,715,585.22 2,715,585.22

BB H R ER H T AR E
EHETIRTEH R ARM T
[ ERETBRREER
fhEt18 - REIEERAE] -

For goodwill impairment test methods and drawing
methods of provision for impairment, see “18 Impairment

of Non-financial Assets” under

“IV. Significant Accounting

Policies and Accounting Estimate” in these Notes.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
15. EEFRRRESEMEERSREA 15. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
&
(1) KEEBHHIEEFTIFREE (1) Deferred income tax assets not offset
FXRBE G
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
AJEH BE aEm B
ERtER FBREE FRHER FEHEE
Deductible Deferred Deductible Deferred
Temporary Income Tax Temporary Income Tax
5H Item Difference Assets Difference Assets
EHESR Provision for impairment of financial
BERBEERE assets available for sale 30,000,000.00 4,500,000.00 30,000,000.00 4,500,000.00
EHRERE Provision for bad debt 82,056,074.79 19,414,738.94 97,100,732.42 21,696,490.88
FakEEE Provisions for inventory falling price 11,037,180.46 2,058,258.31 4,819,478.87 952,182.24
BT EERBELR  Provision forimpairment
of fixed assets 537,015.87 134,253.97 351,488.74 87,872.19
REWIESS Salaries unpaid 2593430472 445177687  20,360379.50  4,826,968.66
Bt EEREM Estimated liabilities and others 6,085,599.77 912,839.97 14,661,870.25 2,199,280.55
Eiths Deferred incomes 41,201,020.94 6,180,154.49  23,647,907.78 3,547,186.17
BT NRBE Unrealized internal profits from
ERNEFIH purchase and sales
with subsidiaries 24,763,411.03 4,568,211.38 20,889,626.10 3,564,544.38
BERBER Provision for impairment
of goodwil 2,715,585.22 678,896.31 2,715,585.22 678,896.31
G Total 224,330,201.80  42,899,130.24  223,547,068.88  42,053,421.38
(2) FAEBHRGEEFTIFIREE (2) Deferred income tax liabilities not offset
FXRBE G
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
R BE FE T B
ERtER F&RAR ERtER FiEHat
Taxable Deferred Taxable Deferred
Temporary Income Tax Temporary Income Tax
5H Item Difference Liability Difference Liability

JER—IEEINEAH  Assets evaluation increment from
BEVEEE business merger not
under common control 3,774,233.20 943,558.30 7,018,791.15 1,754,697.78
AHHESREE  Profits and losses from changes in
DHEESSIES  fairvalue of avalable for sale
financial assets 176,006,330.00 26,400,949.50  196,165,242.00 29,424,786.30

o>

H Total 179,780,563.20  27,344,507.80  203,184,033.15  31,179,484.08
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15. REFRBREEMEEMFRA
=

(3) LB RS TaIEERT

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)

15. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

(3) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities listed as

SIREEAE net amount after offset
BERFR ERRELT BEFRER ERERE
BENEREXR FBREEN HENARED FBREENR
EES# RERERBHE EEeHE RREMRE
Ending Balance Beginning
Ending Offset of Deferred Beginning Offset Balance of
Amount of Income Tax Amount of Deferred Income
Deferred Income Assets or Deferred Income Tax Assets or
Tax Assetsand Liabilities after ~Tax Assetsand Liabilities after
HH Item Liabilities Offset Liabilities Offset
ELFEREE Deferred Income Tax Assets 17,322,006.38  25,577,123.86 16,182,527.86  25,870,893.52
EEFEHEE Deferred Income Tax Liability 17,322,006.38 10,022,501.42 16,182,627.86 14,996,956.23

it BRRNEEREHEE
B EAR R FEEE
ERBHRAERRE T
o

16. HFRBEE

Note: The net amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
after offset of the parent company is listed under the item of

deferred income tax liabilities.

16. Other non-current assets

FEXREH FUET
HE Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
TR LR Land prepayment 15,400,000.00
=5 Total 15,400,000.00

17. FERAERR 17. Short-term borrowing

FEXREH FUET
EMAER Category Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
ERER Credit loans 530,000,000.00  288,567,151.39
RBIEF Guaranteed loans 141,411,777.20
CEil Total 530,000,000.00  429,978,928.59

FIEFHE - H20155F12H318 -
HEHERNF ERRE A 4.34%-
6% °

Interest rate: On December 31, 2015, the interest rate range of

short-term borrowing is 4.34%-6%.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N. SHHMEBRRETEEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(4&) Statement (Continued)
18. MEfIRIE 18. Notes payable
FkREH FY&H

RiEES Category Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
HRITHEGLER Bank acceptance bill 215,648,469.78 117,672,136.81
EEZ SN Commercial acceptance bill 4,503,250.00
a&t Total 215,648,469.78  122,175,386.81

19. MEfTIRR 19. Accounts payable

(1) EfIRFZEEEDT

(1) Classification of accounts payable by nature

FXE&H FH&EE
HE ltem Ending Amount Beginning Amount
g% Payment 380,787,628.21 361,102,897.10
A& Total 380,787,628.21 361,102,897.10

(2) H2015%12H31H » Eff

(20 On December 31, 2015, the account age of payables

SRR T - is analyzed as follows:

FEX&8 FYIeH
HH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
1A Within 1 year 365,380,255.03 352,986,048.24
1-26F 1-2 years 9,914,896.72 2,743,756.77
2-3%F 2-3 years 1,527,982.52 1,5673,641.93
3FALE Over 3 years 3,964,493.94 3,799,450.16
A&t Total 380,787,628.21 361,102,897.10

—E-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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19.

20.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)

FEMTRSR () 19. Accounts payable (Continued)

B KBRREE—FHEEEME (3) Accounts payable with significant amount and an
& age of over 1 year
BEueE FERHBTE XEESUBEENEER

Reasons for Not Repaying

Organization Name Ending Balance and Carrying Forward
IWRFEARER AR 4,139,842.84 REHEWN
Shandong Xinhua Packaging Co., Ltd. Outstanding goods payment
BLEFLTERAR 1,162,641.66  AmHHHK
Zouping Huaxin Chemical Co., Ltd. Outstanding goods payment
WEIREBEHERA 389,310.00 RHEHEEN
Zibo Paixin Trade Co., Ltd. Outstanding goods payment
CE (M) BEEBR QA 350,000.00 REHEER
Renpu (Suzhou) Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. Outstanding goods payment
At 6,041,794.50 -
Total

RlRA 20. Accounts received in advance

(1) R FEERASE (1) Accounts collected in advance classified by nature

EXRRE FYIERER

HH Item Ending Balance Beginning Balance
TEUSHE R Sales income received in advance 40,445,572.01 34,416,698.06
A&t Total 40,445,572.01 34,416,698.06

(2 BREE—FHEERKS (2) Accounts from customers with significant amount

="
Husi

Organization Name

and an age of over 1 year

EREGHE FEEHREHRE
Reasons for Not Repaying
Ending Balance and Carrying Forward

NEW HAVEN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 3,246,800.00 RAEHHEEK

NEW HAVEN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

PEIARBRERRBE LR

General Logistics and Health Department of PLA

&t
Total

Outstanding sales payment
530,014.78 BERFFELEY)
State-reserved drugs

3,776,814.78 -

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
21, FEMEIEHE 21. Payroll payable
(1) EftRIZGTH?HE (1) Classification of payroll payable
FORA FEEM EERD FRBH
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH Item Balance ~ CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Balance
SRk Short-term remuneration 36,287,700.18  427,307,207.59  432,712,595.12  30,882,312.65
BRERER -RTE Post-employment welfare-defined
Rfatal contribution plan 49,639,456.70  49,639,456.70
BHREF Dismission welfare 273,124.40 273,124.40
At Total 36,287,700.18  477,219,788.69  482,625,176.22  30,882,312.65
(C 2 (2) Short-term remuneration
)3 FERM FEFD FRBH
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH Item Balance ~ CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Balance
1% %% Salary, bonus, allowance and subsidy
EELRIEEL 27,312,503.01  352,502,765.41  356,307,168.41  23,508,100.01
BIENZ Employee welfare expenses 543,117.38  28,733,668.12  28,550,608.88 726,176.62
reRRE Social insurance premiums 21,061,23350  21,061,233.50
i BERRE Including: Medical insurance premiums 17,070,936.02  17,070,936.02
TEHERRE Work-related injury insurance
premiums 2,278,131.52 2,278,131.52
KERBE Matermity insurance premium 1,712,165.96 1,712,165.96
FERES Housing fund 302,603.42  15,378,749.32  15,681,352.74
TEEEMBT Labor union expenditure &
HEEE personnel education fund 8,129,476.37 4,865,914.24 6,347,354.59 6,648,036.02
“ig Labor costs 4,764,877.00 4,764,877.00
At Total 36,287,700.18  427,307,207.59  432,712,595.12  30,882,312.65
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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21.

22,

23.

i35) meti (69
3) REEFHE

Statement (Continued)

21.

Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Defined contribution plan

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

)] 1] EEEm FERD FEXBE
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH Item Balance  CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Balance
ERRZRB Basic endowment insurance 470886586 47,228,865.86
KERBE Unemployment insurance 2,410,590.84 2,410,590.84
At Total 49,639,456.70  49,639,456.70
EZRR 22. Tax payable
FEXEH FUeR
RE Tax Category Ending Amount Beginning Amount
1 (ERS VAT 5,635,519.96 (1,694,241.64)
BER Business tax 184,014.52 151,587.12
JEXZ A5 HR Income tax payable 2,402,060.47 6,516,563.37
W A R R R City maintenance and construction tax 932,286.43 515,247.56
EPNGIES S Personal income tax 577,887.73 590,382.59
BEM House property tax 1,403,621.06 2,564,919.17
+ i {FE R Land use tax 4,263,780.64 3,697,530.65
ENFERR Stamp tax 266,505.20 346,581.80
HE BN Educational surcharges 666,060.64 368,068.05
KT GERRES Local Water Conservancy Fund 133,052.07 73,572.79
A&t Total 16,464,788.72 13,230,211.46
EMFIA 23. Interests payable
EXREHE FeE
I5H Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
FRITERF B Interest of bank loans 1,206,341.11 587,252.16
Ast Total 1,206,341.11 587,252.16
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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N. SHHMEBRRETEEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(4&) Statement (Continued)
24. FEFTEEF 24. Dividends payable
FEXREH FUeHE
I5H Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
ESElEl Ordinary stock dividend 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
A5t Total 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
25. HAumE(tS 25. Other payables
(1) RUEASEEESE (1) Classification of other payables by nature
EXREHE FUeHE
I5H Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
FERt TR R Classifications of engineering 97,829,756.26 151,581,910.49
equipment amount payable
RES B Classifications of guarantee deposit 17,451,869.62 13,155,564.24
and security deposit
EFHE  EBNFRAERE Classifications of power expense, 10,351,504.51 4,992,148.95
transport costs and
consulting fees
ERHRE R Payable investment 4,628,223.87
Hib Others 14,389,967.74 9,692,733.61
= Total 140,023,098.13 184,050,581.16
Heh t 1FLAE Including: more than 1 year 31,032,698.96 23,548,090.23

—E-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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(& Statement (Continued)
25, HEFHRE) 25. Other payables (Continued)
2) KBRREA—FHEERME (2) Payables with significant amount and age of over 1
fis year
BEueE FXRE XEENBENEE
Reasons for Not Repaying
Organization Name Ending Balance and Carrying Forward
IR N R ERMEERR AR 3,020,402.00 Ti2HR%E
Jiangsu Saideli Pharmaceutical and Machinery Engineering quality
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. guarantee deposit
AR RN B BR AR 2,500,550.00 TII2HERSE
Jiangsu Leke Thermal Technology Co., Ltd. Engineering quality
guarantee deposit
T AL T A AR A ) 1,133,845.40 TITRERSE
Zhejiang Zhongneng Light Industry and Machinery Engineering quality
Co., Ltd. guarantee deposit
M T RSRERABRAF 1,115,100.00 Ti2HERS
Suzhou Chengi Environmental Protection Technology Engineering quality
Co., Ltd. guarantee deposit
HLI SR R B8 1 A ) 38 2R e e 1,000,000.00 R&ES
SDU-ZB Biomedical R&D Institute Security deposit
a&f 8,769,897.40
Total
26. —FATMMFRDHAR 26. Non-current liabilities due within one year
FXem FYIEH
I5H Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
—FE RN ENEEER Long-term loans due within one year 553,100,000.00 408,907,645.38
—FRFENFIEMHER  Finance lease payments due
within one year 32,444,786.58
=h Total 585,544,786.58 408,907,645.38

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IISRHTERZER B ERA S 189



B FER R M EERRAS BIEERA N - LA RBETTHIR | Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated

B R R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIEPE e RIS | Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

N BHMBERIEREEE VL

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
27. HMiRB&AE 27. Other current liabilities
EXEH FUIEE
IEH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
—ERLEEELEWEE  Deferred income carried forward
within one year 4,602,000.00 5,042,000.00
A&t Total 4,602,000.00 5,042,000.00

i THFRBEBNEERER—FA
HHE) A E BRI BT B

28. RHAE®R
(1) REEKSHE

28.

Note: the deferred income carried forward within one year is the

assets-related government subsidies amortized within one year.
Long-term loans

(1) Classifications of long-term loans

FXEH FOEH
EEEm Category Ending Amount Beginning Amount
RBEEK Guaranteed loans 230,000,000.00 31,965,820.00
ZRER Credit loans 148,200,000.00 599,800,000.00
HIRER Mortgage loans 4,182,725.00
A Total 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00

RBFENS - HRIMsE+—
(=)-5]-

KEEXRANEXERR
2.90%-6.15% °

(2) RAEEKEBASHT

Details about the guarantee: see “Note XI (ll). 5”.

Long term loan interest rate range is 2.90%-6.15%.

(2) Analysis of long-term loan maturity date

FEXEH FeHE
HH Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
1-24F 1-2 years 278,200,000.00 594,182,725.00
2-5%F 2-5 years 100,000,000.00 41,765,820.00
&t Total 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
—E-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

20. RHIEF® 29. Long-term payables
FEXREH FUeHE
RAME Nature Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
BEEER Financial leasing 52,011,490.15
A5t Total 52,011,490.15
30. EIEEFR® 30. Special payables
FEned FE1EM FERYD EXe#
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
ER Item Amount  CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Amount
(LB ER AR Chemical pharmaceutical technology innovation 13,000,000.00 13,000,000.00
mUE#EEASE5Z  Organic gas recovery and comprehensive
GATREE (1) air pollution prevention
and control project (Note 1) 2,420,000.00 2,420,000.00
At Total 13,000,000.00 2,420,000.00 15,420,000.00

i1 RIBEAEECER T EER )
2015 F EAIREIATE TI2Af AL
BEEMERENEKNERSH
REZHEFEHEZNBAN(E
877 $5[2015]1305% ) A A1k E|242
B0 e AFBEEMNFREE -

Note 1: According to the Provincial Department of Finance’s Circular on
Releasing Budget Indexes of Central Capital Construction including
the National Subsidy for Major Environmental Treatment Projects
of Energy Saving and Circular Economy as well as Resource
Conservation in 2015 (LCJZ [2015] No. 130), the Company has
received RMB2.42 million and charged to the subject of special
accounts payable.

31. TErtAfR 31. Estimated liabilities
"H FREREA FUIRRE  TERKIREA
Item Ending Balance Beginning Balance  Reasons for Incurrence
FARFRH =

Pending litigation

9,440,000.00  Note

it FPEAERARATFARN
ERETE SR T R K IE A
EEREETDEEERKA - &
RIEE ABMAETT - REFH
ERSUREETERREFAR
HEER  BERAEESERE
E$£5112,516,385.037C * AF
FYERNBTAETIAEE
F#2 569> 3,076,385.03 T 5T A &
T HRIE o

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Note: ~ The company has drawn the expected liability of RMB9,440,000at
the beginning of the year, because Xincat Pharm, a subsidiary of
the company, has expected that the possibility of joint repayment
responsibility for the bank acceptance bill is bigger. In the current
year,the litigation concerning Xincat Pharm bore the joint repayment
responsibility has end. The total amount of actual joint repayment
responsibility to repayment for the company is RMB12,516,385.03,
in the current year, the expected liability at the beginning of the year
was written off and the remaining part RMB3,076,385.03 shall be
charged to non-operating expenses.
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N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(4& Statement (Continued)
32. BREKZ 32. Deferred incomes
(1) EEZEKRSE (1)  Classification of deferred income
=20 ] HERm FERD EXBE
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH Item Balance ~ CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Balance
BFFHRE Government subsidy 55,243,824.43  62,810,000.00  20,144,794.49  97,909,029.94
it Total 55,243,824.43  62,810,000.00  20,144,794.49  97,909,029.94
(2) BEFHE (2) Government subsidies
FEHR EHA BRERR/
BR#8ER ENeE HEeE EBRMALE Ef@m Ktigd FXeE ABRNH
Newly
Increased Amount of
Amountof  Non-husiness Related
Subsidy of Income of to Assets/
Beginning  the Current  the Current Other Other Ending  Related
Project Amount Year Year Changes Decreases Amount  to Income
RERET 20,845,407.78 11,411,961.16 943344660 HEENE
CGompensation for relocation Related to asset
=THERAREE 2,212,500.00 500,000.00 162250000 HEEEH
3,000t lbuprofen Project 2 Related to assets
SRERERNERVER 4,080,833.33 4,080,833.33 AR
Tribendimiding Hi-Tech Industrialization
Project "3 Related to assets
B Bl NREE 3,333333.32 500,000.00 28333333  SEEME
Innovation abilty construction project
of Technology Center 4 Related to assets
W AT ZF|ERGMPREER D 8,417,583.33 1,217,000.00 720058333  HEEEH
Aspirin Series Product GMP
Transformation Project "5 Related to assets
MREB R T EEEA S0 320,000.00 40,000.00 28000000 EEEEE
Special funds for MVR energy-saving
technical transformation *6 Related o assets
WErHaEEEAREEET 10,337,500.00  1,500,000.00 5000000 1,575,000.00 1021250000 HEEEH
Cultivation of aspirin famous and
excellent medicines *7 Related to assets
MArHZSIERKISEER 8 766,666.67 100,000.00 666,06667  HAEME
Aspirin series product technical
transformation project "8 Related to assets
MREHEEEE S 4,080,000.00 480,000.00 360000000  HAERH
Special funds for MVR energy-saving
transformation 9 Related to assets

192 —E-REFHK | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



B B 3R TR B SRR RSB S

B R R M AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HHUARE TR \ Monetary unit for the

notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless othe
sH#ERI4R4E| | Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Ste

RIEPES

-
/\.

AUV BEHRERETETRHIEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(& Statement (Continued)
32, REWB(E) 32. Deferred incomes (Continued)
(2 BB (&) (2) Government subsidies (Continued)
FEHE FEHA REERER/
HF#8ER Ened fheE ERNEALE RfhEE Rt ERed BERER
Newly
Increased Amount of
Amount of  Non-business Related
Subsidy of Income of to Assets/
Beginning  the Current  the Current Other Other Ending  Related
Project Amount Year Year Changes Decreases Amount  to Income
NEERFERSZELNIEE0 850,000.00 100,000.00 75000000 EEEEH
Incinerator and heat recovery project Related to assets
of East Park Area 10
ER R REARREARE 3,610,000.00 361000000 EAERRE
GAMAEEN Related to assets
Organic gas (dichloromethane) recovery and
comprehensive air pollution prevention and
control project *11
RREERRAERLER 2 25,700,000.00 2570000000 HAEEE
Modem Medicine International Cooperation Related to assets
Center Project "12
4t
Total 5524382443 6281000000 1146196116 460200000  4,080,833.33  97,909,029.94
H & E ATEFT2016F A Other changes are government subsidies expected to be

REWANBTHEE SR -
rE=EEMRSAE]R

IR

P B REEETA

BARRNTENBAT )

*1.

1R ¥ 2008 & 9 A # 1 19
[IEEEEmEBLET
ERBRE ] ARAE
DEBEIN AL —REB
REIP o AL S 1E 8
I8 B i 35 B 4 [2009]29
5%+ U B 12 [2009]33 5% A
S BF (2 [2009]55 5% 3¢ 14 2
RIFBHER - AR A
REBRZEEREIEBX
11,411,961.16 7T » I 1%
BEMEHEEINIA -

carried forward in 2016, which are carried forward and
listed in “other current liabilities”; and other decreases are
the government subsidies charged to the capital surplus.

*1. According to the Relocation Plan of Eastern Chemical Park
of Zibo City of Shandong Province released in September
2008, some products of the Company have been listed into
the uniform relocation plan. Therefore, Financial Bureau of
Zibo City has released the relocation compensation funds
according to documents ZCQ [2009] No. 29, ZCQ [2009]
No. 33 and ZCQ [2009] No. 55. The actual relocation loss of
the Company current year is RMB11,411,961.16, and the
non-operating revenue shall be carried forward in an equal
amount.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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32. BEKS(E

@2

—E-REFER

DR (&)

2.

3.

*4,

*5.

1R #2009 F 1L R & B B
2 & Bf 3 15 [2009]157 5%
X A E]12009 F 4R
B=FHEmRSIEE 2R
B MBIS0E T ° AR
AIR10F HARR 588185
2015 F ¥ & I 5 15 2016
FHEFAZEERANESEE
AREEHMRBEE R
PR - REHBAREEN
Tl th & AN HAbIETR
HEFE PR -

RIF2011 FILRAE EHR
MR EZEETEREN
1% & 2011132357 18 A&
NAE2011FUY R =K
MRERmEXtEERE
BE$5908 7T + IRIEH
HEAREE(RRIBEER
ErEEREWBESHM
RO BEREITIEID
AR E (B #£[2005]355
%) RFEEHKZEBEBK
34 8590 8 Tr B s at A

REBEXERMLE
ZER-BURESR
[2011]1247 5% - &R 2 A
2012 4 Y B £ i 7 0 &
¥aE 2 RIA B BT
5008 7T ° R0
HMRAEIER - 20165 )
BB 52016 s e
WA SREDBEIH
tRBEEIFIIR - &
EMPAREHONGER
DEIEMmIERBALE T
FII7R -

REBESIEMERMBE
ZEg  MEMEEM
ERILEEE - EER
% [2012]253 5% + A A A
20124 Y B B BT AR R 51|
EMGMPIETE B KR #
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FHBERFIG20165
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VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

32. Deferred incomes (Continued)

(2) Government subsidies (Continued)

2.

3.

*4,

*5.

According to the LCJZ [2009] No. 157 of Shandong Provincial
Department of Finance in 2009, the Company received
RMB5.9 million of construction fund subsidy for the 3000t
Ibuprofen Project in 2009. The Company carries forward
the profit and loss on the basis of the 10-year period. In the
disclosure of 2015, it is necessary to reclassify the amount
expected to be carried forward as income in 2016 and list it
in the “other current liabilities”. The balance of the subsidies
which is not carried forward is still listed in “other non-current
liabilities”.

According to the document LFGTZ [2011] No. 323 issued by
Shandong Development and Reform Commission in 2011,
the Company received RMB5.9 million for the Tribendimidine
Hi-Tech Industrialization Project in 2011. According to the
Circular of Ministry of Finance on Printing and Issuing the
Interim Measures on Fiscal and Financial Management for the
Subsidies of Investment in Fixed Assets within the Budget
of Central Government (CJ [2005] No. 355), the government
subsidies of the project which is RMB5.9 million will be carried
forward to the capital surplus current year.

According to the FGBGJ [2011] No. 1247 of National
Development and Reform Commission, the Company received
the government subsidies of RMB5 million for innovation
ability construction project of Technology Center in 2012. The
Company carries forward the profit and loss on the basis of
the 10-year period. In the disclosure of 2015, it is necessary
to reclassify the amount expected to be carried forward as
income in 2016 and list it in the “other current liabilities”. The
balance of the subsidies which is not carried forward is still
listed in “other non-current liabilities”.

According to the ZFGF [2012] No. 253 of Zibo Development
and Reform Commission and Zibo Economic and Information
Technology Commission, the Company received the
government subsidies of RMB12.17 million for Aspirin Series
Product GMP Transformation Project in 2012. The Company
carries forward the profit and loss on the basis of the 10-year
period. In the disclosure of 2015, it is necessary to reclassify
the amount expected to be carried forward as income in 2016
and list it in the “other current liabilities”. The balance of the
subsidies which is not carried forward is still listed in “other
non-current liabilities”.
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VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

32. Deferred incomes (Continued)

(2) Government subsidies (Continued)

6.

7.

*8.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

According to the document numbered ZZBZ [2012] No. 73
of General Office of Zibo Municipal People’s Government,
the Company received the RMB400,000 from special funds
for MVR energy-saving technical transformation in 2012. The
Company carries forward the profit and loss on the basis of
the 10-year period. In the disclosure of 2015, it is necessary
to reclassify the amount expected to be carried forward as
income in 2016 and list it in the “other current liabilities”. The
balance of the subsidies which is not carried forward is still
listed in “other non-current liabilities”.

According to the document numbered ZCJZ [2013] No.
41 of Zibo Municipal Bureau of Finance, Zibo Municipal
Science and Technology Bureau, document LKZ [2012] No.
187 of Office of Department of Science and Technology of
Shandong Province and document ZKF [2012] No. 61 of Zibo
Municipal Science and Technology Bureau, the Company
received RMB14.25 million of government subsidies in 2013
and RMB1.5 million in 2015 for cultivation of aspirin famous
and excellent medicines, or RMB15.75 million in total. The
Company carries forward the profit and loss on the basis of
the 10-year period. In the disclosure of 2015, it is necessary
to reclassify the amount expected to be carried forward as
income in 2016 and list it in the “other current liabilities”. The
balance of the subsidies which is not carried forward is still
listed in “other non-current liabilities”.

According to the document ZGXGF [2013] No. 11 of
Management Committee of Zibo National High-tech Industrial
Development Zone, the Company received RMB1 million for
aspirin series product technical transformation project as the
subsidies in 2013. The Company carries forward the profit
and loss on the basis of the 10-year period. In the disclosure
of 2015, it is necessary to reclassify the amount expected to
be carried forward as income in 2016 and list it in the “other
current liabilities”. The balance of the subsidies which is not
carried forward is still listed in “other non-current liabilities”.
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VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

32. Deferred incomes (Continued)

(2) Government subsidies (Continued)

9.

*10.

*11.

According to the document LFGTZ [2014] No. 553 of
Shandong Development and Reform Commission and
Shandong Economic and Information Technology Committee,
the Company has received the RMB4.8 million for special
funds for MVR energy-saving technical transformation
development in 2014. The Company carries forward the profit
and loss on the basis of the 10-year period. In the disclosure
of 2015, it is necessary to reclassify the amount expected to
be carried forward as income in 2016 and list it in the “other
current liabilities”. The balance of the subsidies which is not
carried forward is still listed in “other non-current liabilities”.

According to the document ZGXF [2014] No. 1 of Working
Committee of Zibo National High-tech Industrial Development
Zone, the Company received RMB1 million for 7,000t
Metamizole Sodium Tablet Project, Incineration Furnace
Waste Heat Recovery Project and Comprehensive Waste Heat
Recovery Project of East Park Area in 2014. The Company
carries forward the profit and loss on the basis of the 10-year
period. In the disclosure of 2015, it is necessary to reclassify
the amount expected to be carried forward as income in 2016
and list it in the “other current liabilities”. The balance of the
subsidies which is not carried forward is still listed in “other
non-current liabilities”.

According to the Circular of Issuing the Budget Index for
Provincial Air Pollution Prevention and Control Funds in 2014
(Batch 2) (LJCZ [2014] No. 153), the Company received
RMB4.61 million for organic gas (dichloromethane) recovery
and comprehensive air pollution prevention and control
project in 2015. According to the approval of Zibo Municipal
Government numbered ZCBF [2015] No. 67, the Company
received RMB31 million for organic gas (dichloromethane)
recovery and comprehensive air pollution prevention and
control project in 2015. The total amount is RMB35.61 million,
and the related assets are expected to be completed and put
into operation in 2017.
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VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)
32. Deferred incomes (Continued)

(2) Government subsidies (Continued)

*12.  According to the document of Reply for Approving the
Implementation Scheme for Industrial Upgrade and Efficiency
Enhancement in 2015 (LJXZ [2015] No. 193), the Company
received RMB3.7 million of government subsidies for Modern
Medicine International Cooperation Center Project in 2015.
According to the Circular of Releasing the Expenses for
Building the Technological Innovation Service Platform of
Biopharmaceutical Industry in Zibo (ZGXCF [2015] No.
121), the Company received RMB21 million for Modern
Medicine International Cooperation Center in 2015. In order
to implement the Several Policies and Suggestions on CPC
Zibo Municipal Committee and Zibo Municipal Government for
Promoting the Transformation and Upgrade to Build a Major
Industrial City (ZF [2015] No. 8), the Company received RMB1
million for the Modern Medicine International Cooperation
Center Project in 2015. The total amount is RMB25.7 million,
and the related assets are expected to be completed and put
into operation in 2017.

HttJERB &R 33. Other non-current liabilities

EXem FUeHE
I5H Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
HEREEES Specially approved reserving fund 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
=H) Total 3,561,500.00 8,561,500.00

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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N OHMERETEIFEHEE  Vl. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(%) Statement (Continued)
34. BX 34. Capital stock
KABHSEE - BEITMERK Changes in authorized, issued and paid-up capital stocks of
KEEERNOT - FTEARQFH the Company are listed below. All shares of the Company are
BmASREEARKITAYE ordinary shares with a book value of RMB1.
g -
(1) ZFEE (1)  Amount of current year
FEEHAE(+-)
Increase (+)/decrease (-) during the year
5 FORE BiTHR 2k LREER 1) it EXET
Capital
Reserve
Beginning  New Shares Share  Converted into Ending
Item Balance Offered Allotment  Capital Stock Others Subtotal Balance
B
Total shares 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
2 LtE& (20 Amount of previous year
FESHEE(+-)
Increase (+)/decrease (-) during the year
5 FNRE BiTHR 2R LHEER it i FXRE
Capital
Reserve
Beginning  New Shares Share  Converted into Ending
Item Balance Offered Allotment  Capital Stock Others Subtotal Balance
BheE
Total shares 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00

—E—-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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AHUMERETERHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(& Statement (Continued)
35. BHFLHE 35. Capital reserves
(1) FEH (1) Amount of current year
Ened EEEm FERD FEXe#
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH ltem Amount  CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Amount
BAGE Capital stock premium 424,084,320.48 424,084,320.48
HEARTE Other capital reserves 83,108,132.18  5,900,000.00 89,008,132.18
At Total 507,192,452.66 5,900,000.00 513,092,452.66
g BARABAREEIMES R Note: The increase in the capital reserves current year is the
FEE N A o appropriation transferred from the central budget.
2 LFE& (2) Amount of previous year
FneE FEEm FERD FXe¥
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH Item Amount  CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Amount
N Capital stock premium 526,084,320.48 102,000,000.00  424,084,320.48
HtBRAHE Other capital reserves 83,108,132.18 83,108,132.18
At Total 609,192,452.66 102,000,000.00  507,192,452.66

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(& Statement (Continued)

36. HfiiFalka 36. Other comprehensive incomes

FERER
Amount Incurred in Current Year
# HEHA
FERRR  RtESkRE # it 31 ] RiRER
H E0RE HREE  EHEARE FRRER RELR YURE X84
Less: Amount
Included
in Other
Comprehensive
Incomes in
Previous Period After-tax After-tax
and Carried Amount Amount
over into Profits Attributable Attributable
Beginning Incurred Pre-tax  and Lossesin ~ Less:Income to the Parent to Minority
ltem Balance Amount  CurrentPeriod  Tax Expense Company  Shareholders  Ending Balance

- WETHEARERERNEbRA G
| Other comprehensive incomes that cannot be
reclassffied into losses or profits in future

Z EREARERRN AR YA
Il Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to proft orloss n future 164,632.863.45  (19,078,000.05) (3023836.80)  (16,249,612.07) 19544882 14838325138
TitEeRERL EREDER
Profits and losses from changes in fair value of avalable
for sale financial assefs 166,740455.70  (20,158,912.00) (3023836.80)  (17,135,075.20) 149,605,380.50
eEBaEEEE
Translation difference of foreign currency
finencial statement (210759226 1,080911.9 885,463.13 19544882 (1222,129.19)

EfefralEadt
Total other comprefensive incomes 16463286345 (19,078,000.05) (3,023,836.80)  (16,249612.07) 19544882 148,383251.38
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VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
37. BERLHE 37. Surplus reserves
(1) FEH (1) Amount of current year
Ened EEEm FERD FEXe#
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH ltem Amount  CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Amount
FERBAR Statutory surplus reserves 144,517,606.31 4,151,697.63 148,669,303.94
FERHLE Discretionary surplus reserves 64,795,873.74 64,795,873.74
At Total 209,313,480.05 4,151,697.63 213,465,177.68
2 LE& (2) Amount of previous year
EneE EEEmM XERD EXe#
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
EH ltem Amount  CurrentYear ~ Current Year Ending Amount
EEBBNE Statutory surplus reserves 141,686,609.91 2,830,996.40 144,517,606.31
TEREBAE Discretionary surplus reserves 64,795,873.74 64,795,873.74
At Total 206,482,483.65 2,830,996.40 209,313,480.05
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  IURHFERERHERLQ T
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N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
38. XRPEFE 38. Undistributed profits
(1) FEH (1) Amount of current year
&f REHASELE
Appropriation or
EH Item Amount  Distribution Proportion
(%)
TEEREHE Ending balance of previous year 482,238,546.28
i FEMASEFIEAZE  Add: Beginning adjustment for undistributed profit
Hep: [{—HE 0 Among: Change of consolidation scope
HEZE under common control
EEFNEE Beginning balance of current year 482,238,546.28
n: AERBRENT Add: Net profits attributable to the parent
R company's shareholders in the current year 83,062,257.17
B RIETRBAE Less: Appropriation of legal surplus reserves 4,151,697.63 10%
REEEABRAE Appropriation of discretionary surplus reserve
R —RERER Appropriation of provision for general risk
BT EBARRF Common stock dividends payable 9,146,256.60
Hith Others
FEEREH Ending balance of current year 552,002,849.22
2015F 6 A24H + KA 7 On June 24, 2015, the Company has adopted the
WUFERAFRERNE M profit distribution plan of 2014 at the annual General
BEB014FEFE SR Meeting of Shareholders of 2014. After appropriating the
7R EIREI0% B A E 10% of statutory surplus reserve, the cash dividend of
B ATERE - LAKRAK RMBO0.02 per share (including tax) shall be distributed
457,312,830/% BEE - [A) to all shareholders based on the total share capital of
PEREFIRERSLATGK 457,312,830 shares.

AR#0.027T(EH) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIEHEE T ERIR ed in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

AHUMERETERHEE VL. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(&) Statement (Continued)
38. kHEFBE) 38. Undistributed profits (Continued)
2 LE& (2 Amount of previous year
&8 REHSELE
Appropriation or
EH Item Amount  Distribution Proportion
(%)
LEEREHE Ending balance of previous year 443,490,488.23
i FEMASEFIEAZE  Add: Beginning adjustment for undistributed profit
Hep: [{—HE 0 Among: Change of consolidation scope
HEE under common control
EEENEH Beginning balance of current year 443,490,488.23
n: AEBEREAT Add: Net profits attrioutable to the parent
R R F 58 company's shareholders in the current year 50,725,311.05
o %HX?%E%E%NE Less: Appropriation of legal surplus reserves 2,830,996.40 10%
EREERBAT Appropriation of discretionary surplus reserve
RE—%E M’E{ﬁ Appropriation of provision for general risk
S 3B AR AR A Common stock dividends payable 9,146,256.60
Hith Others
FEEREH Ending balance of current year 482,238,546.28
2014F5H30H + AR A On May 30, 2014, the Company has adopted the
013FERAFHRREARE B profit distribution plan of 2013 at the annual General
BER01I3FEFE SR Meeting of Shareholders of 2013. After appropriating the
HE - ERB10% M AT 10% of statutory surplus reserve, the cash dividend of
B ERE - LAKRAK RMBO0.02 per share (including tax) shall be distributed
457,312,830% BEE + 7] to all shareholders based on the total share capital of
2EREFIRER LT GK 457,312,830 shares.
ARB0.027L(EFH) o
39. DHRRES 39. Minority interest

BERSFRARASHBES D

Minority interests attributable to minority shareholders of the

IR subsidiaries

DRRELA FRed EN2E

Proportion of

Monitory
FoRER Name of Subsidiary Shareholdings Ending Amount Beginning Amount

(%)
WRHERZ(BN)BRAA Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical [Europe) Co., Lid. 35.00 4,321859.19 346315757
UEFE-PREEERETNR  ZooXinhua- Zhongx Phamacetical Co., Lid. 25,00 3335,810.14 3,163,552.90
WEFE-BHRREEREMAT  Zbo Xinhua - Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited 49.90 32,775,856.92 32,301,784.41
g sBTE L EER A Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical Company Limited 40,00 59,392,231.21 52,250,320.36
Aif Total 99,825,757.46 91,178,815.24
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EHMBEEREIEREEE V.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

7%
(%) Statement (Continued)
40. BREDEE 40. Net current assets
EXEH FUIEE
IEH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
TMENVEE Current assets 1,651,479,267.05 1,462,414,595.60
B RBaE Less: current liabilities 1,950,915,596.72 1,601,089,900.43
FREEE Net current assets (299,436,329.67) (138,675,304.83)
41. HERERTHAMR 41. Total assets less current liabilities
EXEH FUIEHE
HE Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
BEMET Total assets 4,492,122,436.63 4,245,149,713.77
o RBaRE Less: current liabilities 1,950,915,596.72 1,601,089,900.43
WEERREAE Total assets less current liabilities 2,541,206,839.91 2,644,059,813.34
42, EE 42, Debit/Credit
AEGEBEELIT Summary of debits/credits of the Group:
EXEH FHEE
EH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
HHASRITIE R Bank short-term loan 530,000,000.00 429,978,928.59
RHEZ Long-term loans 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
—FREBNIERSERE Non-current liabilities due within one year 585,544,786.58 408,907,645.38
RHIEMR Long-term payables 52,011,490.15
A&t Total 1,545,756,276.73 1,474,835,118.97
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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EHMBEEREIEREEE V.
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42.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)
HeEE) 42. Debit/Credit (Continued)
(1) B85 (1)  Debit/credit analysis
EXREH FeE
I5H Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
HRITER Bank loan
—BE—FRNEE - To be repaid within one year 1,083,100,000.00 838,886,573.97
—/BIE—FABEE - To be repaid after one year 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
N Subtotal 1,461,300,000.00 1,474,835,118.97
EH SR (BVEEER) Other loans (finance leasing payment)
—BE—FANEE - To be repaid within one year 32,444,786.58
—BE—EABEE - To be repaid after one year 52,011,490.15
/Net Subtotal 84,456,276.73 -
A&t Total 1,545,756,276.73 1,474,835,118.97
2) EEERARHT (2) Debit/credit due date analysis
RITIERK Bank loan:
FEXEH FesE
IEH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount

RER(EE S, —F LA Repaid as required or within one year

1,083,100,000.00

838,886,573.97

—E4F 1-2 years 378,200,000.00 594,182,725.00
—EhRF 2-5 years 41,765,820.00
A5t Total 1,461,300,000.00 1,474,835,118.97
H B Other loans:

FXEH FeHE
HH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
RER(EES—FLAR Repaid as required or within one year 32,444,786.58
—E4F 1-2 years 34,212,474.81
S 2-5 years 17,799,015.34
A5t Total 84,456,276.73
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
43. BRI - BERZX 43. Operating revenues and costs
(1) EEIKA  EFEREE (1) Operating revenues and costs
FERER TFEEER
Amount Incurred in Current Year Amount Incurred in Previous Year
5HH KA 723 YA AR
Item Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
FEES
Main operation 3,554,786,206.09 2,711,152,216.43 3,568,792,340.14 2,810,349,464.16
Hin %
Other operation 42,247,003.70 49,233,778.37 35,957,430.79 44,578,723.14
At
Total 3,597,033,209.79 2,760,385,994.80 3,589,749,770.93 2,854,928,187.30
(2) FIABEEFHEEKABH (2) Operating incomes of the top five clients
AEXAEBHABEFRE Total operating revenue from the top 5 customers
¥R A48%8407,514,976.67 of the Group is RMB407,514,976.67 (previous year:
T (_E®F : 513,744,414.56 RMB513,744,414.56, which represents 11.33% of
) EAFEHEER the total operating revenue in the year (previous year:
ANBFE11.33% (L F - 14.31%), as listed below:

14.31%) - BEEERIT

FERH E2MERBAMLLE

Proportion to the

ER&R Name of Customer Amount of Current Year  Total Operating Income

(%)

EEERISE YN Perrigo Company 120,138,203.62 3.34

Mitsubishi Corporation Mitsubishi Corporation 107,273,363.28 2.98
CHINA SHANDONG GROUP  CHINA SHANDONG GROUP LIMITED

LIMITED 61,431,501.93 1.71

F. Hoffmann-LaRocheAG F. Hoffmann-LaRocheAG 59,535,455.06 1.66

EHENERZEERAF  Huarun Weifang Far East Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 59,136,452.78 1.64

&t Total 407,514,976.67 1133
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AHUMERETERHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(4&) Statement (Continued)
44. EBERSRMM 44. Business taxes and surcharges
HELH F50H H54%
Contribution Amount of Amount of
EH Item proportion Current Year Previous Year
BXH Business tax 5% 451,084.32 402,052.90
BmAERER Clty maintenance and construction tax % 15,885,593.30 10,883,220.68
HRENM Educational surcharges 5% 11,346,852.36 7,773,728.02
wHkERES Local Water Conservancy Fund 1% 2,269,37047 1564,744.72
ast Tot 20,952.900.45 2061374632
45. SHEEHR 45. Selling expenses
XELH FF&8
Amount of Amount of
IHH Item Current Year Previous Year
I& Wages 91,801,380.62 83,711,041.95
BRImHEE Terminal sales expenses 93,058,932.63 58,853,911.19
BB Consultation expenses 41,655,297.97 48,269,280.50
BB Transport charges 44,555,427.97 45,015,452.86
BEE Advertising expenses 24,143,867.92 28,007,248.81
EIRE Travel expense 18,001,600.79 16,289,441.47
MIZHAERIEHEE Selling expense and promotion expense 18,979,049.50 10,646,113.22
MAE Office expenses 2,253,324.64 2,133,426.93
eKsE Conference expenses 5,210,656.39 7,386,244.36
HAith Others 14,115,080.37 17,450,800.05
A&t Total 353,774,618.8 317,762,961.34
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
46. EHHEH 46. Administrative expenses
XELH FFEE
Amount of Amount of
IHEH Item Current Year Previous Year
fEEEH R&D cost 82,035,168.56 51,573,489.42
TERENE Wages and Welfare Expense 56,077,173.84 56,560,691.42
e Taxes 28,288,247.68 23,273,274.98
nES Depreciation cost 16,692,205.25 16,180,522.54
HipEH e Other welfare expense 13,674,037.60 13,078,219.41
BELE Warehouse expenses 6,900,957.32 6,366,307.23
EI A ESE Amortization of intangible assets 12,184,684.03 11,511,138.92
E(¥BREE Business entertainment expenses 5,284,204.06 4,952,068.81
WAE Office expenses 4,297,781.37 4,976,772.00
EIRERE Royalty fee of trademark 10,121,564.08 10,375,109.43
TTFE - FHE Annual fee of listing, audit fee,
EEeE expenses of board of directors 3,386,300.40 4,767,986.55
HAth Others 64,314,747.91 61,846,386.03
A&t Total 303,257,072.10 265,461,966.74
47. BH¥EH 47. Financial expenses
(1) HEBREH (1) Detail list
XESH +FEE®m
Amount of Amount of
I5H Item Current Year Previous Year
FEZH Interest expenditure 83,557,299.42 74,816,307.52
B LB U Less: interest income 4,151,320.24 3,310,354.53
0 ERIEK Add: exchange loss (19,108,123.96) (3,513,564.91)
mn: FEEZ Add: commission charges 4,993,045.01 4,090,142.02
m:mEREER Add: finance lease expenses 2,300,107.40
A5t Total 67,591,007.63 72,082,530.10
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47. MBREA
(2) FEXHBH

VL.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

47.

Financial expenses

(2) Details of interest expenditure

XESH +FEEHm

Amount of Amount of

I5H Item Current Year Previous Year

RITIEF - BEXFE  Bank loans, overdraft interests 83,557,299.42 78,369,776.39
MEHEER Finance lease expenses 2,300,107.40

/INET Subtotal 85,857,406.82 78,369,776.39

W BAEF S Less: capitalized interests 3,553,468.87

At Total 85,857,406.82 74,816,307.52

KEMERCFE » L
FE—RERBAEN L
K& AR 56.25% °

There is no capitalized interest current year, and the
capitalization rate of the capitalized amount of the
general borrowing costs was determined as 6.25% in the

3) FEMABH

previous year.

(3) Details of interest income

XELH +FEE®m
Amount of Amount of
I5H Item Current Year Previous Year
RITIERFEUA Interest income from bank deposits 4,151,320.24 3,310,354.53
A5t Total 4,151,320.24 3,310,354.53

48. HEERERSX 48. Assets impairment loss
TESH tEeE
Amount of Amount of
IHH Item Current Year Previous Year
EARIEK Bad debt losses (14,756,922.45) 5,541,106.83
FERERE Inventory impairment loss 9,872,364.81 2,261,443.31
EE B ERER % Loss from fixed assets devaluation 185,527.13 1,740,214.58
EEREEX Loss from goodwill depreciation 2,715,585.22
A Total (4,699,030.51) 12,258,349.94
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N SEHMBBRREERBEE V.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
49. ¥ERS 49. Investment income
XELH FFEE
Amount of Amount of
EERERSMERIE Resources Current Year Previous Year
BFAUHEESFEE  Investment income from holding
HARI VS R B e financial assets available for sale 4,893,809.00 4,136,992.00
BEAHEESREE  Investment income from disposal of
SRR E RS financial assets available for sale 2,280,000.00
EAfth Others 403,340.68 1,500,255.80
&3t Total 5,297,149.68 7,917,247.80

Hit T B RAEE 2 ERITEY
E7% M B E Y O BB KRR

Others are mainly the financing income received from the
Group’s participation in the banking financing business and

Bk s o reverse repo of the national bonds.
50. EXEIMEA 50. Non-operating income
(1) EEIMEABH (1) Details of non-operating revenue
AKREHER
P ¥:37 ] +EEE BENLH
Amount Recognized
in Non-recurring
Amount of Amount of Profit and Loss
EH ltem Current Year Previous Year of Current Year
FRPHEERETIR Gains from disposal of non-current assets 23,589,138.12 496,349.14 23,589,138.12
Ed EFEEREMNE  Including: Gains from disposal of fixed assets 1,799,561.55 496,349.14 1,799,561.55
EEERENE Gains from disposal of intangible assets 21,789,576.57 21,789,576.57
HH B Government subsidy 25,220,870.49 112,514,778.32 25,220,870.49
=4 Others 4,002,741.29 3,857,464.66 4,002,741.29
At Total 52,812,749.90 116,868,592.12 52,812,749.90

AEFFAGHEHFERE SR
552,812,749.90 0 ( 4 -
116,868,592.127T ) °

RMB52,812,749.90 is included in non-recurring profit and
loss in current year (previous year: RMB116,868,592.12).
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50.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)
BREMEA(E) 50. Non-operating income (Continued)
(2) BFFiEEBM (2) Details of government subsidies
BEEAR/
L LUl £ *ERE TESE RRMKE Gzl
Amount of Amount of Source and Related to assets/
Category of subsidies Current Year Previous Year Basis Related to income
FEWEIBFHE
Government subsidies received
Ak 30,000,000.00 EETHEBTE  ERHEH
Energy saving and emission Issued by Financial Related to income
reduction funds Bureau of Zibo City
HETRRENBERESHY 1,800,000.00 SHEI(M4E[2014]8958  ERUrZSIARE
Enterprise innovation and development ZCQZ[2014]No. 89 Related to income
funding subsidies of Zibo City
B%IE B MR 4,680,000.00 BRHR014]709%  EKHIER
Financial subsidy for Gaomi Project GZH No. [2014] 709 Related to income
BT AERBEEERILR 1,278,618.00 LREANERME Rl
SREFHBALE
(2015)233%%
Subsidies for Unemployment Insurance LRSF (2015) No. 23 of  Related to income
Office of Zibo City Human Resources
and Social Security
Department of
Shandong Province
EETANEREHEEHDES 1,000,000.00 EETHIREES G BWREE
1E(2015)1485%
Subsidies for Key Projects of innovation ZCQZ (2015)No. 148 Related to income
and development of Zibo City of Financial Bureau of
Zibo City
it 3,577,458.00 2,400,000.00
Others
Nt 10,536,076.00 34,200,000.00
Subtotal
B A 3,232,833.33 4,752,000.00 HEERY
Transferring-in of deferred revenue amortization Related to assets
BT ESEE A 11,451,961.16 73,562,778.32 HEERS
Transferring-in of deferred revenue amortization Related to income
Nt 14,684,794.49 78,314,778.32
Subtotal
=5 25,220,870.49 112,514,778.32
Total
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N SHMEEETEIFEHEE VL. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(& Statement (Continued)
51. EFEIHITH 51. Non-operating expenditure
SAREFERE
FESH TEEE BaneE
Amount
Recognized in
Non-recurring
Amount of Amount of Profit and Loss
HH Item Current Year Previous Year of Current Year
FRBAERERR Losses from disposal of non-current assets 5,428,247.19 65,522,427.61 5,428.247.19
2 AFAERERA Including: losses from disposal of fixed assets 5,428,247.19 65,522,427.61 5,428.247.19
LERES Economic compensation 4,476,385.03 1,400,000.00 4,476,385.03
BBk Relocation losses 11,411,961.16 9,265,721.64 11,411,961.16
it Others 4,577,658.59 3,096,900.94 4,577,658.59
At Total 21,150,931.07 79,942,714.93 27,150,931.07
NG St A JELR E M B 25 4 4 RMB27,150,931.07 is included in non-recurring profit and loss
A 27,150,031.07 7T ( | & in current year (previous year: RMB79,942,714.93).
79,942,714.937T) °
52. FRBMEH 52. Income tax expenses
(1) FiigBE (1)  Income tax expenses
EESH tEeE
Amount of Amount of
I5H Item Current Year Previous Year
HHPTSHE R Current income tax expense 23,558,660.61  29,589,602.44
Hep: th Including: China 23,558,660.61  29,589,602.44
LARTEE %5t (&) Overstatements (understatements)
from previous years 1,819,052.20 3,460,354.28
EEFBHE A Deferred income tax expense (1,656,848.35)  (9,899,489.28)
A&t Total 23,720,864.46  23,150,467.44
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52.

53.

54.

FRRIMBAE)
(2) ERFEEFERERRE
B
HE

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

Statement (Continued)

51. Non-operating expenditure (Continued)

(2) Adjustment process between accounting profit and

income tax expense

XELEH
Amount of

Item Current Year

+FEEHm
Amount of
Previous Year

REQHHBER
BORE,BABRTE A

Annual total profit from amalgamation  117,729,615.03

Income tax expense calculated in

91,485,154.18

1S E M accordance with legal/applicable
tax rate 17,659,442.23 138,722,773.13
FRARBATRARENTE  Effect of different tax rate applicable
to subsidiaries 5,899,732.85 5,374,645.45
FEARIEIB TSR E  Effect of income tax before adjustment  1,819,052.20 3,460,354.28
FEEFIMAR T E Effect of non-assessable income (1,816,887.50) (869,824.78)
TR ~ B Effect of cost, expense and loss
=P S0)-7% non-deductible 268,551.01 751,648.87
{F AR ARRERIELFTSH  Effect of deductible loss of the
BEMENEENTZE unrecognized deferred income
tax assets before usage (269,617.64) (1,339,546.90)
RERERIELEFRSHEE  Deductible temporary difference or
R AN E R E R ] effect of deductible loss of
EIE B2 unrecognized deferred income
assets in the current year 160,591.31 2,050,417.39
FrSTiER Income tax expenses 23,720,864.46  23,150,467.44
FitEH 53. Audit fee

K [ 2 5t B & 780,000.00
7T H o OA+H )R E i B
650,000.00 7T N IE E AT
% 130,00000 Tt ( E FE A
970,000.00 7T + H A : HiR &
=t # 420,000.00 7t © AR% T &t
% 420,000.007C + NIEEET &
130,000.007T) ©

ER N

5 215,754,316.00 7T # 4 A
12,32121249 0 ( E FE I &
75 189,265,653.31 7T * # 4 A
11,541,443.287%) ©

AEEBBENBEROTE
=

The audit fee is RMB780,000.00 in current year, including:
RMB650,000.00 for the audit fees of A+H share and
RMB130,000.00 for the internal control audit fees.(previous
year: RMB970,000.00, including: RMB420,000.00 for the audit
fees of H share, RMB420,000.00 for the audit fees of A share
and RMB130,000.00 for the internal control audit fees).

54. Depreciation and amortization

The depreciation recognized in the income statement in
current year is RMB215,754,316.00, and amortization is
RMB12,321,212.49 (the depreciation of the previous year is
RMB189,265,653.31 and amortization is RMB11,541,443.28).
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EHMERRETEHREHEE
(%)
55. H&MA
NEFERE L MEEYHHE
& (MBrHLHE- - = kE4x
) A6,087,560.007C ( EFE A
5,954,560.007T) °
56. WS
(1) BXERIKZ
EREGRKEAGENTA
AR IR A A R FE

BB A BT BB
BB ©

HE

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

55. Rental income

The rent from land and buildings of current year (deducting
the rent, rates and other expenses) is RMB6,087,560.0
(RMB5,954,560.00 of the previous year).

56. Earnings per share (EPS)
(1) Basic EPS

Basic EPS is counted by the consolidated net profits of
shareholders of ordinary shares attributable to the parent
company divided by the weighted average of ordinary
shares outstanding of the parent company.

FF tF

Item Current year Previous Year

FENE QR EBRBIR
HAGHFERNE

BENE AR
B A HHF B (R
FERE M BRER)

BRBETHEING B
GOpIIESEEE

ARG T R)

EAGkWeE T HK)
(B SERFIERER)

Consolidated net profit attributable

to shareholders of ordinary shares

of the parent company 83,062,257.17 50,725,311.05
Consolidated net profit attributable to

shareholders of ordinary shares of

the parent company (deducting non-

recurring profit and loss) 40,944,834.40 8,778,507.42
Weighted average of ordinary shares

outstanding of the parent company 457,312,830 457,312,830
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.18 0.1

Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)
(deducting non-recurring profit and
loss) 0.09 0.02

TR INETFHHA TS

Calculation of weighted average of ordinary shares:

2
r. 33 EF
I5H Item Current year Previous Year
FYIBITHEINE BARAER Beginning balance of issued outstanding
ordinary shares 457,312,830 457,312,830
FERFITEINE B Ending balance of issued outstanding
ordinary shares 457,312,830 457,312,830
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Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

N SEHMBEBRREERBEE V.

(& Statement (Continued)
56. BRIk 56. Earnings per share (EPS)
(2) HESRKZ (2) Diluted EPS

mESRKEREWEILE
EEBRHEERNGRNE
NRIE BRI A GHF
R AR BIR AR AR EITE
S i Pk 1O DA <P 15 B Et
o

) IS SYNSIRSS e )
BHFNENARREZSE
HERARERNBEILE
EEBBRE - EEE
BB R A A O YR
HEM - ARBBEHAEH

B 488
o

AR BEITEINE BN
FHBNRABRREZREBER
BUEELBREARTR
P 0 48 AN Y & sEB A A AN P
BE e

&l

Item

The diluted earnings per share shall be calculated
based on the consolidated net profits of shareholders of
ordinary shares attributable to the parent company after
the adjustment of the diluted potential ordinary shares
divided by the weighted average of the ordinary shares
outstanding of the Company.

The adjustment factors of the consolidated net profit
attributable to the parent company have been recognized
as the diluted potential ordinary share dividend of the
expense, the income or expenses resulting from the
conversion of diluted potential ordinary shares as well as
relevant income tax influence.

The adjustment factors for the weighted average of the
ordinary shares outstanding of the Company are assumed
as the weighted average of the ordinary shares increased
due to the conversion of the diluted potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

*F

Current year

FEF

Previous Year

g

SRSt 3]y S SYNS]
EEARBCR A OHERE

HERBENEAREEK
BRH) & B3 71
(AR T IEIERRTR)

FHER AN DR EITEI
BB H) IR T B

wregkikas )
wrRgkkas T )
(B FEE R IR R)

Consolidated net profit attributable

to shareholders of ordinary shares
of the parent company after
adjustment

Consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders of ordinary shares
of the parent company after
adjustment (deducting non-recurring
profit and loss)

Weighted average of ordinary shares
outstanding of the Company after
adjustment

Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share)
(deducting non-recurring profit
and loss)

83,062,257.17

50,725,311.05

40,944,834.40 8,778,507.42
457,312,830 457,312,830
0.18 0.11

0.09 0.02

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SEHMBBRREERBEE V.

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(& Statement (Continued)
57. EHfiiFslka 57. Other comprehensive incomes
BELH rFEEHE
Amount of Amount of

Item

Current Year

Previous Year

AT ESBMEEESER 1. Amount of gains (losses) arising from
MiF(EKR) 28 financial assets available for sale (20,158,912.00)  93,178,832.00
B A EERmEE Less: influence on income tax arising
EERFTSH from financial assets available
for sale (3,023,836.80)  13,976,824.80
NEF Subtotal (17,135,075.20)  79,202,007.20
INEBBATSTRRITE =% 2. Conversion difference of foreign
currency statement 885,463.13 (1,127,068.08)
NEt Subtotal 885,463.13 (1,127,068.08)
CEl Total (16,249,612.07)  78,074,939.12
58. Be&EEE 58. Cash Flow Statement
(1) K8 EROEMEES (1) Other cash received/paid related to operating/
EEEHERNNTS financing activities
1) WCFEE i A F 1) List of other cash received related to operating
B BIEEE 28540 activities
20155 B 20144 Z
IHH Item Year 2015 Year 2014
AESUION Interest revenue 4,144,832.02 3,304,789.31
HETION Subsidy income 73,034,438.00  49,929,444.13
EP TN Intercourse funds 33,411,264.72 19,462,304.29
RITENIEZRES  Deposit for bank acceptance bill 26,684,181.06  76,371,368.94
A Others 10,753,442.05  11,649,907.25
at Total 148,028,157.85 160,717,813.92
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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N EHMBEBRRETERAER

(&

1=

58. B&RER(E)

(1) WE - FHHRGEES <

SETHERTER (E) financing activities (Continued)
2 XA MEEET 2)  List of other cash paid for related operating
BB R 2 B activities
201561 20144 [F
I5H Item Year 2015 Year 2014
WAE Office expenses 6,551,106.01 10,099,553.78
EIRE Travel expense 21,474,619.89 19,201,338.28
TWES - FEHB - Annual fee of listing, audit fee,
EEeB expenses of board of directors 3,386,300.40 4,767,986.55
5 Sewage charges 2,080,722.15 511,439.00

3

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

58. Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

(1) Other cash received/paid related to operating/

EE - miGHERE

Advertising and market
development fees
Transportation expense

161,049,321.25
54,186,473.42

145,620,824.85
65,649,378.62

E A Business entertainment expenses 5,642,833.10 7,357,991.35
Bilfrzs s Technology development expenses 69,023,255.42  48,388,015.38
R Intercourse funds 7,821,534.92 315,000.00
HAh Others 57,375,087.27  67,540,659.34
&5t Total 388,591,253.83  369,352,187.15
K249 (o R 3) Other cash received related to financing activities
BEHN S
XESH FFEE
Amount of Amount of
HE Item Current Year Previous Year

WEH R E R ER

Financial lease payment received

Total

72,000,000.00

72,000,000.00

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

N SHMEERRETEFEHEE VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial

(%) Statement (Continued)
58. BE&REBRE) 58. Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
(1) WE -FrtagRMEES (1) Other cash received/paid related to operating/
SETHERTER (E) financing activities (Continued)
4)  FIMEMEEET 4)  Other cash paid related to financing activities
BB H 2
BELH rFEEHE
Amount of Amount of
HH Iltem Current Year Previous Year
BEFES Commission charge for financing 9,145,277.98 1,232,500.00
ERERRES Margin of credit loan 100,000,000.00
TABMERERS Principal and interest of financial
lease payable 18,234,848.92
YREHRERSE  Payment of financial leasing service fees  3,000,000.00
FRAFEITER Non-public offering cost 132,075.46
A&t Total 130,512,202.36 1,232,500.00
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58. BE&REBRE)
2 ENRELTEXGLEFE

VI. Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

58. Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

(2) Supplementary information of consolidated cash

flow statement
XERE LEeE
Amount of Amount of
HE Item Current Year  Previous Year
1. BRRBEDAEEER 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from
Reng: operation activities:
beZilhd Net Profit 94,008,750.57  68,334,686.74
m: EEREEE Add: provision for impairment of assets (4,699,030.51)  12,258,349.94
BT EENE Depreciation of fixed assets 215,754,316.00  189,265,653.31
B EEEH Amortization of intangible assets 12,321,212.49  11,541,443.28
REETEE  BREEME Loss from disposal of fixed assets, intangible
i RHEENBR (KN assets and other long-term assets
[-1E31) (gains to be listed with “-”) (22,701,965.19)  61,252,018.97
BT EE B A (WAl -] Losses on retirement of fixed assets
SRIE5) (gains to be listed with *-”) 4,541,074.26  38,774,059.50
AR EEEEER (Yl -] Profit or loss from changes in fair value
$RIE7) (gains are indicated by “-")
B2 B (UeesbAl - 5B 51) Financial expenses (gains to be listed with “-")  76,760,514.83  71,302,742.61
BEBR (WAl 5E5) Investment loss (gain to be listed with “-”) (5,297,149.68)  (7,917,247.80)
ERFETEENRD (2 Decrease of deferred income tax assets
PAT-1851) (increases to be listed with “-*) 293,769.66  (4,908,098.69)
ERFMEHEERLMCHS Increases of deferred income tax liabilities
LAT- 251)) (decreases to be listed with “-”) (1,950,618.01)  (4,991,390.59)
BRI CE AT - JEF) Decrease of inventory
(increases to be listed with “-") 32,593,873.99  (69,044,152.71)
T EKIEE R (L Decreases of operational receivables
VAT- 15B51)) (increases to be listed with “-*) (226,387,386.58)  (19,585,576.57)
ST R M CRD Increases of operating payables
LAT- 13251) (decreases to be listed with “-") 173,398,814.29  35,059,576.01
ReTHELNRE RS FHE Net cash flows from operating activities 348,636,176.12  346,342,064.00
2. FEREQRIMHER 2. Significant investing and financing activities not
REMBETH - related to cash receipt and payment:
ERERER Conversion of debt into capital
—FREEm Convertible company bonds due within one year
AEAATRIE
BEBAETEE Fixed assets acquired under finance leases 84,456,276.73
3. BEREEEY 3. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
FEEENR
RERNBHRHE Ending balance of cash 366,638,884.00 281,435,164.77
B HemEBGRE Less: Beginning balance of cash 281,435,164.77  311,025,740.96
n: ReSENNEIRGRE Add: Ending balance of cash equivalents
A ReSENNBISRE Less: Beginning balance of cash equivalents
BeRRESEYFEME Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 85,203,719.32  (29,590,576.19)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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N OHMERETEIHHEE VI Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
(%) Statement (Continued)
58. BREREBR(E) 58. Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
3) FTFRELRERNTLH (3) Cash and cash equivalents showed in the cash flow
ReFEYERE - statement include the following items:
- 38 ] FUeT
IEH Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
e Cash 366,638,884.09 281,435,164.77
Heb: EERS Including: Cash on hand 146,951.21 233,817.99
AT BERF AR A AY Bank deposit available for
RITIFK payments at any time 328,491,932.88 281,201,346.78
AIBERE AR 8 Other monetary capital
HihEHES available for payments
at any time 38,000,000.00
REEEY Cash equivalents
HAZRIR & AN Ending balance of cash and cash
REEEBEYHE equivalents 366,638,884.09 281,435,164.77
He: AR ARRTF Including: Restricted cash and cash
NEERZ RS equivalents used by
FIREFIRESE parent company and
EY subsidiaries of the
company
4 EAETHRBEUIRS (4) The bank acceptance endorsement transfer without

MIBTTERLEESEE
ENERAFRHLESE
A 1,363,017,611.11 7T
RITHEHER Z8EN
ITRRAFHESEA
201,786,563.007T ©

50. FiRHENERAEZIRFNEE

cash receipt and payment in current year for the
payment of the goods is RMB1,363,017,611.11, and
that for the payment of engineering cost current year is
RMB201,786,563.00.

59. Assets with limited ownership or use right

"H FEXEERE ZREEA

Item Ending Book Value Reason

EHER 100,000,000.00 fR7ESFHR IR A KB

Monetary funds Marginal deposit and frozen provision
—T-AFFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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N SEHMBBRREERBEE V.

(%)
60. SMEEEWIMAR
(1) SEREEAE

Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement (Continued)

60. Monetary items for foreign currency

(1)  Monetary items for foreign currency

FEXRMERE HAEX FRARARRSRHE
Ending Foreign Translation  Ending Equivalent
5H ltem Currency Balance Exchange Rate Balance in RMB
K%Ee Monetary funds
H: %71 Including: USD 7,700,078.34 6.4936 50,059,671.13
BT EUR 1,251.35 7.0952 8,878.59
ok HKD 18,472.28 0.83778 15,475.70
it GBP 38,780.11 9.6159 372,905.66
BT JPY 66,217.00 0.053875 3,567.44
FEURRRR Account receivables
H: %70 Including: USD 26,088,899.14 6.4936 169,410,875.46
hgE GBP 415,437.12 9.6159 3,994,801.80
RAAHRA Prepayments
He: £ Including: USD 169,340.56 6.4936 1,099,629.86
HthiEe: Other receivables
Hi: %71 Including: USD 8,693.72 6.4936 56,453.54
R Accounts payable
B T Including: USD 5,723,342.38 6.4936 37,165,096.08
RRE Accounts received in advance
Hev: E7r Including: USD 2,281,484.19 6.4936 14,815,045.74
BT EUR 11,018.70 7.0952 78,179.88
Hi BN Other payables
Hh: %7t Including: USD 80,986.39 6.4936 525,893.22
(2) WIESER (2) Oversea business entity
F4H EEEEH IEIE A % H MR
Bookkeeping Basis for
Subsidiaries Main Premise Base Currency Currency Choice
(LA B3 (B B IR A7) HWERATD %7 WO
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Rotterdam, Holland usb Statutory currency of the
(Europe) Co., Ltd. business place
IR R (R ) AR E T A EERIZHT T REMETEEY
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Los Angeles, USA usb Statutory currency of the

(USA) Co., Ltd.

business place

+. SffEEAHE(L

AERABAHBREBERBEE L -

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Changes in consolidation scope

The scope of the consolidated statements of current year has not

been changed.
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I\, ERMERDRBER VIIL. Interests in other entities
EFLATIRMER Interests in subsidiaries
(1) RPELEFLIERE (1) Composition of the Group
HRRELEI(%)
Proportion of
Shareholding (%)
FARER TEEEH E REHE E& FiE REAd
Acquisition

Name of Subsidiary Main Premise Registration Place  Nature of Business Direct  Indirect Method

WRHEREZ S ERAT WRE AT WREHET BEIHE 100 R

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Medicine chemistry 100 Establishment
Trade Co., Ltd. Province Province marketing

WRHFEREEHOBEREERT  IWRAMED WERA R BENTIHE 100 RU

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Medicine chemistry 100 Establishment
Import and Export Co., Ltd. Province Province marketing

WRHERE TR ARAE WREEET WREHET BE(TH 100 E 4l

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong  Medicine chemistry 100 Establishment
Chemical Industry Design Co., Ltd. Province Province design

MEMEREEBHEERAR R AT RSB HET BENIHE 100 RU

Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Medicine chemistry 100 Establishment
Co., Ltd. Province Province marketing

WA= (RN ) BRAF HRBEAT FEBEAT BENIHE 65 Bl

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Rotterdam, Holland ~ Rotterdam, Holland ~ Medicine chemistry 65 Establishment
(Europe) Co., Ltd. marketing

EENE-TRYBEREANT  WREAMEED WA BT BELIRE 75 RU

Zibo Xinhua-Zhongxi Pharmaceutical  Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Pharmaceutical chemistry 75 Establishment
Co., Ltd. Province Province manufacturing

EEHE-BNRUEERECAR  LRLEET WREHET BT 50.1 RU

Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical  Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Pharmaceutical chemistry 50.1 Establishment
Company Limited Province Province manufacturing

HERE(BH)ERAT WRESKT WRERKT BELIRE 100 RU

Xinhua Pharmaceutical Shouguang City, Shouguang City, Pharmaceutical chemistry 100 Establishment
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. Shandong Province ~ Shandong Province  manufacturing

HEEREXERAR WRE AT WREHET FHERE 100 Eal

Xinhua (Zibo) Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Real Estate Development 100 Establishment

Province Province

HERE(RE)RRAR WRESHT REBET BRI IRE 100 s

Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Gaomi City, Shandong ~ Gaomi City, Shandong  Pharmaceutical chemistry 100 Acquisition
Co., Ltd. Province Province manufacturing

WRAENE(ER)EREERR  FEAVED RHAVER BEIRE 100 Bl

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Los Angeles, USA Los Angeles, USA Medicine chemistry 100 Establishment
(USA) Co., Ltd. marketing

WRHERETRARAR WERA SRR WERE R EAZE 100 RU

Shandong Xinhua Mechanical & Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong  Electric installation 100 Establishment
Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd. Province Province

WREBHEHERRAR WRE AT WREHET BETHE 60 ik

Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Zibo City, Shandong ~ Pharmaceutical chemistry 60 M&A
Company Limited Province Province manufacturing
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N, ERfERPHER(E
EFAERORE ()
(2) EEMEREFLE

VIII. Interests in other entities (Continued)

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(2) Important non-wholly-owned subsidiaries

PBER FERER  FEMOBRR

FROBERE

BRLA  ORERGRE EESENRA Hann

Profits and
Losses Dividends to
Shareholding Attributable be Assigned
Proportion to Minority to Minority Ending Balance
of Minority ~ Shareholders  Shareholders of Minority
FARER Name of Subsidiary Shareholders in Current Year in Current Year Equities
i Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(B RRAR (Europe) Co., Ltd. 35% 858,701.62 5,155,942.68
IEHTE - ARG Ziho Xinhua~Zhongxi Pharmaceutical
BRELATA Co,, Ltd. 25% 172,057.24 3,335,810.14
HENE-BRRRE Ziho Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
ARELAT Company Limited 4990%  2,969,072.51 249500000  32,775,856.92
LEsE g E Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical
BRAR Company Limited 40%  7,14191085 59,392,231.21
B EEFREFLFHEEMEE (3 Main financial information of important non-wholly-
A owned subsidiaries
7 - NREHT
Unit: RMB10,000
EXBH Engg
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
FRDEE  HEAR  RDAR ARDRE ARG NBEE SREAE  HERM  MEER HRBAR  ARSH
Non-current Total  Current Non-current Total  Cument  Non-current Totd  Cument Non-curent Totd
FoT4R Name of Subsidiary Assets  Assels Liabilities  Liabiliies ~Liabilities Assels Assels Asspts  Liabities  Liabiltles  Liabiles
WESERE (&) Shandong Xirhua Pramaceutica
BRAA (Europg) Co,, Ltd. 238 42020 296041 206041 841981 841981 73%6.36 739%.36
JEE-nELE Zino Xnhua-Zhongyi Phermeceutcal
BREFLH Co, Ltd. U860 134421 989 989 94040 40049 134089 47 847
AEHE-ARREE  ZboXnhue-Perigo Phameceutca
ERERDLA Company Limited 43170 717622 60630 60630 288082 416043 70075 G6asd 560,84
LEkEreEE Shendong Zioo Xincat
BB Pharmaceutical Company Limted 6,07.35 1972045 590312 590342 1198012 630024 1848036 493661 94400 588061
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RIEPEES

N, ERMERPHOER(F

VIII. Interests in other entities (Continued)

EFLTRBER(Z) Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)
B EEFREFLAAHEEHMHERE (3) Main financial information of important non-wholly-
B(E) owned subsidiaries (Continued)
FERER FERES
Amount Incurred in Current Year Amount Incurred in Previous Year
#8En T
RBA BHE  SORREE HERE  fEp FHE  GolmgE  ReRe
Cash Flow Cash Flow
Total  Generated Totd  Generated
Operating Comprehensive in Operating  Operating Comprehensive  in Operating
FLR4R Name of Subsidiary Net Profit Income  Activities revenue Net Profit Income Activities
WEHERE Shandong Xinhua Phamaceutical
(BN ERAR [Europe) Co., Ltd. 818226 189.50 u4534 3473 873649 9%.90 (8208 (6.531.75)
MENE-RRYE ZIo Xinhua-Zhongxi Phamaceutical
EREALT Co, Lid. 68.90 68.90 (28.08) 380.06 (102.90) (102.90 31353
MEFE-BHEEE  ZioXinhua-Perigo Phamaceutical
ERERAA Company Limited 11,563.56 595,00 595,00 88631 1285745 73747 84T 171932
RSN ELE Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutcal
ERAT Company Limited 22,189.55 1,785.48 1,785.48 675.97 2348060 1,794.78 179478 4,250.53
h. HéEmT BEHERE IX. Risks Related to Financial Instruments
REBNTESRTAOEEZ - Bl Major financial instruments of the Group include loan, receivables,
E - ENZE - AHEELSREE - payables, financial assets available for sale, tradable financial liabilities,
THESHMABRS  SKELEMI A etc. See footnote VI for more details about each financial instrument.
IS R M N o BEligtt e T A The risks concerning these financial instruments, as well as the risk
BHREHREE - AR EE AR S LR management measures applied to mitigate these risks are stated as
ST RR S RS N T AT o A& follows. The management of the Group manages and monitors the
EETEE ELRR M OETEEN risk exposure, to ensure that the risks mentioned above are controlled
BEVE DABRAR 6 L 1t [ Be 42 I £ PR ) &6 to the extent limited.
EzR e
1. REEE B ENMRE 1. Objectives and policies of risk management
ANEFBNRERBEENEEZLE The objective of the risk management activities of the Group
Bz EEE#ES T is to achieve a proper balance between risk and benefit, so
& BREHSAEERSLEEERN as to minimize the negative effect of risks on the operational
BETERRKISZENKE - FE performance of the Group and to maximize interest of
HRHMEREEENNEZER shareholders and other equity investors. Based on this objective
It - ERNZRERETERE K& of risk management, the basic strategy of risk management
HE RS IR E RSB 2 5T M of the Group is to identify and analyze the risks of all kinds the
S ANEFEFEENSERRE Group faces, so as to set a proper bottom line of risk tolerance
N E B R R AT R AR ETT for risk management, and to supervise the risks of all kinds in a
b EE - W R EHEER timely and reliable way, so as to control the risks to the limited
RBREITERE - AR IE IR range.
ERHEZA -
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h. Be&pT RAEMEBR =

1.

EREEAEMBEZ)
(1) WHERE
1) EXERE

7N £ 1B A 2 BE SR [
FEBEETT - HEM
BT ER - BRART
RAE T BT 2Aa A
ELEITRBNHEE
N REBMEALE
BEBEHUARE
FHEE - 1H20155F
128318 * B NERFAT
MmEERBEBEMNET
HEBEMTENE TR
RERRTEIN  ANEH
WEERBEHABA
R - ZEETT
HENEENARE
A A TE R @ B ] B
AEBMWKEERE
57K

IX. Risks Related to Financial
(Continued)

1.

Instruments

Objectives and policies of risk management (Continued)

(1)

Market risk

1)

Exchange rate risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk is mainly related
to USD, GBP and Euro. Except for the subsidiaries
of the Group which uses USD for purchasing and
sales transactions, other main business operations
are settled in RMB. As of December 31, 2015,
except for assets and liabilities with balances in
USD and GBP described as below, all other assets
and liabilities of the Group are reported in RMB.
The risk associated with the assets and liabilities of
such balances in USD may have influence on the
Group’s business performance.

2015%F12A31H 201412 A31H

I5H Item December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
& Assets
— HigE —GBP 4,367,707.46 9,206,928.02
—%7T —UsD 220,626,629.99 224,578,322.39
—BoT —EUR 8,878.59 1,204,673.84
— —HKD 15,475.70 14,297.72
—H7T —JPY 3,567.44 3,401.63
=1 Liabilities
—%7T —USsD 52,506,035.04 165,607,923.25
— BT —EUR 78,179.88 195,260.52

ARSEIE B BN
YREE - BERE
BB TE AR I
155 BIET ER L
FRIEER -

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

The Group currently has no foreign currency
hedging policy, but the management monitors the
foreign currency exchange risk and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency risks when
necessary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

h. RemT AERREZ) IX. Risks Related to Financial Instruments

(Continued)
1. BREEEAEMBEZ) 1.  Objectives and policies of risk management (Continued)
(1) HHEEEE) (1)  Market risk (Continued)
2 FEEE 2)  Interest rate risk
AEE R FIEE R E The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank
ERIRITE R AR loans and liabilities with interest of shareholders’
B BET - F8) loans. Due to financial liabilities with floating interest
MEHERBEFEAR rate, the Group faces cash flow interest rate risk;
ESEEERERE due to financial liabilities with fixed interest rate,
FEER - EEfR the Group faces fair value interest rate risk. As of
HeRmaEEAEE December 31, 2015, the debts bearing interest of
HEEA R EBEFER the Group mainly come from the RMB/US dollar
B o 20154 12 A 31 denominated floating interest rate loan contract
H - AEENHSE with the total amount of RMB202.8 million and
BEEAARE X RMB/US dollar denominated fixed rate contract
TLEHERZF BRI X G with the amount of RMB1.2585 billion.
HER - ©EEFA
20280 & 7Tt © & A
R¥ - ETFE/ME
ENEER W €8A
125,8508 7T °
AEERAFEEH ) Risk that change in interest rate causes change in
REMTEAREE fair value of financial instrument is mainly related
FHREREZHEF to fixed-rate bank loan. The Group’s policy lies in
FANRIBPITERE keeping the floating interest rate of the fixed-rate
B o R EEFEE loan.
HoARERNBERE
RIFEIZBNFE o
REE R R R EE) ) Risk that change in interest rate causes change in
BEMmITARERE cash flow of financial instrument is mainly related
BE A E R EZE)T to floating-rate bank loan. The Group’s policy lies
BRI RIBITERE in keeping the floating interest rate of such loans to
B - REERBEE eliminate risk of fair value resulting from change in
RIESFELERNED interest rate.
& - DUBBR A S
P AR EERE
3 EBEEE 3)  Price risk

REBE LTS EEH The selling prices of the Group are based on
EbEER Ek - JIAE| the market prices of chemical raw medicine,
RAETER  HHZ preparations and chemical product. The Group,
B EER BN E therefore, is influenced by the variation of market
2. prices.
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1. RIBREEARMBEE)
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1ERmAE

R2015%12 A31H » Al ¢
Sl AR EE I EEANREKR
ERRRKOTERARE
B S —FREBITERISME
BAKEeREEEEMNIE
% AREIE:

AHEEBERPOERYN
SRIEENERSE ¥R
UARBEFENERTA
ms @ BREEERE TER
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A B KRR O & E
KRAARBENELmSR

44

o

ATESREFERR &~
EEEEECZR—HEAE
BERIEEERTE  ZER
HE R BB IRIR - FEDARE
REREUER T TE)UR [ A HA (S
IH o LN - AEBESERE
HIREHSEENE S EE
MR O S8 - AREREE
SEW B IEE L 7T R Y RVE
58 o BN $’$l E.
BEEREASENEER
EEERE -

AEBENRBESFRER
RS EIRTT - BORE)
BEeHERRARTE -

REBRA T BEOBER
RETAHEEFH AR DT
EEFIEER - BIEKERS
BRIAAS - AEEE L
BARAEPER -

EYRFR RS A
100,083,287.027T °

IX. Risks Related to Financial Instruments
(Continued)
1. Objectives and policies of risk management (Continued)
(2) Creditrisk

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

On December 31 of 2015, maximum credit risk
exposure which may cause financial loss to the Group
is mainly because the counterparties fail to perform their
obligations so as to lead to losses of financial assets to
the Group, including:

The book values of the financial assets that have been
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet; for any
financial instrument measured at the fair value, the
book value indicates its risk exposure, but not the
most significant one, which will change along with the
fluctuation in the fair value in the future.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of
the Group has appointed a group of people responsible
for the determination of credit limits, credit approval and
other monitoring procedures, to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group will review the recoverable amount of individual
trade debts at the end of the reporting period, to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
the unrecoverable amount. In view of this, the Group’s
management believes that the Group’s credit risk has
been significantly reduced.

The current funds of the Group are deposited in banks
with relatively higher credit rating, thus the credit risk of
current funds is relatively low.

The Group takes necessary policies to ensure that all the
trade debtors have good credit records. Apart from the
top five entities with largest amount in “receivables”, the
Group has no other significant credit concentration risk.

Total amount of the top five entities with largest amount
in “account receivables” is RMB100,083,287.02.
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h. RemT AERREZ IX. Risks Related to Financial Instruments
(Continued)
1. BREEEAEMBEZ) 1.  Objectives and policies of risk management (Continued)
3 mEmE (3) Liquidity risk

mERRAAERERER Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group cannot perform its
EEABTHUBELZNE financial obligations till the due date. For management of
% o NEEE IR AR the Group’s liquidity risk, enough financial liquidity shall
M ERERBRANES be guaranteed to perform the matured debts and thus to
MEVMEREITRIEETS - T avoid unacceptable losses or damages to the Group’s
PNERER TR ZEXZ B credit. The Group will analyze the debts structure and
Y EEEEKIBE - K duration regularly so as to make sure sufficient capital.
SEFEH B EEES The management of the Group monitors the utilization
R AERBTHMONES © condition of bank loans, and ensures adherence to loan
REEERE L IRITIERE agreements. Meanwhile, financing consultation will be
FERBRETEE I RERE performed with the financial authorities to keep a certain
SHERIE o RS credit line and reduce the liquidity risk.

BETRERER - AR —
EMREEE  RIEREE

[2\fz o

B 1F2015F 12 A31H + K As of December 31, 2015, analysis of financial assets
EEFBANSHEENSH and financial liabilities held by the Group based on
BERATREFESGRERES the expiration date of undiscounted residual contract
HIZEREARR S AT ZA T obligations:
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1.

IX. Risks Related to Financial Instruments

(Continued)
RISEEEMBEZ) 1.  Objectives and policies of risk management (Continued)
(3) mEBmEEE) (3) Liquidity risk (Continued)
—ELR —HaE AFEMUE ait
More than
5H ltem Within 1 year 1to5years 5years Total
EREE Financial assets
E8EE Monetary funds 476,288,884.09 476,288,884.09
EWEE Bill receivables 225,146,715.24 225,146,715.24
JEUER R Account receivables 372,999,200.15 372,999,200.15
BIER Prepayments 23,862,000.43 23,862,000.43
Hib s Other receivables 66,701,547.70 66,701,547.70
SMERE Financial liabilities
RHEER Short-term loans 530,000,000.00 530,000,000.00
ENZE Notes payable 215,648,469.78 215,648,469.78
FERTBRSR Accounts payable 380,787,628.21 380,787,628.21
TEUER TR Accounts received in advance 40,445,572.01 40,445,572.01
Htb (TR Other accounts payable 140,023,098.13 140,023,098.13
RS Dividends payable 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
FERFE Interests payable 1,206,341.11 1,206,341.11
JESTER T 57 Payroll payable 30,882,312.65 30,882,312.65
—FREHE Non-current liabilities
Bk due within one year 585,544,786.58 585,544,786.58
RHER Long-term loans 278,200,000.00  100,000,000.00 378,200,000.00
REERT Long-term payables 34,212,474.81  17,799,015.34 52,011,490.15
DNREE 2. Fair value
(1) FLURREEHELHT (1)  Financial instruments not measured by fair value
A

TURARBEFENSRE
EMBEIEERE  BER
A EHMER - ENEOR
RHMER -

ERTARAEBEFENE
BEENAGENERmEER
AAEERER) -

The financial assets and liabilities not measured by fair
value include account receivables, short-term borrowing,
accounts payable and long-term loans.

The difference between the book value and fair value of
the financial assets and liabilities which are not measured
by fair value is very small.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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AR EBEFENEHEE
RAURHESREE -

HRREENBETRE—E
FE R RN HE
REBSmIAERHGL
MR ELER BN EEM
B W RFEHENTE
ERZMEIE - AL
HOHETE o AP AAYERER IR
B AR BELM

-

TREENERABNAA
BERBTAIEREE

BBEREGER R ALFE
BTSN EREERER
BEMDAEEDHIZEA
FEEEETIHIRITHERR
TTRERETE

HiteMEEMTRAE
(TRETETR)NARE
BERBAFBRSRENHE
RERNBAEERIEE
ERAAUBRNRITMER
HERER

TTETANRAEBERME
BBT5H) RAFRERETE o 1
RIFERFRE - ~AF
BEENTTESRIARR
EBERARKASRENR
VEAE R B e R AR R
LEEREE - AARERED
TEEMTARAREERA
I E BIRAGH HHETE -
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IX. Risks Related to Financial

Instruments

(Continued)

2. Fair value (Continued)

@

Financial instruments measured by fair value

The financial assets measured by the fair value are
financial assets available for sale.

The estimation of fair value is made within a specific
period of time according to the relevant market
information and information about relevant financial
instruments. Because these estimates are subjective
and the uncertain factors and matters need to be
determined, accurate determination cannot be made. If
the assumptions used are changed, these estimates may
be affected.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined according to the following methods:

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and in active market shall
be recognized in reference to current offer or price in
active market;

Fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivatives) shall be determined in accordance
with the general pricing model based on discounted
future cash flow technique or recognized by using
observable current market bargain price;

The fair value of derivative instruments is determined by
the open quotation of active market. If there is no open
quotation, the fair value of the derivative instruments
without the right of option shall be determined based on
the applicable income curve by the discount method of
future cash flow.



B RRMIEERRAS BIZERA S - LA RBETTHIR | Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless othe
RIETREEFT RIS | Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Ste
=+ 2
2 p e R
Notes to the Financial Statements
h. Be&mTREHEARREZ) IX. Risks Related to Financial Instruments
(Continued)
3. HRESW 3.  Sensitivity analysis
7R 5 B BR B BRI o AT Rl o AT The Group adopts sensitivity analysis method to analyze the
BEEEHHEIE - 7] ﬁ%ﬁ{ L g potential impact of possible appropriate change in risk variables
E‘HTE ST EREDAIREELRN on current profits & losses or the owners’ equity. As any
T2 - AINMEAR Am%{{&&}ﬂ risk variable seldom changes alone and correlation between
R BEEE Y MEBHZEEE variables greatly accounts for the final amount influenced
B RE A 1 R — R b R L by change of a certain risk variable, the following content is
BREESBHEELESTAER - conducted under the assumption that change of each variable is
At Tl AR EEBET 2 independent.
L R RN THEITH
(1) SMERPESBHEDHT (1)  Sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange risk
SN [ B GURR N D AT R AR - Assumption for sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange
FTERINEEFIREER R risk: all investment hedging and cash flow hedging in
RenEEHASEAR overseas operations are highly effective.
ELBROERE  £HE Based on the assumption above, if other variables stay
ﬁﬂ”%(T EHERLT  EX the same, pre-tax impact of potential appropriate change
BEEAEMAEEEEE A of exchange rate on the current profits & losses and
?‘E SFERMREFEN equity is shown as follows:
T
2015 K 201452
Year 2015 Year 2014
B HREE HFEM HmEE
HH EEEEH o} Eanve wE BRNTE
Impact on
Impacton  the Owner’s Impacton  Impact on the
ltem Change in Exchange Rate Net Profits Equity Net Profits ~ Owner’s Equity
Fr A SN HARKEFHES%
All foreign currencies 5% appreciated against RMB 7,258,770.13 7,258,770.13  2,047,620.88  2,047,620.88
FTEINE HARKEE%

All foreign currencies 5% depreciated against RMB ~ (7,258,770.13)  (7,258,770.13)  (2,047,620.88)  (2,047,620.88)
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IX. Risks Related to Financial

Instruments

(Continued)

3. Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

@

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on the
following assumption:

Change in market interest rate influences interest revenue
or expense of variable-rate financial instrument;

As for fixed-rate financial instrument measured in fair
value, market interest rate only influences its interest
revenue or expense;

Change in fair value of derivative financial instrument and
other financial assets and liabilities is calculated by using
discounted cash flow method and in accordance with the
market interest rate on the Balance Sheet Date.

Based on the assumption above, if other variables stay
the same, pre-tax impact of potential appropriate change
of interest rate on the current profits & losses and equity is
shown as follows:

T
20158 20146
Year 2015 Year 2014
HiBHE HEAEE HENE  HMAEERER
RE FIEEDH HRE Eamnee 0% Ve
Impact on
Impact on the Owner’s Impacton  Impact on the
Item Change in Interest Rate Net Profits Equity Net Profits  Owner’s Equity
BN #11%
Floating interest rate loan 1% added (2,708,898.70)  (2,708,898.70)  (1,164,901.00) (1,164,901.00)
T VIES PN 1%
Floating interest rate loan  Decrease by 1% 2,708,898.70 2,708,898.70 1,164,901.00 1,164,901.00
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T RERE iR

AEENRAEEFENER X
NENE BB IRITIA T R
SHRE  FRARBENUERE
2015F 12 A& 1% — (B3 5 H AU
BERT -

AREEDESE X. Disclosure of fair value
1. FXRUAREEHENZENA 1.  Amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value at
BHEEMLAAEBEIAERRX the end of year and the level of fair value measurement
EROREE
Ending Fair Value
BE—-BR EZBR HEZBR
AREERE  LAREHE  AREERE At
Level 1 fair Level 2 fair Level 3 fair
value value value
EH Item measurement  measurement  measurement Total
BEMLAEEME Continuous fair value
measurement
IEHESREE Financial assets available for sale
ERTARE Investment in equity instrument 197,231,648.00 197,231,648.00
BENAEGTENEEAE  Total assets continuously measured
at fair value 197,231,648.00 197,231,648.00
2. BEE—BROAEENHEEE 2. Basis for determination of market prices for recurring

level 1 fair value measurement items

The items measured by the fair value of Group are the stocks
of the Bank of Communications and CPIC, and the fair value at
the end of the year is determined based on the closing price on
the last trading day of December 2015.
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- ABRARERREXS Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions
(—) FRAESRAEZ () Relationships of Related Parties
1. RRBRRERRRERNST 1. Controlling shareholder and ultimate controlling
party
(1) PRI E R AR (1) Controlling shareholder and final controlling party
T(ZBEN : AR (monetary unit: RMB10,000)
#Er)
BERRRE HELFM HELEH
REENAEE it RERE EMEE  SRLE  RRELE
Name of Controlling
Shareholder and Final Registered Proportion of Proportion of
Controlling Party Registration Place Nature of Business Capital Shareholding Voting Right
(%) (%)
IRFEREEEERE IREEETREE  REPBRIRMR 29,850.00 34.46 34.46
/NG 145 EHERYE 245
Shandong Xinhua No. 14, Dongyi Road, Investment in the design
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  Zhangdian District, Zibo,  of building engineering,
Shandong Province property development

and catering
ERAREEERAR LREEEDEME TR R ACERRE - 85,000.00 - -
REEES
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.  No. 1, Bangpeng Street,  Investment in fertilizer,
Jinan City, Shandong petrochemical industry and

Province investment management
@) ERREL AL (2)  Registered capital of the controlling shareholder
R A= and changes
EERERERE FMeE FEEM FERD FXREW
Beginning Increase in Decrease in
Name of Controlling Shareholder Amount Current Year Current Year Ending Amount

IR EEEAREE AR
Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 298,500,000.00 298,500,000.00
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+-. B ASBRERERREXS(Z Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
(—) BAAREZ) () Relationships of Related Parties (Continued)
1. ZRBRERZHEZHNG(E) 1.  Controlling shareholder and ultimate controlling
party (Continued)
B)  ERREAFR GG R (3)  Shares of controlling shareholders and changes
HE
RiReHE LB
Amount of Shareholding Proportions of shares
ERERERE TERE ik FELG FERLH
Amount of Amount of Proportion of Proportion of
Name of Controlling Shareholder Current Year Previous Year Current year Previous year

R EBEEEBRAAAT

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ~ 157,587,763.00 160,444,695.00 34.46 35.08
I FE AN T AR AR During the year, the reduction in the shares
BT IRA RIS AR held (and so the reduced shareholding) by the
Blg A B A A 7R controlling shareholders in the Company is caused
NG B |1 B s = R by the decrease of shares held by the controlling
AN TR FE o shareholder of Shandong Xinhua Group.
2 ForE] 2. Subsidiaries
F N TSRS B A The details of the subsidiaries are described in the

[\~ FEE A Berh g% | content of Note “VIII Interests in other entities”.
HEERE -
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+-. AR FTRERERZS(Z Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
(=) EBHREE) ()  Relationships of Related Parties (Continued)
3. RS 3.  Other related party
o]y k-t FRBKRR{R HELFIARZ AR

Content of Related
Transactions with the

Name of Related Party Association Relationship Company
IWRFE T ERHD AR A XA — AR AR R 1 HEB N R=FF - KEFEME
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Controlled by the same Sales of engines, three kinds
Co., Ltd. controlling shareholders of wastes, purchase of raw
materials
I RFESIHC THRAF] A — 1R AR R 2 R R
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical & Controlled by the same Procurement of raw materials
Industrial Co., Ltd. controlling shareholders
e E TSR ECEE) BRA R BRBZ2KRAT SHE BN ) R R MR
DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals Joint stock company of Sales of engines, purchase of
(Zibo) Co. Ltd. parent company raw materials
EREBMERAT B A Z F A SRR
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of final controlling  Sales of raw materials
party
EEBMSERAT FREIZEAR SHE IR B2
Perrigo Company Subsidiary’s participation in  Sales of bulk drugs
shareholding
EEFAEGREMEAT FRAZEER THE R 2
America Eastwest Company Limited. Subsidiary’s participation in  Sales of bulk drugs
shareholding
WEEFEFHETRHBRAT FIRBHIAZT DA SRRt
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Subsidiary of final controlling  Procurement of raw materials
Limited Liability Company party
(Z) WmxH ()  Related Transactions
1. EEKF 1. Pricing policy
AERE S & AR BN 7 O The price of the products sold by the Group to related
DA&?@E%HS%??E%E%MHE@ party and the price of the raw materials purchased
BRETGEEREEBE from the related party shall be determined based on the
e - market price.
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- MR AREREZS (2 XI.

(Z) MBRR(E)

2,

BN E
FABE S

Related Party

Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)

() Related Transactions (Continued)

2. Purchase of materials

RABZHAE
Content of Related-
party Transaction

FERET

Amount Incurred

in Current Year

LFEELER
Amount Incurred
in Previous Year

IWRFESIHC THRAF

Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
& Industrial Co., Ltd.

R REITERECHE) BRAA)

DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals
(Zibo) Co. Ltd.

IWREREBHEIRNDERAT

Shandong Hualu Hengsheng
Chemical Limited Liability Company

At

Total

HERY
BAE 7

Related Party

(L ZRE

Chemical raw material

RU7 Rk

Raw materials of
preparations

{ELER

Chemical raw material

3. Sales of goods

RABZHAE
Content of Related-
party Transaction

43,456,348.48

10,655,641.03

29,445,025.65

31,865,798.11

24,574,871.79

37,833,684.89

83,557,015.16

94,274,354.79

FERET

Amount Incurred

in Current Year

LERERE
Amount Incurred
in Previous Year

IR ESIE(CTHR QA
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
& Industrial Co., Ltd.
IWRFESIE(C TER AR
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
& Industrial Co., Ltd.
IWRFrESBETBR AR
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
& Industrial Co., Ltd.
LERFESBETAR AR
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
& Industrial Co., Ltd.
RbFITERECEE) BRAA
DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals
(Zibo) Co. Ltd.
EREBBERAT
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.
FEBMSERAT

Perrigo Company

&t

Total

HESN

Sales of engines

SHE = E
Sales of three kinds
of wastes
HEREERE
Sales of wasted and
outdated equipment
HEBH

Sales labor service

HEES

Sales of engines

B RR 2
Sales of bulk drugs
SHE RE 2
Sales of bulk drugs

1,837,618.58

710,260.72

14,563.11

36,252.82

6,746,733.30

61,431,501.93

120,138,203.62

1,402,799.33

4,389,062.01

6,652,308.45

140,763,790.59

190,915,134.08

153,207,960.38

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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t—. WBSRERREXS(Z

(Z) MBRR(E)

4.

—E-REFER

XfHEKFIERRBER

S ER

Name of Related Party

Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)

(I) Related Transactions (Continued)

4. Payment of interest on loans and underwriting fees

FABXSAE

Content of Related-

party Transaction

EEELEH
Amount of
Current Year

+FEEHm
Amount of
Previous Year

EREREEFRAT
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.
EREREEBR AR
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.

fEF B
Interests on loans

EHFEE

40,850,000.00 40,850,000.00

2,100,000.00 2,100,000.00

Commission of undertaking

EEZEF

(1)

EAIER

ANE)EPEE LSO
RITESDITRRE
A% 58,0008 T
ME s - B
il A2015%6 A29H
Z2016FE6 H29H -
AN RIS ERIEH
ERITRIBHER -

VNN e |
RITEEDITRAE
A% A15,0008 7T
MERE - B
fEA201599A814H
E2017F9AH14H -
==RN/NETE = $ S 2 s
ERIRIREER -

5.  Acceptance of the guarantee

(1)

Loan guarantee

The Company and Export-Import Bank of China,
Qingdao Branch has signed the loan agreement
with the loan principal of RMB80 million and loan
term from June 29, 2015 to June 29, 2016, and
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd., the final controlling party
shall provide the guarantee.

The Company and Export-Import Bank of China,
Qingdao Branch has signed the loan agreement
with the loan principal of RMB150 million and loan
term from September 14, 2015 to July 14, 2017,
and Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd., the final controlling
party shall provide the guarantee.

G ER IS 6.  Call loan of related parties

FABA B /AR FEEE EiA EXAA
Name of Related Party Loan to/from Amount From To
EREREFERRAA A 498,500,000.00 2011-12-30 2016-12-30
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. Loan to

EREREERR AT A 100,000,000.00 2015-11-30 2020-11-30
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. Loan to

| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



B B 3R TR B SRR RSB S

B R R MY AL

Notes to Financial Statements

HHARBTER | Monstary

unit for the notes
RIEHEE T ERIR

to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherw
ed in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

t—. WBSRERREXS(Z

XL

Relationship with Related Parties and

(Z) MBRR(E)

Transactions (Continued)

() Related Transactions (Continued)

7. HEHAE 7.  Lease of assets
(1) EEMA (1) Lease of assets
)kt it ZHHEH R HEE XESE TFEEHE
Nature Transaction Amount of Amount of
Name of Related Party of trade Time Current Year  Previous Year
IWRHEBEEERREERR HABE BF 500,000.00
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Rent of house  Whole year
Co., Ltd.
IR EBBCTARRA BARE s 108,000.00
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Rent of house  Whole year
Chemical & Industrial Co., Ltd.
8 HMXH 8.  Other transactions
(1) EEEAE (1) Royalty fee of trademark
RS &R ABZHAR EELHE TEeE
Content of Related- Amount of Amount of
Name of Related Party party Transaction Current Year Previous Year
IR EEEETGREELNT EIEERE 10,000,000.00  10,300,000.00

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.

Royalty fee of trademark

ARNEEFGARILER
FEEER20149F10
Ro7HEG] iz
GBHMNEFTHE ([ /#
wHE])  BEBAX
HiE 20151 A1 H#E
Z20174¥12A31 H
IF - BEHRBTE -
RATRMERFTE |18
EENERTFEE
B A ARA1,000E
UL EIERIEAHN
B GRS TE -

SHANDONG

The Company has concluded a supplementary
agreement (“Supplementary Agreement”) on the
trademark license agreement with the parent
company, Shandong Xinhua Group on October
27, 2014. The Agreement has a valid period from
January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. According
to the Supplementary Agreement, the Company’s
royalty fee of the trademark “Xinhua” is changed
to RMB10 million and other provisions of the
trademark license agreement remain unchanged.

XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  IUERHERERBERAT
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- RS RERRARR(Z XI.

(Z) MBRR(E)

8.

—E-REFER

Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)

() Related Transactions (Continued)
HhzE5 () 8. Other transactions (Continued)
2 M (2)  Rendering of labor service
o)yt ARXSAE XEREH +tFEEHm
Content of Related- Amount of Amount of
Name of Related Party party Transaction Current Year Previous Year
LTS RIEEIE) BR AR RIS 71,801.71 88,523.03
DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals Service labor
(Zibo) Co. Ltd.
Q) BALH - EE R (3)  Purchase of land, houses and equipment
#
o)yt ABZHAE TESH tFEEHE
Content of Related- Amount of Amount of

Name of Related Party

party Transaction Current Year

Previous Year

LSRR B AR EE AR
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.

HBELH BE - &FE
Purchase of land, houses
and equipment

26,220,000.00
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+-. AR ATRERERZR (& Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
(Z) AREBEASTM () Remunerations for related administrators
1. EF -EFHFH 1.  Remunerations for directors and supervisors
(1) XFEEGEE - E (1) The remunerations for directors and supervisors
EAFEN T in the current year are as follows: the data of the

following table are to be provided by the Company:

BE. I&R RcEEFIT
Exnd RS EH® &t
Emoluments
of directors Contribution
and Salary and to retirement
%4 Name supervisors subsidies  benefit plan Total
EE Director
HITEE Executive Director
R Zhang Daiming 648,000.00 29,904.00 677,904.00
HEF Du Deping 647,000.00 29,904.00 676,904.00
HRITEE Non-executive Director
G2k Ren Fulong 627,000.00 29,904.00 656,904.00
Rl Xu Lie 500,000.00 20,904.00  529,904.00
i RN Zhao Bin
BUHHTEE  Independent Non-
executive Director
PR e Chen Zhongji 70,000.00 70,000.00
e Du Guanhua 70,000.00 70,000.00
23R Li Wenming 70,000.00 70,000.00
a1 1§ Yu Xiong
Ex Supervisor
TRE Li Tianzhong 500,000.00 29,904.00 529,904.00
Bz Tao Zhichao 170,000.00 29,904.00 199,904.00
FTHIF Hu Yanhua 73,000.00 13,164.00 86,164.00
b i Wang Jianping 30,000.00 30,000.00
=& AIE Zhang Yueshun 30,000.00 30,000.00
Bt Total 210,000.00 3,225,000.00 192,588.00 3,417,588.00

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  IURHEZERERHBEIRD T 241
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1.

—E-REFER

EF EFEFME)
(1) AFRELEF - &

FEayFT - (&)

AEEEETEZHIE
W 201543 A 20
AgfEREREAR
RIEIENTTESR
fiZ + R201543 F20
AZEALEE -
EREW TR T
BWUNTESE

fi o

AEEERED IS
S 20158 A10
AESIT AR R
ARFEEWE R
2015410 A 27 H 5k
B B = AR
BT -
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Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)

() Remunerations for related administrators (Continued)

1. Remunerations for directors and supervisors
(Continued)

(1)

The remunerations for directors and supervisors
in the current year are as follows: the data of the
following table are to be provided by the Company:
(Continued)

Changes to the directors of current year:
Mr. Yu Xiong resigned from the post of independent
non-executive director of the Company on October
27, 2015; Mr. Li Wenming and Mr. Du Guanhua
were appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on March 20, 2015.

Changes to the supervisors of current year: Mr.
Wang Jianping was appointed to the post of the
supervisor of the Company on August 10, 2015 :
Mr. Zhang Yueshun resigned from the post of the
supervisor of the Company on October 27, 2015.
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t—. WBSRERREXS(Z

() AREBRARTFHZ)

1.

Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
() Remunerations for related administrators (Continued)
EF EEHME) 1. Remunerations for directors and supervisors
(Continued)
2 LFEEMEE - E (2)  The remunerations of directors and supervisors in
ERIEFINI T - the previous year are as follows:
EE TER RRER
EZHe hak SHEMR Bt
Emoluments
of directors Contribution
and Salary and  to retirement
e Name supervisors subsidies benefit plan Total
EE Director
WITES Executive Director
R Zhang Daiming 532,700.00 27,156.00 559,856.00
HEF Du Deping 584,800.00 27,156.00 611,956.00
iz LyNE Zhao Songguo 114,500.00 6,789.00 121,289.00
HRITEE Non-executive Director
Rl Xu Lie 457,800.00 27,156.00  484,956.00
O Zhao Bin
(EiaE Ren Fulong 565,900.00 27,156.00 593,056.00
BUHTEE  Independent Non-
executive Director
KRER Zhu Baoquan 70,000.00 70,000.00
B Kuang Zhijie 11,666.00 11,666.00
BHER Bai Huiliang - - - -
PRIPEL Chen Zhongji 40,831.00 40,831.00
g1 I Yu Xiong - - - -
28 Liu Hongwei - - - -
Es Supervisor
=R Li Tianzhong 430,400.00 27,156.00 457,556.00
BEE Hu Yanhua 161,794.00 19,092.00 180,886.00
b5 Tao Zhichao 30,000.00 30,000.00
wKAE Zhang Yueshun 30,000.00 30,000.00
A&t Total 122,497.00  2,907,894.00 161,661.00  3,192,052.00
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  IURHFERERHERLQ T
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- AR REREZSR(Z) Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
(2) AHEBEASHME) ()  Remunerations for related administrators (Continued)
1. EF EFFHEME) 1. Remunerations for directors and supervisors
(Continued)

2 LFEEMEE - E (2)  The remunerations of directors and supervisors in
ERIEFINI T - the previous year are as follows:
FEEEFEYE Changes to the directors of the previous year: Mr.
S 20144 A4 Kuang Zhijie resigned from the post of independent
H > R E S = non-executive director of the Company on
KRB ITEER March 5, 2014; Mr. Bai Huiliang resigned from
% 201453 A5H the post of independent non-executive director
B EGEAEREAR of the Company on March 18,2014; Mr. Zhu
RIBIEMITESRSR Baoquan resigned from the post of independent
% 201493 A 18 non-executive director of the Company on
HREEREERER December 22,2014; Mr. Chen Zhongji was
NEBMIERITES appointed as independent non-executive director
BERS © R20144F12 A of the Company on May 30, 2014; Mr. Yu Xiong
WARERIERFE was appointed as independent non-executive
ARNBVEILIERITE director of the Company on May 30, 2014; Mr.
EB o R20144F5 Liu Hongwei was appointed as independent
H 308 BRif &k s A 1 non-executive director of the Company on March
EmARRVEIEH 18, 2014 and resigned from this post on December
TEER 12014 22,2014,

F12A228 e L4

WA BB I

PITEEHG - 24k

B ER20145 3 A

18 A Ean AR FE

SFEMITESBL

2014412 A 22 H

BT -

REFRERREE There is no amount of money paid or payable to
ENBERAEEEMRE the directors for urge to join the Company, and
AEERE o E The Company does not pay to the directors at the
NTEENHES time of joining the Company. There is no amount
HoUARESBEREE of money paid or payable to the directors and
EEYBMIEEAR outgoing directors as compensation for losing the
KERABREBAK post of director or other administrator.
BRAIEFHHAISK

E B ABBA M

B 2 sk T At AP

FIRIESRE o

A RHERAR AR The Company has determined the remuneration
FTHERESIESEE amount for the directors, supervisors and senior
EREENTMNEE administrators according to the Company’s
WHEFENHME remuneration management regulations, which shall
BEitE - be subject to the approval by the Remuneration

Committee of the Board.
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- RS RERRERZR(Z) XI.

Relationship with Related Parties and

Transactions (Continued)

(Z) AHETBABHFMZ) ()
2 FHEESHMEIAZAT :

RE - ARRHHMALS
BRHE=a(LF mOR)E
= HemA(LEF : —R)
RBEF A LHOFBMT :

Remunerations for related administrators (Continued)

Top five highest paid employees:

In current year, the five highest paid individuals
include three (four in the previous year) directors, the
remuneration of two of which are as follows:

*ELH TEEH
Amount of Amount of
I5H Iterm Current Year Previous Year
T&E KA Salary and subsidies 1,377,104.00 457,800.00
RNBAIFHE MK Contribution to retirement
benefit plan 59,808.00 27,156.00
CEl Total 1,436,912.00 484,956.00
AEBBRESEAS (SE None of the Group’s key administrators (including
)b Y TEE015EE directors) received his or her remuneration exceeding
M20144E E H BB 1@ E I HKD1 million, or gave up any remuneration in the year
1008 7T Sl 2 EfaI B & ) 2015 and 2014.
R -
BE I A T8 B IR The number of highest paid person is classified by the
RIEFELI TR GRAE) remuneration group (by the persons):
EF S
)| Item Current year Previous Year
TEEE1008 T HKDO-1 million 5 5
A&t Total 5 5

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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- AR ARERREZS (& Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
(M) RABkSERERE () Balance of transactions with related parties
1. EEHRWSEREE 1.  Balance of transactions with related parties of
assets
ExXeH FNeE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
IREEE AR (R RE#E R
Book Provision for Book Provision for
WBA(ER) Related Party (ltem) balance bad debt balance bad debt
FEAR R Account receivables
WEMETBRD Shandong Xinhua Industry
BRAF & Trade Co., Ltd. 1,150,088.04  1,150,088.04  1,150,088.04  1,150,088.04
EZREEBRAT Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. 5,487,611.49
EEANRER AR Perrigo Company 7,366,224.31 5,123,797 .46
Pl FH S RE DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals
CHE)BRAF (Zibo) Co. Ltd. 49,080.00 95,610.00
WRATES T Shandong Xinhua Wanbo
BRAE Chemical & Industrial Co., Ltd. 33,530.00
&t Total 14,053,003.84  1,150,088.04  6,403,025.50 1,150,088.04
RfHE Prepayments
WWREEEFCLTR  Shandong Hualu Hengsheng
BRAF Chemical Limited Liability Company  1,188,339.17 377,046.70
&t Total 1,188,339.17 377,046.70
H At e Other receivables
WRFETERS Shandong Xinhua Industry
BRAF & Trade Co., Ltd. 8,293.36 8,293.36
WRATESET Shandong Xinhua Wanbo
BRAF Chemical & Industrial Co., Ltd. 11,323,8756.56  11,323,875.56
LTS R DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals
() BRRF (Zibo) Co. Ltd. 286,693.79
&t Total 294,987.15 11,332,168.92 11,323,875.56
246 —E-REFHK | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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+-. AR ATRERERZR (& Xl. Relationship with Related Parties and
Transactions (Continued)
(M) BABAEREREZ) () Balance of transactions with related parties (Continued)
2. EEERG R (2) Balance of transactions with related parties of
liabilities
FReH FesE
)y kg Name of Related Party Ending Amount Beginning Amount
FEHRRR Accounts payable
IR FrESEET Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical
BRAF & Industrial Co., Ltd. 6,306,145.19 1,999,613.91
A b7 T S B DSM Sinochem Pharmaceuticals
CHIB)BRAR (Zibo) Co. Ltd. 147.34 4,358,018.43
ast Total 6,306,292.53 6,357,632.34
—ENE R E M Other non-current liabilities due
FERBEE within one year
EREREEBRAR] Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. 498,500,000.00 199,400,000.00
REER Long-term loans
ERIEREEFRAT Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. 100,000,000.00  497,000,000.00

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  IURHFERERHERLQ T 247
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1. RBEER Xll. Contingencies

1 RARFREBRHHBTARE 1.  Contingent liabilities formed by the pending litigation
1) 2011F1 818 AR A+ 1) On January 1, 2011, the subsidiary of the Company,

NAEIBE N R HERERE Medical Trading Company and Nanjing Huadong
BERETAT(ATERE Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
FERBEE)E] TRBEE the Huadong Pharmaceutical) signed the “Dealership
R SEIZES ) - 20114 Agreement on Mailuoning Injection”. On October 26,
10A26H  BE N AIER 2011, Medical Trading Company performed the payment
B RATEARITHREERR liability in the form of bank acceptance bill in accordance
BT T RER - R with the contract, Huadong Pharmaceutical received the
Eem P BENTEENR bank acceptance bill endorsed by the Medical Trading
TERHEZR N EHEEEL Company and then gave such endorsement to Nanjing
AREERDERARER Jinling Pharmaceutical Factory of Nanjing Jinling Co., Ltd.
SRERIERE (AT EERER (hereinafter referred to as Nanjing Jinling Pharmaceutical
BRERIBERR) Factory).
20119128318 » iR On December 31, 2011, the prior endorser of the above
TAGEZMMFEEZ AL bank acceptance bill, Jinan Jinbaisheng Steel Sales Co.,
HeaRHMEHEERAT Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Baisheng Steel) filed to
(AT RS 73 & e Sl ) iy a1 the Dongqu People’s Court of Panzhihua City, Sichuan
BRI REAREH Province for reporting the loss of bill and for the public
BHAERITHBARE exhortation. On March 12, 2012, Dongqu People’s Court
& 20123 A 12H - I of Panzhihua City declared the bank acceptance bill is
BEEETRRARERE invalid, and then Baisheng Steel discounted the bill and
& PRI TR R R R made a payment.
BE1& B Bk A R SR TR
EARIR AT o
20126F7H » EREEPE On July 2012, Huadong Pharmaceutical filed a sales
BEERMUHKEE N RIER contract dispute lawsuit against the Medical Trading
EERmZREAERER Company to the People’s Court of Xuanwu District,
EXBENRBAXNE Nanjing City, requesting the Medical Trading Company
AR 6008 7T 1 48 FE T to pay the RMB6 million and accrued interest. On August
B 2 201248H  EE Q7] 2012, the bank deposits worth RMB6.5 million of Medical
B ERTT 17 SRAE BT R 45650 Trading Company were frozen. On December 31, 2012,
®IT ° 2012F12 4311 - the People’s Court of Xuanwu District, Nanjing City made
MRmZREAREREL a civil judgment (2012) XSCZ No. 00948, requesting the
(2012) 2 75 #1157 85 00948 5% Medical Trading Company to make a payment of RMB6
EEHR - BEREZATFRA million and accrued interest. On November 15, 2013, the
EFEET N ERC00E T People’s Court of Xuanwu District issued the notice of
KAEER S - 2013F 11 A execution (2013) XZZ No. 01685, transferring RMB6.6
158 BRTZREAR million from Medical Trading Company.

AR A ITIEANE (2013)
ZHFFE016855F - WEZ
NAIEIEBBOE T °
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AR RWEHEEEERER
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BEER 1T TE 2R 2 IR
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EFRIEN  EREHNE
REeEBEMmAESBESR
AR EERETRREA
RIRPTERSRIER] - FERRAEH
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It FEBRAGHNEELL
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BRI RIEEA  ANAT]
8 alt g E E 6608 A
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MRIF1E Lilisk A BB -
Z2015F12HA318 » &&
EEEMEAREEE -

Xll. Contingencies (Continued)

1. Contingent liabilities formed by the pending litigation
(Continued)

1)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

(Continued)

On December 6, 2013, Medical Trading Company
counter-filed sued to the People’s Court of Hualyi
District, Jinan City against Baisheng Steel, Huadong
Pharmaceutical and Nanjing Jinling Pharmaceutical
Factory, requesting the above three companies to return
RMB6.6 million and the accrued interest. On December
12, 2013, the bank deposits worth RMB7 million of
Huadong Pharmaceutical were frozen. On May 14,
2015, the freezing period of the above RMB7 million was
extended till May 14, 2016.

The Company, after consulting with legal advisor,
believed that the bank acceptance bill paid by the
Medical Trading Company to Huadong Pharmaceutical
is a flawless and legal bill, without the unpaid
payments. Huadong Pharmaceutical or Nanjing Jinling
Pharmaceutical Factory has no right to declare to Dongqu
People’s Court of Panzhihua City, Sichuan Province
during the public exhortation and failed to appeal to this
court after the judgment. It is the negligence of Huadong
Pharmaceutical or Nanjing Jinling Pharmaceutical Factory
in exercising its legitimate right that causes the invalidity
of the bank acceptance bill. Therefore, the dispute over
the bill is relatively clear, and it is quite possible that the
Company will win the case. The Company has withdrawn
50% of the abovementioned transferred RMB6.6 million
as a provision for bad debts.

Up to December 31, 2015, the Group has no other
significant contingencies except for the abovementioned
contingencies.

LR ERER D ER QA
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SEAEFRLIRE
WMEEZEH O IAR

International Cooperation Center Project
Hutian Industrialization Center

57,948,410.55

1. REFER XIll. Commitments
1. BT EENERBITHXE 1. Large denominated contracts concluded or ready for
BREEHE performance
cRA&HE E R4 ]
HE®E Item Contract Amount Unpaid Amount
9 F ] [ B &) PTARIE Aspirin Leveling and Filling Project
P 1A B of Hutian Park 38,858,288.14 1,713,946.65
I B 2 %2 T5 3 RPE Analginum Serious Product Project
T#IEE of Hutian Park 73,395,661.53 3,351,915.59
HHEEREFEEE Hutian Park Warehousing Project 4,990,058.68 110,637.28
HAER AR TIRER Pentaammine Project of Hutian Park 42,230,366.94  8,991,550.50
HHE RE R B EE 5 Modern chemical medicine
EEHL industrialization center in Hutian
Industrial Park 19,308,647.54 381,446.79
I E R E R A ETIR Quiality Inspection Office Building Project
of Hutian Park 11,562,207.02 292,346.95

30,158,202.55

Project (Phase ) 16,206,439.11 6,559,439.11
TFKBRIZIEE Sewage Treatment Project 59,032,360.01 18,131,800.01
HRLZHEIEA Isopropyl Antide Project 20,620,193.04 583,794.40
&%t Total 344,152,632.56 70,275,079.83

BREELEREFRE. > I
20155 12A31H ' FEEEH M

EXREER-

—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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for the Group as of December 31, 2015, except for the

commitments above.
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tH AERRRA®FER
1. EENFARER

XIV. Events after balance sheet date

1. Significant non-adjustment events

BB i Y15
HE AT BERRHTER gnnEE
Impact on Financial Reasons for
Position and Business Failure of
Item Contents Results Estimation
BEMES ARERIIELAFHBTITTIHBBAT700ERARE QARIANXBIIEARAEITRE
BEETT F - RAEARABITARKREEREN2015  FHE T #86,700.00 & ik
FI2A0HERRAGREZRBAULILRE (BXE)  FEEREH
ARBNBEEEELEEEREZEGRE -1 THiHB62,712.0087T ©
201643 H24 R BAANARAENEESTE KRETEAR K258
2016F B _RERRERABZHERNRBIELF HNEERTERNERTR
BT ZEREERT B THBB6, 7008 RARE  BHESD -
2 o BEENRRIFRREITRER KA
ESLREARBNHNAEEEEBEEZE
BRE  ROGEARBETREFRHAES
HERSEEERELZERNRERTAIER °
Issuance of The Company intends to issue 77 million The number of the shares to
shares and A-shares through non-public offering. The be issued by the Company
bonds non-public offering scheme for A-shares of through non-public

F—HETH
BEtE =R

Employee
stock
ownership
plan of
Phase |

the Company was adopted by the General
Meeting of Shareholders on December 29,
2015, and approved by State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission
of Shandong Provincial Government. This
non-public offering of shares is subject to the
approval of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission for implementation.

RAFE B THEGE(ER)(BBIFAFRE

TIRZHR)HEEDRN2015F12 A29H £
MR A REIBIE ©

The proposal for the employee stock

ownership plan of Phase | (Draft) (boy means
of subscription of non-public offering) was
adopted by the resolution of General Meeting
of Shareholders on December 29, 2015.

offering does not 77 million
(including the number),
with the total fund raised
not exceeding RMB720.72
million, which, after
deduction of the issuance
expenses, will be all used
for repaying the bank loans
and supplementing the
current funds.

£ MATHRH BRI

BEMOHEHEARE
1.007C * RIABFHES
THB@3504.8 8 15 - ¥
EECRBEIRBARYE
3504.88 7T °

When the first phase of the

employee stock ownership
plan was formulated,
the corresponding
value of each share
was RMB1.00, the total
number of the shares
did not exceed 35.048
million at the setting, and
the corresponding total
amount of the funds did
not exceed RMB35.048
million.
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Notes to Financial Statements
1N SESEEHEREEZ XIV. Events after balance sheet date (Continued)
2, FEASEWER 2. Profit distribution
HH AE
Item Contents
O BH T E ST B1ORRERSBRAARBO2T(EH) - HEHECFIE9,146,256.607T °
Profit or dividend The cash dividends of RMBO.2 (including tax) shall be distributed per 10 shares, and
to be distributed a total of RMB9,146,256.60 has been distributed as profits.
KREEETERRH 2016F3A30H F REIEFEHFHBB TROGFEFNBEIRFER) MEBRES
AR A 10K ER S RFIARKEO.2TT(EH) + HEHHELHF)EI,146,256.607T : Lt F )
DETERHARERRFRRAGHE
The released profit or On March 27, 2016, the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company adopted
dividend after deliberation the 2015 Annual Profit Distribution Plan, which decides to distribute the cash
and approval dividends of RMBO0.2 (including tax) per 10 shares to all shareholders, or totally

RMB9,146,256.60. The above profit distribution plan has not been approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

3. BEE-HIEEERERARBER 3. The Company does not have any major event after the balance
WERIEI AR FEEME KX sheet date to be disclosed other than the above disclosed
BEAMBRAKSEE- events after the balance sheet date.

+1. HthEEEIF XV. Other major matters

1. 8 1. Lease

(1) HEBEABESE(HEHE (1)  Fixed assets acquired under financing lease (Lessee
BREA) of financing lease)
IARER - REBEGBEFHEA At the end of current year, the Group's financial leasing of
FEEPMFRAMN T fixed assets of the Group is detailed in the Note VI 17.
N 11

2 REBEAFEHETHE (2) Minimum lease payment (Lessee of financing lease)
AEAN)

EXEH FUIEE

FesEEH Remaining lease term Ending Amount Beginning Amount
—F R Within 1 year 32,444,786.58
—E4F 1-2 years 34,212,474.81
—E=F 2-3 years 17,799,015.34
et Total 84,456,276.73
HZE2015F12H8310 + & As of December 31, 2015, the balance of the financing
EEAERMEBAREA expenses not recognized by the Group is RMB6,324,996.78.

6,324,996.787T °
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2.

SEER
(1) HEDBOIRE KIEET
HFE

REBANRABAER B
BENR - ARG HIE AR
IBHEERENE - L&D
AR ERREE WS D &AL
BORMER - BEDERE
RN B RIS i 2 N BIER T
MM DD+ (1) 3% AR A BE
DREE R BERBTELN
A BERR  (QAKEE
I8 JE B H0TE HARPE X AR B
DHELERR - PORERE
REER  FHEHEE : Q)
NG OB EE &)
BTSN ~ AR PRRANIR
EREFAWEER - W0
R A Z AL LD AR
AU &R - L ERE
—EEH - BRI A R —

EgEDE -

XV. Other major matters (Continued)

2.

Segment information

(1)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

Determination basis and accounting policy of
reportable segments

The Group determines the operating segments on the
basis of internal organization structure, management
requirements and internal reporting system and adopts
these operating segments as the basis for reporting
segments for disclosure purposes. The operating
segment refers to the constituent part within the Group,
which simultaneously satisfies the following conditions:
(1) this part can generate income and incur expenses in
daily activities; (2) the senior management of the Group
can evaluate the operating results of this part at regular
intervals so as to decide to allocate resources to it and
evaluate its performance; (3) the Company can access
the relevant accounting information of this part such as
financial position, operating results and cash flow, etc. If
two or more operating units share the similar economic
characteristics and meet certain conditions, they can be
merged into a business unit.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3. HthEERR(Z XV. Other major matters (Continued)
2. SBERE) 2.  Segment information (Continued)
(1) HREDEPoREEMKIFHT (1) Determination basis and accounting policy of
BF(E) reportable segments (Continued)
2015F EHRE S Reporting Unit of 2015
BRETEER
HE L2 REE g RtER *AEER it &t
Chemical Chemicals and Offset
ltem bulkdrugs  Preparations other products Others Amount Total
ELON
Operating revenue 1,484,989,808.85 2,022,418,874.06 888,639,990.21 (799,015,463.33) 3,597,033,209.79

CERE LSO TN
Include: Revenue from external

customers 1,477,861,463.23 1,658,770,753.62 460,400,992.94 3,597,033,209.79
PHBEIZHA
Inter-segment transaction income 7,128,345.62  363,648,120.44  428,238,997.27 (799,015,463.33)
Operating cost 1,203,533,238.97 1,587,989,297.37  760,538,440.19 (791,674,981.73) 2,760,385,994.80
A
Cost offsetting amount 67,261,110.85 358,913,567.52  365,500,303.36 (791,674,981.73)
HHER
Expenses for the period 262,414,751.84  396,932,244.71  65,545,701.98 (270,000.00) 724,622,698.53
EXNEER(BRER)
Total profit of the unit (total loss) 100,538,851.17  (8,471,054.97)  92,067,796.20
AERE
Total assets 2,546,855,821.65 1,251,514,251.37 939,108,588.24 1,057,854,880.25 (1,303,211,104.88)4,492,122,436.63
REEE
Totdl liabilities 801,101,097.56  633,740,794.81 519,724,852.31 1,366,774,729.91 (813,301,356.36) 2,508,040,118.23
BARR
Supplemental information
EHERNRERL
Recognized impairment losses
in the current period (2,935,276.25)  (3,631,296.79)  2,971,969.16 (1,104,426.63)  (4,699,030.51)
WENREER
Depreciation and amortization
eXpenses 122,309,077.00  48,627,840.56  57,244,566.21 (105,955.28)  228,075,528.49
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RIEH

notes
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Eik=H

+1. RthEEEIR(E)

2.

SEER(E) 2. Segment information (Continued)
(1) HEPBHREKIFHE 7 (1) Determination basis and accounting policy of
BEE) reportable segments (Continued)
2014 ERESE Reporting Unit of 2014
BEOEER
EH BRHE ] EtEmD AEIEE iz Bt
Chemical Chemicals and Offset

[tem bulk drugs Preparations  other products Others Amount Total
ELON
Operating revenue 1,626,660,924.48 1,897,647,610.91  960,009,893.21 (794,568,657.67) 3,589,749,770.93
i EHFMA
Include: Revenue from external

customers 1,622,839,775.76 1,584,464,958.86  482,445,036.31 3,589,749,770.93
BEHEELION
Inter-segment transaction income 3,821,148.72  313,182,652.06  477,564,856.90 (794,568,657.67)
Operating cost 1,289,508,088.58 1,489,484,763.47  856,782,143.24 (780,846,807.99) 2,854,928,187.30
A
Cost offsetting amount 44,899,799.90  307,020,643.91  428,926,364.18 (780,846,807.99)
HEEA
Expenses for the period 240,905,514.09  364,725,166.85  49,676,777.24 655,307,458.18
2T RO (BEER)
Total profit of the unit (total loss) 7333754822  (18,778,271.28)  54,659,276.99
BELE
Total assets 2,461,159,577.83 1,109,166,242.53 989,119,188.94  942,501,142.23 (1,256,886,437.76) 4,245,149,713.77

XV. Other major matters (Continued)

REEE

Total liabilities

WRES

Supplemental information

EHRRNAERE

Recognized impairment losses
in the current period

HENEHER

Depreciation and amortization
expenses

547,729,036.43

1,995,613.46

108,619,574.26

512,929,301.87

(1,186,803.06)

43,326,789.33

608,825,766.28 1,435,735,698.72  (771,939,077.21) 2,333,280,726.09

11,185,523.21

48,781,381.61

204,016.33  12,258,349.94

79,351.39  200,807,096.59

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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Notes to Financial Statements

+1. RthEERIR(Z

XV. Other major matters (Continued)

2. SBERE) 2.  Segment information (Continued)
(1) EEPBHIRTEMKELS (1) Determination basis and accounting policy of
BF(E) reportable segments (Continued)

AREE AR AR EAEZRMN
Holg KON EE B A HBEE
PAR AR SR B B A B E At
BRAbRAREREER
EREFTISTHEE 2 INFER
PEELBIIROT

The total foreign trade income of the Group in China
and other countries and regions, as well as the total
non-current assets other than the financial assets and
deferred income tax assets in China and other countries
and regions are listed below:

FFERER

Amount Incurred

LFEBARE

Amount Incurred

HINZZHKA Foreign Transaction Income in Current Year in Previous Year
HEI(EES) China (including Hong Kong) 2,563,087,209.79  2,328,289,430.79
E Americas 480,760,000.00 587,257,000.00
BOM Europe 240,234,000.00 370,142,000.00
HAth Others 312,952,000.00 304,061,340.14
a5t Total 3,597,033,209.79  3,589,749,770.93
FEXEH FesE
ERBIERR Total non-current assets Ending Amount Beginning Amount
FEI(EEE) China (including Hong Kong) 2,613,456,918.88  2,534,666,165.84
EI Americas 1,153,653.82 1,607,498.81
E Europe 23,825.02
EAth Others
At Total 2,614,634,397.72  2,536,273,664.65
3. #H=2015%F12A31H ' AEEE 3.  There are no other material matters for the Group to disclose by
FERENAEMEESEIE - December 31, 2015.
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. BARMBHREETEREEE XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

1.

financial statements

BE%ES 1. Monetary funds
EXRBRE FUREE
I5H Item Ending Balance Beginning Balance
Re Cash 43,456.93 94,722.11
RITHER Bank deposit 191,896,978.80  155,591,505.30
HEHibhg&Ee Other monetary funds 100,000,000.00  28,484,181.06
&t Total 291,940,435.73 184,170,408.47
Heh : FRESEINFIEEEE  Including: total amount deposited abroad
7 FREMEEESHFEIETA Note: The balance of other monetary funds at the end of the year, RMB100
FHIRBERR million, is structural deposits.
i S 2. Bill receivables
FEXREHE FEeRE
RiEES Category Ending Amount Beginning Amount
IRITHRAIESR Bank acceptance bill 156,650,541.70  74,126,830.83
RIEAHESR Commercial acceptance bill 207,228.40 2,698,500.00
CEll Total 156,857,770.10  76,825,330.83
(1) FEFERAREHFGBKTE (1) Notes receivable which have been pledged at the
end of the year
HZE2015F 12 A31HAR As of December 31, 2015, there is notes receivable
AEERRERNERSE which has been used for the pledge in the Company.
1= o
2 FEFXEHEESEAEZEAR (2) Notes receivable which have been endorsed and
& H Rk EIRn B R i within the period of date of balance sheet at the
end of the year
FEXRLL FARRERIE
HEZeE R
Ending End.
derecognized non-derecognized
I5H Item amount amount
RITHEH [EZR Bank acceptance bill 112,081,830.57
3) #HZE2015F12A831HAR (3) As of December 31, 2015, the Company has no
B4 BRI i R B EA AR TT outstanding bank acceptance bill which has been
G EE o discounted.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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3.  MEMRR

(1)

—E-REFER

ERRR A

HE

[tem

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

financial statements (Continued)
3. Account receivables

(1) Classification of account receivables

FXREH
Ending Amount
4. AR (R
Provision for ~ Proportion of
Proportion bad debt Provision
% %

&8 FHRELH

Amount

BREBEAT ERRRRER
HO FEUR R X

Account receivables with significant individual

amount and drawn bad debt provision on

single item

BHRATRERERN IR

Account receivables with provisions for bad

debt drawn according to combination

i

Account age combination

B SHRERES

Combination of relationship with
transaction object

FHHRRIEEEEE

Combination of special account nature

BE/E

Combination subtotal

BRI BN BEIRREREEN
JREM B R

Account receivables with insignificant
individual amount but drawn bad debt
provision on single item

&t
Total

145,672,085.05 33.56 2,061,703.61 1.42

288,392,258.29 66.44

434,064,343.34 100.00 2,061,703.61 0.47

434,064,343.34 100.00 2,061,703.61 -
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th. BAFIMBERREEREHEE

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(4& financial statements (Continued)

1=

3. MERR(E) 3.

(1) EBKEFRSEE)

THH

[tem

Account receivables (Continued)

(1) Classification of account receivables (Continued)

i

Amount

Proportion

FNLE
Beginning Amount
] BIRER
Provision for Proportion
bad debt of Provision
% %

AR B

BIEeREAT EEHRERERN
JEUTFR R

Account receivables with significant
individual amount and drawn bad debt
provision on single item

A THEERE BN YRR

Account receivables with provisions
for bad debt drawn according to
combination

fRikila

Account age combination

B FHRMERES

Combination of relationship with
transaction object

HHRHIBLEAE

Combination of special account nature

Ha/E

Combination subtotal

BHECHER T ENEBEHREREED
S

Account receivables with insignificant individual
amount but drawn bad debt provision on
single item

At

Total

1567,224,446.12

181,313,269.99

338,637,716.11

46.44  2,135,692.85 1.36

53.56 -

100  2,135,692.85 0.63

338,537,716.11

100.00 2,135,692.85 -

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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(1) ERERADEE)

1) MEF BEREST
SR IR IR B A E

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

3. Account receivables (Continued)
(1) Classification of account receivables (Continued)

1) In combination, accounts receivable with provision
for bad debt drawn by aging analysis

X80 EeE

Ending Amount Beginning Amount
bt HIEER HRLH & FRER R
Provision for Drawing Provision for Drawing
L] ltem Amount bad debt proportion Amount bad debt proportion
(%) (%)
1M Within 1 year 144,275,407.00 721,377.04 0.5 155551,062.48 777,756.31 05
1-20F 1-2 years 23,325.41 4,665.08 20 394,058.88 78811.78 20
2-3E 2-3 years 94,207.88 56,536.73 60 - - 60
SEPE Over 3 years 121912476 1,279,124.76 100 127912476 1,279,124.76 100
At Total 145,672,085.05  2,061,703.61 - 16720444612 2,135,692.85 -

2 HMETF RAARMY
JEEIRBIRE I E
YRk

BEffE

2) In combination, accounts receivable with provision
for bad debts drawn by other method

IREER#R RS E
Book Amount of
Organization Name balance Bad Debts

HRXFHREEES

Combination of relationship with

transaction object 288,392,258.29

(2) FEEFHE - BE(EKKE)
BB ER TR

REHRERERSH -

73,980.24 7T : AN UL B
SRR EE S -

—E—-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

(20 Bad debt provisions provided, reversed or
recovered in current year

The provision for bad debts in current year is
RMB-73,989.24; and there is no accounts receivable
which has been recovered and reversed.
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3. FEMARSR(E)

&)

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

3. Account receivables (Continued)

R TR ENIERERET (3) Account receivables with top five ending balance
ABRIBIIRR TS collected as per the borrowers
1R 0
BEfRiE &8 RES i 4.} FXRxE
Ending Balance
of Bad Debt
Organization Name Amount Account Age Proportion Provision
(%)
WIRHEREZHBRAF 261,011,614.43 14ELAR 60.13 -
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Within 1 year
Trade Co., Ltd.
Mitsubishi Corporation 14,979,780.32 14N 3.45 74,898.90
Mitsubishi Corporation Within 1 year
FTERIEE () AR AR 10,766,224.00 14ELATN 2.48 -
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Within 1 year
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical 9,967,172.75 1FLAR 2.30 -
(USA) Inc. Within 1 year
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(USA) Inc.
PEPSI COLA SALES & 9,300,133.92 1F AR 214 46,500.67
DISTRIBUTION Within 1 year
PEPSI COLA SALES &
DISTRIBUTION
&t
Total 306,024,925.42 70.50 121,399.57
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(4&) financial statements (Continued)
4. FMEARIE 4.  Prepayments
(1) FfIsBERE (1) Age of prepayment
FXe8 FeE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
&# :4:] i sl
HH Item Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
% %
1R Within 1 year 9,187,119.90 100.00  6,760,692.25 99.89
1-26 1-2 years 1,844.56 0.03
2-3% 2-3 years 5,220.80 0.08
ast Total 9,187,119.90 100.00  6,767,757.61 100.00
(2) BB SEEENEFE (2) Prepayments with top five ending balance collected
B A ZaTB 1S 1E:R as per the prepaid party
BEueiE &8 RES it RBEHEFEERA
Reasons for
Non-
Organization Name Amount Account Age Proportion settlement
(%)
BRI EZER D ERAA] 1,742,031.58 15LAR 18.96 EARIE
Anhui Wanbei Pharmaceutical Within 1 year Goods not
Co., Ltd. arrived
IR & B TRHBRAF] 1,441,071.86 14URA 15.69 ERF(E
Shandong Jinling Chemical Within 1 year Goods not
Co., Ltd. arrived
BEALREENARDEEHEEAR 1,256,904.30 1R 13.68 HAREE
Zibo Power Supply Company of Within 1 year Goods not
State Grid Shandong Electric arrived
Power Company
MEESEBRERRAR 1,080,000.00 1FLAR 11.76  ERIE
Henan Jinghua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Within 1 year Goods not
arrived
R 831,630.02 1FHR 9.05 TEFNREE
Certification charge Within 1 year Prepaid
certification
charge
AN
=a
Total 6,351,637.76 69.14
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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5.

financial statements (Continued)
H g 5.  Other receivables
(1) RUEFSHE (1)  Classification of other receivables
Fxe#
Ending Amount
&f +4:] RRE DR FHRLLE
Provision for Proportion of
HH Item Amount Proportion bad debt Provision
% %
BEESBEAVEE  Other receivables with significant
SHEEEREENE  individual amount and bad debt
fi el provision drawn on single item
RAATHEZRER  Other receivables for which bad debt
HOE MBI provision is collectively assessed on
a combination basis
REBS Account age combination 16,074,883.82 3.87 8,803,123.04 54,76
BT ZHEERBS  Combination of relationship with
transaction object 388,868,209.87 93.54
BHIUEERSA  Combination of special account nature  10,763,746.43 2.59
Ba et Combination subtotal 415,706,840.12 100.00 8,803,123.04 212
BEESBHIEAE  Other receivables with insignificant
FEHUEEEE  individual amount but drawn bad
ME YR debt provision on single item
Ch Total 415,706,840.12 100.00 8,803,123.04 -
N8
Beginning Amount
g j5al] EHREE FHERELA
Provision for Proportion of
R ltem Amount Proportion bad debt Provision
% %
FEESEEALER  Other receivables with significant
HEEREBHE  indvidual amount and bad debt
i R provision drawn on single item
RBAIRERER  Other recelvables for which bad debt
M E YR provision is collectively assessed on
a combination basis
Fikds Account age combination 27,764,134.40 5.78 19,219,911.12 69.23
HISHEMEASE  Combination of relationship with
transaction object 443,865,415.90 92.36
BHIVEIEEHAA  Combination of special account nature  8,975,488.60 1.86
FiEY Combination subtotal 480,605,038.90 10000 19,219911.12 4.00
FBELEHTEARE  Other receivables with insignificant
BEHREREE  individual amount but drawn bad
HE f FEISR debt provision on single item
CH Total 480,605,038.90 10000 19,219911.12 -
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  [LERFIERERHERAT
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5. RttEWl®R(E)

(1)

—E-REFER

RUERHFPT(E)

1) MEF BEREST
SR IR AR R

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)
(1) Classification of other receivables (Continued)

1) In combination, other receivables of provisions
for bad debt are drawn by aging analysis:

b JEHL -
EXeH ENeE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount

& R FHEL £ SRR FHRLAI
Provision for Drawing Provision for Drawing
HE ltem Amount bad debt proportion Amount bad debt proportion
(%) (%)
1ELA Within 1 year 6,072,198.42 30,360.99 05  6,821,340.98 34,106.70 05
126 1-2 years 450,585.40 90,117.08 20 2,175,193.19 435,038.64 20
2-3F 2-3 years 2,173,637.57  1,304,182.54 60 42,086.14 25,251.68 60
SERE Over 3 years 7,378,462.43  7,378,462.43 100 18,725,514.09  18,725,514.09 100
ait Total 16,074,883.82  8,803,123.04 - 07,764,13440  19,219,911.12 -

2 HMETF  RAAMT

2) In combination, accounts receivable with provision

/fif}ifff@?—g 165 £ JEE for bad debts drawn by other method!:
iR -
IREEREE WIRSE
Amount of
HegiE Name of Combination Book balance Bad Debts
M ZERARES Combination of relationship with 388,868,209.87

FRRIEEMAS

transaction object
Combination of special account nature  10,763,746.43

Total 399,631,956.30
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th. BAFIMBERREEREHEE
(&)

5. RttEWl®R(E)
(2) FEEFE  BE(EKKE)

WIREmE R
AEFREREHE2E
-10,416,788.08 7t : 7N F
U [2) =k 82 [o] 52 BR YE 15 & B8
11,323,875.567T,

Hp ARG iR DI
EEEEEN

BEr&E

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) Conditions about provision of bad debts of accruing
proportion and turning (or withdrawal) in the
current year

In current year, the provided bad debt provision is
RMB-10,416,788.08 and the recovered or reversed bad
debt provision is RMB11,3283,875.56.

In which, bad debt provisions recovered or reversed in
the current year include:

FEHMO
(U E) &8
Amount Recovered
or Reversed in

BERIER
Efma kiR

FEHMO
(U E) REA
Reasons for Reversals

Recognition Basis for (Recovery) in Current

Organization Name Current Year Bad Debt Provision Year
IWERMEEBILLITERAF 11,323,875.56 FREK + 2R WEIEEES

Shandong Xinhua Wanbo
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

&5t
Total

Long period, total amount

withdrawing

11,323,875.56

Recover monetary funds

3) RUEKZFZEFBFELST

(3) Conditions of other payment receivable classified

wR by the nature
RENE EXRIREEREH FHRRMEEREE
Ending Book Beginning Book

Nature Balance Balance
HIERES - #e Guarantee deposit and security

deposit 898,619.06
ik Petty cash 510,153.22 543,650.64
FEU R RN H RN Tax receivable and to be

deducted 6,559,656.49 11,813,562.33
BEHERES Finance lease deposit 8,000,000.00
TEHEE - FRE Advance payment of R & D

fees, consulting fees 9,996.60 3,838,883.72
TAfHRE R Advance investment funds 2,400,000.00 2,400,000.00
RERE RR Inter office accounts 388,868,209.87 443,865,415.90
At Others 9,358,823.94 17,244,907.25
&3t Total 415,706,840.12 480,605,038.90

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |
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RIEPEGERES | Prep

th. BAFIMBERREEREHEE
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5. RttEWl®R(E)

4)

—E-REFER

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

R T ENIERERET (4) Conditions about other payment receivable of top
AEZH MBS - five balance as at the end of year collected by the
borrowers:
AR
Efi&i &8 B K6l FEXRE HEIAE
Proportion Ending Balance
Account of the Total of Bad Debt Nature or
Organization Name Amount Age Amount Provision Contents
%
HEREE(SK)BRAA 299,776,990.04 3FAL 72.11 PEBE R
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Over 3 year Inter office accounts
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.
HECHE)EEBRAT 57,951,667.93 %ML 13.94 REEZN
Xinhua (Zibo) Real Estate Co., Ltd. Over 3 years Inter office accounts
IRMEREESERAA 10,401,227.88  3FLAR 2.50 PERER
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Within 3 years Inter office accounts
Trade Co., Ltd.
BN EREEERERAR 8,641595.49 3P 2.08 MEER
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Over 3 years Inter office accounts
Co., Ltd.
MERE(5%) AR 6,411,961.33 3Fhi L 1.54 PEER
Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Qver 3 years Inter office accounts
Co., Ltd.
At
Total 383,183,442.67 9217
| 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(&
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6. TFHREFER

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

financial statements (Continued)

6. Provisions for inventory falling price

(1 HRESHE (1) Classifications of inventories
FXeH ENeE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount
IR BEER FERE REsE BEER REEE
Impairment Impairment
HH ltem Book balance provision Book value  Book balance provision Book value
AR} Raw materials 32,782,051.14  1,387,01567  31,34503547 4387755599 105340685  42,824,149.14
EERm Products in process ~ 84,537,838.83 84,537,838.83  81,127,751.57 81,127,751.57
EFAM Goods in stock 164,910,668.38 5,623,352.39  159,287,315.99  168,548,475.68 1,473,467.95  167,075,007.73
EEZ%ER  Low-value
consumables 10,725,161.91 10,725,161.91  10,932,040.36 10,932,040.36
FEGEME  Specially approved
reserved supplies  1,839,696.49 1,839,696.49 1,839,696.49 1,839,696.49
ait Total 294,745416.75  7,010,368.06  287,735,048.69 306,325,520.00  2,526,874.80  303,798,645.29
2) HwFEHXEER (2) Provision for inventory falling price
HRD
Decrease in
Current Period
el FHHRE Eftig L] FREH
Classification of Withdrawal in Other
FRER inventories Beginning Amount  Current Period transfer-out Write-off  Ending Amount
[RAFE Raw materials 1,053,406.85 1,138,935.84 805,327.02 1,387,015.67
Products in process
EfFEm Goods in stock 147346795  5511,92597 1,362,04153  5,623,352.39
=H Total 2,626,874.80 6,650,861.81 2,167,368.55 7,010,368.06

RS REIR RS
RAKIEI 0 - BE &
HREEHER10 ] -

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |

For method of provisions for decline in value of
inventories, see the note “IV. Important Accounting Policy
and Accounting Estimate 10. Inventory”.
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Notes to Financial Statements

+X. BAFIMBEHREIEEHAEE  XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
(4& financial statements (Continued)

Ol

6. THRRBREMZ) 6.

Provisions for inventory falling price (Continued)

268

(3 FREEEME

(3) Withdrawing of provisions for inventory falling price

HE EEVSRSEHRBEKE EEPEORERERE

Recognition Methods for Reasons for Withdrawing or
Item Net Realizable Value Write-off in Current Year
R E Tast AT IFEERRE KR EAEHE

Raw materials

Expected net realizable value is
lower than the book cost

Produced and sold

EFREm TEE A E I FERPBRE AR BEIHE
Goods in stock Expected net realizable value is Sold
lower than the book cost
HthiREEE 7.  Other current assets
RE FXewnm FesE 1E
Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount Nature

TREEMEN

Enterprise income tax prepayment
RIS E T T

Input taxes of VAT to be deducted
FENHEITER

Private placement fee

&5t
Total

3,210,977.83
13,037,934.22

132,075.46

TERBEMEN

Enterprise income tax prepayment
R HETER

Input taxes under deduction
SRR

Prepaid attorney fee

16,380,987.51

—E—-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to Financial Statements

15 BATFIMBEEREEFBFE  XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(4&) financial statements (Continued)
8. FHRERS 8. Long-term equity investments
(1) RERERESH (1) Classifications of long-term equity investment
FXBE ERE
Ending Balance Beginning Balance
RS WEER RERE RESE HEER REEE
Provision for Provision for
HE ltem Book balance impairment Book value  Book balance impairment Book value

HFRFKRE  Investmentin

subsidiaries 468,244,841.06 468,244,841.06  468,244,841.06 468,244,841.06
At Total 468,244,841.06 468,244,841.06  468,244,841.06 468,244,841.06
2) HFLERE (2) Investment to subsidiaries
)] FEEN FERD EXBE FEHRBEER REERTABE
Balance of
Impairment  Provision for
Provision Impairment
Beginning Increase in Decrease in Withdrawnin  as at the end
RIREEG Invested Entity Balance  CurrentYear  Current Year Ending Balance  Current Year of year
WEHZEBES  Shandong Xinhua Phamaceutical
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ Trade Co., Ltd. 48,582,509.23 48,582,509.23
JBHEABEE  ZboXinhua Drug Store Chain
HARAA Co., Ltd. 2,158,900.00 2,158,900.00
FELE(SE)E  Xinhua Phamaceutical
BAR (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. 230,712,368.00 230,712,368.00
HELE(FP)E  Xihua Phamaceutical (Gaom)
BT Co,, Ltd. 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
WEHEEELT  Chemical Industry Design
FErARAH Co, Ltd 3,037,700.00 3037,700.00
SBME-BTIS  ZboXinhua- Perigo
BEERERL  Phamaceutical Company

Al Limited 24,877,370.60 24,877,370.60
WEHERE(E  Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical

MERAF (Europe) Co., Ltd. 4,59,798.56 4,596,798.56
HE(ERIERE

BAF Xinhua (Zbo) Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
WEIE -2 EY  Zibo Xinhua-Zhongd

SEREMLE  Phamaceutioal Co, Lid. 9,008,21250 900821250
WRHEHEES  Shandong Xinhua Pharmacevtical

OAREARA Importand Bxport Co, Ltd. 5,500677.49 5,500677.49
WRHEHE(Z  Shandong Xinhua Pharmacevtical

B)AREMAA  (USA Co.Lid 9,370,650.00 9,370,650.00
WWRHZHSTE  Shandong Xinhua Mechanical &

BRAT Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd. ~ 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00

Shandong Zibo Xincat

WREEHNEZE  Phamaceutioal

BRAF Company Limited 67,399,654.68 67,399,654.68
At Total 468,244,841.06 468,244,841.06

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED | IISRHTERZER B ERA S 269
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9. EEHRE
(1) BEEEEHHFE

XVL.

Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

9. Fixed assets

(1) List of fixed assets

REREY BRRE ERRfi TTRHEREM &t
Electronic
Premises and Machinery  Transportation Equipment
HH ltem Buildings equipment Equipment and Others Total
— FERE I. Original book value
1. EfEE 1. Beginning balance 842,837,200.22 142271862410  17,336,048.19  43,092,125.81 2,325,984,097.32
2. KERNEE 2. Increased amount in
current year 102,375,336.26  163,028,673.05 1,726,941.37  6,491,380.87  273,622,331.55
(1) BE (1) Purchase 10,985,795.61  14,821,691.06 1,726,941.37 412873254  31,663,160.58
(Q EEIE (2) Transferred from
LN construction in
progress 91,380,540.65  148,206,981.99 2,362,648.33  241,959,170.97
3 AERI2E 3. Decreased amount in
current year 18,637,773.24  23,821,903.24 232,657.00 739,060.93  43,431,403.41
() BESRE (1) Disposal or scrapping ~ 1,560,011.01  23,821,903.24 232,657.00 739,060.93  26,353,641.18
(2 EAREHE (2) Transfer-in investment
EiE property 17,077,762.23 17,077,762.23
4 FRBE 4. Ending balance 926,574,862.24 156192530391  18,830,33256  48,844,436.75 2,556,175,025.46
ZBinE II. Accumulated depreciation
1. FIBE 1. Beginning balance 25618394791  641,585395.15  14,149,407.08  27,042,627.28  938,961,377.42
2. NEEMEE 2. Increased amount in
current year 38,166,631.48  100,869,176.19 1,192,160.09 4,607,540.82  144,835,508.58
(1) 32 (1) Provision 38,166,631.48  100,869,176.19  1,192,160.09  4,607,540.82  144,835,508.58
3 AERI 2 3. Decreased amount in
current year 11,964,171.24  18,478,983.83 216,841.84 71324796 31,373,244.87
() BELRE (1) Disposal or scrapping ~~ 1,430,749.59  18,478,983.83 216,841.84 71324796  20,839,823.22
(2 BAREHR (2) Transfer-in investment
EiE property 10,533,421.65 10,533,421.65
4 FRBE 4. Ending balance 282,386,408.15 72397558751  15,124,72533  30,936,920.14 1,052,423,641.13
= REER III. Provision for impairment
W, REEE IV. Book value
1. EXERER 1. Ending book value 644,188,454.09  837,949,806.40 3,705,607.23  17,907,616.61 1,503,751,384.33
2. FREERE 2. Beginning book value ~ 586,653,351.31  781,133,22895  3,186,641.11  16,049,498.53 1,387,022,719.90
\$ FHER 75;’ B i The amount of depreciation and amortization for fixed
BENMEMBHAR assets recognized as losses is RMB144,835,508.58
144,835,508.58 7T ( L &

% 1 125,130,891.677T) °

—E—-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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9.

BE&E(E)

(2 ARAFEEZEWHLRN
BRI R H(10-
BOF )FEEL

B EERRENETEE-

(4) BBHBEHABHANBEES
b

REXR BEBEEA
58,465,028.25 7t ( [R (B A&
102,914,782.46 7T ) Y & &
BEZRBMERA - ABOT

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

9. Fixed assets (Continued)

(20 The Company’s housing buildings are located in the
territory of China and are in the medium-term (10-50
years).

(8 There is no temporary idle fixed asset.

(4) Fixed assets acquired by finance lease

At the end of the year, the fixed assets with the
book value of RMB58,465,028.25 (original value of
RMB102,914,782.46) are obtained financing leasing. The
specific analysis is as follows:

W
EERE RitnE i (B IFEEE
Original Accumulated Provision for
X End. Book Value Depreciation impairment Book value
R Machinery equipment 102,914,782.46  44,449,754.21 - 58,465,028.25
B Total 102,914,782.46 44,449,754.21 - 58,465,028.25
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT
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9. ERE(E)
(5) FHEERBZHWEERE

A

F R E B E
FHEEEREDRES
392,715,749.66 ¢ (FF 9] &
%5 1 362,242,732.2070) K
BE EE#EFEZEEIHE
oo B El R EYIRER AR
BEERFET  AREE
EREEERER TR
LI REIE S TR VIN/NC]
HZEEEEEYMIEE
A SARFEMEREELY
TERERTE  TES
RETEERELEE BT
QELEFERBIMEA -

i

7

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

9. Fixed assets (Continued)

®)

Fixed assets whose title certificates are not
obtained yet

By the end of the year, the fixed assets include
the property with the original book value of
RMB392,715,749.66 (beginning amount:
RMB362,242,732.20), and the property title certificate
is under application. As the above property title is under
the legal procedure, the Company’s director believed
that the title transfer will not have any legal obstacles or
influence the normal use of these houses and buildings
by the Company. The operation of the Company will
not constitute a significant impact. It is not necessary to
withdraw the provision for impairment of fixed assets and
will not produce significant additional costs.

HHE FEEE FHREEEEREA
Item Book value Reason
ZOBEE 208,846,248.15 IE{EHiFE
House property of No. 2 factory In progress
—PBEE 56,962,618.68 IEZE#iIE
House property of No. 1 factory In progress
R E 5 AE 83,929,721.55 IEfEIEA
House property in the headquarters park In progress
BIREREEE 1,855,900.14 1EFE#EH
House property in the parent factory park In progress
a5t 351,594,488.52

Total

272 —E-REFHK | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT



B FER R M EERRAS BIEERA N - LA RBETTHIR | Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated

B i5 B & 5 22 Al 4R ‘ Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accou g Standards

Notes to Financial Statements

+X BAFIMBHREETERBEE  XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(4&) financial statements (Continued)
10. #ERIE 10. Projects under construction
(1) HTEEIEB#HF (1) Detail list of projects under construction
FXeR ENeE
Ending Amount Beginning Amount -
EEsE BEER FERE SEHE AEEE BEFE
Provision for Provision for
| ltem Book balance impairment ~ Net Book Value Book balance impairment  Net Book Value

BREZEEA Moden medicine

e center for
international
cooperation 33,557,952.02 33,557,952.02 2,304,070.00 2,304,070.00

BREERR( Modem chemical
SEEEZL  medioine

Hily industrialization
center in Hutian
Industrial Park 15,828,477.70 15,828,477.70 2,395,708.88 2,395,708.88

BIRE2000T/ New 2000T/d
AFKEEZ  sewage treatment

GMEEE  system project
of the Ministry of
Environmental
Protection 10,569,018.42 10,569,018.42
102 ERFER New product
HEER renovation project of
No. 102 workshop 8,438,824.62 8,438,824.62
HHEERET Warehousing project
i2 in Hutian Industrial
Park 10,164.07 10,164.07 3,974,004.80 3,974,004.80
HHREEI5KVE 35KV power
BI1E transformation
project in Hutian
Indlustrial Park 7,238.53 7,238.53 2,507,238.63 2,507,238.63
HREETKE Sewage treatment
BER project in Hutian
Indlustrial Park 1,009,378.29 1,009,378.29 13,325,907.66 13,325,907.66
7%%11’%% Salicyiic Acid
JEH Equipment
Adjustment Project 205,332.69 205,332.69
EISE-ME  Innovation Park-annex
buiding 71,514.98 151498 408756157 4,087,361.57
B ZTMPCPC Barbital TMPCPC
EntiE product relocation 3,959,211.89 3,959,211.89
REZJERE Pentaammine
EIR series product
warehousing project 11,331.33 11,331.33 3,377,862.36 3,377,862.36

HMEERZT Analgin series product
ZHIERIR  projectin Hutian
Indlustrial Park 199,222.17 199,222.17 8,863,885.51 8,863,885.51
HEEERFT Utities project in
2 Hutian Industrial

Park 2,815,678.67 2,815,678.67
it Others 39,204,063.22 39,204,063.22  103,161,717.66 108,161,717.66
At Total 100,112,518.04 109,112,518.04  150,772,847.53 150,772,847.53
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(& financial statements (Continued)
10. EBIR(E) 10. Projects under construction (Continued)

(1) HEEZBIEBMEZE) (1) Detail list of projects under construction (Continued)
FRERIERBIRAK = By the end of year, the investment in projects under
EHNAFEHRERE Y construction largely decreased, because the projects
MRARRYEMIRED of analgin and pentammine series products in Hutian
TEEAFEAMRAE - TEEAE Industrial Park had reached the predetermined
EEEM serviceable conditions in current year and pre-transferred

into fixed assets.

2) EBAUZEBEIEBEHEEIER (2) Changes in major projects under construction

FERD
Decrease in Current Year
ENeE XERM BLAEEEE Kty 3 33
Increase in Current Transferred to Other
IR4R Name of Project Beginning Amount Year Fixed Assets Decreases Ending Amount
BREEER  Modem medicine center for
AfERD international cooperation 2,304,070.00 31,253,882.02 33,557,952.02
HEEEER  Modem chemical medicine
EBE industrialization center in
EEAL  HutinIndustrial Park 2,395,708.88 13,432,768.82 15,828477.70
SBIRE2000T/ New 2000T/d sewage
R kAR treatment system project of
ZUFEER  the Ministry of Environmental
Protection 10,569,018.42 10,569,018.42
102ZBHER  New product renovation
MiEER project of No. 102 workshop 8,438,824.62 8,438,824.62
HERE Warehousing project in Hutian
RETR Industrial Park 3,974,004.80 136,159.27 4,100,000.00 10,164.07
HMER3SKY 35KV power transformation
BETR project in Hutian Indlustrial
Park 2,507,238.63 2,500,000.00 7,238.53
HEEETK  Sewage treatment project in
REEH Hutian Industrial Park 13,325,907.66 8,453,470.63 20,770,000.00 1,009,378.29
KigEkE  Saloylic Acid Equipment
FEEE Adjustment Project 15,905,332.69 15,700,000.00 205,332.69
EIFE M Innovation Park-annex building 4,087,561.57 2,062,647.99 5,609,708.58 458,986.00 71,514.98
B ZTMPCPC  Barbital TMPCPG product
EnfE relocation 3,959,211.89 797,392.00 4,756,603.98
AEAZJIER  Pentaammine series product
REIR warehousing project 3,377,862.36 4,893,468.97 8,260,000.00 11,331.33
HEERZHE  Analgin series product project
ZIIESTE  inHutian Industrial Park 8,863,885.51 58,784,331.01 67,360,000.00 88,994.35 199,222.17
HEEE Utllties project in Hutian
NEIR Indlustrial Park 2,815,678.67 8,804,321.33 11,620,000.00
Eh) Others 108,161,717.66 40,297,237.29 101,282,858.41 2,972,033.32 39,204,063.22
ait Total 150,772,847.53 203,818,855.15 241,959,170.97 3,520,013.67 109,112,518.04
—Z-HFFHR | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to Financial Statements

+X BATIMERETERHAE®  XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(& financial statements (Continued)
10. EBIR(ZE) 10. Projects under construction (Continued)
2) EXEBIEEHEEER (20 Changes in major projects under construction
(%) (Continued)
TREAE HRERL HP:FER FEFR
hE:3-4 REH RELA THEE il (44 BXltE  BEXE
Including:
Proportion Accumulated Amountof  Capitalization
of Project Amount of Capitalized Rate of
Investmentin  Engineering Capitalized Interestin Interestin  Financial
Name of Project Budget Budget Schedule Interest Current Year Current Year  Resource
(%) (%) (%)
RREZRRAERD 400,000,000.00 839 3000
Modern medicing center for Self-provided
international cooperation
HRERRASEEERCPD  50,000,000.00 3166 3000 B8
Modem chermical medicine Self-provided

industrialization center in
Hutian Indlustrial Park

FRA000T/BTKEERR 1500000000 7046 7000 2
HERR
New 2000T/d sewage treatment Seff-provided

system project of the Ministry of
Environmental Protection

ERFERSEEE 9,880,000.00 841 9.0 B8

New product renovation project of Self-provided
No. 102 workshop

HEERRRTRE 9,700,000.00 10320 9.0 B4

Warehousing project in Hutian Seff-provided
Indlustrial Park

HREESKVESTE 10,000,000.00 93,07 93.00 85

35KV power transformation project Seff-provided
in Hutian Industrial Park

HAERTKEER 63,000,000.00 107.28 9.00 B8

Sewage treatment project Self-provided
in Hutian Industrial Park

RS EREER 14,768,000.00 107.70 95.00 85

Salicylic Acid Equipment Self-provided
Adjustment Project

BlE- g 16,160,000.00 10850 100.00 B4

Innovation Park-annex building Sef-provided

EHZTMPCPCERE 55,000,000.00 98.28 100.00

Barbital TMPGPC product relocation Self-provided

LeZJERREIR 15,000,000.00 9.88 90.00 B8

Pentaammine series product Self-provided
warehousing project

HEEEZ NI Z5ERTE 377,220,000.00 115,81 10000 14,263,468.87 he

Analgin series product project in External financing
Hutian Indlustrial Park

HEEEARTE 57,000,000.00 89.70 96.00 8%

Utilties project in Hutian Seff-provided
Indlustrial Park

aif 1,092,728,000.00 14,243,468.87

Total
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10. EBIR(E)

(2 EXtBEIBEFREEDER
(%)

Him X B A EEM
WA R 2 TAZRA -

(@) AREEETRFRIEFHE
WERT - RetREETRE
AR -
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

10. Projects under construction (Continued)

@

(&

Changes in major projects under construction
(Continued)

Other decrease is mainly because the income of pilot
production products has been used to offset the costs of
projects under construction.

There is no impairment of the in-progress works of the
Company at the end of the year, without withdrawing the
provision for impairment of the in-progress works.
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(&) financial statements (Continued)
11. \|EEE 11. Intangible assets
(1) EEEE (1) Intangible assets
TiERE RS FETHE H &it
Land Software  Non-patented
EH ltem Use Right License Technology Others Total
- FERE . Original book value
1. EHRE 1. Beginning balance 255,068,207.11  4,501,04031  6,550,000.00 266,209,346.42
2. Increased amount in
2. AEEMEE current year 3,629,080.00 206,133.33 3,835,213.33
(1) BE (1) Purchase 3,629,080.00 206,133.33 3,835,213.33
(2) mEbHE (2) Internal R&D
3. Decreased amount in
3 AEROEE current year 12,759,950.13 12,759,950.13
) EE (1) Disposal 9,312,386.50 9,312,386.50
(2 Eft (2) Others 3,447,563.63 3,447 563.63
4, FREE 4. Ending balance 245937,42698  4,797,18264  6,550,000.00 257,284,609.62
Z Rt Il. Accumulated amortization
1. Ef4E 1. Beginning balance 4342790326 3,768,747.67  6,550,000.00 53,746,650.93
2. Increased amount in
2. AEEMEE current year 5,571,359.82 334,888.62 5,906,248.44
(1) 1€ (1) Provision 5,571,359.82 334,888.62 5,906,248.44
3. Decreased amount in
3 AERSEE current year 2,659,041.88 2,659,041.88
) EE (1) Disposal 2,100,710.09 2,100,710.09
(2 Efts (2) Others 558,331.79 558,331.79
4 FREB 4. Ending balance 46,340221.20 410363629  6,550,000.00 56,993,857.49
= REER III. Provision for impairment
W REEE IV. Book value
1. EXREEE 1. Ending book value 199,597,205.78 693,546.35 200,290,752.13
2. EYREEE 2 Begimingbookvalue  211,640,393.85 822,301.64 212,462,695.49

AEERBEZNEN
BEMWEMBESEA
5,906,248.44 7t ( + F &
% 1 5,224,910.647T) °

The amount of depreciation and amortization for
intangible assets recognized as profits or losses
is RMB5,906,248.44 (amount of previous year:
RMB5,224,910.64) in the current year.

AR E L AREH AR
BRI R HF(10-
50%F )PEER ©

The Company’s land use right is located in the territory of
China and is in the medium term (10-50 years).
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(& financial statements (Continued)
12. ERAIE® 12. Short-term loans
EXe#H FHesE
ERAER Category Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
ERER Credit loans 330,000,000.00 288,567,151.39
IRFETER Guaranteed loans 80,000,000.00
&5 Total 330,000,000.00 368,567,151.39
RIS - %20155125 318 - Interest rate: On December 31, 2015, the interest rate range of
52EE FA T K (R R 5 4.34%- short-term borrowing is 4.34%-6%.
6% °
13. BEfEE 13. Notes payable
EXe#H FHeEE
FEER Category Ending Amount Beginning Amount
RITHRAIESR Bank acceptance bill 396,348,469.78 61,672,136.81
PFEAAIESR Commercial acceptance bill 2,698,500.00
At Total 396,348,469.78 64,370,636.81
14. BEfIRR 14. Accounts payable
(1) EffRFEEEDHE (1)  Classification of accounts payable by nature
FERe#H FesE
HHE Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
B Payment 294,195,098.12 263,881,015.66
&% Total 294,195,098.12 263,881,015.66
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14.

15.

16.

TR (Z)

(2) H2015%12H31H » Eft

financial statements (Continued)

14.

Accounts payable (Continued)

(20 The age analysis of accounts payable as of

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

IRERBIRRE DT - December 31, 2015 is as follows:
FEREH FUeT
HE ltem Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
1FAR Within 1 year 284,015,401.18 259,134,862.43
124 1-2 years 7,161,925.66 1,905,505.81
2-3%F 2-3 years 815,511.84 873,156.74
3FLAE Over 3 years 2,202,259.44 1,967,490.68
&5t Total 294,195,098.12 263,881,015.66
IR 15. Accounts received in advance
(1) FREFFEZEEDT (1)  Classification of advance payment by nature
EXREEBT FURTE
HHE Item Ending Balance  Beginning Balance
TEUSHE Sales income received in advance 24,739,309.12 51,782,196.36
a5t Total 24,739,309.12 51,782,196.36
ERNE 16. Tax payable
FEXREH FUET
neE Tax Category Ending Amount Beginning Amount
HER VAT (3,150,972.14)
EED Business tax 157,540.43 146,770.64
FEXZF1SHL Income tax payable 500,108.44
T R City maintenance and construction tax 536,131.34 317,955.76
BAFTSH Personal income tax 285,404.47 310,348.71
BEN House property tax 861,159.88 2,071,081.84
THIE AR Land use tax 2,916,255.60 2,423,784.10
ENFERR Stamp tax 206,526.50 280,635.90
A BM N Educational surcharges 383,092.72 227,145.34
A KFIERES Local Water Conservancy Fund 76,458.48 45,388.23
At Total 5,422,569.42 3,172,246.82
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED |  (LER#HERERGER AT

279



B FER R M EERRAS BIEERA N - LA RBETTHIR | Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated

B i5 B & 5 22 Al 4R ‘ Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accou g Standards

Notes to Financial Statements

+X BAFIMBHREETERBEE  XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
(4& financial statements (Continued)

1=

17. BEfRFIR 17.

Interests payable

FXem
Ending Amount

FHEHE

HA Item Beginning Amount

DEMN B RIHEARR
REIERA B

Interest of long-term loans for which interest
to be paid in installment, principal to be

280

paid when due 725,743.89 587,252.16
2 EIfE R R B Interest payable of short-term loan 480,597.22
At Total 1,206,341.11 587,252.16
18. HFEFRR 18. Other payables
(1) RHUEfIZFEEESHE (1)  Classification of other payables by nature
£ 3k ] FHeEE
HH Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
e TIZRRBR Engineering equipment amount

—E-REFH | 2015 ANNUAL REPORT

Skl ika

payable
Guarantee deposit and security

82,066,185.33

134,779,827.79

deposit 3,758,410.11 189,610.11
F}HE  EBNHAE  Power expense, transport costs and

consulting fees 3,679,258.66 2,483,142.05
RIS Inter office accounts 10,341,675.95 12,068,689.52
A Others 10,126,051.14 6,050,104.00
Azt Total 109,971,581.19 155,561,373.47
Hep  1FENE Including: more than 1 year 26,878,727.94 22,222,041.53
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(&

Ol

18.

19.

HtFER(E)

financial statements (Continued)

18.

(2) KRREES—FHEERME

&k
Hu&i

Organization Name

Other payables

(2) Other payables with significant amount and an age

of over 1 year

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

FXBRE FEIUBEENHEFERA
Reasons for Not Repaying and
Ending Balance Carrying Forward

R FEE R &5 (v TR AR AR

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Chemical
Industry Design Co., Ltd.

TLEREM AN R AR AT

Jiangsu Leke Thermal Technology Co., Ltd.

AT A REEE TR B PR A A

Zhejiang Zhongneng Light Industry and
Machinery Co., Ltd.

BN ETRERRAR AR

Suzhou Chengi Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd.

7,999,098.23  [AEREK

Inter office account

2,220,550.00 I RERE

Engineering quality guarantee deposit

1,133,845.40 I1R2HEFS

Engineering quality guarantee deposit

1,115,100.00 IRHRE

Engineering quality guarantee deposit

LU BRK B2 17 A W B8 SRR 7 1,000,000.00 R#EFS

SDU-ZB Biomedical R&D Institute Security deposit

AFr 13,469,493.63

Total
BRENEE 19. Net current assets

EXEH FHIELRE

HE Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
MENEE Current Assets 1,602,945,569.86 1,369,349,293.24
BoomEaE Less: current liabilities 1,782,285,108.49 1,358,530,047.99
FRENEE Net current assets (179,339,538.63) 10,819,245.25
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(& financial statements (Continued)
20. WHEERRDAMR 20. Total assets less current liabilities
FXem FYIEH
HA Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
BEMG Total assets 4,163,695,830.25  3,878,028,289.92

Dot J=Kr Less: current liabilities 1,782,285,108.49 1,358,530,047.99
wEERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 2,381,410,721.76 2,519,498,241.93
21. fEH 21. Debit/Credit
RAREEERLIT : Summary of debits/credits of the Company:
e 34 ] FHeHE
HE Item Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
ZHRIRTTiE 3K Bank short-term loan 330,000,000.00 368,567,151.39
RAEIER Long-term loans 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
—F R EIEHY Non-current liabilities due within one year
E =N 585,544,786.58 408,907,645.38
REPFERR Long-term payables 52,011,490.15
At Total 1,345,756,276.73  1,413,423,341.77
(1) BRI Debit/credit analysis
% 38 ] FUeT
HH ltem Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
IRITRBR Bank loan
—AE—FNEER — To be repaid within one year 883,100,000.00 777,474,796.77
—BE—FUABEER — To be repaid after one year 378,200,000.00 635,948,545.00
2\ Subtotal 1,261,300,000.00 1,413,423,341.77
HinfEFR(BETHEF) Other loans (finance leasing payment)
—BE—FAEE — To be repaid within one year 32,444,786.58
—BIE—FLAREE - To be repaid after one year 52,011,490.15
NEE Subtotal 84,456,276.73 -
&t Total 1,345,756,276.73 1,413,423,341.77
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(4&) financial statements (Continued)
21. fEHE) 21. Debit/Credit
(2) EEFEASHT (2) Debit/credit due date analysis
RITRE Bank loan:
FEXEH FUeR
HE Item Ending Amount Beginning Amount
REN(EES—FLAA  Repaid as required or within one year 883,100,000.00 777 474,796.77
—E4F 1-2 years 378,200,000.00 594,182,725.00
“ERF 2-5 years 41,765,820.00
a5t Total 1,261,300,000.00  1,413,423,341.77
HABER Other loans:
FEXREH FUeHE
HA ltem Ending Amount  Beginning Amount
HEREES—FLAA  Repaid as required or within one year 32,444,786.58
—E_fF 1-2 years 34,212,474.81
—ERF 2-5 years 17,799,015.34
ait Total 84,456,276.73 -
22. EBEWRA  -EERT 22. Operating revenues and costs
FEREH TEEES
Amount Incurred Amount Incurred
in Current Year in Previous Year
A B WA AR
15H ltem Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
FTEER Main operation 1,783,664,480.73  1,433,071,508.50  1,820,134,069.00  1,526,840,047.46
Hip K Other operation 46,256,644.75 44,476,167.34 44,888,934.52 47,768,391.04
At Total 1,829,921,125.48  1,477,547,675.84  1,865,023,003.52  1,574,608,438.50
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(& financial statements (Continued)
23. EBEEMRMM 23. Business taxes and surcharges
FHREL B TESH TFEEHE
Contribution Amount of Amount of
IgEH Item proportion Current Year Previous Year
== ) Business tax 5% 318,554.43 305,293.89
T MR AR City maintenance and
construction tax 7% 8,797,324.95 5,085,380.75
BEWM Educational surcharges 5% 6,283,803.53 3,632,414.78
7K TR ES  Local Water Conservancy
Fund 1% 1,256,760.69 726,482.97
a5t Total 16,656,443.60 9,749,572.39
24. HEEHR 24. Selling expenses
TESH rFEEHE
Amount of Amount of
IgH Item Current Year Previous Year
I& Wages 5,906,904.46 5,185,951.68
EHE Transport charges 18,329,529.74 16,299,815.68
i E Travel expense 1,961,434.13 1,982,967.36
Mi5FER Selling expense 2,842,894.22 2,787,250.41
MAE Office expenses 565,441.50 453,552.08
Hit Others 6,383,147.62 5,309,207.16
At Total 35,989,351.67 32,018,744.37
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25.

26.

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

financial statements (Continued)
EHER 25. Administrative expenses
XESH FFEE
Amount of Amount of
IgH Item Current Year Previous Year
e E A R&D cost 74,104,896.85 40,782,825.90
TERENE Wages and Welfare Expense 34,038,018.00 35,582,931.57
Gika Taxes 19,888,418.72 16,647,706.17
heEs Depreciation cost 11,820,218.04 11,306,052.96
HhahlE Other welfare expense 13,197,248.66 12,554,477.90
BEEE Warehouse expenses 4,743,947.00 3,898,040.32
EEERH Amortization of intangible assets 5,906,248.27 5,224,910.64
EBHEE Business entertainment expenses 2,970,452.40 2,818,280.71
WAE Office expenses 1,555,845.33 1,393,624.73
AIRERE Sewage charges 10,121,564.08 10,375,109.43
LETEE - Fit Annual listing fee, audit fee and BOD
fee 2,731,664.16 4,014,464.94
H Others 45,712,901.23 46,318,199.39
A5t Total 226,791,422.74 190,916,624.66
26. Financial expenses
HMHEEH
(1) Detail list
(1) HHEEREH
XELH +FEEHm
Amount of Amount of
I5H Item Current Year Previous Year
FEXZH Interest expenditure 75,202,341.40 73,781,271.74
B FLEMA Less: interest income 3,183,607.64 2,198,642.28
o ERER Add: exchange loss (15,939,903.68) (1,686,759.90)
m:FEBH Add: commission charge 4,799,937.95 3,514,889.45
BEHEER Finance lease expenses 2,300,107.40
A%t Total 63,178,875.43 73,410,759.01
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(& financial statements (Continued)
26. MBBAE) 26. Financial expenses (Continued)
2) FEZTHEH (2) Details of interest expenditure
TESH +FEEHm
Amount of Amount of
IEH Item Current Year Previous Year
IRITRR - BXFE Bank loans, overdraft interests 75,202,341.40 77,334,740.61

MEREBR Finance lease expenses 2,300,107.40
/NET Subtotal 77,502,448.80 77,334,740.61
A BAEF S Less: capitalized interests 3,553,468.87
At Total 77,502,448.80 73,781,271.74

B FIEKABH (3) Details of interest income

EESH FFEE
Amount of Amount of
I5H Item Current Year Previous Year

RITIF R BN

Interest income from bank

deposits 3,183,607.64 2,198,642.28
a5t Total 3,183,607.64 2,198,642.28

27. HEERERSX 27. Assets impairment loss
XESH +FEEHm
Amount of Amount of
IHH Item Current Year Previous Year
BERER Bad debt losses (10,490,777.32) 646,986.70
FEKERZX Inventory falling price loss 6,650,861.81 1,958,134.87
&5t Total (3,839,915.51) 2,605,121.57
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XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(& financial statements (Continued)
28. ¥ERKS 28. Investment income
(1) REKRFIE (1)  Income from investment
EESH +FEEHm
Amount of Amount of
EEREFRIHKIR Sources Current Year Previous Year

AR E MR IRE

Long-term equity investment

"B W= income calculated by equity
method 3,259,405.22
FEAHEESHEEBRM  Investment income from holding
BRE/MIEE R financial assets available for
sale 4,893,809.00 4,136,992.00
REJHEESHEEIRISH Investment income from
"B W= disposal of financial assets
available for sale 2,280,000.00
FRBIDL Dividend of subsidies 2,505,000.00 1,503,000.00
BEIENERK Incomes from purchase of
financing products 91,764.93 1,161,987.78
5l Total 7,490,573.93 12,341,385.00

(2) RFLEFHRWRERE
iz

HE

Item

(2) Long-term equity investment profit calculated by
cost method

REL EF
EREsRE
Reasons for Increase/
Decrease or Changes o
f the Current Year When

FERH tE2H

Amount of
Current Year

Amount of
Previous Year

Compared with
the Previous Year

I E - ANSREAREERR) 2,505,000.00 1,503,000.00 SATHEAN

Zibo Xinhua—Perrigo Pharmaceutical Increase in dividends
Company Limited

N 2,505,000.00 1,608,000.00

Total
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28. WAWB(E)

B HBLEEFHIRWRERE

i
HE

Item

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s
financial statements (Continued)

28. Investment income (Continued)

(3) Long-term equity investment profit calculated by

equity method

*ERHE

Amount of
Current Year

Amount of
Previous Year

tFEE AFLEFEREESHNRA

Reasons for Increase/
Decrease or Changes
of the Current Year When

Compared with the
Previous Year

WS ERTER AR A F

Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical

3,259,406.22

ARRAT2014F10 A B —# 4

TRESHHTER S
Merger of Xincat

Company Limited Pharmaceutical with the
Company under the same
controlling enterprise on
October 2014

29. FR3MEA 29. Income tax expenses
(1) FErifFiRER (1) Income tax expenses
*EEH FFeH
Amount of Amount of
IEH Item Current Year Previous Year
EHFTSTHER Current income tax expense 6,955,072.35 8,392,499.59
Hep o mp Including: China 6,955,072.35 8,392,499.59
RTEE %5t (D5 Overstatements
(understatements) from
previous years (1,453,103.18) (61,107.98)
RIEFTISTIE A Deferred income tax expense (1,139,478.52) (4,124,368.92)
&5t Total 4,362,490.65 4,207,022.69
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(&

20. FRf8MEBR(E)

(2) EFFEEMERERRE
B

HE

XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

financial statements (Continued)

29. Income tax expenses (Continued)

(2) Adjustment process between accounting profit and

income tax expense

Item

FFERH

Amount of
Current Year

+FEE®m
Amount of
Previous Year

RER]R AN BERE

BEEBABRGTER
PrigEi & M

AEARTHEMS AT E
R AR E

AEHENOKRA - BREM

Total profit of the parent
company in the current year

Income tax expense calculated
in accordance with legal/
applicable tax rate

Effect of income tax before
adjustment

Effect of non-assessable
income

Effect of cost, expense and loss

45,879,466.94

6,881,920.04
(1,453,103.18)

(1,109,821.35)

32,516,986.73

4,877,548.01
(61,107.98)

(1,334,909.58)

BRrTE nondeductible 43,495.14 841,686.88
RERERIELEFTSTHEER Deductible temporary difference
AIEANE R = Eey 8] or effect of deductible loss
EENE of unrecognized deferred
income assets in the current
year (116,194.64)
Fii5Ti & M Income tax expenses 4,362,490.65 4,207,022.69
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+X BAFIMERETERAE®  XVI.Notes to major items of parent company’s

(4& financial statements (Continued)
30. BAFIRERERAREH 30. Supplementary information to the cash flow statement of
parent company
p%:34 ] LESH
Amount of Amount of
15H Item Current Year Previous Year
1. BSHNEGSESEHHRLKE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows
from operation activities:
A Net Profit 41,516,976.29 28,309,964.04
m: AEREEE Add: Provision for impairment of assets (3,839,915.51) 2,605,121.57
EEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 149,237,182.60 129,373,205.34
BV EESH Amortization of intangible assets 5,906,248.44 5,224,910.64
RERTEE  EBVAENHM Loss from disposal of fixed assets,
REBEMBR(WEUl -8 intangible assets and other long-term
31) assets (gains to be listed with *-") (23,366,940.30) 60,148,113.23
ElE B ERERA(WEIA- 5% Losses on retirement of fixed assets (gains
531 to be listed with *-") 4,268,433.75 3,641,238.53
AnBEZ AR (K- 5% Profit or loss from changes in fair value
1871) (gains are indicated by “-")
BB A (E Al - B Financial expenses (gains to be listed with
| 70,831,078.00 72,094,511.84
BEBR (WAl BE5) Investment loss (gain to be listed with *-") (7,490,573.93) (12,341,385.00)
ERFBREERNR D (LM Decrease of deferred income tax assets
[-1E31) (increases to be listed with “-")
BIEFEHEREMEMORD N Increases of deferred income tax liabilities
[- J5E51) (decreases to be listed with *-") (1,139,478.52) (4,124,368.92)
FERRD (L ILAT- J1E5)) Decrease of inventory (increases to be
listed with “-") 9,412,734.79 (57,134,219.94)
I R R (A Decreases of operational receivables
[-J5E51) (increases to be listed with *-") (239,973,589.04) (32,952,686.50)
Mt ERIER R ORI Increases of operating payables
[-J5E51) (decreases to be listed with *-") 413,931,745.68 123,603,073.38
BETHELENRLREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 419,293,902.25 318,447,478.21
2. FERESKTHEKRREMN 2. Significant investing and financing
gEEH: activities not related to cash receipt and
payment:
BEREREAR Conversion of debt into capital
—ERERATERARE Convertible company bonds due within
one year
BERAETEE Fixed assets acquired under finance leases 84,456,276.73
3. BaRBeSEMBEHER 3. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
REmERGE Ending balance of cash 191,940,435.73 165,486,227.41
R REMETIRE Less: Beginning balance of cash 165,486,227.41 209,696,401.89
i BESEMNBARAE Add: Ending balance of cash equivalents
w R SEMOHNBE Less: Beginning balance of cash equivalents
BeRReSEMFLMNE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,454,208.32 (44,210,174.48)
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XVII. Approval of financial reports

The financial report is released after being approved by Board of
Directors of the Company on March 30, 2016.

fArEHE XVIil. Supplementary Information

1. FEEHEER 1. Non-recurring profit and loss statement
ERAPHEEFEEEEZES(A Based on provisions in Explanatory Announcement No. 1 on
HETEFNRAEEFER Information Disclosure for Companies Offering Their Securities
BEAEE 1R - FLFEER to the Public—Non-recurring Profit and Loss (2008) issued by
(2008))HIIRTE + AR FI2015F & the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the non-operating
LI RBEIT profit and loss for the Company in 2015 is listed below:
)| TELE RH

Amount of

Item Current Year Notes

ERBEERERR

Profits and losses from disposal of non-current assets

HMEE AL SR IE RSB BORE - AR

Tax return, reduction and exemption under occasional condition, approval
beyond the authority or without official document

T AE BB OB B

Government subsidy included in current profits and losses

AR HBEENEIEEROEWRNERERE

Capital occupation fee charged from non-financial enterprises and included in
current profits and losses

RRAQAFEBLEEBHEBNERERREEDI  HEXHNLREE -
RSGEeMEBBEEENAABEESER  URBEXFHEEREE X
St emaEMaH#EEeREERGNRE WA

In addition to the effective hedging related to normal businesses, losses and
profits from changes in fair value for holding of trading financial assets and
trading financial liabilities, and gains from dispose of trading financial assets,
trading financial liabilities, and salable financial assets

FEEETRERF N BB EEFHEE

Reversal for impairment provision of receivables subject to separate
impairment test

B 35 T8 2 SN Lt i FESMIRA RN 3

Other non-operating incomes or expenditures except the above items

it

Subtotal

ISiRERi=Z 5

Effect of income tax

LERRERT B (BiE)

Impact on minority interest income (after-tax)

At

Total

18,160,890.93

25,220,870.49

5,297,149.68

16,799,950.79

(17,719,942.59)
47,758,919.30
4,280,111.47

1,361,385.06

42,117,422.77
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+\. BREE(E) XVIll. Supplementary Information (Continued)

2. EHEEEFENELSPEEER 2. Reconciliation of rights and profits of shareholders
TRERESEFREOHHIE when Hong Kong accounting standards are converted to
Chinese accounting standards
(1) BE-—E—AFIFEFE (1)  Reconciliation of the profits ended 2015
BIETRR
Faa
H#RlEE HAER HE g
(Eil)(31) () HERlEE
Statements
of Hong Kong
Accounting Adjustment Statements
Standards of Standard of Chinese
(Restatement) Difference Accounting
EH ltem (Note 1) (Note 2) Standards
- 119N Gross revenue 3,597,033,209.79 3,597,033,209.79
EEERF Total operating costs 3,511,550,492.60 (1,287,929.33)  3,510,262,563.27
BENA Operating cost 2,760,385,994.80 2,760,385,994.80
SER S RMM Business taxes and surcharges 29,952,900.45 29,952,900.45
ER Costs 353,774,618.80 353,774,618.80
EEER Administrative expenses 304,545,001.43 (1,287,929.33) 308,257,072.10
HBER Financial expenses 67,591,007.63 67,591,007.63
BERNERR Assets imparment loss (4,699,030.51) (4,699,030.51)
HtEhE Other investment incomes 5,297,149.68 5,297,149.68
BEXNE Operating profit 90,779,866.87 1,287,929.33 92,067,796.20
o EEINRA Add: non-operating income 52,812,749.90 52,812,749.90
W EEIN Less: non-operating expenditures 27,150,931.07 27,150,931.07
b= Total profit 116,441,685.70 1,287,920.33  117,729,615.08
A ERER Less: Income Tax Expense 23,527,675.06 193,189.40 23,720,864.46
BFE Net Profit 92,914,010.64 1,094,739.93 94,008,750.57
Hiizaka Other comprehensive incomes (16,054,163.25) (16,054,163.25)
Gelkaea Total Comprehensive Income 76,859,847.39 1,094,739.93 77,954,587.32
BHERER Net profit attributable to: -
ARARE Company shareholder 81,967,517.24 1,094,739.93 83,062,257.17
DHERR Minority shareholders 10,946,493.40 10,946,493.40
HekatvERER Total comprehensive income
attributable to: -
ARARE Company shareholder 65,717,905.17 1,094,739.93 66,812,645.10
LERR Minority shareholders 11,141,942.22 11,141,942.22
BHRRE Earnings per share:
EAGRWEARKEES)  Basic eamings per share
(RMB/share) 0.18 0.18
mESREE(AKESEK)  Diuted eamings per share
(RMB/share) 0.18 0.18
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2.

FigstEnEShE SR 2. Reconciliation of rights and profits of shareholders
TEREGHEFENHHEHIEZ) when Hong Kong accounting standards are converted to
Chinese accounting standards (Continued)
2 R-E—AF+-F=1+— (2) Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity as of
ABRERZIER December 31, 2015
FaE
EREE EHER HERH
(Esk) (1) AR (E2) EREE
Statements
of Hong Kong
Accounting Adjustment Statements
Standards of Standard of Chinese
(Restatement) Difference Accounting
EH ltem (Note 1) (note 2) Standards
RBEE : Current assets:
BEKES Monetary funds 476,288,884.09 476,288,884.09
EUEE Bill receivables 225,146,715.24 225,146,715.24
FEURER SR Account recelvables 314,348,372.90 314,348,372.90
BRNFE Prepayments 23,862,000.43 23,862,000.43
FEUF S Interests receivable 1,937,851.12 1,937,851.12
H A UK Other receivables 42,363,264.11 42,363,264.11
"E Inventories 546,460,168.40 546,460,168.40
HEtnBERE Other current assets 21,072,010.76 21,072,010.76
nOEESH Total current assets 1,651,479,267.05 1,651,479,267.05
FRBEE Non-current assets: -
ARPESREE Financial assets avallable for sale 200,431,648.00 200,431,648.00
REUREME Investment real estate 78,919,116.83 78,919,116.83
EE&E Fixed assets 2,070,424,188.32 2,070,424,188.32
EETRE Projects under construction 155,326,282.87 155,326,282.87
EVEE Intangible assets 294,564,809.70 294,564,809.70
ERFEHEE Deferred income tax assets 25,577,123.86 25,577,123.86
HibEnBEE Other non-current assets 15,400,000.00 15,400,000.00
ERBDEEA Total non-current assets 2,840,643,169.58 - 2,840,643,169.58
BEMH Total assets 4,492,122,436.63 - 4,492,122,436.63
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2. FESH#FERABSGhEEHEL 2. Reconciliation of rights and profits of shareholders
TrREESHEFBHEEZ) when Hong Kong accounting standards are converted to
Chinese accounting standards (Continued)
2 R-E—AF+-A=+— (20 Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity as of
ARRRBRAIEIE (E) December 31, 2015 (Continued)
?%Eﬂ' )
#RHE EHER EFE!:'I'
(E5k) (1) AR (E2) HRlEmE
Statements
of Hong Kong
Accounting Adjustment Statements
Standards of Standard of Chinese
(Restatement) Difference Accounting
BH Item (Note 1) (note 2) Standards
RENRRER Liability and shareholders’ entity
mEALMR: Current liabilities:
REER Short-term loans 530,000,000.00 530,000,000.00
ERZE Notes payable 215,648,469.78 215,648,469.78
BRI Accounts payable 380,787,628.21 380,787,628.21
MR Accounts received in advance 40,445,572.01 40,445 ,572.01
FE A58 T 370 Payroll payable 26,256,177.11 4,626,135.54 30,882,312.65
R Tax payable 16,464,788.72 16,464,788.72
FERFIE, Interests payable 1,206,341.11 1,206,341.11
JE AR Dividends payable 5,310,599.53 5,310,599.53
HiERZ Other payables 140,023,098.13 140,023,098.13
—FRIERERSAR Non-current liabilities due within one
year 585,544,786.58 585,544,786.58
Himeha Other current liabilities 5,295,920.33 (693,920.33) 4,602,000.00
mERE D Subtotal of current liabilities 1,946,983,381.51 3,982,215.21  1,950,915,596.72
ERBALR: Non-current liabilities:
RAER Long-term loans 378,200,000.00 378,200,000.00
RUERT Long-term payables 52,011,490.15 52,011,490.15
SRR Special payables 15,420,000.00 15,420,000.00
BT Deferred incomes 97,909,029.94 97,909,029.94
EEFEH AR Deferred Income Tax Liability 10,022,501.42 10,022,501.42
HiFemaa i Other non-current liabilities 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
FRBRR N Subtotal of non-current liabilities ~ 557,124,521.51 - 557,124,521.51
BELH Total Liabilities 2,504,107,903.02 3,932,215.21  2,508,040,118.23
BRES Shareholders’ equity
BA Capital stock 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
N Capital reserves 513,092,452.66 513,092,452.66
Hipfra e Other comprehensive incomes 148,383,251.38 148,383,251.38
BHARE Surplus reserves 213,858,399.20 (393,22152)  213,465,177.68
AR EHIE \ Undistributed profits 555,541,842.91 (3,588,993.69)  552,002,849.22
SENRDRREESR/ NGt Subtotal of equity attributable to
shareholders of the company 1,888,188,776.15 (3,932,215.21)  1,884,256,560.94
SERRER Minority interest 99,825,757.46 00,825,757.46
BRESSH Total of shareholders’ equity 1,988,014,533.61 (3,932,215.21)  1,984,082,318.40
REMBRRER S Total of liabilities and
shareholders’ equity 4,492,122,436.63 - 4,492,122,436.63
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XVIIl. Supplementary Information (Continued)

2. Reconciliation of rights and profits of shareholders
when Hong Kong accounting standards are converted to
Chinese accounting standards (Continued)

(2) Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity as of
December 31, 2015 (Continued)

10 IR ER AR B BT IREB 0B M A Note 1:  in accordance with the Enterprise Accounting Standards
(ZESFHE) KB (EAS) issued by the Ministry of Finance of China and
TEH2015FE B ST 4R the relevant provisions, the statements of Hong Kong
WEREIT T E Accounting Standards of 2015 were restated.

it REBLREMZGEE Note 2:  the adjustment of the difference between the accounting
AlEpE M EEFEAE standards generally adopted by Hong Kong and the
ERRBEROT : Chinese Accounting Standards for enterprises is as follows:

BHE BHE
Net Profit Net Assets
sE0H TEEE FEH TS
Amount of Amount of Amount of Amount of
] Item Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
REBEHENFET AR Attributable to the parent company based on Hong
Kong Accounting Standards 81,967,517.24 49,963,779.11  1,888,188,776.15  1,825,717,127.58

ZEHRE:

1. HEEHS

2. BEFEHYE
ERFLT

B (CReER) BRELT

Difference adjustment:

1. Education reserves 1,287,929.33 895,919.93 (4,626,135.54) (5,914,064.87)
2. Impacts of deferred income tax assets (193,189.40) (134,387.99) 693,920.33 887,109.73
Subtotal of difference adjustment 1,094,739.93 761,531.94 (3,932,215.21) (6,026,955.14)
Attributable to the parent company based on

Enterprise Accounting Standards 83,062,257.17 50,725,311.05  1,884,256,560.94  1,820,690,172.44

3. SFHENGERSKRED

BEGE

Profit for the Reporting Period

3. Return on net worth and earnings per share

shika
EFY Earnings per share (EPS)
BEERRE%) BEXERER BESkEE
Weighted Average
ROA(%) Basic EPS Diluted EPS
2015E 2014FF 20155E 2014FE 2015FE 20145F%

Year 2015 Year 2014 Year 2015 Year2014 Year2015 VYear 2014

FRNERARRA

Net profit attributable to shareholders

FHE of the parent company 4.44% 2.81% 0.18 0.11 0.18 0.1
B IEEFEBEE  Net profit attributable to shareholders
SENRARIRER  of the parent company after
EFE deducting non-recurring profit and
loss 2.19% 0.50% 0.09 0.02 0.09 0.02
m;“*g%’?@ ﬁ"aﬂ"*ﬁ SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED
—= VAN p— —

March 30, 2016
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BEXH

Documents Available for Inspection

(i)

(i)

BEEER  MHARA  UHEED
EEEL Y EENGRE -

HAESHMEBMES - EMEstames
AW EENBARERT

WEHANET EEESEERA LA
REBOMADAROERRAENR

RRNFKRRER)
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 signed
by the Chairman of the Board, the financial controller of the Company
and the manager of the finance department.

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 signed by
the Certified Public Accountants both from domestic and international
auditors with their respective company seals.

All original copies of the Company’s announcements and Company’s
documents made in newspapers designated by the CSRC in the

reporting period.

The Articles of Association of the Company.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Address: Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC
Postal Code: 255005

Tel: 86-533-216 6666

Fax: 86-533-228 7508

Website: http://www.xhzy.com
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